. : O Dr. Christopher Harvey, Mayor
CI'TY F Emily Hill, Mayor Pro Tem, Place 1

MANOR Anne Weir, Place 2
Maria Amezcua, Place 3

EST. % 1872 Sonia Wallace, Place 4
Aaron Moreno, Place 5

| T EXAS Deja Hill, Place 6

City Council Regular Meeting
Wednesday, May 17, 2023 at 7:00 PM
Manor City Hall, Council Chambers, 105 E. Eggleston St.

AGENDA

This meeting will be live-streamed on Manor's YouTube Channel
You can access the meeting at https://www.youtube.com/@cityofmanorsocial/streams

CALL TO ORDER AND ANNOUNCE A QUORUM IS PRESENT
INVOCATION
PLEDGE OF ALLEGIANCE
PROCLAMATIONS

A. Declaring the week of May 21-27, 2023, as “Public Works Week”
PUBLIC COMMENTS

Non-Agenda Item Public Comments (white card): Comments will be taken from the audience on non-
agenda-related topics for a length of time, not to exceed three (3) minutes per person.

Agenda Item Public Comments (yellow card): Comments will be taken from the audience on non-agenda
and agenda items combined for a length of time, not to exceed five (5) minutes total per person on all
items, except for Public Hearings. Comments on Public Hearing items must be made when the item comes
before the Council and, not to exceed two (2) minutes per person. No Action or Discussion May be Taken
by the City Council during Public Comments on Non-Agenda Items.

To address the City Council, please complete the white or yellow card and present it to the City Secretary,
or designee prior to the meeting.

PRESENTATION

A. 2023 TML Small Town Conference Update, presented by Mayor Harvey.

Manor City Council Regular Meeting Agenda 5/17/2023 - Page 1



https://www.youtube.com/@cityofmanorsocial/streams

PUBLIC HEARINGS

1,

[~

Conduct a public hearing on an ordinance rezoning five (5) lots on .23 acres, more or
less, out of the South 40 ft of Lots 6-10, Block 1, AE Lanes Addition, and being located
at 707 Bastrop St, Manor, TX from Single-Family Suburban (SF-1) to Two-Family
Residential (TF).

Applicant: Saavy ATX Realty LLC

Owner: Wenkai Chen

Submitted by: Scott Dunlop, Development Services Director

Conduct a public hearing on an ordinance rezoning one (1) lot on 1.069 acres, more or
less, out of the Gates G Survey 63, Abstract 315 and being located at 13500 FM 973,
Manor, TX from Industrial Light (IN-1) to Commercial Light (C-1).

Applicant: Henry Juarez

Owner: Henry Juarez

Submitted by: Scott Dunlop, Development Services Director

CONSENT AGENDA

All of the following items on the Consent Agenda are considered to be self-explanatory by the Council and will be
enacted with one motion. There will be no separate discussion of these items unless requested by the Mayor or a
Council Member; in which event, the item will be removed from the consent agenda and considered separately.

3.

[~

[o

Consideration, discussion, and possible action to approve the City Council Minutes of
May 3, 2023, City Council Regular Meeting.
Submitted by: Lluvia T. Almaraz, City Secretary

Consideration, discussion, and possible action on accepting the April 2023
Departmental Reports.
Submitted by: Scott Moore, City Manager

* Police — Ryan Phipps, Chief of Police

» Finance — Lydia Collins, Director of Finance

e Travis County ESD No. 12 — Ryan Smith, Fire Chief

» Economic Development — Scott Jones, Economic Development Director
» Development Services — Scott Dunlop, Development Services Director

» Community Development — Debbie Charbonneau, Heritage and Tourism Manager
e Municipal Court — Sarah Friberg, Court Clerk

» Public Works — Matt Woodard, Director of Public Works

e Manor Cemetery — Nora Sanchez, MC Manager

* Human Resources — Tracey Vasquez, HR Manager

* IT — Phil Green, IT Director

» Administration — Lluvia T. Almaraz, City Secretary

Consideration, discussion, and possible action on the Purchase Agreements with Carlota
Nunez and Simon Nunez for a wastewater easement with a temporary construction
easement.

Submitted by: Scott Moore, City Manager

Manor City Council Regular Meeting Agenda 5/17/2023 - Page 2




REGULAR AGENDA

6.

[~

|

|©

Consideration, discussion, and possible action on an Interlocal Agreement Between
Manor Independent School District and the City of Manor for the Summer Library
Program.

Submitted by: Scott Moore, City Manager

First Reading: Consideration, discussion, and possible action on an Ordinance
rezoning five (5) lots on .23 acres, more or less, out of the South 40 ft of Lots 6-10,
Block 1, AE Lanes Addition, and being located at 707 Bastrop St, Manor, TX from
Single-Family Suburban (SF-1) to Two-Family Residential (TF).

Applicant: Saavy ATX Realty LLC

Owner: Wenkai Chen

Submitted by: Scott Dunlop, Development Services Director

First Reading: Consideration, discussion, and possible action on an ordinance rezoning
one (1) lot on 1.069 acres, more or less, out of the Gates G Survey 63, Abstract 315 and
being located at 13500 FM 973, Manor, TX from Industrial Light (IN-1) to
Commercial Light (C-1).

Applicant: Henry Juarez

Owner: Henry Juarez

Submitted by: Scott Dunlop, Development Services Director

Consideration, discussion, and possible action on a Performance Bond Extension
request for the Village at Manor Commons Phase 3.
Submitted by: Scott Dunlop, Development Services Director

Consideration, discussion, and possible action on a resolution of the City of Manor,
Texas, approving and authorizing the Manor Heights Public Improvement District
Reimbursement Agreement (Improvement Area #3).

Submitted by: Scott Dunlop, Development Services Director

Consideration, discussion, and possible action on the City of Manor Fiscal Year 2023-
2024 Budget Priorities with the Legislative Agenda.
Submitted by: Lydia Collins, Finance Director

Consideration, discussion, and possible action on a resolution to conduct a public
hearing to consider amendment of Water and Wastewater Community Impact Fees as
recommended by the Advisory Committee.

Submitted by: Pauline M. Gray, P.E., City Engineer

Consideration, discussion, and possible action on the approval to submit the FY2023
Project Improvement List to Capital Metro.
Submitted by: Pauline M. Gray, P.E., City Engineer

Manor City Council Regular Meeting Agenda 5/17/2023 - Page 3




14. Consideration, discussion, and possible action on a change order to the construction
contract for the Cottonwood Creek Phase 2 Wastewater Collection System
Improvement project.

Submitted by: Frank T. Phelan, P.E., City Engineer

15. Consideration, discussion, and possible action on a statement of work for engineering
services for the Manor Commercial Park Wastewater Collection System & Carriage
Hills Lift Station #5 Improvements project.
Submitted by: Frank T. Phelan, P.E., City Engineer

16. Consideration, discussion, and possible action on the 2022 Fall Inflow and Infiltration
Report.
Submitted by: Frank T. Phelan, P.E., City Engineer

17. Consideration, discussion, and possible action on an amendment to the Space Needs
Assessment and Facilities Master Plan Contract with PGAL.
Submitted by: Lydia Collins, Finance Director

18. Consideration, discussion, and possible action on creating the City Facilities Design
Committee; and appointing Mayor Harvey and two (2) City Councilmembers to the
City Facilities Design Committee with City staff.
Submitted by: Lydia Collins, Finance Director

19. Consideration, discussion, and possible action on approving and authorizing the Scope
of Work included in the Request for Proposals for City Branding and Ongoing
Communications Services.

Submitted by: Scott Jones, Economic Development Director

20. Consideration, discussion, and possible action on an ordinance of the City of Manor,
Texas, repealing Ordinance No. 309.
Submitted by: Scott Jones, Economic Development Director

EXECUTIVE SESSION

The City Council will now Convene into executive session pursuant to the provisions of Chapter 551
Texas Government Code, in accordance with the authority contained in:

- Sections 551.071, and 551.087, Texas Government Code, and Section 1.05, Texas Disciplinary
Rules of Professional Conduct to consult with legal counsel regarding EntradaGlen PID;

- Section 551.071, Texas Government Code, and Section 1.05, Texas Disciplinary Rules of
Professional Conduct to consult with legal counsel regarding Multi-Family Project Development
Using Public Facility Corporations; and

- Section 551.071 and Section 551.087, Texas Government Code to deliberate on the acquisition of
real property

Manor City Council Regular Meeting Agenda 5/17/2023 - Page 4




OPEN SESSION

The City Council will now reconvene into Open Session pursuant to the provisions of Chapter 551 Texas
Government Code and take action, if any, on item(s) discussed during Closed Executive Session.

ADJOURNMENT

In addition to any executive session already listed above, the City Council reserves the right to adjourn into
executive session at any time during the course of this meeting to discuss any of the matters listed above, as
authorized by Texas Government Code Section §551.071 (Consultation with Attorney), 8551.072 (Deliberations
regarding Real Property), 8551.073 (Deliberations regarding Gifts and Donations), 8551.074 (Personnel Matters),
§551.076 (Deliberations regarding Security Devices) and 8551.087 (Deliberations regarding Economic
Development Negotiations).

CONFLICT OF INTEREST

In accordance with Section 12.04 (Conflict of Interest) of the City Charter, “No elected or appointed officer or employee of
the city shall participate in the deliberation or decision on any issue, subject or matter before the council or any board or
commission, if the officer or employee has a personal financial or property interest, direct or indirect, in the issue, subject or
matter that is different from that of the public at large. An interest arising from job duties, compensation or benefits payable
by the city shall not constitute a personal financial interest.”

Further, in accordance with Chapter 171, Texas Local Government Code (Chapter 171), no City Council member and no City
officer may vote or participate in discussion of a matter involving a business entity or real property in which the City Council
member or City officer has a substantial interest (as defined by Chapter 171) and action on the matter will have a special
economic effect on the business entity or real property that is distinguishable from the effect on the general public. An affidavit
disclosing the conflict of interest must be filled out and filed with the City Secretary before the matter is discussed.

POSTING CERTIFICATION

I, the undersigned authority do hereby certify that this Notice of Meeting was posted on the bulletin board, at the City Hall of
the City of Manor, Texas, a place convenient and readily accessible to the general public at all times, and said Notice was
posted on the following date and time: Friday, May 12, 2023, by 5:00 PM and remained so posted continuously for at least 72
hours preceding the scheduled time of the said meeting.

/s/ Lluvia T. Almaraz, TRMC
City Secretary for the City of Manor, Texas

NOTICE OF ASSISTANCE AT PUBLIC MEETINGS:

The City of Manor is committed to compliance with the Americans with Disabilities Act. Manor City Hall and the Council
Chambers are wheelchair-accessible and accessible parking spaces are available. Requests for accommodations or interpretive
services must be made 10 days prior to this meeting. Please contact the City Secretary at 512.215.8285 or e-
mail lalmaraz@manortx.gov

Manor City Council Regular Meeting Agenda 5/17/2023 - Page 5



mailto:lalmaraz@manortx.gov

THE

1872 P B

> NATIONAL PU WORKS WEEK

MANOR : - 4 ) "o CoNNECTING
é 'ORLD

PROCLAMATION

Whereas, Public Works professionals focus on infrastructure, facilities, and services that
are of vital importance to sustainable resilient communities and to the public health, high
quality of life, and well-being of the people of the City of Manor; and

Whereas, these infrastructure, facilities, and services could not be provided without the
dedicated efforts of public works professionals, who are water and wastewater operators,
utility, street employees and management at all levels of government and the private sector,
who are responsible for rebuilding, improving, and protecting our nation’s transportation,
water supply, water treatment, streets and solid waste systems, public buildings, and other
structures and facilities essential for our citizens; and

Whereas, it is in the public interest for citizens, civic leaders, and children in the City of
Manor to gain knowledge of and maintain an ongoing interest and understanding of the
importance of public works and public works programs in their respective communities.

Now, Therefore, I Dr. Christopher Harvey, Mayor of the City of Manor, and on behalf
of the Manor City Council, do hereby proclaim the week of May 21-27, 2023, as:

“National Public Works Week”

in the City of Manor and I urge all citizens to join with representatives of the American Public
Works Association and government agencies in activities, events, and ceremonies designed to
pay tribute to our public works professionals, water and wastewater operators, utility, street
employees and management to recognize the substantial contributions they make to protecting
our national health, safety, and quality of life.

In Witness Whereof, I have hereunto set my hand and caused the seal of the City of Manor to
be affixed this 17" day of May 2023.

Dr. Christopher Harvey, Mayor
City of Manor

Item A.




Iltem 1.

AGENDA ITEM NO. 1

M CITY OF

MANOR

EST. ‘*’ 1872
| TEXAS

AGENDA ITEM SUMMARY FORM

PROPOSED MEETING DATE: May 17, 2023
PREPARED BY: Scott Dunlop, Director
DEPARTMENT: Development Services

AGENDA ITEM DESCRIPTION:

Conduct a public hearing on an ordinance rezoning five (5) lots on .23 acres, more or less, out of the South 40 ft of
Lots 6-10, Block 1, AE Lanes Addition, and being located at 707 Bastrop St, Manor, TX from Single-Family Suburban
(SF-1) to Two-Family Residential (TF).

Applicant: Saavy ATX Realty LLC

Owner: Wenkai Chen

BACKGROUND/SUMMARY:

This is a narrow (40) but deep (250’) lot on North Bastrop Street. Sometime in the 1980s, or possibly even 1950s,
the 5 lots on West Lane Ave were broken up and the back 40’ of each lot was sold to create this 40’ x 250’ lot. Its
unique size and shape make it more challenging to develop but the applicant is seeking to rezone it from Single
Family Suburban (SF-1) to Two-Family (TF) to be able to place a two-family building on the property. The lot meets
the minimum lot size for a Two-Family lot, it's 10,000 sf while the minimum is 8,750 sf, however, the narrowness
of the lot will require a variance when it is plated to the lot width and setbacks to make development feasible.
These variances would be necessary even if the property remained zoned SF-1.

The Comprehensive Plan’s Future Land Use Map has this general area as Community Mixed-Use which generally
seeks higher densities, but given the character of the neighborhood and unique lot size, a two-family dwelling unit
would be appropriate and achieve some of the goals of the Plan including LU2 — encourage a range of product
types and lot sizes, ED14 — encourage diverse housing in terms of type and affordability to align with workforce
needs, LU. A —encourage a balanced mix of residential, commercial, and employment uses at varying densities and
intensities to reflect the gradual transition from urban to suburban to rural development, LU.B — promote more
compact, higher density, well-connected development within appropriate infill locations, LU 1 — encourage
innovative forms of compact, pedestrian-friendly development and a wider array of affordable housing choices
through smart regulatory provisions and incentives, DU 11 — increase the development of housing units close to
multi-modal infrastructure and mixed-use developments, including in Downtown.

P&Z held a public hearing and discussed how the structure would impact surrounding homes, the use of the alley,
and the architectural detailing. They wanted to see better renderings of the structure and the property owner
agreed to provide those. They postponed action on this item (5-0) to their May 10" meeting.

This item was postponed for a second time at the May 10" P&Z as the applicant was still working with the architect
on a rendering. If this item is not ready by June’s P&Z it will be pulled and re-notified.




LEGAL REVIEW:
FISCAL IMPACT:
PRESENTATION:
ATTACHMENTS:

e Ordinance

e Letter of intent
e Rezone Map

e Aerial Image

STAFF RECOMMENDATION:

Not Applicable
No

No
Yes

Iltem 1.

Conceptual Layout
FLUM

Public Notice
Mailing Labels

Staff recommends that the City Council leave the Public Hearing open until the June 21t Regular Meeting.

PLANNING & ZONING COMMISSION:

Recommend Approval Disapproval None

X- postpone




ORDINANCE NO.

AN ORDINANCE OF THE CITY OF MANOR, TEXAS, AMENDING THE
ZONING ORDINANCE BY REZONING A PARCEL OF LAND FROM
SINGLE FAMILY SUBURBAN (SF-1) TO TWO FAMILY (TF); MAKING
FINDINGS OF FACT; AND PROVIDING FOR RELATED MATTERS.

Whereas, the owner of the property described hereinafter (the "Property™) has requested that
the Property be rezoned,;

Whereas, after giving ten days written notice to the owners of land within three hundred feet
of the Property, the Planning & Zoning Commission held a public hearing on the proposed rezoning
and forwarded its recommendation on the rezoning to the City Council;

Whereas, after publishing notice of the public at least fifteen days prior to the date of such
hearing, the City Council at a public hearing has reviewed the request and the circumstances of the
Property and finds that a substantial change in circumstances of the Property, sufficient to warrant a
change in the zoning of the Property, has transpired;

NOVW, THEREFORE, BE IT ORDAINED BY THE CITY COUNCIL OF THE CITY OF
MANOR, TEXAS, THAT:

Section 1. Findings. The foregoing recitals are hereby found to be true and correct and are
hereby adopted by the City Council and made a part hereof for all purposes as findings of fact.

Section 2. Amendment of Ordinance. City of Manor Code of Ordinances Chapter 14
Zoning Ordinance (""Zoning Ordinance" or "Code"), is hereby modified and amended by rezoning the
Property as set forth in Section 3.

Section 3. Rezoned Property. The Zoning Ordinance is hereby amended by changing the
zoning district for the land and parcel of property described in Exhibit “A” (the “Property”), from
Single Family Suburban (SF-1) to zoning district Two-Family (TF). The Property is accordingly
hereby rezoned to Two Family (TF).

Section 4. Open Meetings. That it is hereby officially found and determined that the meeting
at which this ordinance is passed was open to the public as required and that public notice of the time,
place, and purpose of said meeting was given as required by the Open Meetings Act, Chapt. 551,
Texas Gov't. Code.

Iltem 1.




ORDINANCE NO. Page 2

PASSED AND APPROVED FIRST READING on this the 19 day of April 2023.
PASSED AND APPROVED SECOND AND FINAL READING onthisthe  day of May 2023.

THE CITY OF MANOR, TEXAS

Dr. Christopher Harvey,
Mayor
ATTEST:

Lluvia T. Almaraz, TRMC
City Secretary

Iltem 1.

10




ORDINANCE NO. Page 3
EXHIBIT “A”

Property Address:
707 North Bastrop Street, Manor, TX 78653

Property Legal Description:
The South forty (40) feet of Lots 6, 7, 8, 9 and 10, Block 1, A.E. Lane’s Addition to the Town of

Manor, according to the map or plat thereof, recorded in Volume 2, Page 223, Plat Records, Travis
County, Texas.

Iltem 1.

11




Letter of Intent

March 12, 2023
City of Manor
Development Services Department
Attn: Mr. Scott Dunlop, Director
105 E. Eggleston Street
Manor, Texas 78653

Re: 707 BASTROP ST TX 78653
Dear Mr. Dunlop,
We are writing to you to zone the subject property to TF.

The subject property 707 Bastrop ST TX 78653, Legal description as: S40FT OF LOT 6-10 BLK 1
LANE A E ADDN. The current configuration is 39.94 ft wide and 250 ft long, with a total of 9,986 sqft.

We are requesting to:
1. Zoneitas TF (Two-Family) — currently it doesn’t have zoning assigned ( (per zoning map
downloaded from https://www.cityofmanor.org/), see below. Since the total lot size is 9,986 sqft, we are
proposing the property to TF (Two Family) in support the growth of Manor TX.

Subject Property: 707 BASTROP ST TX 78653

Please see below conceptual design of the proposed TF (duplex).

Item 1.

12



https://www.cityofmanor.org/

Please help to grant these requests and let me know if you have any questions.

Respectfully,

Katherine Chen
Savvy ATX Realty

Item 1.

13




abue reuonmusul - z-1 [
— ri3a llews jeuonniisu - L-| >
| 5 |eawnpeued-and 7/,  swoH pemoemuen - L-HW A ﬂ -_- v _ _ we m =OM -_-
3
- elysnpu| AnesH - z- A -1 -7
tewsnpu Aneen - z-NI [ sz Anwe-mnp - z-an [ "“v@mogo.h&
leuysnpu| 61T - L-NI g1 Anwed-mni - -4 [
ssauisng umoyumo( - ga I sWwoyuMol - H1 I
ssauisng pooyloqyubian - gN I Aweg om| - 41 I
ferosowwod AnesH - ¢-O [l prepuers Alwes ofuis-z-4s |
[e1oIswwod E:__uos_.N.oI ueqingng Ajiwed s|buls - |-4S A —\ - H_ w v C m Q .h 3 Q 3 m > _ _ E m H_ m _ @ C _ w
lersawwo) 61T - -0 leanynouby - v ” H. C m .h .h 3 O
soyo eseuen - 09 [ auoz

J

06¢ Gl O

}S dosyseg "N 202
:Auadoud yo9lgng




Untitled Map

Virite a description for your map.

Google Earth

LN

P O/aNIBEtiopStreet

07 M Ba

CITY QF by
Future Dental
mkLRPHY

hie




- Y INTERIM
~ UNIT "B" REVIEW DOCUMENTS
R NOT FOR REGULATORY
“ APPROVAL, PERMITTING
~ OR CONSTRUCTION
\\\ Daniel B. Shearer
e Tx. Reg. No. 26562
2.28.2023
UNIT "A" I&J 0
~ C
S ()
N s Z. 8%
— ~ n 9 ot O')
S n g LL l__ o
\\ + a_c C g
4 SIGv
O O <«
o o
© 3
&
= o
o (0]
L—) c
—
w ()
/ - %
/ o S
// @ 3D AXONOMETRIC EXHIBIT o
/
/ /
/ /
/ /
/ /
/ /
/ /
/ /
/ /
/ /
, / /
Fe-__ 5
/ ) \SLQE\S\E\TBACK / :
/ e / / ™
/ T / / w =B
, = P8
g g g°
é:)/ T Z = %
2 5 83
a £ Zh
,fll/ @) < 5
! 4 S S
= o ©
Q) ™~ E
2, /
/ /
/ /
/
/
/
// /
L TWO-STORY ]
——— RESIDENCE "B" I
SIDE SE}BAC -~ o //
/ T
/ - - . B /
/
/
j TWO-STORY
/ RESIDENCE "A"
/
/
/
I
T =
/ o - —
/ T —
/ T T T
/ T~
/ // —— _ 2O’ALLEY
/ T —
/ / T
/ / T~
/ / T -
/ / T
/ / T~
/ / T - %)
/ / T — =
/ / —— . z
/ / T » =
— Q
f / —— o =
/ / - £ S
/ J T~ 3
/ / —— z
/ / -
/ T —
/ // T — CONCEPT SITE PLAN INFORMATION:
/ T —
/ / T LOT SIZE: 9,986 SF
/
/ // ] BUILDING COVER:
] UNIT "A": 1,500 SF
/ UNIT "B"™: 1,500 SF
/ / TOTAL: 3,000 SF
/ /
j | PAVED AREA:
] DRIVEWAY: 2,131 SF 228.2023
SIDEWALK: 382 SF
// TOTAL: 2513 SF
] TOTAL IMPERVIOUS COVER: 5,513 SF ARCHITECTURAL
J IMPERVIOUS COVER %: 55.2% SITE PLAN
PRINCIPAL STRUCTURE %:  15%
1 SITE PLAN PRINCIPAL/ACCESSORY %:  30%
1" = 10!_0"
CONCEPT SITE PLAN A-100 16

2/28/2023 7:45:06 PM




COMMUNITY MIXED-USE

The Community Mixed-Use allows a
combination of dense residential and
nonresidential uses in a compact design to
create a walkable environment, but at a larger
scale than Neighborhood Mixed-Use.

The category encourages a density range of 18-
40 dwelling units per acre, although elements
within a coordinated community mixed-use
area could reach higher densities provided
superior access to services and amenities and
appropriate compatibility to adjacent uses is
provided.

Community Mixed-Use areas allow residential
units in close proximity to goods, services and
civic activities, reducing residents’ dependence
on the car.

Community Mixed-Use places a great emphasis
on the following design elements: density,
intensity and scale; the mix of housing;
walkability; streetscapes and a high quality
public realm; parking management; and access
to amenities such as parks, civic spaces and
neighborhood services.

This district is especially appropriate for several
needs that residents of Manor currently look
elsewhere to provide, including:

* Healthcare services, including hospitals.

» Larger employers in a variety of industries
that residents currently commute to
outside of Manor.

» Specialized facilities that support workforce
and skills development, such as information
technology, skilled trades and advanced
manufacturing; provided such facilities fit
the form described above.

78 Destination Manor 2050 Comprehensive Plan

Development
Ratio

= Nonres.

Avg. 21 jobs/acre

Residential

Figure 3.9. Community Mixed-Use Land Use Mix Dashboard

Residential
Development Types

20% 20%

SFD
SFA
= Small MF

= | arge ME
60%

18 to 40 units per acre
Higher densities considered
conditionally (see description)

Medium
High in some circumstances

40%

Item 1.

Nonresidential
Development Types
10%

= Retail
Office
= [ndustrial

Other
50%

Low/Mid-Rise

17




Iltem 1.

DEVELOPMENT TYPE APPROPRIATENESS CONDITIONS

Single-Family Detached
(SED)

®O000

SFD + ADU

®O000O

SFA, Duplex

®O000

Not considered appropriate since the intent is to provide retail, services, activity centers and diversified
housing to support surrounding neighborhoods, achieve strong fiscal performance, and drive community
identity and gathering.

SFA, Townhomes and De-
tached Missing Middle

0000 0

Apartment House (3-4
units)

0000 0

Small Multifamily (8-12
units)

0000 0

This can be appropriate provided that the overall Community Mixed-Use area also contains mixed-use
buildings and/or shopping centers with which this product integrates in a manner to promote walkability
and access. Can be utilized as a transition between Community Mixed-Use and other uses. These develop-
ment types should be located on secondary roads rather than primary thoroughfares, as primary frontages
are best reserved for ground-floor retail and services.

Large Multifamily (12+

units) 00600

Mixed-Use Urban, Neigh- 00000 This is the ideal form of development within the Community Mixed Use category; provides for activity
borhood Scale centers, retail, services and diverse housing options. Design should emphasize the pedestrian experience

Mixed-Use Urban, Com-
munity Scale

rather than people driving automobiles. Vertical mixed-use is likely most appropriate, in order to achieve
the intended densities. Ground floor uses are encouraged to be food and beverage or pedestrian-oriented
retail and services, to promote foot traffic and activity.

Shopping Center, Neigh-
borhood Scale

00000

Shopping Center, Commu-
nity Scale

00000

While less preferred, this use can provide retail and services near housing, promoting walkability and
10-minute neighborhoods. Becomes more appropriate if a horizontal approach to mixed-use is deployed.

Light Industrial Flex Space

00000

Not generally considered appropriate due to lower sales tax generation and limited ability to design at pe-
destrian scale, but can be if particularly small-scale and included alongside more appropriate development
types, or with integration of a storefront experience.

Manufacturing Q@O0O000 Not considered appropriate.

Civic 00000 Considered supportlvle to thei functlon and hvabllllt.y of this future land use category, government buildings,
schools and community facilities can serve as activity hubs.

Parks and Open Space 00000 Generally considered appropriate or compatible within all Land Use Categories.

Land Use and Development =




3/27/2023

City of Manor Development Services

Notification for a Subdivision Rezoning Application

Project Name: 707 Bastrop St Rezoning SF-1 to TF
Case Number: 2023-P-1523-Z0

Case Manager: Michael Burrell

Contact: mburrell@manortx.gov — 512-215-8158

The City of Manor Planning and Zoning Commission and City Council will be conducting a
Regularly Scheduled meeting for the purpose of considering and acting upon on a Rezoning
Application for 707 Bastrop Street, Manor, TX. The request will be posted on the agenda as
follows:

Public Hearing: Conduct a public hearing on Rezoning Application for five (5) lots on .23 acres,
more or less, out of the South 40 ft of Lots 6-10, Block 1, AE Lanes Addition, and being located
at 707 Bastrop St, Manor, TX from Single-Family Suburban (SF-1) to Two-Family Residential
(TF).

Applicant: SAVVY ATX REALTY LIMITED LIABILITY COMPANY

Owner: Wenkai Chen

The Planning and Zoning Commission will meet at 6:30PM on April 12, 2023 at 105 East
Eggleston Street in the City Hall Council Chambers.

The Manor City Council will meet at 7:00 PM on April 19, 2023 at 105 East Eggleston Street in
the City Hall Council Chambers.

You are being notified because you own property within 300 feet of the property for which
this Subdivision Rezoning Application has been filed. Comments may be addressed to the
email address or phone number above. Any communications received will be made available
to the Commissioners during the discussion of this item.

105 E. EGGLESTON STREET * P.O. Box 387 ® MANOR, TEXAS 78653
(T) 512.272.5555 » (F) 512.272.8636 * www.CITYOFMANOR.ORG

Iltem 1.

19



mailto:mburrell@manortx.gov

MARTINEZ ORALIA
1301 CHICON ST 303
AUSTIN TX 78702-2154

JASMIN SHAKESPEARE & LINDA
PO BOX 455 MANOR TX 78653-0455

GUERRERO JOSE
& MAXIMINA CLEMENS
307 W TOWNES ST
MANOR TX 78653-2107

LOZANO BENJAMIN KEEF
8005 Briarwood Ln
Austin TX 78757-8111

TREJO GERARDO &
JENNIFER | BARAHONA DE TREJO
801 CALDWELL ST
MANOR TX 78653-3318

GARCIA EDWARD
PO BOX 452
MANOR TX 78653-0452

JOHNSON ONNIE MAE LIFE ESTATE
PO BOX 228
MANOR TX 78653-0228

CERON AMPARO PATRICIA C & MIGUEL

ANEL CASTILLO MENDIETA
305 W TOWNES ST
MANOR TX 78653-2107

ECKART STEPHEN
PO BOX 170309
AUSTIN TX 78717-0019

ROMERO RONALDO & ANTONIA
5808 HERON DR
BUDA TX US 78610

SEPECO
PO BOX 170309
AUSTIN TX 78717-0019

RIVER CITY PARTNERS LTD
501 E KOENIG LN
AUSTIN TX 78751-1426

ROBINSON WALTER L

& CURTIS ROBINSON

3608 EAGLES NEST ST
ROUND ROCK TX 78665-1131

MANOR INDEPENDENT SCHOOL
DISTR DISTRICT
PO BOX 359
MANOR TX 78653-0359

Iltem 1.

PAZ NAUL MAURICIO & ZOILA MORE
1116 CANYON MAPLE RD
PFLUGERVILLE TX 78660-5808

JACKSON BONNIE & VSYNTHIA
LENA MCCOY
PO BOX 985
MANOR TX 78653-0985

FORREST DELORES M
3262 KESTRAL WAY
SACRAMENTO CA 95833-9616

BARRS PHYLLISY & SANDRA V

& S MCCARTHER LIFE ESTATE
13604 HARRIS RIDGE BLVD UNIT A

PFLUGERVILLE TX 78660-8892

SHAW HUGHIE L & RUBY L
8808 CINCH LN # 1060
AUSTIN TX 78724-5011

LUNA BENITA GONZALEZ
802 N BASTROP ST
MANOR TX 78653-5430

TURMAN THOMAS M
21609 UNION LEE CHURCH RD
MANOR TX 78653-5329

20




Item 2.

AGENDA ITEM NO. 2

S CITY OF

MANOR

|| |} EST. ‘* 1872
HiTEXAS

AGENDA ITEM SUMMARY FORM

PROPOSED MEETING DATE: May 17, 2023
PREPARED BY: Scott Dunlop, Director
DEPARTMENT: Development Services

AGENDA ITEM DESCRIPTION:

Conduct a public hearing on an ordinance rezoning one (1) lot on 1.069 acres, more or less, out of the Gates G
Survey 63, Abstract 315 and being located at 13500 FM 973, Manor, TX from Industrial Light (IN-1) to Commercial
Light (C-1).

Applicant: Henry Juarez

Owner: Henry Juarez

BACKGROUND/SUMMARY:

This property was annexed on April 20", 2016, and zoned Light Industrial (IN-1) also on April 20%", 2016. At the time
the adjacent 40-acre property was zoned Light Industrial, and this 1-acre tract was intended to be a contractor’s
shop for a plumbing company that occupies the site. The adjacent 40-acre tract was rezoned to Institutional Large
(1-2) on September 1%, 2021, for the MISD K-8 Campus. The Comprehensive Plan has the majority of the portion of
N. FM 973 south of Gregg Lane as Commercial Corridor or Community Mixed-Use, both which align with the uses
in the requested Light Commercial C-1 zoning category.

P&Z voted 7-0 to recommend approval.

LEGAL REVIEW: Not Applicable
FISCAL IMPACT: No
PRESENTATION: No
ATTACHMENTS: Yes
e Ordinance e Preliminary Site Layout
e Letter of Intent e FLUM
e Rezoning map e Commercial Corridor Dashboard
e Aerial Image e Community Mixed-Use Dashboard

e Notice and Mailing Labels

STAFF RECOMMENDATION:

It is the City Staff’s recommendation that the City Council conduct a public hearing on an ordinance rezoning one
(1) lot on 1.069 acres, more or less, out of the Gates G Survey 63, Abstract 315 and being located at 13500 FM
973, Manor, TX from Industrial Light (IN-1) to Commercial Light (C-1).

PLANNING & ZONING COMMISSION: Recommend Approval Disapproval None
X

21




ORDINANCE NO.

AN ORDINANCE OF THE CITY OF MANOR, TEXAS, AMENDING THE
ZONING ORDINANCE BY REZONING A PARCEL OF LAND FROM
LIGHT INDUSTRIAL (IN-1) TO LIGHT COMMERCIAL (C-1); MAKING
FINDINGS OF FACT; AND PROVIDING FOR RELATED MATTERS.

Whereas, the owner of the property described hereinafter (the "Property") has requested that
the Property be rezoned;

Whereas, after giving ten days written notice to the owners of land within three hundred feet
of the Property, the Planning & Zoning Commission held a public hearing on the proposed rezoning
and forwarded its recommendation on the rezoning to the City Council;

Whereas, after publishing notice of the public at least fifteen days prior to the date of such
hearing, the City Council at a public hearing has reviewed the request and the circumstances of the
Property and finds that a substantial change in circumstances of the Property, sufficient to warrant a
change in the zoning of the Property, has transpired,;

NOW, THEREFORE, BE IT ORDAINED BY THE CITY COUNCIL OF THE CITY OF
MANOR, TEXAS, THAT:

Section 1. Findings. The foregoing recitals are hereby found to be true and correct and are
hereby adopted by the City Council and made a part hereof for all purposes as findings of fact.

Section 2. Amendment of Ordinance. City of Manor Code of Ordinances Chapter 14
Zoning Ordinance ("Zoning Ordinance™ or "Code"), is hereby modified and amended by rezoning the
Property as set forth in Section 3.

Section 3. Rezoned Property. The Zoning Ordinance is hereby amended by changing the
zoning district for the land and parcel of property described in Exhibits “A” (the “Property”), from
Light Industrial (IN-1) to zoning district Light Commercial (C-1). The Property is accordingly hereby
rezoned to Light Commercial (C-1).

Section 4. Open Meetings. That it is hereby officially found and determined that the meeting
at which this ordinance is passed was open to the public as required and that public notice of the time,
place, and purpose of said meeting was given as required by the Open Meetings Act, Chapt. 551,
Texas Gov't. Code.

Item 2.

22




ORDINANCE NO. Page 2

PASSED AND APPROVED FIRST READING on this the 17" day of May 2023,
PASSED AND APPROVED SECOND AND FINAL READING onthisthe ___day of June 2023.

THE CITY OF MANOR, TEXAS

Dr. Christopher Harvey,
Mayor
ATTEST:

Lluvia T. Almaraz, TRMC
City Secretary

Item 2.

23




ORDINANCE NO. Page 3
EXHIBIT “A”
Property Address: 13500 N. FM 973 Manor, TX 78653
Property Legal Description:

1.069 acres of land more or less, being all of that certain 1.062 acres of land of the Greenbury Gates
Survey No. 63, Travis County, Texas as conveyed to Michael and James Paclik Jr. by warranty
deed recorded in Document Number 2013171610, Official Pubic Records, Travis County, Texas;
more particularly described by metes and bounds as follows:

BEGINNING at an iron rod with cap in the west right-of-way of F.M. 973 at the S.E. corner of that
certain 1.062 acres of land recorded in Document Number 2013171610, Official Public Records,
Travis County, Texas; for the S.E. corner hereof, from which point a spindle found on the east right-
of-way of F.M. 973 bears S 58° 26’ 39” E at a distance of 40.44 feet;

THENCE N 62° 05 04” W for a distance of 189.74 feet to a 14" iron rod found for the S.W. corner
hereof;

THENCE N 28° 08’ 03” E for a distance of 247.31 feet to a %4 iron rod found for the N.W. corner
hereof;

THENCE S 61° 39’ 20” E for a distance of 188.00 feet to an iron rod with cap found on the west
right-of-way of F.M. 973 for the N.E. corner hereof;

THENCE S 27° 43° 45” W along the west right-of-way of F.M. 973 for a distance of 245.90 feet to
the POINT OF BEGINNING, containing 1.069 acres of land, more or less.

Item 2.

24




April 10, 2023

City Of Manor

Development Services Department
Attn: Mr. Scott Dunlop, Director
105 E. Eggleston Street

Manor, Texas 78653

RE:  Letter of Intent
Rezoning Request — 13500 FM 973

Dear Mr. Dunlop,

Please accept this Letter of Intent for a Rezoning Request for the subject property located at
13500 FM 973 in Manor, Texas 78653. The TCAD Parcel Property ID is 786707, is 1.069 acres
in size, and is legally described as Abstract 315 Survey 63 Gates G Acreage 1.0690 in Travis
County, Texas.

The property is currently zoned IN-1 and we are requesting to change to C-1. The property is
current in use as a plumbing company. The property owner wants to remove the existing
building and construct a new building with parking for restaurant use.

The property is on the border between Public/Semi-Public, Mixed-Density Neighborhood, and
Commercial Corridor future land use as per the City’'s Comprehensive Plan 2050. The
proposed restaurant development will follow City of Manor's vision and guidelines for
development in that area and will be complementary to the existing and future neighborhoods.

Please feel free to contact me at (512) 576-4399 or at juarezje@gmail.com if you have any
questions or require additional information.

Respectfully submitted,

Henry Juarez
Development Consultant

Item 2.

25




Item 2.

T T
§ % Moy o

S
S
%o, S S
T ﬁ@ SAS
". oy “* TV S/ "’/"

Uyl S/
oS S @

N
S
S

U
B

Nq vy

)

sy
Sy /
775\

Jjﬁfs G
g RR
Gg e/ / //(
==
SN

<N Sey
“"'l' o,
"‘

1]
< TERe, %
by iy
" N
N,
R,

==E/E

7/
0 375 750 1,500

Feetoo HWY WB

| E US 290 HWY EB

i

C urren t . Zone Il GO - General Office
- A - Agricultural C-1 - Light Commercial
L | g h t I n d us t r | a I ( I N - 1 ) SF-1 - Single Family Suburban [ C-2 - Medium Commercial
SF-2 - Single Family Standard - C-3 - Heavy Commercial
- TF - Two Family - NB - Neighborhood Business
[ TH-Townhome Il 0B - Downtown Business
P ro p ose d . I MF-1 - Multi-Family 15 IN-1 - Light Industrial
. . I VF-2 - Multi-Family 25 Il N-2 - Heavy Industrial
L | g h t C ommercila I ( C - 1 ) MH-1 - Manufactured Home "/, PUD - Planned Unit D
I-1 - Institutional Small ETJ 26
I -2 - institutional Large




13500 FM 973

rite a description far your map.

A,
ey

5 g &ff{ﬁ'{n Eﬁﬁ_ﬁk‘éeping Services,
™ 'b._l- - i -

/1350

oy
JLS#403 ?_5 4

1

i : : % & .
ﬂ: E M?S JE-?: Fﬂu:rﬁﬁ Ine. |

‘l: -

)

Fik

ture 1

-
- M=
il i %

200 ft

¥ UM Plumbing, Inc. MLS#40335

Bl




Item 2.

28




Item 2.

ot &
$AF9NNN L 93UG
LAYHASY 40 4904
cm_L o&@
PR PR G ININZY 1102 ° _\/_ ° “_
SN
ZQ;?%QMQZMZ&QO 21L430N0D 20 1M 92
= |J// LIVHIOY 0 4904
\n
o AN Y Aoy _ N [ _ o o e e XNSLLRLLLSLSLS L _____
S _. 3
— 06°GH2 M GH.CH L2 6 /%ﬁAWWMW\
..IIS “ \rzw_\,&@x\%wvfs G JW
< W G40Y 46| G| 0-.92 !
o -7t " 1" 1" 1" "> """"""- O i i e
~ . i
A | S (). 1< D L ]
i i 90913 \S¢ i .
_ _ _ ]
- _ | | i
w __O(_Omn__/ m&\_<0® _ | | " _
o8 NV 1d 3116 — Ny —H
_ _ _ ]
X _ _ _ _ ,
= = | | | GBS |4 | ! _ ol
=N G/ GZ " _ - . iz
= {9 i | — — | i >
" > | ! ! | IR =~
WVA _OO/ _Qm _O ) " | _ | " _ _ " "ﬂmuu NOd
0" - _ _ _ _ .
o | — | | — 1 |1 Ul
: | ] ] | e _
o= JAN0D GNOIAIDINT 44604030 & | ar o ! I —~
LAT06 = ¥IN0D SNOIANZIN| 02504034 AVL0L D _ o o | —1
1206 = ANINA/ININIVE 0350403 . O ! ! BN D
% L0 =29Y33N0D INICING 32604034 N N o ! > 5 =
11706 4056 = 9NIOING 03604037 o T = o o T2 T = N
14706 L1°G9S 9L -  ¥9Y 0690°1 - 4716 L0 = S ] . BN N <
*NO1IVWIOINT 1020034 o - 13 S 105’6 o i —
ANAN . | _ | ONIATINgG d3ISOd0dd _ | | _ . O
CLIO-CLL +21G+ | _ o o _ 'S ~
CSLQL SYXFL CIONYN | _ L L _ NS = o
CLb6 W2 N Q0S¢ | — | | N
ﬁi&: G3A3IIN 0 O1AN0  :IZNMO > | | —— —— | —i N S
. S | ! ! | LN
D LOL9QL A ALIA24038 ° _ | _ _ _ _ _% _ _ _ w
OV 0690°1 - M0V o N | | R o
. 9 631Y¥9 €9 JNS SIC 69V © mmw_ o o < al ;
— 5 . = | - S | )
N ALINNOD GIAYSL G0N002Y 0290 <0191L1C102 33GNNN " ST | S| >
= 5 O INZWND00 NI 09030023 0240 AINYIIYM AQ m SISY L Sk 5
A B NNNIYD GANYD 19YHOIW 0 dFA3ANOD ONYA 40 _ | ) =k i\
ENS NG 6330¥ 290"\ NIV1¥29 LVYHL 20 1Y IN|20 m | o ey A
— * wv. I 66311 M0 2¥0W ONVA 40 6230V 690" | _ /f \\Aw 5 =
0 O\ m...i.*l,. _ _||||||||||||||||IIII|||||||||||||||||||||||||||||||IIII!I_wA L
m % w.l g ZQ_\_\K_MOQ&Q \_<®&\_ _ SIVG LEG 94019, 07 " _ —
~N = @ _ _
ct _
0 . AN AN
1 6GQ092C00Z #0200 i .
5 49119 N211Y e L
¢ ey 2 .¢0.90 8¢ N |
/ \ _
_
Z |
_
\ _
ON | aNn I AVA4J000 D1 A104704  LANNOG2A(11¢ _
_
NO 114130630 | 21v0 |
ENATAVES |
_



Item 2.

30




COMMERCIAL CORRIDOR

Commercial Corridors consist of
nonresidential land uses that meet the needs
of both local and regional residents. This
includes big box stores and multi-tenant
commercial or retail uses.

They are typically located along high volume
roadways or at high volume intersections and
generate large amounts of sales tax revenue.

Commercial corridors often consist of
traditional and suburban commercial
development with large surface parking lots
that front a major roadway or highway.

While it is recognized these corridors rely
upon automobile accessibility and exposure,
development should seek opportunities to
leverage different forms with elements of
mixed-use within the non-residential use
framework. This introduces walkability for

people once they arrive, reducing the number

of trips and increasing the area’s appeal as a
destination.

This district is especially appropriate for
several needs that residents of Manor

currently look elsewhere to provide, including:

» Healthcare services, including hospitals.
» Retail and entertainment.

» Specialized facilities that support
workforce and skills development, such
as information technology, skilled trades
and advanced manufacturing.

72 Destination Manor 2050 Comprehensive Plan

Item 2.

Figure 3.6. Commercial Corridor Land Use Mix Dashboard

Nonresidential
Development Types
10%

Residential

Devel
evelopment Development Types

Ratio

0% 70%

10% = Retail

Residential

10% Office
0

= Nonres. = |[ndustrial

Other

Medium ‘ ‘ Low/Mid-Rise ‘

Avg. 19 jobs/acre ‘

31




Item 2.

DEVELOPMENT TYPE APPROPRIATENESS CONDITIONS

Single-Family Detached
(SFD)

®O000

SFD + ADU

®O00O0

SFA, Duplex

®O000

SFA, Townhomes and De-
tached Missing Middle

®O000

Apartment House (3-4
units)

®O00O0

Small Multifamily (8-12
units)

®O000

Not considered appropriate, as the Commercial Corridors are generally oriented towards uses that rely on
access and visibility to major roadways and highways and residential is not encouraged along the major
roadways and highways for environmental justice and quality of life reasons. The activity and traffic gener-
ated by Commercial Corridor uses is not compatible with residential housing.

Large Multifamily (12+

units) ®O0O00

Mixed-Use Urban, Neigh- 00000 May be nonresidential mixed-use, such as office over retail or some residential can be appropriate if deeper
borhood Scale

Mixed-Use Urban, Com-
munity Scale

0000 0

within a site and less proximate to the major roadways. Residential mixed-use can also be appropriate to
support transition to adjacent, lower density or residential areas. To note, mixed-use buildings are typically
considered the highest fiscally performing development type on a per-acre basis.

Shopping Center, Neigh-
borhood Scale

Shopping Center, Commu-
nity Scale

Appropriate overall.

Light Industrial Flex Space

00000

Not considered appropriate due to limited potential for sales tax revenue generation and lower dependence
on direct exposure to major roadways; can be appropriate if deeper within a site and less proximate to the
major roadways, but should not be predominant use.

Manufacturing [ JOIOI0]0) Not considered appropriate.

Civic 00000 Cons'lfiéred supportive to the function of this future' land use categgr.y; likely more functional facilities, such
as utilities, rather than people-centered or community serving facilities.

Parks and Open Space 00000 Generally considered appropriate or compatible within all Land Use Categories.

32

Land Use and Development




COMMUNITY MIXED-USE

The Community Mixed-Use allows a
combination of dense residential and
nonresidential uses in a compact design to
create a walkable environment, but at a larger
scale than Neighborhood Mixed-Use.

The category encourages a density range of 18-
40 dwelling units per acre, although elements
within a coordinated community mixed-use
area could reach higher densities provided
superior access to services and amenities and
appropriate compatibility to adjacent uses is
provided.

Community Mixed-Use areas allow residential
units in close proximity to goods, services and
civic activities, reducing residents’ dependence
on the car.

Community Mixed-Use places a great emphasis
on the following design elements: density,
intensity and scale; the mix of housing;
walkability; streetscapes and a high quality
public realm; parking management; and access
to amenities such as parks, civic spaces and
neighborhood services.

This district is especially appropriate for several
needs that residents of Manor currently look
elsewhere to provide, including:

* Healthcare services, including hospitals.

» Larger employers in a variety of industries
that residents currently commute to
outside of Manor.

» Specialized facilities that support workforce
and skills development, such as information
technology, skilled trades and advanced
manufacturing; provided such facilities fit
the form described above.

78 Destination Manor 2050 Comprehensive Plan

Development
Ratio

= Nonres.

Avg. 21 jobs/acre

Residential

Figure 3.9. Community Mixed-Use Land Use Mix Dashboard

Residential
Development Types

20% 20%

SFD
SFA
= Small MF

= | arge ME
60%

18 to 40 units per acre
Higher densities considered
conditionally (see description)

Medium
High in some circumstances

40%

Item 2.

Nonresidential
Development Types
10%

= Retail
Office
= [ndustrial

Other
50%

Low/Mid-Rise

33




Item 2.

DEVELOPMENT TYPE APPROPRIATENESS CONDITIONS

Single-Family Detached
(SED)

®O000

SFD + ADU

®O000O

SFA, Duplex

®O000

Not considered appropriate since the intent is to provide retail, services, activity centers and diversified
housing to support surrounding neighborhoods, achieve strong fiscal performance, and drive community
identity and gathering.

SFA, Townhomes and De-
tached Missing Middle

0000 0

Apartment House (3-4
units)

0000 0

Small Multifamily (8-12
units)

0000 0

This can be appropriate provided that the overall Community Mixed-Use area also contains mixed-use
buildings and/or shopping centers with which this product integrates in a manner to promote walkability
and access. Can be utilized as a transition between Community Mixed-Use and other uses. These develop-
ment types should be located on secondary roads rather than primary thoroughfares, as primary frontages
are best reserved for ground-floor retail and services.

Large Multifamily (12+

units) 00600

Mixed-Use Urban, Neigh- 00000 This is the ideal form of development within the Community Mixed Use category; provides for activity
borhood Scale centers, retail, services and diverse housing options. Design should emphasize the pedestrian experience

Mixed-Use Urban, Com-
munity Scale

rather than people driving automobiles. Vertical mixed-use is likely most appropriate, in order to achieve
the intended densities. Ground floor uses are encouraged to be food and beverage or pedestrian-oriented
retail and services, to promote foot traffic and activity.

Shopping Center, Neigh-
borhood Scale

00000

Shopping Center, Commu-
nity Scale

00000

While less preferred, this use can provide retail and services near housing, promoting walkability and
10-minute neighborhoods. Becomes more appropriate if a horizontal approach to mixed-use is deployed.

Light Industrial Flex Space

00000

Not generally considered appropriate due to lower sales tax generation and limited ability to design at pe-
destrian scale, but can be if particularly small-scale and included alongside more appropriate development
types, or with integration of a storefront experience.

Manufacturing Q@O0O000 Not considered appropriate.

Civic 00000 Considered supportlvle to thei functlon and hvabllllt.y of this future land use category, government buildings,
schools and community facilities can serve as activity hubs.

Parks and Open Space 00000 Generally considered appropriate or compatible within all Land Use Categories.

Land Use and Development =




\ EST. 1872
I TEXAS

4/26/2023

City of Manor Development Services

Notification for a Rezoning Application

Project Name: 13500 FM 973 Rezoning IN-1 to C-1
Case Number: 2023-P-1534-Z0

Case Manager: Michael Burrell

Contact: mburrell@manortx.gov — 512-215-8158

The City of Manor Planning and Zoning Commission and City Council will be conducting a
Regularly Scheduled meeting for the purpose of considering and acting upon on a Rezoning
Application for one lot out of the Gates G Survey 63, Abstract 315 and being located at 13500 FM
973, Manor, TX. The request will be posted on the agenda as follows:

Public Hearing: Conduct a public hearing on a Rezoning Application for one (1) lot on 1.069
acres, more or less, out of the Gates G Survey 63, Abstract 315 and being located at 13500
FM 973, Manor, TX from Industrial Light (IN-1) to Commercial Light (C-1).

Applicant: LIQUE Engineers
Owner: Rapid Express Car Wash

The Planning and Zoning Commission will meet at 6:30PM on May 10, 2023 at 105 East Eggleston
Street in the City Hall Council Chambers.

The City Council will meet at 7:00PM on May 17, 2023 at 105 East Eggleston Street in the City
Hall Council Chambers.

You are being notified because you own property within 300 feet of the property for which this
Rezoning Application has been filed. Comments may be addressed to the email address or phone
number above. Any communications received will be made available to the Commissioners during
the discussion of this item.

105 E. EGGLESTON STREET * P.O. Box 387 ® MANOR, TEx4As 78653
(T) 512.272.5555 » (F) 512.272.8636 * www.CITYOFMANOR.ORG

Item 2.

35



mailto:mburrell@manortx.gov

Board of Trustees of The Manor ISD
PO Box 9190
Austin, TX 78766-9190

Cottonwood Holdings LTD
9900 US Highway 290 E
Manor, TX 78653-9720

Bluebonnet Electric Cooperative Inc
650 Highway 21 E
Bastrop, TX 78602-5864

Click Allen
10813 Decker Lane
Austin, TX 78724-1017

Item 2.

SG Land Holdings LLC
2646 Dupont Dr Suite 60 PMB 520
Irvine, CA 92612-7651

Cottonwood Holdings LTD
9900 US Highway 290 E
Manor, TX 78653-9720

36




Item 3.

1CITY OF

AGENDA ITEM SUMMARY FORM

PROPOSED MEETING DATE: May 17, 2023

PREPARED BY: Lluvia T. Almaraz, City Secretary
DEPARTMENT: Administration

AGENDA ITEM DESCRIPTION:

Consideration, discussion, and possible action to approve the City Council Minutes of May 3, 2023, City Council
Regular Meeting.

BACKGROUND/SUMMARY:

LEGAL REVIEW: Not Applicable
FISCAL IMPACT:  Not Applicable
PRESENTATION: No
ATTACHMENTS: Yes

* May 3, 2023, City Council Regular Meeting Minutes

STAFF RECOMMENDATION:

It is the city staff’s recommendation that the City Council approve the City Council Minutes of the May 3, 2023,
City Council Regular Meeting.

PLANNING & ZONING COMMISSION: Recommend Approval Disapproval None

37




CITY OF

MANOR

EST. 1872

CITY COUNCIL
REGULAR SESSION MINUTES
MAY 3, 2023

This meeting was live streamed on Manor's YouTube Channel
https://www.youtube.com/@cityofmanorsocial/streams

PRESENT:
Dr. Christopher Harvey, Mayor

COUNCIL MEMBERS:

Emily Hill, Mayor Pro Tem, Place 1
Anne Weir, Place 2

Maria Amezcua, Place 3

Sonia Wallace, Place 4

Aaron Moreno, Place 5

Deja Hill, Place 6

CITY STAFF:

Scott Moore, City Manager

Lluvia T. Almaraz, City Secretary

Scott Dunlop, Development Services Director
Lydia Collins, Finance Director

Ryan Phipps, Chief of Police

Denver Collins, Assistant Chief of Police
Scott Jones, Economic Development Director
Matthew Woodard, Public Works Director
Veronica Rivera, Assistant City Attorney
Chasem Creed, IT Technician

REGULAR SESSION - 7:00 P.M.

With a quorum of the Council Members present, the regular session of the Manor City Council
was called to order by Mayor Harvey at 7:03 p.m. on Wednesday, May 3, 2023, in the Council
Chambers of the Manor City Hall, 105 E. Eggleston St., Manor, Texas.

City of Manor Page 1

Item 3.

38



https://www.youtube.com/@cityofmanorsocial/streams

Item 3.

City Council Regular Session Minutes

May 3, 2023

INVOCATION

Pastor Andy Anderson Park Springs Baptist Church gave the invocation.
PLEDGE OF ALLEGIANCE

Mayor Harvey led the Pledge of Allegiance.

PROCLAMATIONS

A. Declaring the month of May, as “Mental Health Awareness Month”

Mayor Harvey read and presented the Proclamation to Mayra Hernandez, Director of The
Whole Child Community Partnership and Engagement with Manor ISD. She invited everyone
to attend the Healing & Connection Event on May 18, 2023, from 5:30 p.m. to 8:00 p.m. at
Manor Senior High School. Superintendent Dr. Robert Sormani thanked the city for its
partnership with Manor ISD and scholars.

B. Declaring the week of May 14 — May 20, 2023, as “Police Week”

Mayor Harvey read and presented the Proclamation to Chief of Police Phipps and Manor
Police staff. Mayor Harvey thanked the Police Department for all their hard work.

PUBLIC COMMENTS

Robert Battaile, 502 E. Eggleston St., Manor, Texas, submitted a speaker card and expressed
his concerns and disagreement with Agenda Items 15,16, and 18.

No one else appeared at this time.
PRESENTATIONS
A. City of Manor Facility Needs Assessment, presented by PGAL.
Cris Ruebush with PGAL discussed and presented the attached PowerPoint Presentation.
The discussion of topics:

Existing City Facilities
Population Benchmarks
Space Standards

Space Needs Projection
Staff Projection Summary
Square Footage Summary
Proposed Projects

New Police Headquarters

City of Manor Page 2

39




City Council Regular Session Minutes
May 3, 2023

e New City Hall

e New City Warehouse

e New Library

e New Recreation Center

There was no further discussion, and no action was taken.

At the direction of Mayor Harvey, Public Hearing No. 1 and Regular Agenda Item No. 10
were pulled from the agenda and not considered.

PUBLIC HEARINGS

1. Conduct a public hearing on an ordinance annexing 4.004 acres of land, more or less,
being located in Travis County, Texas and adjacent and contiguous to the city limits.

Item Pulled
At the direction of Mayor Harvey, Items No’s 16 and 17 were moved to the Consent Agenda.

MOTION: Upon a motion made by Council Member Wallace and seconded by Mayor Pro Tem
Hill, to add Regular Agenda Item No’s 16 and 17 to the Consent Agenda.

There was no further discussion.

Motion to approve carried 7-0

CONSENT AGENDA

2. Consideration, discussion, and possible action to approve the City Council Minutes.

* April 19, 2023, City Council Workshop; and
* April 19, 2023, City Council Regular Meeting

3. Consideration, discussion, and possible action on a Declaration of Public Water Quality
Easement for the Shadowglen Subdivision being 0.057 acres.

4. Consideration, discussion, and possible action on a Declaration of Drainage Easement
for the Shadowglen Subdivision being 0.018 acres.

5. Consideration, discussion, and possible action on a Drainage Easement on Lot 12, Block
C, Wildhorse Creek Commercial being 0.281 acres.

City of Manor Page 3

Item 3.

40




City Council Regular Session Minutes
May 3, 2023

6.

16.

17.

Second and Final Reading: Consideration, discussion, and possible action on an
ordinance rezoning 13.98 acres, more or less, being Lots 6-8, Block 5, Manor Commercial
Park III and 3.55 acres out of the A.C. Caldwell Survey, Abstract No. 154, and being
located near the intersection of Beltex Drive and Easy Jet Street, Manor TX from
Agricultural (A) to Light Industrial (IN-1).

Ordinance No. 699: An Ordinance of The City of Manor, Texas, Amending the Zoning
Ordinance by Rezoning a Parcel of Land From Agricultural (A) to Light Industrial (IN-1);
Making Findings of Fact; and Providing for Related Matters.

Second and Final Reading: Consideration, discussion, and possible action on an
ordinance annexing 2.942 acres of land, more or less, being located in Travis County,
Texas and adjacent and contiguous to the city limits.

Ordinance No. 700: An Ordinance of the City of Manor, Texas Annexing 2.942 Acres of
Land, More or Less Located in Travis County, Including Right-Of-Way Into the Corporate
Limits of the City, at the Request of the Property Owner; Making Findings of Fact; Providing
a Severability Clause and an Effective Date; and Providing for Open Meetings and Other
Related Matters.

Second and Final Reading: Consideration, discussion, and possible action on an
Ordinance annexing 2.855 acres of land, more or less, being located in Travis County,
Texas and adjacent and contiguous to the city limits.

Ordinance No. 701: An Ordinance of the City of Manor, Texas Annexing 2.855 Acres of
Land, More or Less Located in Travis County, Including Right-of-Way Into the Corporate
Limits of the City, at the Request of the Property Owner; Making Findings of Fact; Providing
a Severability Clause and an Effective Date; and Providing for Open Meetings and Other
Related Matters.

Consideration, discussion, and possible action to ratify, confirm, and approve joining the
Texas Attorney General's global opioid settlement with Allergan, CVS, Walgreens, and
Walmart the City Manager’s execution of Settlement Participation Forms; and authorize
the City Manager to execute any and all additional necessary documents.

Consideration, discussion, and possible action on a Professional Services Agreement
between the City of Manor and Grant Development Services.

Consideration, discussion, and possible action on the Purchase Agreement with Stuart D.
Dimond and Madeleine R. Dimond for a wastewater easement with a temporary
construction easement.

MOTION: Upon a motion made by Council Member Amezcua and seconded by Council Member

Wallace, to approve the Consent Agenda as read.

There was no further discussion.

City of Manor Page 4

Item 3.

41




City Council Regular Session Minutes
May 3, 2023

Motion to approve carried 7-0
At the Direction of Mayor Harvey Items No’s 18 and 19 were conducted next.
REGULAR AGENDA

10. First Reading: Consideration, discussion, and possible action on an ordinance annexing
4.004 acres of land, more or less, being located in Travis County, Texas and adjacent
and contiguous to the city limits.

Submitted by: Scott Dunlop, Development Services Director

Item Pulled

18. Consideration, discussion, and possible action on allocating funds for Our Community
Salutes Program within the City of Manor.

The city staff recommended that the City Council approve the allocation of funds from the
Community Programs Fund not to exceed $15,000 and direct the City Administration to
include the program as a yearly city event for the City of Manor.

City Manager Moore and Mayor Pro Tem Emily Hill discussed the proposed event
program.

Discussion was held regarding the description of the program.
MOTION: Upon a motion made by Council Member Weir and seconded by Council Member
Moreno, to approve the allocation of funds from the Community Programs Fund not
to exceed $15,000 and direct the City Administration to include the program as a
yearly city event for the City of Manor.
There was no further discussion.

Motion to approve carried 7-0

19. Consideration, discussion, and possible action on allocating funds for the Summer
Library Program within the City of Manor.

The city staff recommended that the City Council direct the Administration to utilize the
Community Program account to fund the 2023 Summer Library Program in an amount not to

exceed $61,000.

Mayor Harvey discussed the proposed Summer Library Program for the community.

City of Manor Page 5

Item 3.

42




City Council Regular Session Minutes
May 3, 2023

Kathryn Pew, Lead Librarian from Manor ISD, discussed the benefits of the Summer
Library Program and program schedules. She thanked the Council and City for all their
support.

Discussion was held regarding the proposed time schedule.

Discussion was held regarding the clarification of the Program for Manor ISD students.

Discussion was held regarding the involvement of the subdivision within the Metro Park
area.

Discussion was held regarding proposed courses and activities that could be provided in
the summer program.

Discussion was held regarding volunteer opportunities.

MOTION: Upon a motion made by Council Member Moreno and seconded by Council Member
Amezcua, to direct the Administration to utilize the Community Program account to
fund the 2023 Summer Library Program in an amount not to exceed $61,000.

Assistant City Attorney Rivera clarified that an Interlocal Agreement would possibly be
needed with the school district to allocate funds.

There was no further discussion.

Motion to approve carried 6-1 (Mayor Harvey voted against)

Mayor Harvey adjourned the regular session of the Manor City Council into Executive Session
at 8:05 p.m. on Wednesday, May 3, 2023, in accordance with the requirements of the Open
Meetings Law.

EXECUTIVE SESSION

The Manor City Council convened into executive session pursuant to the provisions of Chapter
551 Texas Government Code, in accordance with the authority contained in Section 551.071,
Texas Government Code, and Section 1.05, Texas Disciplinary Rules of Professional Conduct to
consult with legal counsel regarding the CCN Release and exchange of ETJ with City of Austin on
property located on Blue Bluff Road; Section 551.071, Texas Government Code, and Section 1.05,
Texas Disciplinary Rules of Professional Conduct to consult with legal counsel regarding Multi-
Family Project Development Using Public Facility Corporations; and Section 551.071 and
Section 551.087, Texas Government Code to deliberate on the acquisition of real property. at 8:05
p.m. on Wednesday, May 3, 2023.

The Executive Session was adjourned at 9:31 p.m. on Wednesday, May 3, 2023.

OPEN SESSION

City of Manor Page 6

Item 3.

43




City Council Regular Session Minutes
May 3, 2023

The City Council reconvened into Open Session pursuant to the provisions of Chapter 551
Texas Government Code and took action on item(s) discussed during Closed Executive Session at
9:31 p.m. on Wednesday, May 3, 2023.

MOTION: Upon a motion made by Council Member Moreno and seconded by Mayor Pro Tem
Emily Hill, to direct staff to move forward with the purchase of the three (3) tracts
discussed in the Executive Session.

There was no further discussion.
Motion to approve carried 7-0
REGULAR AGENDA

11. Consideration, discussion, and possible action on a Resolution accepting the petition to
create the Mustang Valley Public Improvement District (PID) and setting a public
hearing to consider the creation of the Mustang Valley PID.

The city staff recommended that the City Council approve Resolution No. 2023-13
accepting the petition to create the Mustang Valley Public Improvement District (PID) and
setting a public hearing to consider the creation of the Mustang Valley PID.

Assistant City Attorney Rivera discussed the proposed Resolution accepting the petition to
create the Mustang Valley PID.

Mr. Patrick Murphy with KB Homes discussed the proposed development for safety turn
lanes and improvements to the water line extensions and parks.

Resolution No. 2023-13: A Resolution of The City Council of The City of Manor, Texas
Accepting a Petition for Creation of The Mustang Valley Public Improvement District; Setting
a Public Hearing Under Sec. 372.009 of the Texas Local Government Code on the Advisability
of the Creation of the Mustang Valley Public Improvement District Within the City of Manor,
Texas; and Authorizing the Issuance of Notice by the City Secretary of Manor, Texas
Regarding the Public Hearing.

MOTION: Upon a motion made by Council Member Moreno and seconded by Mayor Pro Tem
Emily Hill, to approve Resolution No. 2023-13 accepting the petition to create the
Mustang Valley Public Improvement District (PID) and setting a public hearing to
consider the creation of the Mustang Valley PID.

There was no further discussion.
Motion to approve carried 7-0

12. Consideration, discussion and possible action on the City of Manor, Texas Deposit
Agreement Proposed Public Improvement District Mustang Valley PID.

City of Manor Page 7

Item 3.

44




City Council Regular Session Minutes
May 3, 2023

The city staff recommended that the City Council approve the City of Manor, Texas
Deposit Agreement Proposed Public Improvement District Mustang Valley PID.

Assistant City Attorney Rivera discussed the proposed Deposit Agreement.

MOTION: Upon a motion made by Council Member Moreno and seconded by Council Member
Weir to approve the City of Manor, Texas Deposit Agreement Proposed Public
Improvement District Mustang Valley PID.

There was no further discussion.

Motion to approve carried 7-0

13. Consideration, discussion, and possible action on the approval to submit a Project

Information Form (PIF) to the Texas Water Development Board (TWDB) to be included
in the initial Project Priority List for State Fiscal Year (SFY) 2023 for appropriated funds
through the Drinking Water State Revolving Fund (DWSRF) for Lead Service Line
Replacement (LSLR) projects.

The city staff recommendation was that the City Council approve the proposed completion
and submission of a PIF to the TWDB to be included in the initial Project Priority List of SFY
2023.

Mr. Justin Clinger with GBA discussed the proposed completion and submission of a PIF
to the TWDB to be included in the initial Project Priority List of SFY 2023.

MOTION: Upon a motion made by Council Member Moreno and seconded by Council Member
Wallace, to approve the proposed completion and submission of a PIF to the TWDB
to be included in the initial Project Priority List of SFY 2023.

There was no further discussion.

Motion to approve carried 7-0

14. Consideration, discussion, and possible action on an ordinance amending Manor Code of
Ordinances, Chapter 4, Article 4.02 Alcoholic Beverages.

The city staff recommendation was that the City Council discuss an amendment to Manor
Code of Ordinances, Chapter 4, Article 4.02 Alcoholic Beverages.

Development Services Director Dunlop discussed the proposed ordinance and restrictions.
Discussion was held regarding whether existing vendors would be grandfathered.

Discussion was held regarding new variance requirements for new vendors.

City of Manor Page 8

Item 3.

45




City Council Regular Session Minutes
May 3, 2023

Discussion was held regarding the option of amending the ordinance at any time.

Ordinance No. 702: An Ordinance of the City of Manor, Texas, Amending the Code of
Ordinances of the City of Manor, Texas by Adding Section 4.02.002 and 4.02.003 to Chapter
4, Article 4.02, Alcoholic Beverages, Establishing Regulations Regarding the Sale of
Alcoholic Beverages Near a Church, Public School, or Public Hospital; Providing for a
Severability, Savings, Open Meetings and Effective Date Clauses; and Providing for Related
Matters.

MOTION: Upon a motion made by Council Member Wallace and seconded by Mayor Pro Tem
Emily Hill, to approve an ordinance amending the Manor Code of Ordinances,
Chapter 4, Article 4.02 Alcoholic Beverages. the item to the May 17" Council
meeting.

There was no further discussion.

Motion to approve carried 4-3
(Council Members Amezcua, Weir, and Deja Hill voted against)

15. Second _and Final Reading: Consideration, discussion, and possible action on an
ordinance amending Chapter 14 Zoning of the Manor Code of Ordinances to Modify the
Definition of Hospital Services; Modify the Residential Land Use Table Relating to
Single-Family Attached (2 units) and Single-Family Detached Uses; Modify the
Residential Land Use Conditions Table Relating to Single-Family Attached (2 units) and
Single-Family Detached Uses; Modify Non-Residential Uses in Non-Residential and
Mixed-Use Zoning Districts Relating to Alcoholic Beverage Establishment, Brewery -
Micro, Brewery - Regional, Brewpub, Club or Lodge, Distillery - Micro, Distillery -
Regional, Event Center, Food Sales, Hospital Services, Liquor Sales, Medical Clinic,
Offices - Medical, Offices - Professional, Restaurant, and Restaurant - Drive-in or Drive-
through Uses; Modify Non-Residential and Mixed-Use Land Use Conditions relating to
Alcoholic Beverage Establishment, Brewery - Micro, Brewery - Regional, Brewpub, Club
or Lodge, Distillery - Micro, Distillery - Regional, Event Center, Food Sales, Gas Station
- Full Service, Gas Station - Limited, Hotel, Liquor Sales, Restaurant, Restaurant - Drive-
in or Drive-through Uses; Modify Non-Residential and Mixed-Use Development
Standards Relating to Maximum Dwelling Units; Modify Non-Residential and Mixed-
Use Development Standards Table Notes Relating to Alley Within the Historic District;
Modify Accessory Structures Relating to Gross Floor Area; Modify Architectural
Standards for Single-Family Detached and Two Family, Single-Family Attached,
Manufactured Home, Multi-Family and Mixed Use, Office, Commercial Institutional
and Industrial Uses; Modify Procedures Relating to Planned Unit Development (PUD)
Uses; Modify Procedures Relating to a Final Site Plan; and Modify Procedures Relating
to Amendments to the Comprehensive Plan.

Development Services Director Dunlop discussed the proposed zoning ordinance.

City of Manor Page 9

Item 3.

46




City Council Regular Session Minutes
May 3, 2023

Discussion was held regarding a current state bill for the city’s restrictions on development
regulations.

Ordinance No. 703: An Ordinance of the City of Manor, Amending Chapter 14, Zoning, of the
Code of Ordinances of the City of Manor, Texas, by Providing for the Amendment of Definitions;
Residential Land Use Table; Residential Land Use Conditions; Amending Non-Residential Uses
in Non-Residential and Mixed-Use Zoning Districts; Non-Residential and Mixed-Use Land Use
Conditions; Non-Residential And Mixed-Use Development Standards; Amending Non-
Residential and Mixed-Use Development Standards Table Notes; Accessory Structures;
Architectural Standards; And Procedures; Providing for a Severability, Providing Savings, Open
Meetings, and Effective Date Clauses; and Providing For Related Matters.

MOTION: Upon a motion made by Council Member Wallace and seconded by Mayor Pro Tem
Emily Hill, to approve Ordinance No. 703 amending Chapter 14 Zoning of the Manor
Code of Ordinances.

There was no further discussion.
Motion to approve carried 5-2 (Council Members Amezcua and Weir voted against)

20. Consideration, discussion, and possible action on a Resolution Finding Public
Convenience and Necessity And Authorizing The Use of Eminent Domain To Condemn
If Necessary a 25,924 Square Foot Wastewater Easement and a 25,928 Square Foot
Temporary Construction Easement (both as described in Exhibit “x1”) from that 17.37
Acre Tract conveyed by Warranty Deed to Joseph Murphy Coffey and recorded at
Document Number 2022063845 Of The Official Public Records of Travis County, Texas,
For The Public Use And Purpose of Construction Of A Wastewater Line.

The city staff recommendation was that the City Council approve Resolution No. 2023-14.
Assistant City Attorney Rivera discussed the proposed Resolution.

Resolution No. 2023-14: A Resolution of The City Council of The City of Manor Texas
Finding Public Convenience and Necessity and Authorizing Eminent Domain Proceedings, if
Necessary, for Acquisition of a Permanent Wastewater Line Easement Over A 25,924 Square
Foot Parcel of Land and a Temporary Construction Easement Over a 25,928 Square Foot
Parcel of Land, Both Parcels Being Out of and a Part of a Called 17.37 Acre Tract of Land
Situated in Travis County, Texas, Described in a Warranty Deed to Joseph Murphy Coffey,
Recorded in Document No. 2022063845 of the Official Public Records of Travis County,
Texas (O.P.R.T.C.T.), and Establishing an Effective Date; and Finding and Determining That
the Meeting at Which This Resolution is Passed Was Noticed and is Open to the Public as
Required by Law.

City of Manor Page 10

Item 3.

47




City Council Regular Session Minutes
May 3, 2023

MOTION: Upon a motion made by Council Member Wallace and seconded by Council Member
Amezcua, to approve Resolution No. 2023-14 as follows "I move that the City of
Manor authorize the use of the power of eminent domain to acquire both a permanent
wastewater easement of 25,924 square feet and a temporary construction easement
of 25,928 square feet from the property owned by Joseph Coffey and described in
Agenda Item (20) for the public use of constructing and operating wastewater lines
and infrastructure improvements."

There was no further discussion.
Motion to approve carried 6-1 (Council Member Deja Hill voted against)

21. Consideration, discussion, and possible action on a Resolution Finding Public
Convenience and Necessity And Authorizing The Use of Eminent Domain To Condemn
If Necessary a 10,968 Square Foot Wastewater Easement and a 11,145 Square Foot
Temporary Construction Easement (both as described in Exhibit “x2”) from that 10.068
Acre Tract conveyed by Warranty Deed to RMJ Investments, Ltd. and recorded at
Document Number 2012027002 Of The Official Public Records of Travis County, Texas,
For The Public Use And Purpose of Construction Of A Wastewater Line.

The city staff recommendation was that the City Council approve Resolution No. 2023-15.
Assistant City Attorney Rivera discussed the proposed Resolution.

Resolution No. 2023-15: A Resolution of the City Council of the City of Manor Texas
Finding Public Convenience and Necessity and Authorizing Eminent Domain Proceedings, if
Necessary, for Acquisition of a Permanent Wastewater Line Easement Over a 10,968 Square
Foot Parcel of Land And a Temporary Construction Easement Over a 11,145 Square Foot
Parcel of Land, Both Parcels Being Out of and a Part of a Called 10.068 Acre Tract of Land
Situated in Travis County, Texas, Described in a Warranty Deed To RMJ Investments, Ltd., a
Texas Limited Partnership, Recorded in Document No. 2012027002, of the Official Public
Records of Travis County, Texas (O.P.R.T.C.T.), and Establishing an Effective Date; and
Finding and Determining That the Meeting at Which This Resolution is Passed was Noticed
and is Open to the Public as Required by Law.

MOTION: Upon a motion made by Council Member Amezcua and seconded by Council Member
Moreno, to approve Resolution No. 2023-15 as follows "I move that the City of
Manor authorize the use of the power of eminent domain to acquire both a permanent
wastewater easement of 10,968 square feet and a temporary construction easement
of 11,145 square feet from the property owned by RMIJ Investments, Ltd. and
described in Agenda Item (21) for the public use of constructing and operating
wastewater lines and infrastructure improvements."

There was no further discussion.

Motion to approve carried 6-1 (Council Member Deja Hill voted against)

City of Manor Page 11

Item 3.

48




City Council Regular Session Minutes
May 3, 2023

22. Consideration, discussion, and possible action on a Resolution Finding Public
Convenience and Necessity And Authorizing The Use of Eminent Domain To Condemn
If Necessary a 11,133 Square Foot Wastewater Easement and a 12,170 Square Foot
Temporary Construction Easement (both as described in Exhibit “x3”) from that 19.000
Acre Tract conveyed by Warranty Deed to Benny Paul Mark Gundy and recorded at
Document Number 2009017772 Of The Official Public Records of Travis County, Texas,
For The Public Use And Purpose of Construction Of A Wastewater Line.

The city staff recommendation was that the City Council approve Resolution No. 2023-16.
Assistant City Attorney Rivera discussed the proposed Resolution.

Resolution No. 2023-16: A Resolution of the City Council of The City of Manor Texas
Finding Public Convenience and Necessity and Authorizing Eminent Domain Proceedings, if
Necessary, for Acquisition of a Permanent Wastewater Line Easement Over a 11,133 Square
Foot Parcel of Land And a Temporary Construction Easement Over a 12,170 Square Foot
Parcel of Land, Both Parcels Being Out of and a Part of a Called 19.000 Acre Tract of Land
Situated in Travis County, Texas, Described in a Warranty Deed to Benny Paul Mark Gundy,
Recorded in Document No. 2009017772 of the Official Public Records of Travis County,
Texas (O.P.R.T.C.T.), and Establishing an Effective Date; and Finding and Determining That
the Meeting at Which This Resolution is Passed was Noticed and is Open to the Public as
Required By Law.

MOTION: Upon a motion made by Council Member Amezcua and seconded by Mayor Pro Tem
Moreno, to approve Resolution No. 2023-16 as follows "I move that the City of
Manor authorize the use of the power of eminent domain to acquire both a permanent
wastewater easement of 11,133 square feet and a temporary construction easement
of 12,170 square feet from the property owned by Benny Paul Mark Gundy and
described in Agenda Item (22) for the public use of constructing and operating
wastewater lines and infrastructure improvements."

There was no further discussion.
Motion to approve carried 6-1 (Council Member Deja Hill voted against)

23. Consideration, discussion, and possible action on a Resolution Finding Public
Convenience and Necessity And Authorizing The Use of Eminent Domain To Condemn
If Necessary a 4,399 Square Foot Wastewater Easement and a 4,401 Square Foot
Temporary Construction Easement (both as described in Exhibit “x4”) from that 12.334
Acre Tract conveyed by Warranty Deed to Michael Edward Swier and Crista Marie
Swier, Trustees of the Layla Trust, and recorded at Document Number 2020009667 Of
The Official Public Records of Travis County, Texas, For The Public Use And Purpose
of Construction Of A Wastewater Line.

The city staff recommendation was that the City Council approve Resolution No. 2023-17.
Assistant City Attorney Rivera discussed the proposed Resolution.

City of Manor Page 12

Item 3.

49




City Council Regular Session Minutes
May 3, 2023

Resolution No. 2023-17: A Resolution of The City Council of The City of Manor Texas
Finding Public Convenience and Necessity and Authorizing Eminent Domain Proceedings, if
Necessary, for Acquisition of a Permanent Wastewater Line Easement Over a 4,399 Square
Foot Parcel of Land And a Temporary Construction Easement Over a 4,401 Square Foot Parcel
of Land, Both Parcels Being out of and a Part of a Called 12.334 Acre Tract of Land Situated
in Travis County, Texas, Described in a Warranty Deed to Michael Edward Swier and Crista
Marie Swier, Trustees of The Layla Trust, Recorded In Document No. 2020009667 of The
Official Public Records Of Travis County, Texas (O.P.R.T.C.T.), and Establishing an Effective
Date; and Finding and Determining That the Meeting at Which This Resolution is Passed Was
Noticed and is Open to the Public as Required by Law.

MOTION: Upon a motion made by Council Member Amezcua and seconded by Council Member
Moreno, to approve Resolution No. 2023-17 as follows "I move that the City of
Manor authorize the use of the power of eminent domain to acquire both a permanent
wastewater easement of 4,399 square feet and a temporary construction easement of
4,401 square feet from the property owned by Layla Trust and described in Agenda
Item (23) for the public use of constructing and operating wastewater lines and
infrastructure improvements."

There was no further discussion.
Motion to approve carried 6-1 (Council Member Deja Hill voted against)
ADJOURNMENT

The Regular Session of the Manor City Council was Adjourned at 10:15 p.m. on Wednesday,
May 3, 2023.

These minutes were approved by the Manor City Council on the 17% day of May 2023.

APPROVED:

Dr. Christopher Harvey
Mayor

ATTEST:

Lluvia T. Almaraz, TRMC
City Secretary

City of Manor Page 13

Item 3.

50







METHODOLOGY

Below are the steps taken, with an explanation, to create this Facility Needs
Assessment.

DOCUMENT EXISTING BUILDINGS

Animportant part of validating the City s space needs was to fully understand
the City’s existing buildings’ condition, layout, usage, and square footage.
This report includes floor plans of City Hall, Police Department, and Public
Works. These floor plans label the use of every space. Photos are included
in the Appendix to give an overview of the buildings’ condition, appearance,
finishes, and usage.

DOCUMENT EXISTING STAFF & SUPPORT SPACE

Similar to documenting existing buildings (see above), an initial step was
to document the current staff and their associated support space of every
department. The departments studied in this Program include the following:
City Manager, City Secretary, Finance / Utility Billing, Human Resources,
Information Technology, Municipal Court, Community Development
Services, Development Services, Economic Development, Public Works, and
Police Department. The documentation of the existing staff (and soon to be
hired) can be found in the “17,500” column in the respective departmental
spreadsheets in this report.

SPACE STANDARDS
Thisprogramproposesamenuofofficeandworkstationsizesthatareassigned
to each staff member. The assignment of an office or workstation to each
staff member is catered to providing the space needed for each position to
perform their job and to work with position/title hierarchy. The total number
of a given staff position multiplied by the assigned space standard’s square
footage yields the total needed square footage for that given position.

Item 3.

PROJECT STAFF GROWTH

One of the most important steps in determining the overall facility square
footage needs is the projection of how City staff will need to grow along with
the City’s population. This is a challenging exercise because the forecasting
potentially extends out 30 years. It is intuitive that City staff will grow along
with the population so that level of service to citizens can be maintained,
but typically staff growth trajectory does not directly match/correlate to
population growth. The staff growth at future population benchmarks and the
percentage growth in relation to population percentage growth is chronicled
in each department’s spreadsheet.

PROJECT SUPPORT SPACE GROWTH

Along with staffs’ dedicated work space (office or workstation), support spaces
are animportant part of a department’s ability to provide City services. Support
spaces for departments include copy/file rooms, break rooms, training rooms,
and conference rooms. This report catalogs existing support space, identifies
lacking support spaces, and forecasts the growth of support spaces.

FINALIZE PROGRAM (TOTAL SF NEEDS)

The final Program is the mathematical culmination of the forecasting done in
each departmental spreadsheet. Each department’s staff and support space
square footage needs are totaled at each population benchmark. Then, all the
departments space needs are added together to yield the total City facility
square footage requirements.

2 ICITY OF

55555 MANOR

EST. 1872
TEXAS

CITY OF MANOR
FACILITY NEEDS ASSESSMENT

COUNCIL PRESENTATION | MAY 3,2023 | 2




EXISTING CITY FACILITIES CITY HALL

105 East Eggleston Street

9,242 sf
el OF =t POLICE DEPARTMENT
s A7 CIT‘@HF}!\_L-‘ AR &Y 402 West Parsons Street
Clty ofManorC|ty Hall® [ : (i) 4 490 <f
WPOLA@EHWMO / -
an
PUBLIC WORKS
416 Llano Street
4904 sf
The map above shows the locations of the recorded Buildings. The next page shows thumbnails and
basic info for each building.
eyl T Y O CITY OF MANOR
MANOR FACILITY NEEDS ASSESSMENT

EST. 1872

TEXAS COUNCIL PRESENTATION | MAY 3,2023 | 3




/H Item 3.

0 [ =
T I
/“ BREAK/CONFERENCE___| ] i
316.34 SF BREAK ROOM
COCE mmm zF
278.16 SF L SE Q
| Tl ]
COPY ROOM T
| — i 4F z DOCK _ IT/ELEC LOBBY 7
: — LOCKERRM [ 1F
903.58 SF
STORAGE i V 150.02 SF
edundant Rox
COUNCIL CHAMBERS riersE
|I| 1,F [E
s Department Legend
EXECUTIVE OFICE
| st conFERNCE [] CITY MANAGER
i 'F st [ CITY SECRETARY 0 7
= 0 [ I COMMUNITY DEVELOPMENT T
= = 1 SERVICES :
Il ECONOMIC DEVELOPMENT T Department Legend
[ FINANCE/ UTILITY BILLING [C] DEVELOPMENT SERVICES
] HUMAN RESOURCES [I] PUBLIC WORKS

[ INFORMATION TECHNOLOGY
] MUNICIPAL COURTS

CITY HALL FLOOR PLAN PUBLIC WORKS FLOOR PLAN

9,242 sf 4904 sf

Department Legend
BREAK ROOM
1225 ] POLICE DEPARTMENT
MEN'S LOCKER RESSZRS?:O M
SHOWER
175 SF
RESTROOI o]
RESTROOM
53 SF

|

POLICE DEPARTMENT FLOOR PLAN

490] sf

S STy OF CITY OF MANOR

h:s[TANgs FACILITY NEEDS ASSESSMENT

TEXAS COUNCIL PRESENTATION | MAY 3,2023 | 4




POPULATION BENCHMARKS

City staff and PGAL discussed the City’s growth to determine appropriate
future population benchmarks. The City’s past development planning
efforts have determined the ultimate build-out within the City’'s boundaries
will result in an approximate population of 100,000. The density of the
residential development will influence the ultimate population, with the
hintinrecentyears that the density will be greater than anticipated, and lead
to a population greater than 100,000. For this needs assessment, 100,000
is being used as the final population benchmark. We then selected two
benchmarks between the current population and the 100,000 population.

In the space needs spreadsheets, the benchmarks always reference the
population benchmark and do not specify a year with the reality that no
one knows the exact year a population will be reached. So, the idea is this:
the projected space needs will be required/triggered when the population
is reached whether that is fast or slow based on economic, social, and
resource dynamics.

Item 3.

CURRENT ESTIMATED POPULATION IN 2023:
18,867

SELECTED FOR BENCHMARKS:

1 7,500: APPROXIMATE POPULATION IN 2022
55,000: 100% POPULATION INCREASE
55,000: 214% POPULATION INCREASE
100,000: 47 1% POPULATION INCREASE

2 ICITY OF

» MANOR

EST. 1872
TEXAS

CITY OF MANOR
FACILITY NEEDS ASSESSMENT

COUNCIL PRESENTATION | MAY 3,2023 | s




SPACE STANDARDS

OF-1 OF-2 OF-3 OF-4
300 SF 240 SF 224 SF 200 SF ~
</
-y gg
1 /]
F- F- F-7 Fg [ H
%5 S? %O S? 80 SF 90 S% :l
oo
0
WS-1 WS-2 WS-3 ' ' WS-4
110 SF ! 90 SF

81 SF - 64 SF
° ol P)* Q17 -
o [9° 18» |
@) I

WS-5 WS-6 oo oo WS-7 | WS-8 WS-9 | |
63 SF 63 SF 54 SF . 48 SF 20 SF 5
H O ! O | Q J AK% QO J

@ . | |
SjSITY OF CITY OF MANOR
hE’s[TANgg FACILITY NEEDS ASSESSMENT
I TEXAS COUNCIL PRESENTATION | MAY 3,2023 | o




STAFF TO SPACE STANDARD

The matrix below maps each staff member to their assigned work space

Item 3.

COMMUNITY ECONOMIC INFORMATION
CITY MANAGER CITY SECRETARY DEVELOPMENT SERVICES | DEVELOPMENT SERVICES FINANCE DEVELOPMENT HUMAN RESOURCES MUNICIPAL COURT TECHNOLOGY POLICE DEPARTMENT PUBLIC WORKS VISITORS CENTER WAREHOUSE LIBRARY RECREATION CENTER
OF-1
City Manager Presiding Judge
300 SF v Teneg 8 e
OF-2 De_puty Clt.y Manager, Police Chief
240 SF Assistant City Manager
OF-3
Assistant Chief
224 SF
N Community N . .
OF-4 City Secretary Director of . Development Services Director of Finance Economl:{ Development Human Resources Director of Information Public Works Director Library Director Parks Director
200 SF Development Services Director Director Manager Technology
Assistant Director, Commander, Lieutenant Patrol Ops, :
OF-5 " . . " X : : " . Parks Recreation
Senior Engineer Marketing Director/BRE Lieutenant Special Ops, Lieutenant Assistant Director .
165 SF - N Director
Director Support Services
Sergeant Professional Standards and
Community Relations, Executive
Assistant, Officer Training, PIO/Media,
T P, i prttn St
OF-6 Administrative Assistant puty &1ty tany: Development Services, - . Assistant Director, I.T. et 8, Sergearn ’ . . -
N N Public Information . Specialist Associate Judge . N Officer Community, Officer Assistant Director Program Specialist
I50 SF to Council, Public N Construction Inspector Specialist/Engineer N L
. ) Officer N Community K9, Lab Scientist, Sergeant
Information Officer Supervisor L .
Patrol Division, Sergeant Swing,
Sergeant Traffic/DWI, Civilian
Supervisor Social Resource/Victims,
Civilian Supervisor Animal Services
Assistant Finance il :
OF-7 Principle Planner, Director, Utility Court Administration, Urility Su[:ermtendent, Street . N
- .. N B Superintendent, Parks Library Staff Recreation Center Staff
120 SF Building Official Manager, Finance Juvenile Case Manager N .
Superintendent, Mechanic
Manager
OF-8 Environmental Assistant Court Investigator
110SF Compliance Supervisor Administrator &
Ws-I|
110 SF
Senior Planner,
WS-2 Development Services Officer Warrants, Officer TAC, Video Utility Supervisor, Street
90 SF Supervisor, Senior Code Tech Supervisor, Drainage Supervisor
Enforcement
Administrative Police Clerk-Support Services, Police
Administrative Assistant, Training and Clerk - Admin, Crime Scene,
Administrative Asslstar}t. BulLvdlng Plans Aémlnlstratlve ) Development, Risk ) IT. Tech, LT. Systems ) Transport{JalLer,_Dlspatcher Da)./, Facilities Manager,
WS-3 - N N N Examiner, Fire Plans Assistant, Events . Economic Development Management Senior Court Clerk, L .. | Dispatcher Night, Dispatch Supervisor, - . . - . >
Administrative Assistant Assistant, Records . . Accounting Clerk . . Administrator, Security . . Administrative Assistant Receptionist Shipping & Receiving
81 SF Coordinator, Clerk Examiner, Engineer, Planner, Events Coordinator Coordinator, Talent Deputy Court Clerk, Analyst Police Clerk - Special Ops, Property Specialist
0 ! Environmental Assistant Manager, Payroll 4 Room Specialist, Lab Tech, Social P
Compliance Specialist Specialist, Benefits Resource Team/Victim Services, Police
Coordinator Clerk - Patrol, Shelter Tech
Permit Tech, Records Clerk, Traffic Officer, Traffic
WSs-4 Commercial Permit ) y )
64 SF Tech, Residential P it Motors Officer, Traffic/DWI Officer,
ech, Residentiat Fermi Animal Control Officer
Tech
WS-5 P}an Coordinator, Bailiff, Warrant Officer,
63 SF Senior GIS Analyst, GIS Prosecutor
Analyst u
Ws-6
63 SF
Receptionist, Utility Maintenance Foreman, Utility
Clerk, Meter Tech, Foreman, Parks Foreman,
Ws-7 . . - . "
54SF Building Maintenance Criminal Analysis Drainage Foreman/Street
Tech, Lead Billing Foreman, CIP Inspector,
Utility Clerk Development Inspector
Planning Technician,
WS-8 Building Inspector L-LL- Custodian, Purchasing MS4 Inspector
48 SF W, Code Enforcement, Agent
Construction Inspector
Ws-9
20 SF Utility Operator, L, LL, LLL
[as part of a
bullpen]

2 ICITY OF

# |MANOR

EST. 1872
TEXAS

CITY OF MANOR
FACILITY NEEDS ASSESSMENT

COUNCIL PRESENTATION | MAY 3,2023 | 7




SPACE NEEDS PROJECTION

The following pages are the programming spreadsheets that defined
the ultimate space needs for each City department. PGAL and City
staff worked together to catalogue all existing staff and existing space

(office and support space) and then project the growth of staff at future o 5 o
populations. O S0
B Q N©) « DO O
n - v s O v Q
. —
The sample spreadsheet to the right has notes to help understand the 4&_{ 8 o O S 2a
. . p o) C 0 5
information. = o < v S b o=
= = o) o v C wn ¢
7 7 03 & E Y W o 2
-] — O C @©
0 ) b © ©
- £ Q -] U= a 2 0 35 O
@) Q © n O O C
O Q 2 &
= c o 9 LD L gLl
5 5 v Q. ) Q 4 0
P C C ) - C 8 £ Llr_U Q
® o D = v (Vo) © 4 + O
GD)_ 8— - B - N - q(?) I ©
. ) w0 O “— O
© T U = @) © o O n
DEPT [STAFF EXISTING SF SPACE|STND AREA
POSITION / SPACE | NOTES
20,000 40,000 70,000 | 100,000 TYPE SF TYPE SF 20,000 40,000 70,000) | 100,000
Population Growth Percentage 100% | 250% | 400%
Administration
Public Works Director 1 1 1 1] OF 112]| |OF-4 200 200 200 200 200
Administrative Assistant 1 1 1 1]| OF 97 S-3 81 81 81 81 81
Receptionist / Records Clerk 1 2 2 2]| OF 98 S-3 81 81 162 162 162
Assistant Public Works Director 1 1 1 1 OF-7 120 120 120 120 120}No staff member currently
Emergency Management Coordinator/Specialist 1 1 1 OF-7 120 0 120 120 120
Office Manager 1 1 1 1 OF-7 120 120 120 120 120]No staff member currently
Shop Manager (Inventory) 1 1 1 OF-7 120 0 120 120 120
Transit Manager 1 1 OF-7 120 0 0 120 120
Subtotal: Staff 5 8 9 9
Staff % Growth 60 80 80] —
Personnel Space 602 923 1043 1043
Departmental Circulation (40%) 241 369 417 417
Projected Total Departmental SF I 843 1,292 1,460 1,460
percentage comparison of
population growth with staff growth
JIMANGR CITY OF MANOR
S FACILITY NEEDS ASSESSMENT
EST. 1872
TEXAS

COUNCIL PRESENTATION | MAY 3,2023 | s



CITY MANAGER FINAN - |

DEPARTMENT: City Manager DEPARTMENT: Finance / Utility Billing
CURRENT LOCATION: 105 East Eggleston Street CURRENT LOCATION: 105 East Eggleston Street
STAFF EXISTING SF SPACE STND AREA STAFF EXISTING SF SPACE STND AREA
POSITION / SPACE NOTES POSITION / SPACE NOTES
17,500 35,000 55,000 100,000 TYPE SF TYPE SF 17,500 35,000 55,000 100,000 17,500 35,000 55,000 100,000 TYPE SF TYPE SF 17,500 35,000 55,000 100,000
Population Growth Percentage 100 214 471 100 214 471 Population Growth Percentage 100 214 471 100 214 471
Personnel Space Personnel Space
City Manager| 1 1 1 1 230] OF-1 300 300 300 300 300 Finance Director| 1 1 1 1 200] OF-3 224, 224 224 224 224
Deputy City Manager 0 0 1 1 OF-2 240 0 0 240 240 Assistant Finance Director] 0 1 1 1 OF-7 120 0 120 120 120
Admin Assistant| 1 1 1 1 96 WS-3 81 81 81 81 81 Utility Manager 1 1 1 1 143| OF-7 120 120 120 120 120
Assistant City Manager| 0 1 2 2 OF-2 240 0 240 480 480 Accounting Clerk 1 2 3 4 127] WS-3 81 81 162 243 324
Public Information Officer 0 1 1 1 OF-6 150) 0 150 150 150) Receptionist 1 2 2 2 47] WS-6 63 63 126 126 126
Executive Assistant] 0 1 1 1 OF-6 150 0 150 150 150 Utility Clerk| 2 4 6 10 140 WS-6 63 126 252 378 630)
Admin Assistant to Council 0 1 1 1 OF-6 150 0 150 150 150]Office close to Chamber Meter Tech 1 2 3 10 47) WS-6 63| 63 126 189 630
0 0 0 0 Custodian 1 2 3 4 WS-8 48 48 96 144 192
0 0 0 0 Purchasing Agent 1 1 2 2| 47]_ws-8 48 48 48 96 96
0 0 0 0 Finance Manager| 1 1 1 1 47| OF-7 120 120 120 120 120
Building Maintenance Tech 0 2 4 8 WS-6 63| 0 126 252 504
Subtotal A: Personnel Space 2 6 8 8 381 1071 1551 1551 Lead Billing Utility Clerk 0 2 2 2 Ws-6 63 0 126 126 126
Staff % Growth) 200] 300 300 0 0 0 0
0 0 0 0
Support Space: 0 0 0 0
Large Conf. Room 1 1 1 1 300 150] 275|300 500]Shared with others on floor, 10-15 seats 0 0 0 0
Storage Closet| 1 1 1 1 30 35 40 50]In City Manager's office Subtotal AP TS m 21 T e 553 1636 2138 3212
Mayors Office] 1 1 1 1 OF-4 | 200 200 200 200 200 ubtota’ A: Tersonne’ Space
Staff % Growth 110 190 360
t Space:
File Room 1 1 1 1 50| 80 115 120 200|25 plastic banker boxes, 8 (3wLat)
Copy, scanner, sort counter, office supplies,
BS S 380 510 540 750 Workroom| 1 1 1 1 200 120 190 200 300fshared
: SUpport Space Transaction Counter in Lobby - Utilities 2 2 4 5| 20 80 80 80 100)
St Closet| 1 1 2 3| 20 20 20 40 60]In Fi ffi
Subtotal C: Personnel Space + Support Space 761|  1581] 2001 2301|Subtotal A + B orage Lose N Tinance office
Departmental Circulation (40%) | 304 632 836 920]Subtotal C * 0.40
Projected Total Departmental SF | 1065 2213 2927 3221
B: Support Space 300 405 440 660
C: Personnel Space + Support Space 1193 2051 2578 3872|Subtotal A + B
Departmental Circulation (40%) | 477 820 1031 1549 Subtotal C * 0.40
Projected Total Departmental SF I 1670 2871 3609 5421
DEPARTMENT: City Secretary
CURRENT LOCATION: 105 East Eggleston Street
STAFF EXISTING SF_] SPACE STND AREA DEPARTMENT: Human Resources
CURRENT LOCATION: 105 East Eggleston Street
POSITION / SPACE TYPE SF TYPE SF NOTES
17,500 35,000 55,000 100,000 17,500 35,000 55,000 100,000
= STAFF EXISTING SF SPACE STND AREA
Population Growth Percentage] 100 214 471 100 214 an POSITION / SPACE NOTES
Personnel Space 17,500 | 35,000 | 55,000 | 100,000 TYPE| SF |TYPE| SF 17,500 | 35,000 | 55,000 | 100,000
City Secretary] 1 1 1 1 147| OF-4 200) 200 200] 200 200 Population Growth Percentage 200 | 212 71 200 | 212 71
Deputy City Secretary| 0 0 1 1 OF-6 150 0 0 150 150]Shared with City Manager at 35K Personnel Space
Admin Assistant| 0 1 1 1 Ws-3 81 0 81 81 81 =
. Online portal, alcohol permits, hard-copy Human Resources Manager| 1 1 1 1 140] OF-4 200 200 200 200 200]Side conf table, guest chairs without arms
Records Coordinator] 0 0 1 1 WS-3 81 0 0 81 81|records — - -
- - - Specialist] 1 1 2 2 OF-6 150 150 150 300 300|Onboarding, benefits, employee stuff
Public Information Officer| 0 0 1 1 OF-6 150 0 0 150 150 Training and Development 0 1 1 7 Ws3 81 0 81 81 81
Clerk 0 o ! ! w3 81 g g 8(1) 8[1) Admin Assist 1 1 1 2 WS-3 81 81 81 81 162
o 0 0 0 Risk Management Coordinator 0 1 1 1 WS-3 81 0 81 81 81]Safety, training, labor & relations
Talent Manager| 0 0 1 1 WsS-3 81 0 0 81 81
0 0 0 0 Payroll Specialist 0 1 1 2 Ws3 81 0 81 81 162
0 0 0 0 Benefits Coordinator| 0 1 1 1 WS-3 81 0 81 81 81]compensation/labor coordinator
They will be In training room out in the
Subtotal A: Personnel Space 1 2 6 6 200 281 743 743 Volunteers| 0 0 0 0fcommunity
Staff % Growth| 100 500 500
Support Space: Subtotal A: Personnel Space 3 7 9 11 431 755 986 1148
Lobby Reception for Admin Suite| 1 1 1 1 70 95 100 150]Two chairs near each department Staff % Growth 133 200 267
File Room 1 1 1 1 80 100 120 200]Fire resistant room
Workroom 1 1 1 1 0 0 0 0 0]Shared with Finance Support Space:
Lobby Kiosk| 1 1 1 1 0 0 0 0 0JSF shown in City Hall Support Storage 1 1 1 1 60 90 100 175|Near Directors office - merch
/Admin Suite adjacent to Chambers Employee Files 1 1 1 1 60 90 100 150][Fire resistant room
Enough seating for all employees. Shared
Training Room| 1 1 1 1 0 0 0 0 0]with PD Training or Council Chambers
Subtotal B: Support Space 150 195 220 350
Subtotal C: Personnel Space + Support Space 350 476 963 1093|Subtotal A + B
Departmental Circulation (40%) | 140 190 385 437|Subtotal C * 0.40
Projected Total Departmental SF I 490 666] 1348 1530 B: Support Space 120 180 200 325
C: Personnel Space + Support Space 551 935 1186 1473|Subtotal A + B
Departmental Circulation (40%) | 220 374 474 589|Subtotal C * 0.40
Projected Total Departmental SF | 771 1309 1660 2062

S |SITY OF CITY OF MANOR
MANOR FACILITY NEEDS ASSESSMENT

EST. 1872

TEXAS COUNCIL PRESENTATION | MAY 3,2023 | 9



INFORMATION TECHNOLOGY COMMUNITY DEVELOPMENT SERVI(->}

DEPARTMENT: Information Technology DEPARTMENT: Community Development Services
CURRENT LOCATION: 105 East Eggleston Street CURRENT LOCATION: 547 Llano Street
STAFF EXISTING SF SPACE STND AREA STAFF EXISTING SF SPACE STND AREA
POSITION / SPACE NOTES POSITION / SPACE NOTES
17,500 35,000 55,000 100,000 TYPE SF TYPE SF 17,500 35,000 55,000 100,000 17,500 35,000 55,000 100,000 TYPE SF TYPE SF 17,500 35,000 55,000 100,000
Population Growth Percentage 100 214 471 100 214 471 Population Growth Percentage 100 214 471 100 214 471
Personnel Space Personnel Space
Director of Information Technology| 1 1 1 1 163] OF-4 200 200 200 200 200 Community Dev Services Director| 1 1 1 1 OF-4 200 200 200 200 200
I.T. Tech 2 2 3 4 94] WS-3 81 162 162 243 324 Events Planner,| 0 1 1 1 WsS-3 81 0 81 81 81
Assistant Director 0 1 1 1 OF-6 150 0 150 150 150 Events Assistant 1 1 WS-3 81 0 0 81 81
|.T. Systems Admin 0 0 1 1 WS-3 81 0 81 81 Admin Assistant| 1 1 WS-3 81 0 0 81 81
|.T. Specialist/Engineer| 0 0 1 1 OF-6 150 0 0 150 150 0 0 0 0
Security Analyst 0 1 2 2 WS-3 81 0 81 162 162 0 0 0 0
0 0 0 0
0 0 0 0 Subtotal A: Personnel Space 1 2 4 4] 200 281 443 443
0 0 0 0 Staff % Growth 100 300 300)
Subtotal A: Personnel Space 3 5 9 10 362 593 986 1067 Support Space:
Staff % Growth 67 200 233 Storage - Equipment 1 1 1 1 60 120 120 150
Storage - Merch / swag 1 1 1 1 60 100 120 150
Support Space:
Storage| 1 1 1 1 80 100 120 180 12-15 seats, used twice a week, Shared,
Workroom 1 1 1 1 80 150 150 225 Conference Rm 1 1 1 1 0 0 0 0 0]SF shown in City Hall Support Space
Server Room 1 1 1 1 114] 100 200 300 500) Need conf. space for 40 people three times
a year--Shared with Conf Suite or Council
Chambers
B: Support Space 120 220 240 300
- Subtotal C: Personnel Space + Support Space 320 501 683 743|Subtotal A + B
B: Support Space 260 450 570 905 Departmental Circulation (40%) | 128 200 273 297|Subtotal C * 0.40
Subtotal C: Personnel Space + Support Space 622 1043|1556 1972|Subtotal A + B Projected Total Departmental SF | 448] 70| 956 1040
Departmental Circulation (40%) | 249 417 622 789]Subtotal C * 0.40
Projected Total Departmental SF | 871 1460 2178 2761

MUNICIPAL COURT ECONOMIC DEVELOPMENT

DEPARTMENT: Municipal Court DEPARTMENT: Economic Development
CURRENT LOCATION: 105 East Eggleston Street CURRENT LOCATION: 105 East Eggleston Street
STAFF EXISTING SF SPACE STND AREA STAFF EXISTING SF SPACE STND AREA
POSITION / SPACE NOTES
POSITION / SPACE NOTES
17500 | 35000 | 55000 | 100000 | TYPE| SF | TYPE| SF 17500 | 35000 | 55000 | 100,000 17500 | 35000 | 55,000 | 100000 | TYPE| SF | TYPE| SF 17,500 | 35,000 | 55,000 | 100,000
Population Growth Percentage| 100 214 471 100 214 471 Population Growth Percentage 100 214 471 100 214 471
Personnel Space Personnel Space
Presiding Judge| 05 1 1 1 OF-3 204 112 204 204 204 Economic Development Director| 1 1 1 1 OF-4 200 200 200 200 200
‘Associate Judge 05 2 2 2 OF-6 150 75 300 300 300) Marketing Director/BRE Director| 0 1 1 1 OF-5 165 0 165 165 165
Court Admin 1 1 1 1 271 oF-7 120 120 120 120 120 Economic Development Coordinator| 0 1 1 1 WS-3 81 0 81 81 81
Senior Court Clerk 1 2 2 2 74 Ws3 81 81  162] 162 162 Assistant Director 0 0 ! ! OF5 | 165 0 0] 165 165
Deputy Court Clerk 1 3 4 B 74 Ws3 81 81| 243] 324 405, 0 0 0 0
Bailif| 0 1 2 2 WS5 63 0 63| 126 126 0 0 0 9
Warrant Officer 0 1 1 1 WS5 63 0 63 63 63 0 0 0 9
Prosecutor 0 1 1 1 WS5 63 0 63 63 63 0 0 0 9
Juvenile Case Manager| 0 1 1 1 OF-7 120 0 120 120 120 0 0 0 0
Assistant Court Admin. 0 0 0 1 OF-8 10 0 0 0 10 0 0 0 0
0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0
0 0 0 0
Subtotal A: Personnel Space 4 13 15 17 469 1358 1502 1693 0 0 0 0
Staff % Growth 225] 275 325 0 0 0 0
0 0 0 0
! Space: Subtotal A: P B 1 3 4 4 2000 446 oM 611
File Room 1 1 1 1 20 50 75 110|Fire resistant room, 3 (3wLat) Do T TeTSonne Space
Storage| 1 1 1 1 40 75 80 85]swag, coloring books, brochures Staff % Growth 200 300 300
Transaction Counter in Lobby - Dept
Clerk 1 4 4 4 20 20 80 80 80| Support Space:
Transaction Counter at Drive Thru - Dept] Files Room 1 1 1 1 50 90 100 150]6--Lat files (4 drawers high)
Clerk 1 2 2 2| 20 20 40 40! 40|
Storage Closef] 1 1 1 1 20 20 50 55[in Judge's office Conference Room 1 1 1 1 120 150 180 300JUsed 4-5 times a week. 6-8 seats, Shared
Court reporter and Admin next to Judge, 6 Storage| 1 1 1 1 30 30 40 60}logo merch, closet with shelving
person jury box, witness stand, attorney's
tables, Judge to be seated higher than
Court Room| 300 550 650 950fothers.
Subtotal B: Support Space 440 845 975 1320 B: Support Space 200 270 320 510
Subtotal C: Personnel Space + Support Space 909 2203 2477 3013|Subtotal A + B C: Personnel Space + Support Space 400 716 931 1121|Subtotal A + B
Departmental Circulation (40%) | 364 881 991 1205} Subtotal C * 0.40 Departmental Circulation (40%) | 160 286 372 448|Subtotal C * 0.40
Projected Total Departmental SF | 1273 3084 3468 4218| Projected Total Departmental SF | 560 1002 1303 1569

Ty oF CITY OF MANOR
MANOR FACILITY NEEDS ASSESSMENT f - '|

EST. 1872
TEXAS COUNCIL PRESENTATION | MAY 3,2023 | 10




DEVELOPMENT SERVICES

DEPARTMENT: Development Services

CITY HALL SHARED SUPPORT SPACLS

DEPARTMENT: City Hall Shared Support Space

CURRENT LOCATION:

105 East Eggleston Street

CURRENT LOCATION: 105 East Eggleston Street
STAFF EXISTING SF | SPACE STND AREA
POSITION / SPACE NOTES
17,500 35,000 55,000 100,000 TYPE SF TYPE SF 17,500 35,000 55,000 100,000
Population Growth Percentage 100 214 47 100 214 471
Personnel Space
Development Services Director| 1 1 1 1 OF-4 200 200 200 200 200
Asst. Director Development Services, 0 1 1 1 OF-6 150 0 150 150 150
Principle Planner| 0 0 1 1 OF-7 120 0 0 120 120
Senior Planner 0 1 1 2 WS-2 90 0 90 90 180
Plan Coordinator| 1 1 2 2 WS-5 63| 63 63 126 126
Planning Technician 0 1 2 3 WS-8 48, 0 48 96 144
Senior GIS Analyst 0 0 1 1 Ws-5 63 0 0 63 63
GIS Analyst 0 1 1 2 WS-5 63| 0 63 63 126
Building Officiall 1 1 1 1 OF-7 120] 120 120 120 120]
Admin Assistantl 0 1 2 2] WsS-3 81 0 81 162 162
Building Inspector I, I, Il 2 4 6 7 WS-8 48 96 192 288 336
Building Plans Examiner| 1 1 2 2 WS-3 81 81 81 162 162]
Fire Plans Examiner| 0 1 1 1 WS-3 81 0 81 81 81
Development Services Supervisor| 1 1 1 1 WS-2 90 90 90 90 90
Permit Tech 2 3 0 0 Ws-4 64 128 192 0 0
Commercial Permit Tech 0 0 1 2 Ws-4 64 0 0 64 128
Residential Permit Tech 0 0 3 3 Ws-4 64| 0 0 192 192
Senior Code Enforcement| 0 1 1 1 Ws-2 90| 0 90 90 90|
Code Enforcement| 1 1 2 4 WS-8 48 48 48 96 192
Senior Engineer| 0 1 1 2| OF-5 165 0 165 165 330
Engineer 0 0 2 3 WsS-3 81 0 0 162 243]
Construction Inspector Supervisor| 0 1 1 1 OF-6 150 0 150 150 150
Construction Inspector 0 1 3 4 WS-8 48| 0 48 144 192]
Environmental Compliance Supervisor]| 0 0 1 1 OF-8 110 0 0 110 110
Environmental Compliance Specialist] 0 1 2 3 WS-3 81 0 81 162 243
0 0 0 o)
0 0 0 0
Subtotal A: Personnel Space 10 24 40 51 826 2033 3146 3930
Staff % Growth 140 300 410
Support Space:
Plotter/Copier; 1 1 1 1 80 110 120 200
10-12 seats, Shared, SF shown in City Hall
Conference Room 1 1 1 1 0 0 0 0 0|Support Space
Lobby Kiosk| 1 1 1 1 0 0 0 0 0lin City Hall Support Space
Transaction Counter in Lobby - Permits 1 1 2 2 20 20 20 40 40
Locker-room access from exterior for
Inspectors in field
B: Support Space 100 130 160 240
C: P | Space + Support Space 926 2163 3306 4170|Subtotal A + B
Departmental Circulation (40%) 370 865 1322 1668|Subtotal C * 0.40
Projected Total Departmental SF | 1296 3028 4628 5838

STAFF EXISTING SF_| SPACE STND AREA
POSITION / SPACE NOTES
LEVEL 17,500 35,000 | 55,000 100,000 TYPE| SF |TYPE| SF 17,500 35,000 | 55,000 100,000
Population Growth Percentage 100 214 47 100 214 471
Support Space:
Lobby & Vestibule 1 1 1 1 1 800 1100 1200 1600} Showcase historical items at City Hall
Lobby Merch space| 1 1 1 1 1 80 95 100 150
Customer Kiosk in Lobbyj 1 1 1 2 2| 20 20 20 40 40]Public info. requests, Dev Services needs
Reception Desk in Lobbyj 1 150! 155 160 200} Two work stations
Media Room 1 0 1 1 1 120 140 150 270 Near Lobby
Equip: monitor, 2-pc's, printer, 2-data ports,
monitor in lobby to show customer # or QR
Shared Agency - Drivers License Kiosk| 1 0 1 1 1 100 130 150 200]code.
Shared Agency - Credit Union Kiosk 1 100! 115 120 200
Council Chamber Lobby)| 1 1 1 1 1 200 200! 200 200 200)
Seating for 100-150, 7-coucil, 1-CM, 1-City
Secretary, 1-City Attorney. This space to
serve as back-up EOC. One camera feed for
Council Chamber /Municipal Court} 1 1 1 1 1 2500 3100 3250 4200 media.
Council Chamber Storage 1 1 1 1 1 80! 90 100 250
Remote control of broadcast or live stream
Council Chamber AV Room 1 1 1 1 1 100 130 150 200froom
Seats 15, A/V ready, Overflow space, used
as Juvenile Conf. Rm., buffet on one side of
Executive Session Conference Room 1 1 1 1 1 600! 600 600 800froom
Councils Staff Admin 1 1 1 1 1 0 0 0 0} Included in City Managers spreadsheet
Council Work Area 1 1 1 1 1 500 500 500 500]6 cubicles
Council Restroom 1 1 1 1 1 64 64 64 64
Shared with Conf. Center or Council
Training Room 1 0) 0 0 0 0 Chambers
Employee Assessment/Training Room 1 1 1 1 1 220 240 250 300
See Municipal Court sheet and Council
Municipal Court Room 1 1 1 1 1 0) 0 0 0 0 Chambers
Mail Rooms| 1 1 2 2 2 75) 75 150 150 150] One Mail Room per floor
Mother's Room / Quiet Room| 1,2 &3 1 3 3 3 75) 75 225 225 225
Receiving Areal 1 1 1 1 1 700 740 800 1200} Receiving and Storage of Deliveries
Employee Entrance| 1 1 1 1 1 100 100 100 200
Vending Area 1 1 1 1 1 65 65 65 130
Breakrooms| 1,2&3 1 2 3 3 275 275, 550 825 825
Coffee Bars| 1,28&3 2 2 3 6 20| 40! 40 60 120}
Conference Suite Lobby/Vestibule| 1 1 1 1 1 400 400 400 800
Community/Conf. suite. Accessed from
separate lobby, not tied to City Hall interior.
Conf. Suite Large Conference Rooms| 1 2 2 2 2 800 1200 1700 2100JAdd restrooms. Sits100
Community/Conf. suite. Accessed from
separate lobby, not tied to City Hall interior.
Conf. Suite Small Conference Rooms 1 4 4 6 8 180} 720 720 1080 1440]Add restrooms. Sits6-8,
Conf. Suite Storage| 1 2 2 3 4] 150) 300! 300 450 600)
Conf. Suite Public Toilets| 1 2 2 2 2 500 1000 1000 1000 1000
Conf. Suite Janitor| 1 1 1 1 2 80 80! 80 80 160}
Conf. Suite Breakroom 1 1 1 1 1 90! 120 200 400} Coffee bar, Catering counter, vending
Public/Building Toilets (Ground Level) 1 2 2 2 2 275 550 550 550 550
Men's Restrooms| 1,2 & 3 2 2 3 3| 275 550 550 825 825]Maybe single RR's for staff?
Women's Restrooms| 1,2 &3 2 2 3 3| 275 550 550 825 825]Maybe single RR's for staff?
IT Closets| 1,2&3 0 2 3 3 80 0 160 240 240
Mechanical| 1,2&3 1 2 2 2] 500) 500! 1000 1000 1000
Electrical] 1,2&3 1 3 3 3| 150) 150 450 450 450
Fire Riser Room 1 1 1 1 1 65 65 65 65
Janitor Closets| 1,2 &3 1 2 3 3| 80| 80! 160 240 240)One Janitor Closet per floor
Elevator] 1,2&3 0 1 1 2 120! 120 180 180
Stairs| 1,2&3 0 2 4 4 200 0 400 800 800
Miscellaneous Storage Rooms| 1,2 &3 3 4 5 8 100 300 400 500 800
Fitness Room 1 1 1 1 1 600 600 700 1200
Shower Room 1 2 2 2 4 90| 180 180 180 360
Support Space 13999| 17554| 20724 26059
Departmental Circulation (40%) 5600 7022 8290 10424] Subtotal * 0.40
Projected Total Departmental SF 19599| 24576 29014 36483

2 ICITY OF

# |MANOR

EST. 1872
TEXAS

CITY OF MANOR
FACILITY NEEDS ASSESSMENT

COUNCIL PRESENTATION | MAY 3,2023 |




PUBLIC WORKS CITY WAREHOUL=ZE

DEPARTMENT: Public Works

CURRENT LOCATION: 547 Llano Street DEPARTMENT: Warehouse

CURRENT LOCATION: No current Warehouse

STAFF EXISTING SF | SPACE STND AREA STAFF EXISTING SF | SPACE STND AREA
POSITION / SPACE NOTES
17500 | 35000 | 55000 | 100000 | TYPE| SF |TYPE| SF | 17500 | 35000 | 55000 | 100,000 POSITION / SPACE 1vee | sk | TyPe| sF NOTES
Population Growth Percentage 100 214 471 100 214 471 17,500 35,000 | 55000 | 100,000 17,500 35,000 | 55000 | 100,000
Personnel Space Population Growth Percentage 100 214 47 100 214 47
Public Works Director 1 1 1 1 4 287| OF-4 200 200 200 200 200
Assistant Director 0 0 0 1 OF-5 165 0 0 0 165 Personnel Space
Parks Director| See Rec Center Facilites Manager 0 0 2 3 WS-3 81 0 0 162 243
Admin Assistant 1 1 2 2 WS-3 81 81 81 162 162] Shipping & Receiving Specialists 0 2 2 3 WS-3 81 0 162 162 243
Utility Superintendent-W/WW 1 1 2 2 5 158] OF-7 120 120 120 240 240
Maintenance Foreman 1 3 3 3 WS7 54 54 162 162 162 A: Space 0 2 4 8 0 1621 524 486
Utility Foreman 2 4 5 6 Ws-7 54| 108 216 270 324
Utility Operator I, II, 11l 7| 24 35 45 Ws-9 20 140 480 700! 900 Support Space:
Street Superintendent| 1 2 2 2 OF-7 120 120 240 240 240 Receiving Dock 0 1 1 1 0 175 200 350
Parks Superintendent 1 1 1 1| 6 161] OF-7 120) 120 120 120 120) [Public Work overflow, water and MRE storage, cofs,
Parks Forman| 2 2 4 6 WS-7 54 108 108 216 324 Storage area| 0 1 1 1 0 20000, 40000 60000]holiday/seasonal storage.
Drainage Foreman / Street Forman 2 3 3 4 WS-7 54 108 162 162 216 Restrooms 0 2 2 3 RR 75 0 150 150 225|Single use
Mechanic 1 1 2 3 OF-7 120 120 120 240 360 Mechanical/Electrical/Riser Rm. 0 2 2 2 0 150 200 300
ROW/Park Crewman| 7 10 14 20 0 0 0 ofin field Breakroom 0 1 1 1 0 300 300 300
Drainage Crewman / Street Crewman, Conf. Rm. 0 0 1 1 0 0 150 200
Operators |, 11, 11l 4 11 14 16| 0 0 0 olin field Fork lift storage and charging| 0 1 2 4 40 0 40 80 160]
Utility Supervisor] 0 2 2 2 Ws-2 90) 0 180 180 180 Eye-Wash 0 2 4 il 10 0 20 40 60
Street Supervisor 0 1 1 1 Ws-2 90| 0 90 90 90|
Drainage SuZervisor 0 0 1 1 WS-2 90) 0 0 90 90) B: Support Space 0 20835 411200 61595
MS4 Inspector 1 1 1 1 WS-8 48| 48 48 48 48|
CIP Inspector 1 3 3 4 WS-7 54 54) 162 162 216 Subtotal C: Personnel Space + Support Space o 20007[ 41444]  62081[Subtotal A+ B
Development Inspector 1 2 3 4 Ws-7 54 54 108 162 216 Departmental Circulation (10%) | 0 2100 4144 6208|Subtotal C * 0.40
Subtotal A: Personnol Space 3| 73] 99 125 143] 2607] 3add] 4263 Note: A City warehouse is not a function/building that currently exists
Staff % Growth 115 191 268
Support Space:
Breakroom 1 1 1 1 260 150 345 350 400
Conference Room 1 1 1 1 284 250 260 285 320
Shared with PD Training or Council
Training Room 1 1 1 1 333] 0 0 0 0 0JChambers
Parts and Meter Storage 1 1 1 1 585 350 700 800 900fClimate Control
Locker room 1 1 1 1 153 300 875 1000 1200)80 lockers-one per employee at 55K
Rest Room with Shower| 2 2 4 4 66 90 180 180 360 360
Rest Room 2 4 4 6 54 75 150 300 300 450
Warehouse Storage| 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0]See warehouse sheet
Lab| 1 1 1 1 509 250 370 400 500)Need door to exterior
IT/Electrical 1 1 1 1 67 60 65 70 80
Copy, 1 1 1 1 104 80 95 105 120
Lobbyj 1 1 1 1 117 100 115 120 150
Reception area 1 1 1 1 231 80 210 230 240
Records Storage| 1 1 1 1 257 150 240 250 280
B: Support Space 2100 3755 4270 5000 V I s I I O R < I N I I R
C: Personnel Space + Support Space 3535 6352 7714 9253]Subtotal A + B
Departmental Circulation (40%) | 1414 2541 3086 3701]Subtotal C * 0.40
Projected Total Departmental SF | 4949 8893 10800 12954 DEPARTMENT: Visitors Center
CURRENT LOCATION: No current Vistors Center
STAFF EXISTING SF_| SPACE STND AREA
POSITION SPACE 17,500 35,000 | 55000 | 100,000 | TYPE | SF |TYPE| SF 17,500 35,000 | 55000 | 100,000 NOTES
Population Growth Percentage| 100 214 471 100 214 471
P Space
Receptionist 0 0 1 1 ws-3 81 0 0 81 81]Work area to have back et to exterior
Subtotal A: Personnel Space 0 0 1 1 0 0 81 81
Support Space:
Lobb: 0 1 1 1 0 185 200 250]Display areas, brochures/magazines, lots of wall space
Storage closet 0 1 1 1 0 75 80 100
Restroom| 0 2 2 2 RR 75 0 150 150 150]Single use. Staff could possibly share with public.
Mechanical/Electrical/Riser Rm.| 0 1 1 1 40 0 40 40 40
B: Support Space 0 450 470 540
Could be in a rental space (high pedestrian traffic area).
Partnership with chamber? Bloor mansion? Showcase
historical items at City Hall. Potentially at amphitheater or City
Park.
Subtotal G: Personnel Space + Support Space 0 450 551 621|Subtotal A + B
Departmental Circulation (40%) | 0 180 220 248|Subtotal C * 0.40
Projected Total Visitors Center SF | 0 630 771 869

Note: The City currently does not have a Visitor Center

TlciTr o CITY OF MANOR
MANOR FACILITY NEEDS AsSESSMENT U}

EST. 1872
TEXAS COUNCIL PRESENTATION | MAY 3,2023 | 12

AT
62 |




POLICE DEPARTMENT

DEPARTMENT:  Manor Police

CURRENT LOCATION: 402 West Parsons Street STAFF EXISTING SF_| SPACE STND AREA
POSITION / SPACE SWORNY NOTES
TR ERETING 5F T SFACE STND I unsworn | EVES | 7500 | 35000 | ss000 | 100000 | TYPE| SF | TYPE| SF | 17500 | 35000 | sso00 | 100000
POSITION / SPACE Sworn | e ve| sk | Tyee| sk NOTES Population Growth Percentage 100 | 214 an 100 214 471
UNSWORN 17,500 35,000 55,000 100,000 17,500 35,000 55,000 100,000 |Eoc
Population Growth Percentage 100 | 214 a1t 100 214 a1t 150 seals @ 2 person tables, diisible room--3000f, No
W—' i Operations Center| 1 1 2 2 2 0 1000|2000 2500 gency exit into secure area
Just warmingino cooking, with sink. This can share with
Caterers Kitchen/Breakroom| 1 1 1 1 1 100 120/ 150 250] Community Room if in close proximity.
Police Chief| S 2 1 1 1 1| _oF 258| OF-2 240 240 240] Couch seating
Assistant Chief S 2 1 1 1 2 OF-3 224 |SociAL Resources
O S 2 0 1 2 4] OF 145] OF-5 165 Lobby 1 1 1 1 1 75 100 120 160 | Accessible from main lobby, Or separate Public entrance.
Lieutenant Patrol Ops (Days/Nights) S 2 1 2 2 2] OF 100§ OF-5 330 Soft Interview Room 1 1 1 2 3 122| 100 100 100 200 300 Couch. toys, TV. friendly envi
Lieutenant Special Ops| s 2 1 1 1 2| oF 146] OF5 150
Lieutenant Support Services s 2 1 1 2 OF 5 150
Sergeant Prof. Standards & Com. Relations s 2 1 1 1 OF-7 120 OPERATIONS
Executive Assistant; u 2 1 1 1 14 ws 115) OF-7 120 Locker Room (unisex) 1 1 1 1 1 175 900 1100 1500 1800 |Need 150 lockers, bench and boot drawer--2000sf
Civilian Supervisor Support Services U 2 1 1 1 OF-6 150 Locker Room Showers 1 1 6 6 8 RR 90 90 540 540 720 Wall hooks, benches
Officer Training S 2 1 2 2 OF-7 120 Residential 2-washers & 2-dryers, folding table or cabinet,
PIO/Medial 1 2 1 2 OF-7 0 Laundry Room 1 1 1 1 1 65| 85 100 illwork storage for soap and fresh towels.
U 2 1 2 OF-6 0 Conex
Police IT| U 1 0 1 2 OF-7 0 a 1 1 1 1 1| Box 80 150 200 250 350 | Located near loading dock
U 2 1 1 OF7 0 Fitness 1 1 1 1 1 ‘I 1200] 1650 1900 2000]1250 s for floor/wall mats. 1250 machines--2500sf
Records Clerk U 1 1 2 3 3 ws 60| wsa 162 Bunk Room 1 1 2 2 25 _| 140 140 280 280 350[8 beds
Police Clerk - Support Services 1 2 1 1 2 2| _ws 50| ws3 81 Armory} 1 1 1 1 1 50 200] 250 300 45050 riftes. 50 shotguns, 50 pistols, tasers
Police Clerk - Admin 1 2 1 1 2, WSs3 81 ‘Armory - Weapons Cleaning 1 1 1 1 1 120 150 200 eye wash, Compressed ai. Ventiated. 2 WS
Budget Analyst/Purchasing U 2 1 1 2 OF-7 120 Evidence Processing Area 1 1 1 1 1 47] 100 130 150 ink with eye wash. Storage for supplies
Custodian U 1 05| 05 1 1 0 Evidence Pass-thru locker 1 1 1 1 2 40 40 40 40 80[4 lockers
Separate ventilation & HVAC, Bulk storage, High Density and
[Spociar Conex Home Depot shelves. If HD, add row for Records Archives. No
Sorgeant 01 2 Z . ! z a-or = i Evidence Storage 1 1 1 1 1| ‘et 110 750, 950| 1100, saso ot e o bl door e sioeszer-
Corporal CID WarrantTAC s 2 1 1 0
Command Support Office < 5 T T T AR 0 50 Evidence vaults 1 1 2 2 3 50 50 100 100 150] Guns, Drugs, Valuables
Civilian Supervisor et v 2 0 u 1 1 0 Evidence Lab) 1 1 1 1 1 150 200 275|Emergency Cell signal blocker. Vent hood.
Civilian Supervisor O Gl 2 1 1 1 150 Digital Lab)| 1 75 80 10| Cell signal (Faraday) shield
Civilian Supervisor Y 2 1 1 0 Powder Lab| 1 51 75] d 110|With Down draft WSs
_Investigator S 2 3 L 8 12] WS 81 660 Drying Room 1 80 100 120|2 drying cabinets
Officer Warrants s 1 1 3 4 %0 Batrol Lobb, > 50 7 1H—100|'
Officer TAC s 1 2 3 5 s 270 Patrol Coffee Bar 1 1 1 2 80 80 80 80 160
Officer Communityl S 1 1 1 1 2] ws 38 120 Patrol - Briefing Room| 1 2 2 2.5 300 300 600 W—MOLO persons in classroom desks
Officer Community K9 S 1 1 1 2| 120
Crime Scene y 2 1 1 2 2| ws 69 81 Patrol - Large Workspace]| 1 1 1 1 1.3] 500 500
TransportiJail s 1 1 2 4 81 ]
Dispatcher Day 1 2 0 4 4 0 Patrol - Gear check out 1 1 1 1 15| 150 150
Dispatcher Night U 2 0 4 4 0 Patrol - Conference 1 1 1 1 2 180 180
Dispatch Supervisor 2 0 2 2 0 Storage close| 2 1 2 2 3 4 40 80 80 120[In Chief's, and Assistant Chief's offices
Emergency U 2 1 1 1 2| _ws 38 150
Criminal Analysis 1 2 1 1 2 2, 54 Staff 1o use RR in bulding. Staff/ransport jaler (o have WS off
Police Clerk - Special Ops| U 1 1 1 2 81 | DETENTION & SALLY PORT of kitchen or hallway
Property Room Specialist] 1 1 1 2 2 81
Lab Scientist U 1 1 7 0 can hold up to 4 juveniles in one holding cell. Brought through
Lo Tech ] T 7 2 o Juvenile Holding 1 1 1 1 1 75| 95 110 145 Sally Port. Juveniles to left, Adults to right from SP.
Video Tech 0] 1 7 1 3 % Processing separate from Adults, small desk. Process them
physically in opposite direction from adults after leaving sally
Juvenile Processing 1 1 1 1 2 s0| 80 80 80 80 160port
ool Interview R(;oms 1 : f f 2 500 'eg 162 162 0
raw 1 1 15( 5 15( 5 15(
Sergeant Patrol Division (Days Nights) s i 4 4 5 121 OF 2001 OF7 ﬂ&ﬂ' Sally Port| 1 1 1 1 12 1600 1600] 1600 1600 1920| Two bavs. 4 vehicles. (Lavout analed parking) --2400sf
Sergeant Swing S 1 2 4 6 OF-7 240 480 720 Sally Port Storage 1 1 1 1 1.3 120 120 120 120 156 6-cabinets (equipment, cleaning supplies). workbench
Sergeant Traffic/DW1 S 1 1 1 2 OF-7 120 120 240] Detention Fi 1 1 1 1 15) 16| 120 120 120 120 eyewash wisink.
— Corporal Traffic/ Night DW1 S 1 1 1 2 OF6 150 150 300 Detention Holding cells. 1 1 3 3 3] Bench 30] 110 110 330 330 330]2-persons each.
Civilian Supervisor Social Resource/Victims U 1 1 1 OF-7 0 120 120 Detention pacided coll T T f f 7 50 50 o ool 50
Days Officer S 1 8 14 20 46 WS 100 0 0 0 Detention storage 1 1 1 1 i3 80 80 80 80 104 | Spit masks, etc.
Nights Officer] S 1 8 12 20 46] WS 100, 0 0 0 Detention food prep) 1 1 1 1 1 60 60 60 60 60| Refrigerator and microwave
Swing Officer ] 1 4 7 7 23] WS 0 0 0 Detention, Detainees Property Storage| 1 1 1 1 1 20 20 20 20 20| Shelves with baskets
K9 Officer s 1 4 4 6 0 0 0 I—
Traffic Officer s 1 4 6 8 WS4 256 384 512 I
Traffic Motors Officer S 1 2 2 4 Ws-4 162 162 324 |GENERAL BUILDING
Traffic/DWI Officer S 1 2 4 6 WS-4 162 162 324 Kitchen / Break Room| 182 1 122] 425 500 650 850|stove, commercial ice, sits 20 (2 tables)
Social Resource Team/Victim Services 1 1 4 6 8 10| _ws 222 ws3 486 648 sw_gr\gn wall furniture for acoustics and privacy Coffon Bars) T8z 1 7 7 I —| 70 % ) o 50
Police Clerk - Patrol (Days/Nights) 1 1 2 2 4 WSs3 128 128 256 < Taz 1 3 3 75 3 100 100 200 200 250
Officer Reserve S 1 2 u 0 u 0 0 o Restrooms 182 2 4 6 8 2 rooms wd RR | 75 | 150  300] _as0] 600|Single use
Central Compressor to serve: gun cleaning rm, lab, evidence,
Shelter Volunteer| 182 4 4 4 |Excluded from Staff Count Calculation maintenance bays. Fuel station or somewhere in secure
Mechanical Electricall 182 1 1 1 1 950| 1050|1300 area --1600s
[Subtotal A: Personnel Space 485 995 171 274 3050|6695 10430] 15181 Sprinkler Room 1 1 1 1 1 50 50 50 50 50
Staff % Growth 105] 253 465 Mothers Room 182 1 1 1 2 75 75 75 75 150|Sink. Refrigerator, Mirror. Recliner/Couch
I b Room 182 1 3 3 3 70 70 210 210 210|recliner, side table, TV
| Janitor 182 1 2 2 2 52| 80 80 160 160 160]Jan on first floor to be bigger to house trash carts
|SWORN VERSUS UNSWORN STAFF | Elevator & Equipment Room 182 1 1 1 85 0 85 85 85|2nd floor
Sworn| 38 77| 122 212 Stairs 182 2 2 2 200 0 400 400 400]2nd fioor
Sworn % Growth 103 221 458 Telecom closet on Second Floor 182 1 2 2 80 0 80 160 160 2nd floor
‘Sworn Staff per 1,000 population 27| 220 222 2.12] (As well as sitting area outside of Chief's office. Share reception
‘Un-Sworn| 13 % m 62 i Lobby| 1 1 1 1 95| 110 120 150fwith Professional Standards
Tn-Sworn % Growth 05| 288 39 ion Conf. Room Large| 1 1 1 1 425 550 600 800 sits 16-20 People. Check size of CS: 750120 people
Admin. Conf. Room Coffes/Stol 1 1 1 15) 60 60 60 60 90
Seating near Admin offices 1 1 1 15) 40 40 40 40 60
Chief, Assist. Chief, Admin Suite, Shower/RR! 1 3 3 4 RR_| 90 %0 270 270 360 One in Chief's office. Two accessed off of Hall
‘Admin Suite Personnel Records File Sto 1 1 1 2 26| 50 50 50 50 100]locked room. Adiacent to Ex. Assistant
Conex
: _ Community Relations Storage 2 1 1 1 15| Box 160 35 35 35 35 52.5]locked room. Adjacent to Community Officer
Bottle filer/vending, sealing for 10-12, Ballslic Rated Level 3 : - -
Loow) ; ; ; ; , 200] 260 00 00 1100 oo Mecdl.s E{;s: : : : 1 128 wgg 1 gg fgg For internal recording (social push)
Entry Vestibule 1 1 1 1 15 80 80 80 80 CID Conf. Room Large| 1 1 2 2 180 180 180 360 360|sits 8 people
Community Room 1 1 1 1 1 300 600 800 1000 Communit I — > 3 5 S areoms 700 0 60 240 a0 1 -
Community Room Storage 1 1 1 1 1 40 80 100 175 | Table and chair storage from Community Rm 5D Restreon T 0 0 7 R s 5 75 75 5 Betwoon mierview reoms
Caer Kichen for Comm. Room 1 1 1 1 1 80 100 150 260]Just cooking. Ice machine, sink b Siorage T f T 1 e o0 20 e
Public Restrooms| 1 2 2 2 3 53| RR | 75 150 150 150 225Single use
Report Writing (public access) 1 1 2 2 2 80 80 160 160 1so|r ing room/Community meetings 1
|SPECIAL UNITS AREA |Adjacent to Patrol and CID suits.
| Lobb 0 1 1 15) 100 0 100 100 150 External secure entry.
EEEREE I Conf. Room 0 1 1 12 120 0 120 120 144|Sits 4-6 persons
Front Counter 1 1 1 2 2 80 80 80 160 160 | Located off of main lobby Storage Room/Closell o 3 3 I 50 o 240 240
CopylPrint 1 1 1 1 1 80 80 100 150|Man to be delivered to staff directly (no mailbox) Coffes Bar 0 1 1 2 2 o 20 20
Records Active Storage 1 1 1 1 1 120 150 170 235 High Density filing system. Workroom o T T T3 50 o 50 50 05|
Conex [Archive files to be housed in one of the HD carriages in ‘Special Units-Offices U 0 4 5 7 OF-7 120 0 280 600 &E' For partner's and future growth (no staff just space)
Records Archive Storage 1 1 1 1} Box 256 0 u u u 0fEvidence Room. ‘Special Units-Large WSs U [ 8 10 12 ws2 90 [ 720 900 1080 |For partner's and future arowth (no staff just space)
P { Special Units-Small WSs ] 0 5 7 9 Ws-7 54 0 270 378 486] For partner's and future arowth (no staff just space)
Lobb 1 0 1 1 1 [ % 100 200)
Large Assembly Room-divisible 1 0 0 0 0 0}Share with EOC |COMMAND SUPPORT SHOP Staff: Command Support Officer - Unsworn
Storage! 1 0 1 1 1 0 100 150 250|Mats. blue guns, simulation equipment
Computer Lab| 1 0 1 1 1 0 75 150 200]4 computer WS With vehicle lifts, motorcycle lift, compressors (Compressor to
Restrooms 1 0 2 2 25 RR_| 250 [ 500 500 625 4-stall gang RRs be remote), emergency eye washishower, sink. One bay is
1 0 1 1 1 [ 75 100 130 Garage Bays: (1) 1 1 1 1 2 475 475 475 475, 950]) fovable partition between bays.
Simulation Room| 1 0 1 1 1 400 0 400 400 400 Sound treatment Conex
| Electronic Storage 1 1 1 1 13| Box | 150 150 150 150 imate controlled fleet outi items
|commUNICATIONS / DisPATCH |Whale room on generator Loading Dock 1 1 1 1 1 200 | 200]  200]  200]
Server Room| 1 1 1 1 1 12, 150 200 650/ Storage: Propert) 1 1 1 1 1.2 100 100 100 100 120 Disposal is once a year or on demand.
911/Demark 1 1 1 1 15 100 100 100 100 150 Workroom 1 1 2 2 2 50 50 100 100 100[Can this iust be cabinets in the Bays-Yes.
6 consoles + 1 supervisor, Adjacent Police IT, EM (2 WS), Bike/Moto workspace 1 1 1 1 15) 100 100 100 100 150 ] Can this be combined with the Bays-Yes
Dispatch Room 2 1 1 1 1 350 500, 800, 1260| Crime Analyst (2 WS)--1000st Restroom 1 1 1 1 1 RR | 75 75 75 75 75|
Dispatch Server Room 2 1 1 1 1 65 85 100 120
Storage! 2 1 1 1 1 75 %0 100 150
Coffee Bar 2 1 1 1 1 40 60 60 85| Full-size fridge wiice, Subtotal B: Support Space 39&| 16130 25705 30053 38667.5
Restroom 2 1 1 1 2 RR | 75 75 75 75 150 Single use
D Room 2 1 1 1 2 70 70 70 70 140 Subtotal C: Personnel Space + Support Space 3939 19180] 32400 40483| 53848.5|Subtotal A+ B
Dispatch Conference Room, 2 1 1 1 1.5] 100 100 100 100 150|Sits 4 persons Departmental ulation (40%) 15?' 7672 12960 16193 21539 ] Subtotal C * 0.40
| |Pro ected Total Departmental SF 5,515] 26852] 45360] 56,676] 75388

SlciTY oF CITY OF MANOR
MAQOR FACILITY NEEDS ASSESSMENT

TEXAS COUNCIL PRESENTATION | MAY 3,2023 | 13




POLICE STORAGE FUNCTIONS LIBRAS:T

DEPARTMENT: Manor Police - Storage Functions DEPARTMENT: Library
CURRENT LOCATION: 402 West Parsons Street CURRENT LOCATION: No current Library
STAFF EXISTING SF | SPACE STND AREA STAFF EXISTING SF SPACE STND AREA
FOSITION SPACE UZVS”@E”Q'N 17,500 | 35000 | 55000 | 100000 | TYPE | SF | TYPE| SF | 47500 | 35000 | 55000 | 100,000 NOTES POSITION / SPACE 1vre| sF | TYPE| SF NOTES
Population Growth Percentags oo 217 e o0 512 oo 17,500 | 35000 | 55000 | 100,000 17,500 | 35,000 | 55000 | 100,000
Population Growth Percentage 100 214 47 100 214 47
Annex Buildi tand alone bldg. Personnel Space
Library Director, 0 1 1 1 OF-4 200 200 200
Support Space: Assistant Director 0 1 1 OF6 | 150 o150
Command Trailer| 0 1 1 1 1 470 0 470 470 470|Enclosed, 23' Long
ATV'S| 0 1 1 2| 1 470 0 470 470 940[Enclosed, Trailers Library Staff 0 2 4 5 OF-7 120 240 480
Portable Generator Trailers 0 1 1 1 2 470 0 470 470 470|Covered, 8' Long Volunteers 0 3 4 6 Staff space in "staff work areas" below
Fuel Pump Trailer| 0 1 1 1 1 470 0 470 470 470]Covered, 8' Long
Patrol Bikes 0 1 1 1 6 50 100 150 200|Need power at wall racks A: Personnel Space 0 6 10 13 440 830
Storage 0 1 1 1 100 200 200 250)Mezzanine storage should be utilized
EMS Break/Day Room| 0 1 1 15 250 0 250 250 375 - -
EMS Bunkroom 0 2 2 3 120 0 240 240 360 Community Space. Classrooms. Kids
EMS Shower/RR 0 1 1 B % 0 9 % 180 pport Space: activities. Computers
EMS Storage| 0 1 1 1.5 0 50 80 100] LOBBY
EMS Bay]| 0 1 1 2| 470 0 470 470 940 Lobbyj 300 1000 Pre-Function Space
Laundry| 0 1 1 1 150 0 150 150 150 Vestibule] 100
Bulk / Open air storage| 0. 1 1 1 1000 0 1000 1000 1000}All covered, 50% enclosed. Seating 100 100
With vehicle lifts, yele lift, (C to Public Restrooms| 500 500
be remote), emergency eye wash/shower, sink. One bay is Vending 100
Garage Bays: (1) 0 1 1 1 475 0 475 475 475|lockable/secure. Movable partition between bays.
STAFF WORK AREAS
Service desk 200 200 Public Side
Subtotal J: Personnel Space + Support Space 150 2905 2985 6380|Subtotal E + F Staff Work, Main Area 250 500 includes Service window
Departmental Circulation (40%) | 60 1962] 1994 2552|Subtotal C * 0.40 Copy/Print 200 200 copy/print, millwork for storage
jected Total Storage Functions SF | 210 6,867] 6,079 8,032 Storage 100 100 holiday, office supply, etc.
Book Return| 75 75
Loading 300
Youth Staff Work Area 700
IT Work Areal 150 150
COLLECTIONS & SERVICES
Public Computers| 250 800
Browsing/Holds| 200 500 new books, holds, DVDs
Youth-Preschool 400 2000
Youth-Juvenile 400 1500
Large meeting space divisible into two
Youth Service's Multi-Purpose Room 1500 rooms
Teen/Young Adult 400 1000
Adult 600 2000
Quiet Reading Room 200 700
Large meeting space divisible into two
Multi-Purpose Meeting Room 1500 rooms
Technology Classroom 700 classroom setup or group study
Conference Room 200 150 For staff and public use
Study Room - Small 150
Study Room - Large 300
Teaching Pantry/Catering Kitchen| 175
GENERAL BUILDING
DEPARTMENT: Manor Police --Animal Control Building
CURRENT LOCATION: 402 West Parsons Street Mother's Room 75 75 Sink, nursing chair, baby changing station.
STAFF EXSTNG St T SPACE ST REA various storage rooms to support
POSITION / SPACE SWORN/ NOTES Storage Rooms; 200 480 collections, etc.
unsworn | 17,500 | 35000 | 55,000 | 100000 | TYPE | SF | TYPE| SF | 47500 | 35000 | 55000 | 100,000 Family Rest Room 75 75
Population Growth Percentage| 100 214 471 100 214 471 Staff Restroom 75 150
Staff Breakroom 120 250
|ANIMAL CONTROL-stand alone blidg. |
Janitor| 80 80 Mop Sink, Rolling trash bin, supply storage
Fersennel SP?CQS Al | St U 0 0 1 1 OF-6 150] 0 0 150 150 Electrical Room 100 100
ivilian Supervisor Animal Services ~ -
e ima Gontrol Oficer] U 1 2 3 o _ws 38| wsa | 64 64 8] 192 256 Mechanical R&%’E 2(8)3 zgg
Shelter Tech: U 0 1 2 3| Ws-3 81 0 81 162 243
Fire Riser| 50 50
Subtotal E: Personnel Space 1 3 6 8| 64| 209 504 649 B: Support Space 5580 18540
Staff % Growthi 200 500 700
Support Space: C: P : "Space + Support Space 6020 19370 Subtotal A + B
Lobby 1 1 1 1 100 110 120 140|With Windows to display animals for adoption Departmental Circulation (40%) | 2408 7748 Subtotal C * 040
Dog Kennels| 5 6 8 10| 30 150 180 240 300! Projected Total Departmental SF | 8428 27118
Adoption play rooms| 1 2 2] 3] 80 80 160 160 240
Quarantine Room| 1 1 1 2] 126 126 126 126 252 multiple kennels . .
Adoption Cat Room| 1 1 1 2 100 100 100 100 200 cra(e'; on displa: Note: The Clty currentLy does not have a L|brary
Secure Drug Room) 1 1 1 1 35 40 45 55| This can be a cabinet in a secure room (Lab or Work Rm).
Exam/Wash Room| 1 1 1 2 120 120 120 120 240
Laundry Room| 1 1 1 1 120 120 120 120 120]sink, Com Washer/Dryer
Lab) 1 1 1 1 60 60 80 100]
Storage 1 1 1 1 100 150 200 250|Large Deep Freezer, catch poles, dog/cat food, Kitty litter.
Mechanical/Electrical Room| 1 1 1 1 80 100 125 150]
IT closet| 1 1 1 1 50 50 50 50 50
Restroom 1 1 2 2 RR 75 75 75 150 150]Single use. Staff could possibly share with public.
Subtotal F: Support Space 1196 1391 1636 2247
Subtotal G: Personnel Space + Support Space 1260 1600 2140 E+F
Departmental Circulation (40%) | 504 640 856 1158|Subtotal C * 0.40
Projected Total Animal Control SF | 1,764 2,240 2,996 4,054,

S |SITY OF CITY OF MANOR
MANOR FACILITY NEEDS ASSESSMENT

EST. 1872
TEXAS COUNCIL PRESENTATION | MAY 3,2023 | 14




Item 3.

RECREATION CENTER

DEPARTMENT: Recreation Center
CURRENT LOCATION: No current Recreation Center

STAFF EXISTING SF SPACE STND AREA
POSITION / SPACE ASSUMED NOTES
LEVEL 17,500 35,000 55,000 100,000 TYPE SF TYPE SF 17,500 35,000 55,000 100,000
Population Growth Percentage 100 214 47 100 214 47
[Personnel Space
[Administration
Parks Recreation Director| 0 1 1 1 OF-5 165 165 165 165
Parks Director| 0 0 1 1 OF-4 200 0 200 200
Recreation Center Staff| 0 3 4 5) OF-7 120 360 480 600
Crewman, 0 3 3 3 0 0 0]in Field
Program SEeciahsll 0 1 2 3| OF-6 150 150 300 450]Shared office for two
Subtotal A: Personnel Space 0 8 1 13 675 1145 1415)
Support Space:
GENERAL BUILDING
Lobby]| 600! 800 1000
Entry Vestibule| 80 80 100
Reception desk| 80! 100 120
Public Restrooms| 2 3 6 RR 250 500 750 1500
Multi-Purpose Rooms 2500 4000 8000]Yoga, Zumba, Seniors, GED classes
Multi-Purpose Room Storage 300 600, 1000
Conf./Activity Room Large, 400 1200 2500
Kids Club area 250 500 1700]Ages 1-7
Teen Game Room 0 600 3000
Break / Vending Room 250 250 400
Concessions or Catering Kitchen, 200 500 3200
Coffee Bars 40 40 120
Cogx/SuE_p\yl 200 300 800
Fitness Rooml 1000 2000 8500
Multi-Function Court| 2400 4800 13000
Locker Room (unisex)| 400! 600 2500
Locker Room Showers 4 6 10} RR 90 360 540 900 Wall hooks, benches
Mechani 800! 1200 2300
IT Room) 100 100 300
Sprinkler Room 50 50, 75)
Mothers Rooml 70, 70, 140]
Janitor| 200 300 600
Volunteers / Visiting Instructors desk space 0 2 3 4 WsS-5 63 126 189 500
Function as Emergency Shelter
Subtotal B: Support Space 0 0 10906 19569 52255
Subtotal C: Personnel Space + Support Space 0 0 11581 20714 53670|Subtotal A + B
Departmental Circulation (40%) _ | 0| 0 4632 8286 21468|Subtotal C * 0.40
ﬁrojected Total Departmental SF | 0 0] 16,213] 29,000] 75,138

Note: The City currently does not have a Recreation Center

S |SITY OF CITY OF MANOR
MANOR FACILITY NEEDS ASSESSMENT

EST. 1872
TEXAS COUNCIL PRESENTATION | MAY 3,2023 | s




SQUARE FOOTAGE SUMMARY

Below is an overview of the total space need in square feet for all the City

Departments as detailed in the spreadsheets on the previous pages. The total
required square footage at the chosen Population Benchmarks are the final row in bold.

STAFF PROJECTION SUMMARY

The chart below is a summary of the each department’s staff today and at future benchmark
populations. Details of the staff projections are shown on the previous pages of detailed
department spreadsheets. The orange colored spreadsheet cells compare the percentage

of population growth versus the percentage of staff growth.

MANOR FACILITIES PROGRAM SQUARE FOOTAGE SUMMARY 03.09.2023
AREA
STAFF POSITION / SPACE 17,500 35,000 55,000 100,000 NOTES
Population Growth P t 100 214 a7
DEPARTMENT 17.500 | 35,000 | 55,000 100,000 opulation Growth Percentage
Population Growth Percentagel | 100 | 214 471 CITY ADMINISTRATIVE FUNCTIONS
City Manager's Office 1,065 2,213 2,927 3,221
City Secretary 490 666 1,348 1,530
STAFFING Finance / Utility Billing 1,670 2,871 3,609 5,421
- Human Resources 771 1,309 1,660 2,062
City Manager 2 6 8 8 Information Technology 871 1,460 2178 2,761
City Secretary 1 2 6 6 Municipal Court 1,273 3,084 3,468 4,218
: - e Community Development Services 448 701 956 1,040
Finance / Utility Billing 10 21 29 46 Development Services 1,296 3,028 4,628 5838
Human Resources 3 7 9 11 Economic Development 560 1,002 1,303 1,569
Inf - Technol 1 Visitors Center| 0 630 771 869|City currently does not have a Visitor Center
nformation Technology 3 S 9 0 City Hall Shared Support Spaces 19,599 24576] 29,014 36,483
Municipal Courts 4 13 15 17
- . Subtotal A: 28,043 41,542 51,864 65,013
Community Development Services 1 2 4 4 =
Development Services 10 24 40 51
Economic Development 1 3 4 4 PUBLIC SAFETY FUNCTIONS
- Police Department 26,852 45,360 56,676 75,388
Police Department 49 100 171 274 Police Department Storage Functions 210 6,867 6,979 8,932
Police Department - Animal Control 1 3 6 8 Animal Control 1.764] 22401 2996 4,054
Public Works 34 73 99 125 Subtotal B: 28,826 54,467 66,651 88,374
Visitors Center 0 0 1 1
Warehouse 0 2 4 6 OTHER CITY FUNCTIONS
Library 0 6 10 13 Public Works 4,949 8,893| _ 10,800 12,954
: City Warehouse 0 23,097 45,588 68,289|City currently does not have a Warehouse
Recreation Center 0 8 11 13 Library| 0 8,428 27,118 0] City currently does not have a Library
Recreation/Community Center 0 16,213 29,000 75,138|City currently does not have a Rec Center
Subtotal C: 4,949 56,631 112,506 156,381
TOTAL CITY STAFF 119 275 426 597
Staff Growth Percentage| | 132 | 259 404
GRAND TOTAL SQUARE FOOTAGE 61,818 152,640 231,021 309,769|A+B+C

CITY OF

MANOR

EST. 1872
TEXAS

iiiii

CITY OF MANOR
FACILITY NEEDS ASSESSMENT

COUNCIL PRESENTATION | MAY 3,2023 | 16




PROPOSED PROJECTS

With the space needs for each department established, the next step in the Facility

Needs Assessment was to determine potential project solutions to meet the needs.

On the subsequent slides there is an overview for each project that includes a

text description, a graphic representation of the square footage, and a concept site
axonometric.

IN NO PARTICULAR ORDER, THE PROPOSED PROJECTS ARE AS FOLLOWS:

NEW POLICE HEADQUARTERS
NEW CITY HALL

NEW CITY WAREHOUSE

NEW LIBRARY

NEW RECREATION CENTER

Item 3.

2 ICITY OF

# |MANOR

EST. 1872
TEXAS

CITY OF MANOR
FACILITY NEEDS ASSESSMENT

COUNCIL PRESENTATION | MAY 3,2023 | 17




NEW POLICE HEADQUARTERS

Recap of current Police Building:

The current Police Building, at 402 West Parsons Street, is a modular building and
was never intended to be a long term home, is not in good condition, and the Police
Department has outgrown the space. The site location is also not ideal for public
safety given there is a water tower on site and a rail line along the back edge of the

property.

New Police Headquarters Program Overview:

The proposed new project is envisioned to have three main components: a new
main Police Building, a new Annex Building, and a new Animal Control Building. The
main Building will house Police staff and operations. The Annex will be for large
equipment storage and provide space for potential EMS operations. The Animal
Control Building will be dedicated to animal control with public access to adoption
spaces.

The proposed size for the initial project is 66,651 square feet which is the space need

identified as needed at a population of 55,000. After the initial construction, the
additional square footage needed at 100,000 population would be an expansion.

The graphic below is a ‘to scale’ representation of the square footage needs
NEW POLICE HEADQUARTERS EXPANSIONS

66,65 sf AWYRESS

POLICE HEADQUARTERS SF NEED

|7.5K: 28,826
35K: 54,467
55K: 66,65|

[00K: 88,374

CONCEPT SITE AXO

ANIMAL
CONTROL

MAIN PD

Item 3.

CITY OF

w IMANOR

EST. 1872
TEXAS

CITY OF MANOR
FACILITY NEEDS ASSESSMENT

COUNCIL PRESENTATION | MAY 3,2023 |

18




NEW CITY HALL

Recap of current City Hall:

The current 9,242 square foot City Hall, at 105 East Eggleston Street, houses

the Council Chamber, Municipal Court, City Manager, City Secretary, Finance,
Human Resources, Information Technology, Community Development, Economic
Development, and support spaces. The building is generally in good condition. With
current department staffing, the building is full with no room for staff growth.

New City Hall Program Overview:

The proposed new project is envisioned to house all the departments currently in the
existing City Hall (see list above) and Development Services added in by departing
their current location at the Public Works building. Also included in the program is
space for a Visitor’s Center and community spaces.

The proposed size for the initial project is 51,864 square feet which is the space need

identified as needed at a population of 55,000. After the initial construction, the
additional square footage needed at 100,000 population would be an expansion.

The graphic below is a ‘to scale’ representation of the square footage needs
NEW CITY HALL EXPANSION

51,864 sf 13,149 sf

CITY HALL SF NEED

|7 5K. 28043
35K. 41547
DoK. D364
[00K:. 65013

CONCEPT SITE AXO

Item 3.

CITY OF

MANOR

EST. 1872
TEXAS

CITY OF MANOR
FACILITY NEEDS ASSESSMENT

COUNCIL PRESENTATION | MAY 3,2023 | 19




NEW CITY WAREHOUSE

New City Warehouse Program Overview:

Currently there is no single space dedicated to general storage for the City. The
vision for this new City Warehouse is to provide storage for all City Departments and
to provide space for emergency response supplies.

The proposed size for the initial project is 45,588 square feet which is the space need
identified as needed at a population of 55,000. After the initial construction, the
additional square footage needed at 100,000 population would be an expansion.

CONCEPT SITE PLAN

ONE STORY WAREHOUSE
64,000 SF

The graphic below is a ‘to scale’ representation of the square footage needs
NEW CITY WAREHOUSE EXPANSION

45,588 sf 22,701 sf

CITY WAREHOUSE SF NEED

I00K: 68,289

35K: 23,097
55K: 45,588

Item 3.

CITY OF

MANOR

EST. 1872
TEXAS

CITY OF MANOR
FACILITY NEEDS ASSESSMENT

COUNCIL PRESENTATION | MAY 3,2023 | 20




NEW LIBRARY

New Library Program Overview: The graphic below is a to scale’ representation of the square footage needs
Currently the City does not have a Library. As such, the proposed plan is for the City to

hire a Library Director and a small staff and to establish a small Library as a launching pad
for this new service. Instead of the first step being a new, ground up facility, the City may

search for an existing/available lease space to finish-out and move into. INITIAL BINEW CENTRAL
LIBRARY JLIBRARY

The scenarios discussed as potential solutions are as follows:

8428 sf WI7,876 sf

Scenario I:
Step |: Renovate existing City Hall after completion of a New City Hall as initial Library. ISTING
Step 2: Building a new, ground-up Library as population reaches 55,000 and success of CITY HALL —— SCENARIO 1 DIAGRAM

Library program can be accessed.

Scenario 2: LIBRARY SF NEED

Step |:In the near future, find an existing building to lease and create an initial Library.

Step 2: Renovate existing City Hall after completion of a New City Hall to be a more § =
permanent Library. z S
Step 3: Building a new, ground-up Library once population reaches 55,000 and success of 0 L
Library program can be accessed. —
Scenario 3:
Step |:In the near future, find an existing building to lease and create an initial Library.
Step 2: Building a new, ground-up Library once population reaches 55,000 and success of
Library program.
y [ T Y OF CITY OF MANOR
MANOR FACILITY NEEDS ASSESSMENT
PNTEXAS COUNCIL PRESENTATION | MAY 3,2023 | 21




NEW RECREATION CENTER

New Recreation Center Overview:

Currently the City does not have a Recreation Center. As such, the proposed plan
is lLaunch a Recreation Department and program with an initial Recreation Center
project sized to be 16,2 |3 square feet to serve the population benchmark of 35,000.
This results in a ratio of .46 square feet per citizen. A rule of thumb for recreation
space for cities is | square foot per citizen. So, the long range plan would be to do
a second (or expanded) Recreation Center at the 55,000 population benchmark to
yield .52 square feet per citizen, and third (or expanded) Recreation Center at the
100,000 population benchmark to yield .75 square feet per citizen. The ultimate
growth of the Recreation Center will likely be adjusted based on the success and
usage of the initial Recreation Center.

The graphic below is a ‘to scale’ representation of the square footage needs

NEW REC EXPANSION NEW BRANCH OR EXPANSION
CENTER

16,213 sf 12,789 sf 46,138 sf

CONCEPT SITE AXO

Item 3.

RECREATION SF NEED
CITY OF
MANOR

CITY OF MANOR
FACILITY NEEDS ASSESSMENT

COUNCIL PRESENTATION | MAY 3,2023 | 22




THANK YOU




AGENDA ITEM SUMMARY FORM

PROPOSED MEETING DATE: May 17, 2023

PREPARED BY: Scott Moore, City Manager
DEPARTMENT: Administration

Iltem 4.

AGENDA ITEM DESCRIPTION:

Consideration, discussion, and possible action on accepting the April 2023 Departmental Reports.

BACKGROUND/SUMMARY:

e Finance — Lydia Collins, Director of Finance

e Police — Ryan Phipps, Chief of Police

e Travis County ESD No. 12 — Ryan Smith, Fire Chief

e Economic Development — Scott Jones, Economic Development Director
o Development Services — Scott Dunlop, Development Services Director
e Community Development — Debbie Charbonneau, Heritage and Tourism Manager
e Municipal Court — Sarah Friberg, Court Clerk

e  Public Works — Matt Woodard, Director of Public Works

e Manor Cemetery — Nora Sanchez, MC Manager

e Human Resources — Tracey Vasquez, HR Manager

e [T —Phil Green, IT Director

e Administration — Lluvia T. Almaraz, City Secretary

LEGAL REVIEW: Not Applicable
FISCAL IMPACT: Not Applicable
PRESENTATION: No
ATTACHMENTS:  Yes

e April 2023 Department Monthly Reports

STAFF RECOMMENDATION:

It is the city staff’s recommendation that the City Council approve and accept the April 2023 Departmental

Reports.
PLANNING & ZONING COMMISSION: Recommend Approval Disapproval

None

74




Manor Police
Department

Monthly Report
April 2023




Manor Police Department By The Numbers

1366

Number of calls for
service

45

Average calls per day

Total Training Hours

Mental Health Calls

Juvenile Detentions




_ Iltem 4.

Interactions

7 1

Community Events Hosted Events External Events

0:02:18

Average response time

The average number of people an officer interacts with per
call

2257

The estimated number people officers interact with on calls
alone

77




Criminal Offenses

National Incident Based Reporting System

Offense Group 2022 2023
Group A* 74 62
Group B 68 57

Crime Type 2022 2023
Persons 21 25
Property 53 44
Fraud 6 4
Crimes against Children 2 2

Incident Reports, Total Offenses, and Arrests

*Group A offenses are 22 offense categories, including but not limited to assaultive offenses, sex offenses, larceny, arson, and
extensive data is collected.

Group B offenses consist of 11 offense categories, including but not limited to bad checks, DWI, non-violent family offens
where only arrest data is collected.



Traffic Enforcement Analysis

463

Total traffic stops
conducted

Citations Warnings
. Field Interviews . Written warning and arrest
Citation and arrest

Traffic stops resulting in a
citation with an arrest, traffic
stops resulting in a warning with
an arrest, and field interviews
that resulted in an arrest.

24 Searches Officers conducted a search of

the vehicle based on consent,
out of 463 contraband in plain view,
incident to arrest, inventory, or
probable cause.

Contraband, such as alcohol
and drugs, was discovered as a
result of the stop.




Traffic Enforcement Analysis

11 L

Crashes Involving Alcohol
or Drugs

DWI Arrests by the numbers*

LEADRS Manor Police Department DWI Profile - April 2023

Law Enforcement Advanced
Data Reporting System

Sunday Monday Wednesday Thursday Friday
4 il il 1 1

Total Cases Reason for Contact

13 911 call or Dispatched

Weaving/Fail to maintain single lane
Average BAC: 0.141 White Suspicious Vehicle/Welfare Concern

Stopping problems (too far, too short, or to jer..

Varying speed

Following too closely

Expired Registration

Suspected Impairment

Crash

Almost striking object or vehicle

21t029 R h
Unnecessary acceleration or deceleration

Stopping in lane for no apparent reason or unre..
Alcohol Only
30t039

Speeding
Requested by other officer

40t0 49
Driving without headlights at night

*WAITING ON UPDATED LEADRS REPORT

13
DWI
Arrests

Saturday




CITY OF MANOR, TEXAS Item 4.

CASH AND INVESTMENTS
As Of APRIL, 2023

DEBT SPECIAL CAPITAL
GENERAL UTILITY SERVICE REVENUE PROJECTS
CASH AND INVESTMENTS FUND FUND FUND FUNDS FUND TOTAL
Unrestricted:
25,061,721 13,304,200 38,365,922
Restricted:
619,524 619,524
34,950 34,950
1,337,252 1,337,252
818,889 818,889
513,563 513,563
Debt service 3,272,406 3,272,406
8,903,748 15,709,879 24,613,627
TOTAL CASH AND INVESTMENTS $ 25,610,233 $14,123,090 $ 3,272,406 $ 10,860,524 $ 15,709,879 $ 69,576,132

Water and Sewer

improvements

35% Unrestricted Cash

Overview of funds:

$203,717 sales tax collected

GF is in a favorable status.

UF is in a favorable status

DSF is in a favorable status

CIP Fund is in a favorable status

Debt Service/

5%

Other Restricted Cash
5%

81




Iltem 4.

Travis County Emergency Services District No.12
Office of the Fire Chief
11200 Gregg Lane. ® PO Box 846
Manor, Texas 78653
0:512-272-4502  F: 512-428-5114

Operational/Prevention Summary — April 2023

Calls - Month Calls by Unit Calls- CYTD
2023 - 363 Eng1201 - 93 SQ1201 - 165 2023 - 1613
2022 - 389 Eng1202 - 85 Eng1203 - 129 2022 - 1517
2021 - 324 Bat1201 - 40 FMO01201 -5, 2021 - 1433
### call reviews
AVG Response Time - Month AVG Response Time - CYTD
8 min, 55 sec 8 min, 46 sec
Aiding Departments Month Month CYTD CYTD
Received Given Received Given
Austin FD 4 3 24 17
Bastrop Co. ESDs 0 0 0 0
BT1/ESD 13 0 0 0 0
Elgin VFD 0 1 1 3
TCESD?2 5 6 38 52
TCESD 11 2 0 20 0
TC ESD 9/6/3 0 0 15 0
WILCO Dept’s 0 0 6 6
TOTAL 11 10 104 78
Incident by Type
100 Fire.........cooeevennnns 58 200 Rupture/Explosion... 0 300 EMS/Rescue 262
400 Hazardous Condition. 7 500 Service Call.......... 15 600 Good Intent. 7
700 False Calls............. 14 900 Other............... 0 800 Nat. Disaster 0
Training and Events Awards and Recognition
e Front Line Mobile Health e LT Griffith 9yrs.
e DCPE Education Hour Training e LT Ruiz 8yrs.
e KO Critical Care class e LT Canclini and LT Salmons 6yrs.
e Chainsaw class e FMO Treffer 3yrs.
e Drafting class o FE Hill 1yr.*
e Children’s Day Manor Kids Dentist e K9 Ember assist with Georgetown PD

Page 1 of 2

82




Iltem 4.

Travis County Emergency Services District No.12
Office of the Fire Chief

11200 Gregg Lane. ® PO Box 846

Manor, Texas 78653

0:512-272-4502  F: 512-428-5114

Operational/Prevention Summary — April 2023

Prevention Division Activities (ESD/CoM)

Builder | Developer Mtgs...................3 (2/1) Site VISItS......oooiiii 71
REVIEWS. ... 32 (18/14) Initial Inspections ...................ccc.... 38 (25/9)
Under Review....ooouveeieeiiiiiiiiiin.. 2 (1/1) ReiNSPection..........ccovvveveenenieseenn, 7 (3/4)
Re-submittals........coooeeeeieiiiinni... 13 (7/6) Residential Inspections............cccccev..... 12
Approvals / Permits Issued............... 14 (717) Investigation Responses............c......... 5 (5/0)
Awaiting Response from Applicant.....11 (6/5) Hydrant Inspections/Tests.................... 8
Review Turn-Around (AVG last 30 days) 5 days Complaint Inspections.................... 8 (3/5)

HHt

Page 2 of 2

83




To:

From:

Date:
RE:

= JCITY OF

187273

¥ |MANOR
Jx MEMO

Mayor and City Council Members

Scott Jones, Economic Development Director

May 17, 2023

April 10 to May 19 Economic Development Department activity

Iltem 4.

Public Facilities Corporation documents received and corporation is operational
Completed RFP for City’s Branding Services Scope of Work to be considered by Council
and advertised for bids

Met with major retailer’s tax advisor firm Ernst & Young interested in incentives and
locating in Manor in Manor Crossing project

Zoom meeting with IT training firm ClusterIT/Kvistas interested in expanding into Manor
Met with Capital Metro staff regarding current issues and future participation and
assistance

Met with mechanical contracting firm with 150 jobs contemplating relocation to Manor
considering former Bentoli building on 290; confirmed 5F Mechanical will relocate here
Zoom meeting with Carhart Enterprises regarding potential multimedia production studio
startup in Manor; feasibility started; discussed state and local incentives available

Met potential downtown developer/owner of a lot on Parsons interested in building and
discussed their current impediments and potential assistance

Toured industrial property with 10 Wonik Materials executives and broker (8 from Korea)
4/19 and discussed property pricing, workforce and utility availability, prior to their tour
of Taylor, Hutto and Georgetown; follow-up Zoom meetings

Met with Hillmat Coatings, LLC of Korea, new purchaser of property in Manor
Commercial Park, about annexation and zoning, utilities and other building needs to
establish business in Manor; 3-4 jobs initially

Met with Stacy Rhone of Big Austin on issues involving their Planet K property

Met with Redventures principals regarding development plans and opportunities for their
23 acre industrial property on Old Kimbro Rd.; discussed utilities, annexation and
alternatives

Met on Blue Bluff Rd. Austin-Manor ETJ/CCN Transfers

Zoom meeting with Vault Development on Kimbro Rd. property development plans/status
Multiple calls, research and meetings on PFC/affordable housing and W2 offer with
counsel

Completed City Comprehensive Plan binding project

84




= JCITY OF

|1872
125

MANOR
7 MEMO
| T EXAS

e Zoom meeting with Matt Leach of Fiberlight on potential fibering system opportunity
sourced by Opportunity Austin

e Conducted Business View Magazine interview with Mayor, City Manager, and
Development Services Director with Karen Surca regarding PR article about Manor for
upcoming issue

e Conducted Austin Business Journal interview with Mayor, City Manager, and
Development Services Director with Justin Sayers regarding PR article about Manor for
upcoming issue.

e Zoom meeting with Matt Woodard and National Fitness Campaign regarding partial grant
funding for Fitness Course program for park installation

e Zoom call with Mayor, City Manager and YMCA regarding future facility, interest level,
location/colocation, process and funding opportunities

e Attended TML Legislative Webinar; witnessed in-person Capitol hearing for HB5

e Attended 2 Chamber of Commerce Lunches and Manor PD presentation; visited Hutto City
Hall for facility tour; attended Opportunity Austin Regional Partners Meeting at Austin
Board of Realtors HQ with Governor’s Office of ED representatives; attended Central
Texas Commercial Area Realtors luncheon at Norris Conference Center

e Obtained Chapter 380 Agreement and Development Agreement for Manor Commons
Phase 3 from legal to return to Greenview Development for final review

e Obtained Ordinance from legal to cancel (expired) previously established Ordinance 309
Reinvestment Zones to allow further TIRZ and Reinvestment Zones within the city or
prevent confusion therewith

e Meeting at City Hall with First United Bank to form strategic alliance for future lending
and capital resource opportunities

e Scheduled call with Han’s Laser Technology for 5/19 on former Drayer tract plans

e National Economic Development Week luncheon and presentation at Pflugerville CDC

e Attended 3 staff meetings; 2 City Council Meetings; 1 City Council Workshop; 1 CBAC
bond committee meeting

Iltem 4.

85




DEVELOPMENT SERVICES DEPARTMENT REPORT
PROJECT VALUATION AND FEE REPORT

Iltem 4.

April 1-30, 2023

Description Projects Valuation Fees Detail
Certificate of Occupancy 1 $0.00 $172.00 Luna's Candies
Commercial Electrical 2 $8,000.00 $484.00
Commercial Foundation 1 $150,000.00 $117.00
Commercial Irrigation 1 $11,282.00 $2,480.00
Commercial Sign 2 $27,340.00 $364.00
Commercial Swimming Pool/Spa 1 $300,000.00 $882.00
Educational New 1 $8,096,274.63 $63,938.20] Manor New Tech - Multipurpose Bldg
Residential Deck/Patio 1 $8,000.00 $227.00
Residential Electrical 5 $89,590.26 $535.00
Residential Foundation Repair 3 $0.00 $291.00
Residential Irrigation 42 $69,400.00 $4,494.00
Residential Mechanical-HVAC 2 $7,499.90 $291.00
Residential New 30 $9,979,293.50 $244,248.00
Residential Plumbing 2 $11,075.00 $274.00
Totals 94 $18,757,755.29 $318,797.20
Total Certificate of Occupancies Issued: 55 CITY OF
Total Inspections(Comm & Res): 1,539 ANOR

Scott Dunlop, Development Services Director

EST. * 1872
TEXAS

86




ClI'TY OF

< IMANOR April 2023

T EXAS SCOTT DUNLOP, DIRECTOR

EST. * 1872 DEPARTMENT OF DEVELOPMENT SERVICES

Item 4.

ALL PERMITS ISSUED

182 m 2022

0 50 100 150 200 250

RESIDENTIAL NEW PERMITS

m 2023
w2022

0 50 100 150 200

COs ISSUED
w2023
38

m 2022

0 20 40 60

INSPECTIONS
m 2023
2065

m 2022

0 300 600 900 1200 1500 1800 2100 2400

*Charts displayed at different scales

87




—JCITY OF

1872

«|MANOR

To:  Mayor and City Council Members

From: Debbie Charbonneau, Heritage & Tourism Manager
Date: May 17, 2023
RE: April & May

Item 4.

COMMUNITY MEETINGS

Chamber of Commerce Board Meeting — Monday, April 10, 2023

Chamber of Commerce Board Meeting — Monday, May 1, 2023

Chamber of Commerce April Monthly Membership Meeting — Thursday, April 10, 2023
Chamber of Commerce May Monthly Membership Meeting — Thursday, May 11, 2023
City Council Meeting — Wednesday, April 19, 2023

City Council Meeting — Wednesday, May 17, 2023

Staff Meeting — Tuesday, April 4, 2023

Staff Meeting — Tuesday, April 18, 2023

Staff Meeting — Tuesday, April 25, 2023

Staff Meeting — Tuesday, May 2, 2023

Staff Meeting — Tuesday, May 9, 2023

Juneteenth Meeting — Wednesday, April 12, 2023

Juneteenth Meeting — Wednesday, April 26, 2023

ManorPalooza Meeting — Monday, May 1, 2023

BUSINESS CONTACTS/VISITS

I made 26 business contacts/visits for the months of April & May 2023.
EVENTS

MANOR ARTISANS MARKET - APRIL 16, 2023 & MAY 21, 2023

The Market will be located at Timmermann Park. Please join them the 3™ Sunday of each month
and support local artisans from 11:00am — 2:00pm.

88




—JCITY OF

ier2

@ |[MANOR
7 MEMO
I TEXAS

MANOR COMMUNITY FARMER’S MARKET

The Market is located at Shadow Glen Club House. Please join them every Wednesday from
4:00pm — 7:00pm and support your local small businesses.

CITY OF MANOR EASTER EGG HUNT - SATURDAY, APRIL 1, 2023

The event was held at Jennie Lane Park, and it was very well attended, even the Easter Bunny.
MANORPALOOZA - MAY 5 & 6, 2023

ManorPalooza was a huge success. Everyone had a great time, the food trucks sold out, music
was great, the carnival made more money than last year, had vendors that did really well, and the

Sausage Eating Contest was a great success with Geoffrey Esper wining 1% place for the second
year in a row.

Item 4.

89




Violations Filed Apr-23
Traffic 129
State Law 19
City Ordinance 27
Code Enforcement 2
Parking 1
Total 178
Dismissals Apr-23
DSC 7
Deferral 18
Insurance 0
Compliance 2
Prosecutor 19
Closed 152
Total 198
Warrants Apr-23
Arrest Warrants 84
Capias Pro Fine 7
Total 91

Money Collected in April 2023

Kept By City $26,636.19
kept By State $9,499.76
Total $36,135.95

Item 4.

City of Manor Municipal Court

APRIL 2023

Apr-22
201

16

31

249

Apr-22

10
31
236
294

Apr-22
89

18

107

PERCENTAGE OF VIOLATIONS

Code Enf.2, 1%

State Law 11%

City Ordinance Parking 1%

15%

~~__Traffic 72%

PECENTAGE OF DISMISSALS

Deferral 9%

Insurance 0%
Compliance 1%

DSC 3%

_ Prosecutor 10%

Closed 77% _

PERCENTAGE OF WARRANTS

Capias Pro Fine
8%

Arrest Warrants
92%

Money Collected in April 2022

Kept By City $36,142.20
Kept By State $14,203.32
Total $50,345.52

90




CITY OF

4.

»IMANOR
175 MEMO
| T EXAS

To:  Mayor and City Council Members

From: Matt Woodard, Director of Public Works
Date: May 10, 2023

RE: April Monthly Report

Public Works Department

Street and Public, Parks, and Maintenance Department
In April, the Public Parks and Maintenance Department mowed all city facilities, alleys, and right of way. They

cleaned and maintained all city facilities and parks. They performed all maintenance on city vehicles and heavy
equipment and the Street Department repaired streets, curbs, and signs.

Water and Wastewater Department

In April, the Water Department performed daily maintenance on the water system, repaired water mains, set water
meters and tested the water daily. The Wastewater Department performed daily maintenance on the wastewater
plant. They cleaned and unstopped wastewater mains. On April 18t, the Water/Wastewater Department hosted

their first TWUA meeting. The meeting was a great success, and we look forward to hosting more meetings in the
near future.

Water Production & Purchase

In April, 29% of the water we supplied to our residents was from our wells, and purchased 71 %
from EPCOR and Manville WSC.

Population
City of Manor- 19,993

Shadowglen- 7,314

91




CITY OF MANOR

CAPITAL PROJECT STATUS REPORT
PUBLIC WORKS DEPARTMENT

April 26th, 2023

Iltem 4.

PROJECT NAME PROJECT MONTHLY ACTIVITY PERCENT
DESCRIPTION CONSTRUCTION
COMPLETE/PHASE
Cottonwood Creek Gravity wastewater | The contractor is working on 99%
Wastewater lines and lift station | the remaining punch list items
Collection System to serve Cottonwood | for WWCS and LS.
Improvements Creek Basin and
Project Cottonwood Creek
14621 — Addendum Tributary Basin
#49
Bastrop/Parsons 12" gravity City legal issued a request to 99%
Gravity Main wastewater main the contractor for a mitigation
14627 — Addendum proposal to be submitted for
#56 review. Proposed mitigation
included costs that the
contractor wanted City to
cover. Waiting on City Legal to
determine the next steps.
CIP W-15 FM973 WL | 12” Water Line from | The change order was 99%

14757 - SOW No. 2

downtown to Manor
Commons area

approved on the April 5t
council meeting. Waiting on
signed copy from City.

Pavement
Management
Program

14843 - SOW No. 3

Pavement
Assessment and
Management
Program

GBA has completed driving the
roads. Cassie doing QAQC and
preliminary report. 80/20
forecast will be conducted.
Pauline will provide Matt with
a rolling 5-year list for future
repairs once the data is
analyzed and street rankings
are updated.

Reviewing field data

Cottonwood Creek
Phase 2 Wastewater
Line Extension
14693 - SOW No. 5

The northern
extension of the
gravity wastewater
line in Cottonwood
Creek Basin

The easement has been
purchased. R Construction is
challenging the pump and haul
invoices. A meeting with the
contractor has been scheduled
on 3/28.

Construction Phase

Page 2 of 10

92




Iltem 4.

Manor Commercial

Phased wastewater

Preparing Travis County Permit

Construction

Park WW Collection collection system and conducting an amendment | Documents
System improvements for for the additional design and
15072 —SOW No. 7 the Beltex area analysis. Analysis of the

alternate routes is in progress,

conducting an internal review

of the design memo and OPC.
Gregg Manor Road Ground storage tank | Process of scheduling a Working on
GST and and water meeting with the pump rep. Construction
Pressurization pressurization Waiting on SCADA information. | documents.
Facilities facilities for the Shadow Glen Golf Course
15110 - SOW No. 10 | EPCOR water Easement has been recorded.

delivery point

FM 973 and US 290 Water line Conducted a meeting with City | Preliminary
Water Lines, CIP W- extensions along Staff to go over the proposed Engineering

15 & W-16
15110.01 - SOW No.
10

FM973 and US 290

layout. Working on internal
review from the redlines.
Alignment is being adjusted per
information provided by
Manville WSC. Easement
documents are currently being
prepared.

Bell Farms and
Presidential Glen LS
Imp, CIP-2 & CIP-3
15110.02 - SOW No.
10

Upgrades to the Bell
Farms and
Presidential Glen lift
stations to provide
capacity for new
growth

The project was awarded on
February 15, 2023.
Construction Documents are
being processed and reviewing
submittals.

Conducted Precon 3/14 onsite.
Reviewing submittals. Received
gen set proposal for
Presidential Glen.

Under construction.

FY 2021 Paving
Improvements

Project
15125 - SOW No. 11

Capital Metro GBA
and City-Funded
paving
improvements

Change order approved by
Council. Waiting on signed
copy from City. Coordinating
Duett driveway cut.

Project close to
being closed out.

Cottonwood Creek
West Tributary WW
Improvements
15128 - SOW No. 12

Wastewater CIP Line
in Cottonwood
Creek West
Tributary Basin

Adjusting MH to be below 20’ if
possible and verified capacity
analysis for future growth.
60%+ plans to City this week.
Verifying easements.

Preliminary
Engineering

Page 3 of 10

93




Iltem 4.

Cottonwood Creek
WWTP Phase I
Expansion

15283 - SOW No. 9

Developer-funded
expansion of the
plant

Finish preliminary design.
Tentative schedule:

60% plans —4/5/23

95% plans —5/15/23

Bid documents — 6/15/23
60% plans sent to city, Setting
up review meeting.

Working on
Construction
Documents

Cottonwood Creek

Grant-funded

All grant-required preliminary

Design Phase

WWTP Phase IlI expansion of the engineering is complete. Grant | Engineering
Grant Project Cottonwood Admin. waiting on the
15130 - SOW No. 9A | Wastewater executed purchase agreement

Treatment Plant for the plant site to submit an

application package.

210 Reuse Application for Application amended to Application
Authorization reclaimed water include additional uses, per Submitted, Under
Application authorization for the | City Staff request. Received Review

15284 - SOW No. 17

Cottonwood Creek
WWTP as part of the

TCEQ’s comments. Email
submittal went out Friday, hard

Lease/Purchase copy was mailed via USPS
Contract today, 2/22/2023. GBA
received a draft authorization
letter, in the process of
reviewing it.
Wastewater Major Goals: In progress: Study Phase

Collection and
Treatment Master
Plan

15320 - SOW No. 14

Develop & calibrate
sewer model; Use
model to estimate
timing & location of
capacity needs;
Develop & choose
improvement
alternatives to
address capacity
needs

Growth projections
Model Network setup
Data Collection & Existing
Conditions Summary

Water Distribution
System Master Plan
15317 - SOW No. 15

Contract approved
at September 7
Council Meeting.

The water model is set up,
working on scenarios and
future growth. Will set up a
meeting with the city to review
SCADA data and compare
results and show the model.
Gathered all fire flow data to
calibrate the water model.

Study Phase

Page 4 of 10

94




Iltem 4.

2022 Community
Impact Fee (CIF)
Program Update
15312 - SOW No. 18

Update to the
impact fee program

At the last meeting, the focus
was on roadway impact fees.
At the next meeting Water and
Wastewater fees will be looked
at as well as updates to the
proposed service area map for
the roadway impact fee.

The next meeting is
on April 12,2023

Gregg Lane Ground
Storage Tank and
Pressurization
Facility

15318 - SOW No. 20

Contract approved
at September 7
Council Meeting.

Preliminary layout complete.
On hold until DA with
developer gets worked out.

Preliminary
engineering.

2023 Sanitary Sewer
Evaluation Study
15333 - SOW No. 22

Contract approved
at September 7
Council Meeting.

A final report has been
finalized with additional figures
and tables per discussion with
Matt and Raymond. Will be
sent over, along with all data,
this week.

Study Phase

FY2022 Bond-Funded
Water, Wastewater,
and Roadway
Improvement
Project

XXXXX - SOW No. 23

Contract approved
at September 7
Council Meeting.

The project includes 973 Water
Line, Cottonwood Creek Phase
3, and Hill Lane Improvements.
Hill lane — construct entrada
entrance first, update on a
drainage easement location for
outfall.

Currently working on FM 973
waterline alignment

Working on the
preliminary layout
for FM 973 (north)
Waterline. Right of
Entry documents are
being worked on in
order for survey to
take place.

Cottonwood Creek
WWTP Permit
Amendment
15402.00 - SOW No.
24

Permit Amendment
to expand permit
from 0.5 MGD to 0.8
MGD

Sent out an application
package to the city for review
on 1/26/2023. Check sent out
to TCEQ on 1/26/2023. Waiting
for the lab results for the
permit application.

FY2022 Cap Metro
Paving Project
15451 - SOW No. 25

Paving project
improvements using
allocated Cap Metro
Funding

Contracts were awarded on
3/15/23 and working on the
preliminary design. Added
additional streets to project
after meeting with City Staff.

Preliminary Design

One-Time BCT Cap
Metro Funding
Paving Project
15452 — SOW No.26

Paving project
improvements using
allocated one-time
funding from Cap
Metro

Contracts were awarded on
3/15/23 and working on the
preliminary design.

Preliminary Design

Page 5 of 10

95




Iltem 4.

Streets and Parks Monthly Report April 2023

Daily Duties and Projects 4-1-2023 / 4-30-2023

Streets Maintenance

Pothole repairs on Abrahamson, W. Carrie Manor, Gregg Manor, Brenham, San Marcos, Jamie Dr,
Marshall, Joy Lee, Jessie Rd, E. Carrie Manor, and Sun Crest.

Hung banners at City Hall and at Public Works.
Placed “No Trucks” sign at Old HWY 20 and Emu Ln.
Added three way stop and placed at stop bars on Parsons and Gregg Manor Rd.

Repainted stop bars and parking spaces on Burnet between Parsons and Boyce St. and stop bar on Hill
Ln.

Cleaned graffiti off several signs on S. Burnet.

Placed steel plate over phone line box in ROW to protect it from being crushed by 18-wheeler traffic
on Gregg Manor Rd. and Hill Ln.

Street repairs and cut out replaced asphalt.

Closed N. Lexington St. and Old Kimbro St. because of flooding.
Leveled Manor Palooza areas with dirt and rock.

Parks Maintenance

Planted seven trees at Bell Farms Park.

Hauled kiddy mulch to Bell Farms Park playscape.

Trimmed trees on Hill Ln.

Weekly table setups and take downs at city hall as requested.

Cut and chipped tree debris off Old HWY 20.

Trimmed and chipped trees at Greenbury.

Power washed City Hall twice on the South and East side of the building.
Weekly irrigation checks.

Playground and playscape monthly safety checks.

Page 6 of 10

96




Scheduled weekly Park mowing maintenance completed.

Friday afternoons Bulk Drop Off for city residence.

Scheduled weekly Park rounds at park facilities completed.

Scheduled weekly (ROW) Right of Way mowing completed.

Weekly vehicle & equipment checks and maintenance.

MS4 Storm drain inspections monitored New/Construction under warranty.

- 760 inspections done this month.
-2 MS4 reports summited this month as required by TCEQ.

Inspections
14
12

10

2 O
0
Concerte Pre Pour Density Test Proof Rolls Storm Sewer
Inspections

Inspections/Warranties/New subdivision Walkthroughs and Pre-Construction meetings

Presidential Heights Phase 6 — Homes are being built.

Presidential Heights Phase 3- 2-year walkthrough has been done, contractor in process of repairs.
October 2021 still waiting.

Presidential Heights Phase 5 — 2 -year walkthrough has been done, contractor in process of repairs.
September 2022.

Presidential Heights Phase 4 — 2 years walkthrough has been done, contractor in process of repairs.
November 2021 still waiting.

Stonewater North Phase 2- 2 years walkthrough has been done, contractor in process of repair. April

2021 still waiting.
Page 7 of 10

Item 4.

97




Manor Heights — Phase | Sec. 2 — Homes are being built.
Manor Heights Phase 1 Sec 1 — 2-year walkthrough has been done.
Manor Heights — Phase | Sec. 2 — 1 year walkthrough has been done.

Manor Heights — Phase Il Sec. 1- Homes are being built.

Manor Heights — Phase Il Sec. 1B & 2B Contractor in building process.

Manor Heights — Phase 111 Sec. 1- Homes are being built.
Manor Heights Phase 111 Sec. 2 — Homes are being built.
Manor Heights Phase 4 — Homes are being built.

LA Mexicana — In the process of development.

North Forest Office Building — Building process.

Manor New Tech — Building process.

Manor Crossing (Butler Tract) Development process.
Logos Phase 3- Waiting for homes to be built.

Logos Phase 4- Homes are being built.

Logos Phase 5- Waiting to build houses.

Logos Phase 5- Walkthrough has been completed.

Lagos Phase 2- Homes are being built.

Shadowglen Phase 2 Sec 22 & 23- A walkthrough punch list. September 2021 still waiting.
Shadowglen Phase 2 Sec 25 & 26- 1-year walkthrough punch list September 2022.
Shadowglen Phase 2 Sec 27A & 27B- Walkthrough punch list September 2021 still waiting.

Shadowglen Phase 2 Sec 17- 2-year walkthrough has been done, contractor in process of repairs.

November 2021 still waiting.

Shadowglen Phase 2 Sec 21A & 21B- Walkthrough punch list. January 2022 still waiting.

Palomino Subdivision - Development process.

Presidential Glen Commercial WW — Development process.

Page 8 of 10

Iltem 4.

98




Cemetery Report

April 4, 2023- Checked and visited the cemetery.
April 8, 2023 — Checked and visited the cemetery.
April 12, 2023 — Checked cemetery. Picked up fallen trees.

April 22, 2023 — Met with Anderson Family to order headstones for parents.

April 22, 2023 — Met with the Benitez Family to measure for headstone. Headstone installed.

April 25, 2023 — Met with the Mr. Walton and Family to install headstone for wife.
April 27, 2023 — Checked and visited cemetery.

April 30, 2023 — Removed broken branches and beer bottles from headstones.

Page 9 of 10

Iltem 4.

99




WATER/WASTEWATER MONTHLY REPORT APRIL

Iltem 4.

WASTEWATER TASK COMPLETED
SERVICE CALLS 5
MANHOLES REPAIRED

SEWER BACKUPS 1
NUMBER OF LINES FILMED

TAPS 2

LINES REPAIRED

LINES LOCATED 1
CLEANOUTS REPAIRED 3
WATER TASK COMPLETED
SERVICE CALLS 62
WATER LEAKS SERVICE LEAKS

CUSTOMER LEAKS 4

NEW SERVICE TAPS 1
HYDRANT FLUSHED 38
HYDRANT REPAIR/REPLACED 1

LINES LOCATED 1
BROWN WATER 3
WATER PRESSURE/ FROZEN CUSTOMER PIPES 2
WATER TURN ON/OFF 1

BAC T SAMPLES 10
SITES INSPECTED 240
MANHOLES INSPECTED 8
WASTEWATER LINES 8/1355 FEET
CONSTRUCTION METER DISCONNECT 1

Page 10 of 10

100




at

—JCITY OF

1872
A |

MANOR
2 MEMO
| T EXAS

To: Mayor and City Council Members

From: Tracey Vasquez, Human Resources Director
Meeting Date: May 17, 2023
RE: April 2023

Item 4.

Meetings and Events:

Juneteenth Meetings
April 12, 2023
April 21, 2023
April 26, 2023

HR Workshop Roundtable Meeting
April 13, 2023
April 27, 2023

Staff Meetings
April 4,2023
April 18,2023
April 25, 2023

City Council Meetings
April 19, 2023

April 2023

April 3, 2023 met with McGrath HR Group with Scott Moore for administration prior to
department head meetings.

Met with the McGrath HR Group and all department heads to finalize the drafted
compensation pay scale for the City of Manor’s on-going compensation study on April 5,
2023.

Interviewed two qualified candidates for the Heritage and Tourism Manager position.
Interviewed qualified candidate for the Park Crewman position.

101




Item 4.

—JCITY OF

1872

@ |[MANOR
7 MEMO
I TEXAS

Interviewed qualified candidate for the Street Crewman position.

Interviewed qualified candidate for the Utility Crewman position.

Attended MLARS training in Houston at the Police Department on April 11, 2023.

Hutto City Hall visit on April 14, 2023.

April 17, 2023, follow up meeting for Summer Skilled Trades Academy at Pflugerville
ISD.

e April 18, 2023, Sergeant’s meeting in Council Chambers regarding Worker’s Comp
protocols.

e Texas Water Association Conference from 6 p.m.- 8 p.m. at Shadow Glenn Golf Course
on April 18, 2023.
e April 20,2023, met with AFLAC regarding short- and long-term disability options for City

participation.

e April 25,2023, Health, and Wellness Overview Update with Barbara Saintomas with TML
Health.

e April 28, 2023, ZOOM meeting with McGrath for finalizing draft to present to City
Council.

e Continuing to update and revamp new policy manual for proposal.

e Day to day operations of the Human Resources department regarding property, liability,
and worker’s comp insurance. Assisted employees with specific needs regarding benefits
claims, FMLA, and training schedules.

102




—JCITY OF

¢ [MANOR

EST. ‘% 1872

To:  Mayor and City Council Members
From: Phil Green, IT Director

Date: May 17, 2023

RE: April Monthly Report

MEMO

Item 4.

The following are accomplishments from the month of April.

1. Evaluating moving off of Spectrum for internet services.
2. Deployed Apple AirTags to city council so we can track devices if lost or stolen and more easily

secure them.

3. Received new Wi-Fi Access points at City Hall, PD and Public Works to bring modernization and
stability to the Wi-Fi for city employees. Needing external antenna.

Training.

Nowu s

Starting installation of Audio/Visual in Chamber room.
Getting feasibility study started for internet to the home similar to the city of Pharr.
Replacing old, worn-out Uninterruptible power supplies for servers.

103




To:  Mayor and City Council Members

From: Lluvia T. Almaraz, City Secretary

Date:

May 17, 2023

Re:  April 2023

MEMO

Item 4.

City Records Obtained and Processed:

ACTIVITY DESCRIPTION January February | March April
City Council City Council meetings & workshop agendas
Agendas prepared & posted in accordance with Local 4 5 3 4
Government Code.
Council Minutes Minutes recorded, prepared, approved, archived 4 5 3 4
Ordinances Ordinances written, processed, &/or published and 0 6 4 3
forward to Municode for Code Supplement
Resolutions Resolutions written & processed 0 3 5 3
P'r(.)clamations/Recog Proclamations & Recognitions, written & presented 0 2 2 1
nitions
Bids Bids advertised, received, tabulated, awarded,
1 0 0 0
recorded
Boards & Board appointments implemented & completed;
Commissions appointments recorded 4 0 0 1
appointments
Contracts & Contracts & Agreements approved & executed
A ¢ 2 1 14 10
greements
Open Records Number of Open Records Requests processed
Requests (within 10 days as required) 64 32 47 38
q Yy q
COUNCIL MEETINGS
e Council Regular Meetings - April 5™ and April 19"
e  Council Special Meeting and Workshop — April 5 and April 191
TRAINING/OTHER MEETINGS
e  Mayor and Mayor Pro Tem Meeting — April 6%
e Staff Meetings — April 4%, 11", 18", and 25"
e TMCA — Benefits of Professional Associations Webinar - April 17%
e TMCA Budget Cycle Seminar — April 12-14"
e TML Region 10 — Officer meeting — April 20th
Page 1 of 2

104




—CITY OF

[1872 |
e

¢ [MANOR

OTHER

e Ongoing daily responsibilities include Election Administration, Records Management
Administration, Public Information Processes, Open Meetings Compliance, Boards and
Commission processes, City Council Committees processes, Alcohol Beverage City Permits
processes, Mayor and City Council administrative support, Administrative and Official duties and
Customer Service.

Page 2 of 2

Item 4.

105




Item 5.

AGENDA ITEM NO. 5

Tty oF

|} EST. 1872

AGENDA ITEM SUMMARY FORM

PROPOSED MEETING DATE: May 17, 2023
PREPARED BY: Scott Moore, City Manager
DEPARTMENT: Administration

AGENDA ITEM DESCRIPTION:

Consideration, discussion, and possible action on the Purchase Agreements with Carlota Nunez and Simon Nunez
for a wastewater easement with a temporary construction easement.

BACKGROUND/SUMMARY:

Since 2022, the City of Manor has been engaged with George Butler & Associates and their consulting team to
secure the required utility easements to complete the Cottonwood Creek West Tributary Wastewater Project.
This project is scheduled to be completed in the Fall of 2023. The Nunez family have two (2) parcel tracts that the
city is seeking a 25’ permanent wastewater utility easement and 25’ temporary construction easement along the
designated route for the future wastewater line to be installed. The registered appraiser completed their field
work and comparable analysis and provided the City of Manor with monetary compensation analysis for the
easements for tracts 8 and 9 at $24,466 and $20,534 respectfully.

LEGAL REVIEW: Yes
FISCAL IMPACT: No
PRESENTATION: No
ATTACHMENTS: Yes

e Purchase Agreements Parcel No. 8 and No. 9

STAFF RECOMMENDATION:

It is the city staff’s recommendation that the City Council approve the Purchase Agreements with Carlotta Nunez
and Simon Nunez for a wastewater easement with a temporary construction easement.

PLANNING & ZONING COMMISSION: Recommend Approval Disapproval None

106




Item 5.

CITY OF MANOR PURCHASE AGREEMENT
Cottonwood Creek West Tributary Wastewater Project; Parcel 8

THE STATE OF TEXAS
COUNTY OF TRAVIS

THIS ”g(gﬁTRACT (hereinafter "Purchase Contract") WITNESSETH that Carlota Nunez
and husband, WOsorio (hereinafter collectively referred to as "Owner"), for good and
valuable consideration, the receipt of which is hereby acknowledged, and for the mutual promises
contained herein, agree to grant, sell, and convey certain real property to the City of Manor,
Texas, a Texas home-rule municipality, situated in Travis County, Texas, (hereinafter the
“City”), or its assigns, and the City agrees to purchase, the following described certain real property
for the consideration and subject to the terms herein stated, as follows:

Wastewater Easement Parcel: All that certain tract, piece or parcel of land
consisting of 0.6001 acres (26,138 square feet), more or less, being situated in
Travis County, Texas, and as more particularly described in Exhibit “A.”
attached hereto and made part hereof for all purposes.

Temporary Construction Easement Parcel: All that certain tract, piece or parcel
of land consisting of 0.5821 acres (25,357 square feet), more or less, being
situated in Travis County, Texas, and as more particularly depicted and labeled
“25” Temporary Construction Easement” on sketch in Exhibit “A.” attached
hereto and made part hereof for all purposes.

Total Price. TWENTY-FOUR THOUSAND FOUR HUNDRED SIXTY-SIX AND
NO/100'S DOLLARS (824,466.00) total shall be paid by the City for a permanent and temporary
easement to the Wastewater Easement Parcel and Temporary Construction Easement Parcel and
for which no lien or encumbrances, expressed or implied, including current taxes, will be retained.
The TOTAL PRICE shall be inclusive of all land and any improvements situated thereon.

Closing. Owner and the City will finalize this purchase by Closing on or before sixty (60)
days after full execution of this Agreement (but not before all Other Interests have been satisfied
by Owner as described below), which date is hereinafter referred to as the Closing or Closing date.
The Closing shall occur at Longhorn Title Company, Inc., 3613 Williams Drive, Suite 204,
Georgetown, Texas 78628.

Title, Final Possession. Owner agrees at Closing to convey to the City a wastewater
easement and temporary construction easement to the tract described above for the consideration
described. Owner agrees to surrender final possession of the above-described tract to the City at
the time of closing.

Other Interests. Notwithstanding anything herein contained to the contrary, it is a
condition precedent to Owner’s obligations under this contract that all lienholders execute and
deliver a subordination or lender consent to easement covering the property hereinabove described
on or before Closing. Also, it is a condition precedent to Owner’s obligations under this contract

107




Item 5.

that the interests of any parties in possession, easement holders, or any other interest holders be
satisfied by Owner such that said interests are released from the property hereinabove described
on or before Closing.

Wastewater Easement and Temporary Construction Easement. Owner shall deliver to
the City at Closing a duly executed and acknowledged Wastewater Easement and Temporary
Construction Easement in substantially the form and substance as set out in Exhibit "B" attached
hereto and incorporated herein. The City agrees to prepare the Wastewater Easement and
Temporary Construction Easement in substantially the form set out in Exhibit "B" at no expense
to Owner and to pay the costs of title insurance and any applicable Closing costs.

Payment. The City agrees to pay to Owner, upon delivery of the properly executed
instruments of conveyance described herein, the above-described Total Price.

Entire Agreement. The Purchase Contract supersedes any and all other agreements either
oral or written between Owner and the City with respect to the tract described above and any
improvements located thereon.

Imminence of Condemnation. Owner and the City agree that the tract described above is
being conveyed to the City under the imminence of condemnation, as that term is used in the
United States Internal Revenue Code.

Right of Re-Purchase if Public Use is Cancelled. Pursuant to Tex. Prop. Code Sec.
21.023, the City hereby advises Owner, and Owner hereby acknowledges, of the following: should
the City acquire Owner’s property through eminent domain, (1) Owner or Owner’s heirs,
successors, or assigns may be entitled to: (A) repurchase the property pursuant to Tex. Prop. Code
Secs. 21.101 - 21.103; or (B) request from the City certain information relating to the use of the
property and any actual progress made toward that use; and (2) the repurchase price is the price
paid to Owner at the time the City acquires the property through eminent domain.

Compliance. Owner agrees to comply with all terms of this Purchase Contract and agrees
that the permanent and temporary easement rights to the above-described tract shall vest in the
City and be effective from and after Closing.

Formal Approval. Owner and the City agree that this contract is subject to approval by
the City Council of the City of Manor.

Effective Date. This Purchase Contract shall be effective upon the last date indicated
below.

108




OWNER:

¢

APt POUEZ

Carlota Nunez

‘4 Symmon Osorio
505 Simon

BUYER:

CITY OF MANOR, TEXAS
A Texas home-rule municipality

By:

Dr. Christopher Harvey, Mayor
City of Manor, Texas

Parcel No. 8

Project: Cottonwood Creek West Tributary Wastewater Project

TCAD Tax ID: 547903

Item 5.

Date

Mﬁ”"/ég A@é
Date
Date

109




10090 W Highway 29 | Liberty Hill, Texas 78642
TBPELS Firm No. 10001800 | 512-238-7901 office

EXHIBIT A"
METES AND BOUNDS DESCRIPTION

BEING 0.6001 OF ONE ACRE OF LAND (26,138 SQ. FT.), SURVEYED BY
LANDESIGN SERVICES, INC., SITUATED IN THE GREENBURY GATES
SURVEY NO. 63, ABSTRACT NO. 315, IN TRAVIS COUNTY, TEXAS AND
BEING A PORTION OF LOT 17, BLOCK A, KIMBRO CRELK ESTATIES
SECTION TWO, A SUBDIVISION OF RECORD IN DOCU MENT NO.
200200073, OF THE OFFICIAL PUBLIC RECORDS OF TRAVIS COUNTY,
TEXAS (O.P.R.T.CT.), AND BEING MORE PARTICULARLY DESCRIBED
BY METES AND BOUNDS AS FOLLOWS:

COMMENCING at a 1/2-inch rebar with cap stamped “LSI SURVEY” set at the intersection of

the existing Northerly right-of-way line of Johnson Road (R.O.W. Varies) and the existing

Westerly right-of-way line of said Johnson Road for the Fasterly Southeast corner of said Lot 17,
Block A and the common Southwest corner of a called 13.69 acre tract of land described in a
General Warranty Deed (o Nicolas Carbajal and Maria Yolanda Carbajal, recorded in Document
No. 2012122081 of said O.P.R.T.C.T., from which a 3-inch iron pipe found in the Westerly line
of said 13.69 acre tract for the Fasterly common corner of said Lot 17, Block A and of a called
137.022 acre tract of land described in a Warranty Deed to Lanzola Reserves, LLC, recorded in
Document No. 2021005280 of said O.P.RT.C.T., bears North 27°01°40” East a distance of 735.25
feet;

THENCE South 45°17°52” West with the existing Westerly right-of-way line of said Johnson Road
and the common Easterly line of said Lot 17, Block A, a distance of 1.65 feet to a Caleulated Point

for the POINT OF BEGINNING of the herein described ract;

THENCE South 45°17°52” West continuing with the existing Westerly right-of-way line of said
Johnson Road and the common Easterly line of said Lot 17, Block A, a distance of 25.00 fect toa
Calculated Point;

THENCE over and across said Lot 17, Block A, the following four (4) courses and distances:

1. North 45°06°58” West a distance of 114.07 feet (o a Caleulated Point;

(R

North 19°39°24” East a distance of 324.66 feet (o a Calculated Point;

3. North 39°52°33” West a distance of 219.01 feet to a Caleulated Point; and

N 22020 - TAY Nanor I Dese iptions L ON WE EanissCO O8 WWT Far §does Sheet fof 3

Item 5.

110




Item 5.

4. North 66°00°12” West a distance of 384.25 feet to a Caleulated Point in the Westerly line
of said Lot 17, Block A and the common Fasterly line of Lot 18, Block A, said KIMBRO
CREEK ESTATES SECTION TWO:

THENCE North 27°36°35” East with the Westerly line of said Lot 17, Block A and the common
Lasterly line of said Lot 18, Block A, a distance of 25.05 feet to a Caleulated Point, from which said
172-inch iron rebar with cap stamped “CARSON AND BUSH” found in the Southerly line of said
137.022 acre tract, for the Northerly common corner of said Lot 17, Block A and of said Lot 18,
Block A, bears North 27°36°35” East a distance 0l 320.49 feet:

THENCE over and across said Lot 17, Block A, the following four (4) courses and distances:

1. South 66°00°12” East a distance of 388.47 feet to a Caleulated Point:

(3]

South 39°52°33” East a distance of 239.11 feel (o a Calculated Point;
3. South 19°39°24” West a distance of 323.11 feet (o a Calculated Point; and

4. South 45°06°58” East a distance of 98.40 fect to the POINT OF BEGINNING and
containing 0.6001 of one acre of land (26,138 Sq. Ft.), more or less;

This project is referenced for all bearing and coordinate basis to the Texas State Plane Coordinate
System, North American Datum of 1983 (NADS3 - 2011 adjustment), Central Zone (4203). Distances
and Arcas shown hereon are Grid values represented in ULS. survey feet.

This property description accompanics a separate plat of even date and was prepared by an on the
ground survey made under my supervision during the month of November, 2022.

Frank W. Funk
Registered Professional Land Surveyor
State of Texas No. 6803

Job Number: 22-021
Attachments: K:JAY MANOR CIPCADDWGS\CC OS WL ESMTSVWCC OS WWL ESMT 8.DWG

K202 - IAY Nanor CHEDeseriptionsCC O8S WL P CC O8S WWI Eamt Sadoes Sheet 2 of's
|

111




LANZOLA RESERVES, LLC
137.022 ACRES
DOC. NO. 2021005280

O.PRT.CT.

SECTION TWO
DOC. NO. 200200073

P
A -
A

. . e P //« P ; / // // P g s
iy S S S o
i » / LOT 17, BLOCK ,// v
o/ s S/ KIMBRO CREEK ESTATES
S * /", SECTION TWO :

" poc.No. 200200073 7
g OPRT.CT. S

» ‘ / /// < / / g /"// /'// // //////,/ g /"/ ~ //

v 25' TEMPORARY weesrmed 7
~ CONSTRUCTION EASEMENT -/
,  0.5821 OF ONE ACRE

S

¥SEE SHEETS 4--5 FOR DETAIL VIEW

Item 5.

LEGEND

O]

O
A

0.P.RI.CT.

s

R.O.W.
P.O.B.
P.0.C.

p ) p e ) / >

A p E o
Ay WS
Py ey Ay

S

g - WASTEWATER LI
0.6001 OF ONE ACRE
(26,138 SQ. FT.)

S /

NE EASEMENT

- /‘,
s Py
e /’
/ - // //
7 / P

" NICOLAS CARBAIAL AND

3~INCH IRON PIPE FOUND (OR AS NOTED)
1/2~INCH REBAR CAP STAMPED
"CARSON AND BUSH" FOUND
1/2~INCH REBAR WITH CAP
STAMPED "LSI SURVEY” SET
CALCULATED POINT NOT SET
OFFICIAL PUBLIC RECORDS OF
TRAVIS COUNTY, TEXAS
RIGHT—OF ~WAY

POINT OF BEGINNING

POINT OF COMMENCING

FEMA ZONE A FLOODPLAIN

/

13.69 ACRES
DOC. NO. 2012122081

JOB NUMBER: 22021 |DATE: 12/06/22

PROJECT NAME: JAY MANOR CIP

DRAWING NAME: CC OS WWIL. ESMT 8

DRAWING FILE PATH:
HK:\22021 — JAY MANOR CIP\CAD\DWGS\CC 0% WwWL ESMTS

METES AND BOUNDS FILE PATH:
K:\22021 — JAY MANOR CIP\DESCRIPTIONS\CC 0S WWL ESMTS

RPLS: FWF_ |TECH: JRM |PARTY CHIEF: TN |CHK BY: HAS

SHEET 03 of 05  |FIELDBOOKS 13/419 [SCALE:1 "= 200’

10090 W HIGHWAY 29, LIBERTY HILL, TEXAS 78642
TBPELS FIRM NO. 10001800
512-238-7901

112




Item 5.

VA A A A \ - LANZOLA RESERVES, LLC

A yays / O o g 137.022 ACRES

3 . -
Lo NByn - 7 7w DOC. NO. 2021005280

e o // '/,,,» ) sy ])};/ o /,/i‘ ” / / > \ OPRT.CT.
% v o , S ’ s , o /1 {:} : ?/1 ) 1 ’Z’\, "y Q«/'/ // >
[ / e p ’ p 4 /,f'/ /,/‘/ /, ,// V ‘V()‘ Aj); }
S S s S / 63
: e

F

e yd - ’ ya , »/ e ) p .
¢ s 4 Vv e / o //
i .,/"/ e e 4 //’/ e s 4 ) Ve e /" ,/// //
A A A A A A A A A
’ e / s e /'/ i g //, e
/ Ve Ve e Y s S
Ay Ay Lot 17, socka S S

S KIMBRO CReek esTaTes S S S
c 0 0 Csaiontwo 0
S pocoNo. 2000073 S S 0
S S BPRTCT. S

, g g o S E y . e
e Ve Y s e y - / /,» P .
e S e
ye e pd e Ve
o S g S
e 4

Q, / S / 4 //

\S‘b’ // ,// / /’// / - s
. WASTEWATER LINE
EASEMENT
0.6001 OF ONE ACRE

(26,138 SQ. FT.)

- d

P,

.

SHEET 4
AN
N
\

/ /,, Vs y /, s // //« o /
A NICOLAS CARBAJALAND 7
S/ MARIAYOLANDA CARBAIAL -~ 7
S 13.69 ACRES A

AN
,\\ .,
.,

AN

.

>
AN

AN
2\
D

~,

‘MATCH LINE SHEET

s Ayl y , S /’/ / DOC.NO. 2012122081 .~ 7
VA4 , A S O.P.RT.CT. S S
,,f’/ v / e 4 / / // /}’ - s g ’ ’/ / /‘/‘ // // / g // e g "/ / "/ o
< s Ve ,/ e Vs - . e 7 / /! o - g - - 4
/,;'J yd // / /"' 7 e . /' // /’K e 4 // y / e g //" // ’ g v d ,/"/ /j

o / p e " Ve // / e S // Ve v ’/ )
25' TEMPORARY e S S S e // P A S v
CONSTRUCTION EASEMENT ~~ /7 /' f ’ ' Py R A
0.5891 OF ONE ACRE DETAIL S S S
- u T s s // A < o //’

(25,357 SQ. FT.)

- / ’
g e e Py
>\( P /,/ e

S / <

N
~,
\\'

1.65'

S y S 4 ///,,x //},/ !//r . /,.; »//
s4s7's2"W 1 S T /
. . /

v S R
*SEE SHEET 5 FOR NOTES AND UNE TABLE 7~ ~

JOB NUMBER: 22-021 ]DATE: 12/06/22
PROJECT NAME: JAY MANOR CIP
DRAWING NAME: CC OS WWL ESMT 8

DRAWING FILE PATH:

Ki\22021 — JAY MANOR CIP\CAD\DWGS\CC 0S WWL ESMTS
METES AND BOUNDS FILE PATH;

Ki\22021 — JAY MANOR CIP\DESCRIFTIONS\CC 0S WWL ESMTS 10090 W HIGHWAY 29, LIBERTY HILL, TEXAS 78642
RPLS: FWF _ [TECH: JRM _|PARTY CHIEF: TN [CHK_BY: HAS TBPELS FIRM NO. 10001800

SHEET 04 of 05 |FIELDBOOKS 13/419 [SCALE: 1= 100" 3122387901 i




A < < 7 % s v v i Item 5. L
; Vs ~ /! s . 7 - S S
. . E - // y { :
s 7 y / // /\ 44/(()
| s s . SN ~ 7 4) ..
i ) o P Ve e e yd ,/,/ . OOC 53 ) o5 56‘5 )1/
S S N \ M0 400,88 7
GRAPHIC SCALE S S S s S ® Orpito s
v //,. / / ,/ y / / \ ,7\0 05)?
e /,/ /'/ / / / //‘/ - e P
LINE TABLE / /// LOT 18, BL()CKA T SN
/ "/ KIMBRO CREEK ESTATES VA \
’ LINE # | BEARING | DISTANCE s 7 . SECTIONTWO S T \
yd bOC. NO. 200200073 7 L0 e o
L1 | s4517'52"W | 25.00° / / opRTCT. S S
/ // /"‘ ,«"/ /,«’J ’/-' V-/ . ! ',’ / /z‘
L2 | N45°06'58"W | 114.07' A A A S R S S G
> / / / Yy VA P LOT 17, BLOCK A /
L3 [ N27°36°35"E | 25.05° / / S A " KIMBRO CREEK ESTATES
/ / S T S T o sECTIoN TWo S
L4 S45°06'58"E | 98.40° / / A 4 ,/&)Aa/ 7 DOC. NO. 200200073 ey
WASTEWATER LINE- ~ £ o OPRTCT
o ) % s EASEMENT A / s yay
S /.// S oeoroFoneacre N /S S
- yd p p Ve 7 P ) S/ v ) v (
o /_,. /,» ) 4 /, /, yas Ve \\{ v\o N Y
P A A A A AR e, oS T TN
/// //// // //,» / o C«U\N ”)3{;:} 0 / o p
S0 S 4§3K§X . CT‘&U\” :/ yd / e Ay
// /\ - ‘?‘X'} [‘\X)) % e 4 ’ 7 4 g // - -
S ey Yy ' A A A A -

o e // p e /,/ p o e P o ya ,r/ p yd / b
/ ayd yd ’ /‘/ ,/ 4 Gy . o //, // _// ye // / / % \ //
/ g S / o / p p / / - b 7 /

SSS S 25' TE MPORARY — \L L2
FLOOD NOTE: /7 CONSTRUCTION EASEMENT AT
yay 0.5821 OF ONE ACRE ,,/ A -
A PORTION OF THE TRACT SHOWN HEREON APPEARS TO LUE .~ (25357 5Q. FT.) yd P
WITHIN A DESIGNATED FLOODPLAIN AREA AS IDENTIFIED BY THE ~ // o A
FEDERAL  EMERGENCY ~ MANAGEMENT  AGENCY, FEDERAL A Py
INSURANCE ~ ADMINISTRATION, AS SHOWN ON MAP NO. / pyayd / S
48453C0295H, DATED SEPTEMBER 26, 2008, MAP NO. S S ‘
#8453C0485J, DATED AUGUST 28, 2014, BOTH FOR TRAVIS 7 s /
COUNTY, TEXAS AND INCORPORATED AREAS. Yy P S
S e 7 O S
THIS FLOOD PLAIN NOTE DOES NOT IMPLY THAT THE PROPERTY 7 o LOT17,BLOCKA /7
AND/OR STRUCTURES THEREON WILL BE FREE FROM FLOODING . KIMBRO CREEK ESTATES -
OR FLOOD DAMAGE. THIS FLOOD STATEMENT SHALL NOT - ~_SECTIONTWO S
CREATE LIABILITY ON THE PART OF THE SURVEYOR. Py DOCONI?R}TOg ]00073 /
S ’ // ya
- . e p; v ) P s
GENERAL NOTES: , / / P S )
THIS PROJECT IS REFERENCED FOR ALL BEARING AND YA S A
COORDINATE BASIS TO THE TEXAS COORDINATE SYSTEM. S
NORTH ~ AMERICAN DATUM OF 1983 (NAD83 - 2011 ARy / {/
ADJUSTMENT), CENTRAL ZONE (4203). S S
STMENT), CENTRAL ZONE (4203) A A A
s p e
DISTANCES SHOWN HEREON ARE GRID VALUES REPRESENTED A A
IN U.S. SURVEY FEET. S /
4 // // S
THIS SURVEY PLAT ACCOMPANIES A METES AND BOUNDS S
DESCRIPTION OF EVEN DATE. e,
JOB NUMBER: 22-021 | DATE: 12/06/22
PROJECT NAME: JAY MANOR CIP
DRAWING NAME: CC 0S WWL ESMT 8
DRAWING FILE PATH:
[<:\22021 — JAY MANOR CIP\CAD\DWGS\CC 0S WWL ESMTS
IMETES AND BOUNDS FILE PATH:
K\??O?T ~ JAY MANOR C!P\DESCRIPT!ON‘S\(_,C 05 WWL ESMTS 10090 W HIGHWAY 29, LIBERTY HILL. TENAS 78642
RPLS: FWF_ |TECH: JRM |PARTY CHIEF: TN [cHK BY: HAS '“"”«*“S'l"?’{i‘%‘;“;{’)‘(}"“‘)”’W’
SHEET 05 of 05  [FIELDBOOKS 13/419 [SCALE:1"= 100’ dHeraie 114




Item 5.

NOTICE OF CONFIDENTIALITY RIGHTS: IF YOU ARE A NATURAL PERSON, YOU MAY
REMOVE OR STRIKE ANY OR ALL OF THE FOLLOWING INFORMATION FROM THIS
INSTRUMENT BEFORE IT IS FILED FOR RECORD IN THE PUBLIC RECORDS: YOUR
SOCIAL SECURITY NUMBER OR YOUR DRIVER'S LICENSE NUMBER.

EXHIBIT “B”
WASTEWATER EASEMENT
AND TEMPORARY WORKSPACE EASEMENT
THE STATE OF TEXAS §
§
COUNTY OF TRAVIS §

That, Carlota Nunez and husband, Symon Osorio (“Grantor”), whether one or more, for
and in consideration of the sum of Ten Dollars ($10.00) and other good and valuable
consideration, to Grantor in hand paid by City of Manor, Texas, a Texas home-rule
municipality situated in Travis County, Texas (“Grantee”), the receipt and sufficiency of
which is hereby acknowledged and confessed, and for which no lien or encumbrance,
expressed or implied, is retained, has this day GRANTED, SOLD, and CONVEYED and
by these presents does GRANT, SELL, and CONVEY unto Grantee, a permanent
easement for purposes of construction, reconstruction, operation, maintenance, repair,
upgrade, and/or removal of wastewater lines, facilities, connections therewith, manholes,
vents, and all necessary appurtenances thereto (the “Project”), upon, across, under, and
through all or any portion of the following described property:

A tract of land consisting of 0.6001 acres, more or less, being
more particularly described by metes and bounds and sketch in
the attached Exhibit “A,” hereby incorporated by reference and
made a part hereof for all purposes, with said 0.6001 acre parcel
being referred to hereafter as the Permanent Easement.

In addition to the rights in the Permanent Easement, Grantor also hereby grants
unto Grantee a Temporary Workspace Easement over that certain 25’ wide strip of land
abutting the Permanent Easement to the south and west being approximately 0.5821
acres in size, more or less, and being depicted graphically on Exhibit “A” as “25'
TEMPORARY CONSTRUCTION EASEMENT.” for any and all purposes incident to
effectuating the Project, including but not limited to construction staging, equipment
storage, temporary spoil storage, and access. The duration of said Temporary
Workspace Easement shall not exceed twelve (12) months, commencing upon
Grantee’s commencement of excavation for the Project within the Permanent Easement
and terminating upon the earlier of Grantee’s completion of the Project or the expiration
of twelve (12) months from Grantee’s commencement of work, whichever date first
occurs. Grantee shall have the right to utilize all materials excavated from the Permanent
Easement during the Project for uses incident to the Project.

115




Item 5.

The right to use the Easements shall belong to the Grantee and its agents,
employees, designees, contractors, guests, invitees, successors and assigns, and all
those acting by or on behalf of it for the purposes of installation, construction, operation,
maintenance, monitoring, replacement, upgrading, repairing, or removing in whole or in
part, a wastewater pipeline and appurtenances thereto.

Grantee shall have the right to unimpaired ingress and egress, entry and access in,
to, through, on, over, under, and across the Permanent Easement and Temporary
Workspace Easement. Grantee shall promptly repair any damage to any of Grantor’s
existing roads or surface caused by Grantee so as to maintain the roads or surface in as
good as or better condition as existed prior to use by Grantee.

Grantor may use the Easements for any and all purposes not inconsistent with the
purposes set forth in this Agreement, including but not limited to parking, access drives,
landscaping, and lighting. Grantor may not erect permanent building structures within the
Permanent Easement, however, and Grantor may not use any part of the Easements if
such use may otherwise damage, destroy, injure, and/or interfere with Grantee’s use of
the Easements for the purposes for which the Easements are being sought by Grantee, in
Grantee’s sole determination.

Grantor shall retain all the oil, gas, and other minerals in, on and under the
Permanent Easement and Temporary Workspace Easement.

Grantee shall have the right to remove any fence which now crosses or may cross
the Easements during initial construction of the Project. Grantee shall replace all such
fencing or gates with gates or fencing of the same or better quality, type, and dimension
as existed prior to Grantee’s work.

Grantee agrees that upon completion of construction of the Project, Grantee shall
remove and dispose of all debris, trash, and litter resulting from construction. Grantee
shall be obligated to restore the surface of the Permanent Easement and the Temporary
Workspace Easement area at Grantee's sole cost and expense as nearly as reasonably
possible in Grantee’s sole determination to the same condition in which the surface was
immediately before initial construction, including the restoration of any fencing, sidewalks,
landscaping, or similar surface improvements located upon or adjacent to the Permanent
Easement which may have been removed, relocated, altered, damaged, or destroyed as
a result of the Grantee’s initial use of the easements granted hereunder, except that
Grantee shall not be obligated to replace trees or vegetation other than groundcover.

This Agreement shall be interpreted in accordance with the laws of the state of
Texas and all applicable federal laws (without regard to any conflicts-of-law rule or principle
that would require the application of same to the laws of another jurisdiction).

This Agreement contains the entire agreement and supersedes any and all prior
oral understandings and/or agreements, if any, concerning the subject of the Agreement.

116




Item 5.

TO HAVE AND TO HOLD the above-described easement, together with all and
singular the rights and appurtenances thereto in anywise belonging unto Grantee, and
Grantee’s heirs, executors, administrators, successors and assigns forever; and Grantor
does hereby bind Grantor, their heirs, executors, administrators, successors and assigns
to WARRANT AND FOREVER DEFEND all and singular the easement unto Grantee and
Grantee’s heirs, executors, administrators, successors and assigns against every person
whomsoever lawfully claiming or to claim the same, or any part thereof, together with the
privilege at any and all times to enter said premises, or any part thereof, for the purpose of
constructing, operating, maintaining, replacing, upgrading and repairing said public
wastewater utility lines, and for making connections therewith.

GRANTOR:

Carlota Nunez Date
Symon Osorio Date
ACCEPTED:

GRANTEE: City of Manor, Texas:

By: Dr. Christopher Harvey, Mayor

117




Item 5.

***** NOTARY ACKNOWLEDGEMENTS *****

THE STATE OF TEXAS §
§
COUNTY OF TRAVIS §

The foregoing instrument was executed before me by Carlota Nunez and husband,
Symon Osorio on this the day of , 2023,

Notary Public-State of Texas

THE STATE OF TEXAS §
§
COUNTY OF TRAVIS §

BEFORE ME, the undersigned authority, a Notary Public in and for said County and
State, on this the day of 2023, personally appeared
Dr. Christopher Harvey, Mayor of City of Manor, Grantee herein, known to me to be the
person whose name is subscribed to the foregoing instrument, and acknowledged that he
executed the same for the purposes and consideration therein expressed and in the capacity
therein stated.

Notary Public-State of Texas

Project Name: Cottonwood Creek West Tributary Wastewater Project
Parcel No. 8
TCAD PID No.: 547903

AFTER RECORDING RETURN TO:
City of Manor

105 E. Eggleston

Manor, Texas 78653

118




Item 5.

CITY OF MANOR PURCHASE AGREEMENT
Cottonwood Creek West Tributary Wastewater Project; Parcel 9

THE STATE OF TEXAS
COUNTY OF TRAVIS

THIS C TI%{ACT (hereinafter "Purchase Contract") WITNESSETH that Carlota Nunez
and husband, S¥hion’ Osorio (hereinafter collectively referred to as "Owner"), for good and
valuable consideration, the receipt of which is hereby acknowledged, and for the mutual promises
contained herein, agree to grant, sell, and convey certain real property to the City of Manor,
Texas, a Texas home-rule municipality, situated in Travis County, Texas, (hereinafter the
“City”), or its assigns, and the City agrees to purchase, the following described certain real property
for the consideration and subject to the terms herein stated, as follows:

y O
g

Wastewater Easement Parcel: All that certain tract, piece or parcel of land
consisting of 0.5006 acres (21,806 square feet), more or less, being situated in
Travis County, Texas, and as more particularly described in Exhibit “A”
attached hereto and made part hereof for all purposes.

Temporary Construction Easement Parcel: All that certain tract, piece or parcel
of land consisting of 0.5009 acres (21,819 square feet), more or less, being
situated in Travis County, Texas, and as more particularly depicted and labeled
“25° Temporary Construction Easement” on sketch in Exhibit “A,” attached
hereto and made part hereof for all purposes.

Total Price. TWENTY THOUSAND FIVE HUNDRED THIRTY-FOUR AND NO/100'S
DOLLARS (820,534.00) total shall be paid by the City for a permanent and temporary easement
to the Wastewater Easement Parcel and Temporary Construction Easement Parcel and for which
no lien or encumbrances, expressed or implied, including current taxes, will be retained. The
TOTAL PRICE shall be inclusive of all land and any improvements situated thereon.

Closing. Owner and the City will finalize this purchase by Closing on or before sixty (60)
days after full execution of this Agreement (but not before all Other Interests have been satisfied
by Owner as described below), which date is hereinafter referred to as the Closing or Closing date.
The Closing shall occur at Longhorn Title Company, Inc., 3613 Williams Drive, Suite 204,
Georgetown, Texas 78628.

Title, Final Possession. Owner agrees at Closing to convey to the City a wastewater
casement and temporary construction easement to the tract described above for the consideration
described. Owner agrees to surrender final possession of the above-described tract to the City at
the time of closing.

Other Interests. Notwithstanding anything herein contained to the contrary, it is a
condition precedent to Owner’s obligations under this contract that all lienholders execute and
deliver a subordination or lender consent to easement covering the property hereinabove described
on or before Closing. Also, it is a condition precedent to Owner’s obligations under this contract

119




Item 5.

that the interests of any parties in possession, easement holders, or any other interest holders be
satisfied by Owner such that said interests are released from the property hereinabove described
on or before Closing.

Wastewater Easement and Temporary Construction Easement. Owner shall deliver to
the City at Closing a duly executed and acknowledged Wastewater Easement and Temporary
Construction Easement in substantially the form and substance as set out in Exhibit "B" attached
hereto and incorporated herein. The City agrees to prepare the Wastewater Fasement and
Temporary Construction Easement in substantially the form set out in Exhibit "B" at no expense
to Owner and to pay the costs of title insurance and any applicable Closing costs.

Payment. The City agrees to pay to Owner, upon delivery of the properly executed
instruments of conveyance described herein, the above-described Total Price.

Entire Agreement. The Purchase Contract supersedes any and all other agreements either
oral or written between Owner and the City with respect to the tract described above and any
improvements located thereon.

Imminence of Condemnation. Owner and the City agree that the tract described above is
being conveyed to the City under the imminence of condemnation, as that term is used in the
United States Internal Revenue Code.

Right of Re-Purchase if Public Use is Cancelled. Pursuant to Tex. Prop. Code Sec.
21.023, the City hereby advises Owner, and Owner hereby acknowledges, of the following: should
the City acquire Owner’s property through eminent domain, (1) Owner or Owner’s heirs,
successors, or assigns may be entitled to: (A) repurchase the property pursuant to Tex. Prop. Code
Secs. 21.101 - 21.103; or (B) request from the City certain information relating to the use of the
property and any actual progress made toward that use; and (2) the repurchase price is the price
paid to Owner at the time the City acquires the property through eminent domain.

Compliance. Owner agrees to comply with all terms of this Purchase Contract and agrees
that the permanent and temporary easement rights to the above-described tract shall vest in the
City and be effective from and after Closing.

Formal Approval. Owner and the City agree that this contract is subject to approval by
the City Council of the City of Manor.

Effective Date. This Purchase Contract shall be effective upon the last date indicated
below.

120




OWNER:

(LD Fee  pIORE

Carlota Nunez

Symon Osorio

Ses Simp/

BUYER:

CITY OF MANOR, TEXAS
A Texas home-rule municipality

By:
Dr. Christopher Harvey, Mayor
City of Manor, Texas

Parcel No. 9

Item 5.

Date

Project: Cottonwood Creek West Tributary Wastewater Project

TCAD Tax ID: 547904

121




10090 W Highway 29 { Liberty Hill, Texas 78642
TBPELS Firm No. 10001800 f 512-238-7901 office

EXHIBIT "A"
METES AND BOUNDS DESCRIPTION

BEING 0.5006 OF ONE ACRE OF LLAND (21,806 SQ. I'T.), SURVEYED BY
LANDESIGN SERVICES, INC., SITUATED IN THE GREENBURY GATES
SURVEY NO. 63, ABSTRACT NO. 315, IN TRAVIS COUNTY, TEXAS AND
BEING A PORTION OF LOT 18, BLOCK A, KIMBRO CREEK ESTATIS
SECTION TWO, A SUBDIVISION OF RECORD IN DOCUMENT NO.
200200073, OF THE OFFICIAL PUBLIC RECORDS OF TRAVIS COUNTY,
TEXAS (O.P.RT.CT), AND BEING MORE PARTICULARLY DESCRIBED
BY METES AND BOUNDS AS FOLLOWS:

BEGINNING at a 1/2-inch rebar with cap stamped “L.SI SURVEY™ set in the Westerly line of
said Lot 18, Block A at the Easterly common corner of a called 19.874 acre tract of land described
m a General Warranty Deed to Bulmero Almanza and Fsperanza Alonso, recorded in Document
No. 2018172431 of said O.P.R.T.C.T. and ol a called 20.163 acre tract of land described in a Special
Owelty of Partition Deed to Arthur Dent Werchan, recorded in Document No. 2022055595 of said
O.P.RT.CT, from which a 5/8-inch iron rebar found in the Westerly line of said Lot 18, Block A
and the common Easterly line of said 19.874 acre tract bears North 27°43°51” East a distance of
216.24 feet;

THENCE over and across said Lot 18, Block A, the following three (3) courses and distances:
. South 62°17°29” East a distance of 59.50 feet (o 4 Calculated Point;

2. North 71°10°26” East a distance of 419.38 feet to a Calculated Point; and

sl

South 66°00°12” East a distance of 393.62 feet to a Caleulated Point in the Easterly line of
said Lot 18, Block A and the common Westerly line of Lot 17, Block A, said KIMBRO
CREEK ESTATES SECTION TWO, from which a 1/2-inch iron rebar with cap stamped
“CARSON AND BUSH” found in the Southerly line of said 137.022 acre tract for the
Northerly common corner of said Lot 18, Block A and of said Lot 17, Block A, bears
North 27°36735” East a distance of 320.49 feet:

THENCE South 27°36°35” West with the Lasterly line of said Lot 18, Block A and the common
Westerly line of said Lot 17, Block A, a distance of 25.05 feet (o a Calculated Point;

THENCE over and across said Lot 18, Block A, the following three (3) courses and distances:

Ke22020 - IAN Manor CIPDeseriptionsCO OS W BamiseCC O WAL Bsmil 9.doey Sheet 1 of 3

Item 5.

122




. North 66°00°12” West a distance of 382.26 leel (o a Calculated Point;

o

South 71°10°26” West a distance of 420.33 feet 16 a Calculated Point; and

3. North 62°17°29” West a distance of 70.07 feet 1o a Calculated Point in the Westerly line of

said Lot 18, Block A and the common Lasterly line of said 20.163 acre tract:

THENCE North 27°21°40” East with the Westerly line of said Lot 18, Block A and the common
Easterly line of said 20,163 acre tract, a distance of 25.00 feet {0 the POINT OF BEGINNING and
containing 0.5006 of onc acre of land (21,806 Sq. F), more or less;

This project is referenced for all bearing and coordinate basis to the Texas State Plane Coordinate
System, North American Datum of 1983 (NADS3 - 201 | adjustment), Central Zone (4203). Distances

and Arcas shown hereon are Grid values represented in U.S, survey feet.

This property description accompanies a separate plat of even date and was prepared by an on the
ground survey made under my supervision during the month of November, 2022.

-
&
£ W\g\ﬁ.}g S é(tf Lo j}w«"&?

Frank W. Funk
Registered Professional Land Surveyor
State of Texas No. 6803

Tob Number: 22-071
Attachments: KINAY MANOR CIPWCADMDWGSWCC OS WL ESMTSWCC O8 WWIL ESMT 9.DWG

KE22020 - 1AY Manor CHEDeseriptionsaCC OS W Esmied e 08 WAL st 9doey Shevt 2 af 3

Item 5.

123




s

ESPERANZA ALONSO SECTION

19.874 ACRES
DOC. NO., 2018172431

. ARTHOR DENT WERCHAR
g 20.163 ACRES /
DOC. NO. 2022055595 ,,/

<
~

< .,
e / ,/
oA /
Py y

~a / /

~_ <
~

LOT 19, BLOCK A
KIMBRO CREEK ESTATES
SECTION TWO
DOC. NO, 200200073
O.PRT.CT.

*SEE SHEETS 4~5 FOR DETAIL VIEW

/s LOT 18 BLOCK A
/’// /" KIMBRO CREEK ESTATES )

DOC. NO. 200200073

v 25' TEMPORARY

7 CONSTRUCTION EASEMENT /
'l 0.5009 OF ONE ACRE
(21,819 5Q. FT)

/ ) />'KIMBROCREFK ESTATES /
, / P SECTION TWO S
EOT 18, BLOCKA ° 7. DOC. NO. 200200073 .

KIMBRO CREEK FJTATES//

DOC, NO, 200200073

Item 5.

™ {B)‘!}) 4
e HUF iy NO.
SR N0, 880
g C*'&fm("‘r NO

LANZOLA RESERVES, LLC
137.022 ACRES
DOC. NO. 2021005280

v// 4 P, r
Yy P

TWO

0.5006 OF ONE ACRE
(21 806 SQ. I'T)

LOT' 17 BLOCK A s

SECTION TWO

OPRT.CT.
e s

/&

LEGEND

1/2~INCH REBAR FOUND (OR AS NOTED)
1/2-INCH REBAR WITH CAP

STAMPED "LS! SURVEY" SET

1/2—-INCH REBAR WITH CAP STAMPED
"CARSON AND BUSH" FOUND
CALCULATED POINT NOT SET

OFFICIAL PUBLIC RECORDS OF
TRAVIS COUNTY, TEXAS

RIGHT - 0OF —WAY
POINT OF BEGINNING

FEMA ZONE A FLOODPLAIN

C e

AN

O.PRT.CT.
R.O.W.

JOB NUMBER: 22-021 \DATE: 12/06/22

PROJECT NAME: JAY MANOR CIP

DRAWING NAME: CC 0S WWL ESMT 9

DRAWING FILE PATH:
Ki\N22021 — JAY MANOR CIP\CAD\DWGS\CC 0S WWL ESMTS

METES AND BOUNDS FILE PATH:
K:\22021 — JAY MANOR CIP\DESCRIPTIONS\CC 0S WWL ESMTS

HO090 W HIGHWAY 29, LIBERTY HILL, T

EXAS 78642

RPLS: FWF_ JTECH: JRM |PARTY CHIEF: TN [CHK BY: HAS

TBPELS FIRM NO. 10601800

SHEET 03 of 05 [FIELDBOOKS 13/419 [SCALE: 1 "=

200

512-238-7901

124




LANZOLA RESERVES, LLC
137,022 ACRES
DOC. NO. 2021005280

GRAPHIC SCALE

. DOC. NO, 2018172431
O.P.RT.CT.
/ s

7 0.5006 OF ONE ACRE X,
(21,806 5Q. FT.)

S

< ARTHUR DENT WERCHAN p
20.163 ACRES

DOC. NO. 2022055595

OPRTCT,

Ve

PanPu O.PRT.CT.
LINE TABLE e
LINE # | BEARING | DISTANCE | 7 7
/,f' //
Lt | s6217'29"€ | 59.50° | T
, L2 |s2736'35"w | 2505 |
” L3 | NB217°28"W | 70.07' ‘
L4 | N27°21°40E | 25.000 | ’ YAy
. - a4 A A | B
,x/ /»/ 4 e '/ /// /f/ /‘// /“/ 7 4 ,,,»"/ 4 / /// // 4 / J,/’/ // ) /! E""
Y A A A A Va4 / S
VA AR AR A A A S ey yd Lﬂ]
/ /’N Ve // L /// . v o y y e ‘4/ //, ) P ; )
y S /// . Ve , e ) - e /,,,/ \S‘i{; ”\j Xi\;\i p // /// y i // Va // y p /}/ /l”/ %l [Te) e
e 4 // y Ve /," e ) ol g /// / Vs v 4 v /,,»' e
///‘ - ~ ."/ f/f /// . &;\‘)(;‘3 L\«:) 4:))'&/0 ‘/, LOT 1§ 81 BLOCK A ’// ) p ) m E;j
P e N " @(} <" KIMBRO CREEK ESTATES 7 g
e /r/ e p 5 ’{‘ A3 ] o //’ SECTION TW 0 j p ) —t V .
E‘s&‘/ﬁ‘g.@‘g’\ﬂ ‘?.’5(“‘{,{} DOC. NO. 200200073 v % /
P A O.P.RT.CT. ‘
/ v . i ) o //’/ S ///' E___(| //
y e v p I e ) . :E e
4 ) ye ’ - e e ) . = s
s 7 BUCMERG ALMANZA ARD P A S A A S
\ S ) Fsplﬁgngg:;z//x\ géﬁogso ~ WASTEWATER LINE - VA
i EASEMENT y

pe s e
25/ TEMPORARY — )/ ' " o718, BlOCK A/ e A
CONSTRUC‘ ION EASEMENT " “\IMBRO CREEK ESTATES S
; 5009 OF ONE ACRE sectiontwo S S 0 S
Gy (V. (21,819 5Q. FT.) ' DOC. NO, 200200073 / VA
P g y S s // 0.p R/T(N‘T ) / /// /// f/, P /l v
/ /,/ / -y / v // ) / // p e ///‘ /,/ // //,/ /J,».,,
// \M / p // y t S
/ v N\“\V/ P S P
e e rd g e
.. - \\}_/ i Y // s e
*SEE SHEET 5 FOR NOTES SN

Item 5.

JOB NUMBER: 22—021 |DATE: 12/06/22

PROJECT NAME: JAY MANOR CIP

DRAWING NAME: CC 0S WWL ESMT 9

DRAWING FILE PATH:
K:\22021 — JAY MANOR CIP\CAD\DWGS\CC OS WWL ESMTS

METES AND BOUNDS FILE PATH:
Ki\22021 — JAY MANOR CIP\DESCRIPTIONS\CC 0S WWL ESMTS

16090 W HIGHWAY 29, LIBERTY HILL,

TBPELS FIRM NO, 10001800

RPLS: FWF  [TECH: JRM |PARTY CHIEF: TN |CHK BY: HAS

512-238-7901

SHEET 04 of 05 IFIELDBOOKS 13/419 [SCALE:1"= 100’

TEXAS 78642

125




B3,

\ji*‘f NO.

i ‘MXT.% \;0 310 \GRAPHIC SCALE

LANZOLA RESERVES, LLC
137.022 ACRES
DOC. NO. 2021005280
ORPRT.CT.

B e s Y
.
. .,

d l\O > S . P ,,//
y ; y - ) - // // y
g E,c;i S - /,« // )
s - ’,/ ',"/ v,r'f // S V //') Vs ' o’
o 7 T LoT 18, BLOCK A g S N
o 0/ KIMBRO CREEK ESTATES /7 7/ \,\,\\
no o T T SECTION Two S TN
S / DOC. NO. 200200073~ o S
YA A O.PRT.C.T. VA A S \

“MATCH LINE SHEET 4. . . /v

R S 7 WASTEWATEQ e -~ ) YA AN
S ~ 0.5006 OF ONE ACRE .~ -~ 7 &

) e // / / \
- ) ) ) . /// 7 /;"'} ~ \
/ / (21 806 SQ Fry N // /// \ ~
/ Py ) <u LOT 17, BLOCK A /

N

- pd A

VAR A & . S

. T A amero creek esTaTes S
s / YA Ao/ SECTION Two ayey

’ AT pocono. 20200073 S S T
c:(:\’ / e O, P RT.CT. Ve ya .
, ’ / / / ye ’ // /,//

,// // / // ,// < _,// y g -

y S S S ,/ / B % o

e ) / L -

i
! . 25' TEMPORARY A
,l "/ CONSTRUCTION EASEMENT © . /7
|
{

- 4 s
S /,, , ya 0.5009 OF ONE ACRE ya /,/ / GE‘!ERAI NOTES:
VA P /
SN IBESe ) / /THIS PROJECT IS REFERENCED FOR ALL BEARING AND

NORTH  AMERICAN  DATUM  OF 1983 (NADB3 — 2011

e 7 . /* /x COORDINATE BASIS TO THE TEXAS COORDINATE SYSTEM,
/ /\DJUSTMENT), CENTRAL ZONE (4203).

S {orib soka T p

A MERO CREEK ESTATES / " DISTANCES SHOWN HEREON ARE GRID VALUES REPRESENTED
0 7 Dot No. 200200073 < // // /7 INUS SURVEY FEET.
)

- - d 7
<, ORRICT s 7 THIS SURVEY PLAT ACCOMPANIES A METES AND BOUNDS

A e

o S T T / DESCRIPTION OF EVEN DATE.

JOB NUMBER: 22021 ]DATE: 12/06/22
PROJECT NAME: JAY MANOR CIP

DRAWING NAME: CC 0S WWL ESMT 9

DRAWING FILE PATH:

K:\22021 -~ JAY MANOR CIP\CAD\DWGS\CC 0S WWL ESMTS
METES AND BOUNDS FILE PATH:

K:\22021 — JAY MANOR CIP\DESCRIPTIONS\CC 0S WWL ESMTS 10090 W HIGHWAY 29, LIBERTY HILL, TEXAS 78642
RPLS: FWF  [TECH: JRM__|PARTY CHIEF: TN [CHK BY: HAS TBPELS FIRM NO. 10001800

s T 512.238-7910
SHEET 05 of 05 |FIELDBOOKS 13/410 [SCALE:1"= 100 312-238-7901 126




Item 5.

NOTICE OF CONFIDENTIALITY RIGHTS: IF YOU ARE A NATURAL PERSON, YOU MAY
REMOVE OR STRIKE ANY OR ALL OF THE FOLLOWING INFORMATION FROM THIS
INSTRUMENT BEFORE IT IS FILED FOR RECORD IN THE PUBLIC RECORDS: YOUR
SOCIAL SECURITY NUMBER OR YOUR DRIVER'S LICENSE NUMBER.

EXHIBIT “B”
WASTEWATER EASEMENT
AND TEMPORARY WORKSPACE EASEMENT

THE STATE OF TEXAS §
§
COUNTY OF TRAVIS §

That, Carlota Nunez and husband, Symon Osorio (“Grantor”), whether one or more, for
and in consideration of the sum of Ten Dollars ($10.00) and other good and valuable
consideration, to Grantor in hand paid by City of Manor, Texas, a Texas home-rule
municipality situated in Travis County, Texas (“Grantee”), the receipt and sufficiency of
which is hereby acknowledged and confessed, and for which no lien or encumbrance,
expressed or implied, is retained, has this day GRANTED, SOLD, and CONVEYED and
by these presents does GRANT, SELL, and CONVEY unto Grantee, a permanent
easement for purposes of construction, reconstruction, operation, maintenance, repair,
upgrade, and/or removal of wastewater lines, facilities, connections therewith, manholes,
vents, and all necessary appurtenances thereto (the “Project”), upon, across, under, and
through all or any portion of the following described property:

A tract of land consisting of 0.5006 acres, more or less, being
more particularly described by metes and bounds and sketch in
the attached Exhibit “A,” hereby incorporated by reference and
made a part hereof for all purposes, with said 0.5006 acre parcel
being referred to hereafter as the Permanent Easement.

In addition to the rights in the Permanent Easement, Grantor also hereby grants
unto Grantee a Temporary Workspace Easement over that certain 25’ wide strip of land
abutting the Permanent Easement to the south being approximately 0.5009 acres in size,
more or less, and being depicted graphically on Exhibit “A” as “25 TEMPORARY
CONSTRUCTION EASEMENT,” for any and all purposes incident to effectuating the
Project, including but not limited to construction staging, equipment storage, temporary
spoil storage, and access. The duration of said Temporary Workspace Easement shall
not exceed twelve (12) months, commencing upon Grantee’s commencement of
excavation for the Project within the Permanent Easement and terminating upon the
earlier of Grantee’s completion of the Project or the expiration of twelve (12) months from
Grantee’s commencement of work, whichever date first occurs. Grantee shall have the
right to utilize all materials excavated from the Permanent Easement during the Project
for uses incident to the Project.

127




Item 5.

The right to use the Easements shall belong to the Grantee and its agents,
employees, designees, contractors, guests, invitees, successors and assigns, and all
those acting by or on behalf of it for the purposes of installation, construction, operation,
maintenance, monitoring, replacement, upgrading, repairing, or removing in whole or in
part, a wastewater pipeline and appurtenances thereto.

Grantee shall have the right to unimpaired ingress and egress, entry and access in,
to, through, on, over, under, and across the Permanent Easement and Temporary
Workspace Easement. Grantee shall promptly repair any damage to any of Grantor’s
existing roads or surface caused by Grantee so as to maintain the roads or surface in as
good as or better condition as existed prior to use by Grantee.

Grantor may use the Easements for any and all purposes not inconsistent with the
purposes set forth in this Agreement, including but not limited to parking, access drives,
landscaping, and lighting. Grantor may not erect permanent building structures within the
Permanent Easement, however, and Grantor may not use any part of the Easements if
such use may otherwise damage, destroy, injure, and/or interfere with Grantee’s use of
the Easements for the purposes for which the Easements are being sought by Grantee, in
Grantee’s sole determination.

Grantor shall retain all the oil, gas, and other minerals in, on and under the
Permanent Easement and Temporary Workspace Easement.

Grantee shall have the right to remove any fence which now crosses or may cross
the Easements during initial construction of the Project. Grantee shall replace all such
fencing or gates with gates or fencing of the same or better quality, type, and dimension
as existed prior to Grantee’s work. :

Grantee agrees that upon completion of construction of the Project, Grantee shall
remove and dispose of all debris, trash, and litter resulting from construction. Grantee
shall be obligated to restore the surface of the Permanent Easement and the Temporary
Workspace Easement area at Grantee’s sole cost and expense as nearly as reasonably
possible in Grantee’s sole determination to the same condition in which the surface was
immediately before initial construction, including the restoration of any fencing, sidewalks,
landscaping, or similar surface improvements located upon or adjacent to the Permanent
Easement which may have been removed, relocated, altered, damaged, or destroyed as
a result of the Grantee’s initial use of the easements granted hereunder, except that
Grantee shall not be obligated to replace trees or vegetation other than groundcover.

This Agreement shall be interpreted in accordance with the laws of the state of
Texas and all applicable federal laws (without regard to any conflicts-of-law rule or principle
that would require the application of same to the laws of another jurisdiction).

This Agreement contains the entire agreement and supersedes any and all prior
oral understandings and/or agreements, if any, concerning the subject of the Agreement.

128




Item 5.

TO HAVE AND TO HOLD the above-described easement, together with all and
singular the rights and appurtenances thereto in anywise belonging unto Grantee, and
Grantee’s heirs, executors, administrators, successors and assigns forever; and Grantor
does hereby bind Grantor, their heirs, executors, administrators, successors and assigns
to WARRANT AND FOREVER DEFEND all and singular the easement unto Grantee and
Grantee’s heirs, executors, administrators, successors and assigns against every person
whomsoever lawfully claiming or to claim the same, or any part thereof, together with the
privilege at any and all times to enter said premises, or any part thereof, for the purpose of
constructing, operating, maintaining, replacing, upgrading and repairing said public
wastewater utility lines, and for making connections therewith.

GRANTOR:

Carlota Nunez Date
Symon Osorio Date
ACCEPTED:

GRANTEE: City of Manor, Texas:

By: Dr. Christopher Harvey, Mayor

129




Item 5.

***** NOTARY ACKNOWLEDGEMENTS *****

THE STATE OF TEXAS §
§
COUNTY OF TRAVIS §

The foregoing instrument was executed before me by Carlota Nunez and husband,
Symon Osorio on this the day of , 2023,

Notary Public-State of Texas

THE STATE OF TEXAS §
§
COUNTY OF TRAVIS §

BEFORE ME, the undersigned authority, a Notary Public in and for said County and
State, on this the day of 2023, personally appeared
Dr. Christopher Harvey, Mayor of City of Manor, Grantee herein, known to me to be the
person whose name is subscribed to the foregoing instrument, and acknowledged that he
executed the same for the purposes and consideration therein expressed and in the capacity
therein stated.

Notary Public-State of Texas

Project Name: Cottonwood Creek West Tributary Wastewater Project
Parcel No. 9
TCAD PID No.: 547904

AFTER RECORDING RETURN TO:
City of Manor

105 E. Eggleston

Manor, Texas 78653

130




Item 6.

AGENDA ITEM NO. 6

TciITY OF

MANOR

\} EST. 1872

AGENDA ITEM SUMMARY FORM

PROPOSED MEETING DATE: May 17, 2023
PREPARED BY: Scott Moore, City Manager
DEPARTMENT: Administration

AGENDA ITEM DESCRIPTION:

Consideration, discussion, and possible action on an Interlocal Agreement Between Manor Independent School
District and the City of Manor for the Summer Library Program.

BACKGROUND/SUMMARY:

The Interlocal Agreement will allow the City of Manor to support the Summer Library Program at multiple Manor
Independent School District facilities. The ILA will support MISD paid coordinators to manage each school library
facility as well as the planned family events during the evening. The ILA will support the coordination of the Food
Service Division to provide free breakfast and lunches at each location. The ILA will support 400 youth during the
months of June and July to help the students increase their literacy and provide them with a safe program
environment and healthy meals in a supervised setting. Supporting this ILA will position to create other avenues
to work with the school district on other initiatives that will build an inclusive community environment for the
students and their families. Supporting the Summer Library programs through this ILA will achieve outcomes that
increase literacy and become a foundation for the City of Manor to work collaboratively with the school district
in the future.

LEGAL REVIEW: Yes
FISCAL IMPACT: No
PRESENTATION: No
ATTACHMENTS: Yes

e Interlocal Agreement

STAFF RECOMMENDATION:

Staff recommends City Council approve the Interlocal Agreement Between Manor Independent School District
and the City of Manor and authorize the City Manager to negotiate a final agreement and execute the final
agreement.

PLANNING & ZONING COMMISSION: Recommend Approval Disapproval None

131




County of Travis §
State of Texas §

INTERLOCAL AGREEMENT
BETWEEN
MANOR INDEPENDENT SCHOOL DISTRICT AND THE CITY OF MANOR

This Interlocal Agreement (the “Agreement”) is entered into as of this day of

20 , by and between the City of Manor, a Texas home-rule municipality

(the “City”), and the Manor Independent School District, a political subdivision of the State of

Texas (the “School District”). In this Agreement, the City and the School District are sometimes
individually referred to as “Party” and collectively referred to as “Parties”.

WHEREAS, Chapter 791 of the Texas Government Code, as amended, entitled Interlocal
Cooperation Contracts, authorizes contracts between political subdivisions for the performance of
governmental functions and services;

WHEREAS, on May 3, 2023, the Manor City Council (the “City Council”) approved
allocating up to $61,000.00 for a summer library program within the City (the “Summer Library
Program);

WHEREAS, the City and the School District desire to establish terms and conditions under
which the City and the School District will collaborate to provide the Sumer Library Program for
the City’s youth.

NOW THEREFORE, in consideration of the mutual covenants contained herein and
pursuant to the Interlocal Cooperation Act Texas Government Code, Chapter 791, the City and the
School District hereby agree to the terms and conditions for the Summer Library Program set forth
in this Agreement.

ARTICLE 1
PURPOSE AND TERM

Section 1.1. Purpose. The purpose of this Agreement is to establish the terms and
conditions under which the City and School District will collaborate for the administration of the
Summer Library Program for residents within the City’s corporate limits and extraterritorial
jurisdiction. It is the intent of the governing bodies of the City and the School District to enable
the School District to conduct a Summer Library Program accessible to the youth of the City during
the summer to increase literacy and their families; and coordination with the School District’s
Food Service Division to provide free meals.

Section 1.2. Term. The period for performance of this Agreement shall commence on June
1, 2023 and will end on July 31, 2023.

Item 6.

132




ARTICLE 11
RESPONSIBILITIES OF THE PARTIES

Section 2.1. Responsibilities of the City. The City assumes the following responsibilities:

a.

b.

Providing funding not to exceed the amount of $61,000.00 as reimbursement
for personnel costs (salary and fringe) for librarians, assistant librarians, food
service personnel, and bus drivers; and

Making payments within thirty (30) days of receipt of approved invoices.

Section 2.2. Responsibilities of the School District. The School District assumes the
following responsibilities:

a.

Hiring librarians and assistant librarians (as needed); food service personnel (as
needed), and bus drivers (as needed);

Purchasing food and food supplies as needed for breakfast and lunches to serve
approximately 400 youth during the term of the Agreement;

Purchasing supplies for youth activities (as needed);

Opening four (4) campus libraries (at Blake Manor Elementary, Presidential
Meadows Elementary, Lagos Elementary School and ShadowGlen Elementary)
four (4) days (Monday — Thursday ) each week for twenty-three (23) days in
the summer (between June 12 — July 27);

Hosting at each campus library listed above six (6) family events during the
evening;

Creating programs and activities for youth of all ages by the librarians and/or
assistant librarians; and

Coordinating with the School District’s Food Service to provide free breakfast
and lunch.

Section 2.3. Additional Responsibilities of the School District. The School District shall
also collect and share with the City the following at the end of the term of this Agreement:

a.

b.

The number of students served by the Summer Library Program; and

The number of families served by the Summer Library Program.

Item 6.

133




ARTICLE III
MISCELLANEOUS PROVISIONS

Section 3.1. Entire Agreement. This Agreement contains the complete and entire
agreement between the parties respecting the matters addressed herein, and supersedes all prior
negotiations, agreements, representations, and understandings, if any, between the parties
respecting such matters. No oral statements or prior written material not specifically incorporated
in this Agreement shall be of any force or effect. The parties agree that in entering into this
Agreement they have relied solely upon the representations and agreements contained in this
Agreement and no others. Any consent, waiver, approval, or authorization under this Agreement
shall be effective if signed by the party granting or making such consent, waiver, approval, or
authorization.

Section 3.2. Interpretation. The singular form of any word used in this Agreement includes
the plural, and vice-versa, unless the context requires otherwise. The use of a word of any gender
in this Agreement includes all other genders unless the context requires otherwise. This Agreement
and all of the terms and provisions hereof shall be construed to effectuate the purposes
contemplated hereby and to sustain the validity hereof.

Section 3.3. Notice. All notices required to be in writing will be deemed to be delivered
when (i) deposited in the U.S. Mail as certified mail, return receipt requested; (ii) transferred to a
mail, package delivery service for next day delivery; or (iv) hand-delivered to the offices named
below at the address set forth below with a signed and dated receipt. When mailed, delivered
delivery service, the notice shall be addressed to the party at the address set forth below the party's
respective names below, or at such other address or as may be specified from time to time by
written notice delivered in accordance with this Section.

Any notice delivered to the School District under this Section shall be addressed:

Manor Independent School District
Attn: Superintendent

10335 US Hwy 290 E,

Manor, Texas 78653

with a copy to:

Attn:

Any notice delivered to the City under this Section shall be addressed:

City of Manor

Attn: City Manager
105 E. Eggleston Street
Manor, Texas 78653

Item 6.

134




with a copy to:
The Knight Law Firm, LLP
Attn: Paige Saenz
223 West Anderson Lane, Suite A-105
Austin, Texas 78752

Section 3.4. Invalid Provisions. If any clause, sentence, provision, paragraph, section, or
article of this Agreement is held by a court of competent jurisdiction to be invalid, illegal, or
ineffective, that invalidity, illegality, or ineffectiveness shall not impair, invalidate, or nullify the
remainder of this Agreement; and its effect shall be confined to the clause, sentence provisions,
paragraph, section, or article held to be invalid, illegal, or ineffective.

Section 3.5. Third Party Beneficiaries. Nothing in this Agreement, express or implied, is
intended to confer any benefits, rights, or remedies under or by reason of this Agreement upon any
person other than the parties to this Agreement and their respective successor governmental
entities. No assignment of this Agreement or of any right, duty, or obligation of performance under
this Agreement, in whole or in part, shall be effective unless such assignment is approved in
writing by both the School District and the City.

Section 3.6. Saturday. Sunday. or Legal Holiday. Ifany date set forth in this Agreement
for the performance of any obligation or for the delivery of any instrument should be a Saturday,

Sunday, or legal holiday, compliance with such obligation or delivery shall be acceptable if
performed on the next working day following the Saturday, Sunday, or legal holiday. For the
purpose of this Section, a "legal holiday" means a state or federal holiday on which financial
institutions or post offices in Travis County, Texas, are generally closed; and any holiday on which
the business offices of the School District or the City are not open to the public.

Section 3.7. Recitals, Schedules and Exhibits. All recitals, schedules, or exhibits referred
to in this Agreement are incorporated into this Agreement by reference for all purposes as if set
forth at length and shall be deemed to be a part of this Agreement.

Section 3.8. No Joint Venture, Partnership. Agency. Etc. This Agreement shall not be
construed as in any way establishing a partnership or joint venture, express or implied agency, or

employer-employee relationship between the parties hereto.

Section 3.9. No Waiver. No consent or waiver, express or implied, by a party to or of any
default of any covenant or provision of this Agreement by the other party shall be construed as a
consent to or a waiver of any other default of the same or any other covenant or provision of this
Agreement.

Section 3.10. Applicable Law. This Agreement shall be governed by and construed in
accordance with the laws of the State of Texas.

Section 3.11. Headings. The headings used in this Agreement are used for reference and
shall not be used to interpret or limit the meaning of any provision of this Agreement.

Item 6.

135




Section 3.12. Parties Bound. This Agreement shall be binding upon and inure to the benefit
of the parties hereto and their respective administrators, legal representatives, and successor
governmental entities.

Section 3.13. Modification Procedure. Any modification, amendment, or alteration of this
Agreement shall only be effective and binding if the modification, amendment, or alteration is in
writing and signed by the duly authorized representative of each party.

Section 3.14. Counterparts. This Agreement may be executed simultaneously in one or
more counterparts, each of which shall be deemed an original and all of which shall together
constitute one and the same instrument.

Section 3.15. Successor Entities. Any reference to any governmental entity, governmental
department, or governmental official or employee shall include any succeeding governmental
entity, governmental department, or governmental official or employee assuming the
responsibility or function described by this Agreement.

Section 3.16. Dispute Resolution. Except when a party believes that a risk of irreparable
harm exists, the City Manager and the School District Superintendent or their designees shall

attempt to resolve disputes prior to the institution of litigation.

[signature pages follow]

Item 6.

136




Item 6.

IN WITNESS WHEREOF, we have hereunto set our hands as of the date appearing next

to each signature.

ATTEST:

CITY OF MANOR, TEXAS,
a municipal corporation

Lluvia T. Almaraz, City Secretary

APPROVED AS TO FORM:

Veronica Rivera
Assistant City Attorney

Scott Moore, City Manager

Date:

137




ATTEST:

, Board Secretary

MANOR INDEPENDENT SCHOOL DISTRICT,
an independent school district and political
subdivision of the State of Texas

, Superintendent

Date:

Item 6.

138




Iltem 7.

AGENDA ITEM NO. 7

CITY OF

MANOR

1} EST. ﬁ{ 1872
§ ' TEXAS

AGENDA ITEM SUMMARY FORM

PROPOSED MEETING DATE: May 17, 2023
PREPARED BY: Scott Dunlop, Director
DEPARTMENT: Development Services

AGENDA ITEM DESCRIPTION:

First Reading: Consideration, discussion, and possible action on an Ordinance rezoning five (5) lots on .23 acres,
more or less, out of the South 40 ft of Lots 6-10, Block 1, AE Lanes Addition, and being located at 707 Bastrop St,
Manor, TX from Single-Family Suburban (SF-1) to Two-Family Residential (TF).

Applicant: Saavy ATX Realty LLC

Owner: Wenkai Chen

BACKGROUND/SUMMARY:

This is a narrow (40’) but deep (250°) lot on North Bastrop Street. Sometime in the 1980s, or possibly even 1950’s,
the 5 lots on West Lane Ave were broken up and the back 40’ of each lot was sold to create this 40’ x 250’ lot. Its
unique size and shape makes it more challenging to develop but the applicant is seek to rezone it from Single
Family Suburban (SF-1) to Two-Family (TF) to be able to place a two-family building on the property. The lot meets
the minimum lot size for a Two-Family lot, it’s 10,000 sf while the minimum is 8,750 sf, however the narrowness
of the lot will require a variance when it is platted to the lot width and setbacks to make development feasible.
These variances would be necessary even if the property remained zoned SF-1.

The Comprehensive Plan’s Future Land Use Map has this general area as Community Mixed-Use which generally
seeks higher densities, but given the character of the neighborhood and unique lot size, a two-family dwelling unit
would be appropriate and achieve some of the goals of the Plan including: LU2 — encourage a range of product
types and lot sizes, ED14 — encourage diverse housing in terms of type and affordability to align with workforce
needs, LU.A —encourage a balanced mix of residential, commercial, and employment uses at varying densities and
intensities to reflect gradual transition from urban to suburban to rural development, LU.B — promote more
compact, higher density, well-connected development within appropriate infill locations, LU 1 — encourage
innovative forms of compact, pedestrian friendly development and wider array of affordable housing choices
through smart regulatory provisions and incentives, DU 11 —increase development of housing units close to multi-
modal infrastructure and mixed-use developments, including in Downtown.

P&Z held the public hearing and discussed how the structure would impact surrounding homes, use of the alley,
and the architectural detailing. They wanted to see better renderings of the structure and the property owner
agreed to provide those. They postponed action on this item (5-0) to their May 10" meeting.

This item was postponed for a second time at the May 10" P&Z as the applicant was still working with the architect
on a rendering. If this item is not ready by June’s P&Z it will be pulled and re-notified.

139




LEGAL REVIEW:
FISCAL IMPACT:
PRESENTATION:
ATTACHMENTS:

e Ordinance

e Letter of intent
e Rezone Map

e Aerial Image

STAFF RECOMMENDATION:

Not Applicable
No
No
Yes

Iltem 7.

Conceptual Layout
FLUM

Public Notice
Mailing Labels

It is the city staff’s recommendation that the City Council postpone item to the June 21 Regular Council Meeting.

PLANNING & ZONING COMMISSION:

Recommend Approval Disapproval None

X-postpone

140




ORDINANCE NO.

AN ORDINANCE OF THE CITY OF MANOR, TEXAS, AMENDING THE
ZONING ORDINANCE BY REZONING A PARCEL OF LAND FROM
SINGLE FAMILY SUBURBAN (SF-1) TO TWO FAMILY (TF); MAKING
FINDINGS OF FACT; AND PROVIDING FOR RELATED MATTERS.

Whereas, the owner of the property described hereinafter (the "Property") has requested that
the Property be rezoned;

Whereas, after giving ten days written notice to the owners of land within three hundred feet
of the Property, the Planning & Zoning Commission held a public hearing on the proposed rezoning
and forwarded its recommendation on the rezoning to the City Council;

Whereas, after publishing notice of the public at least fifteen days prior to the date of such
hearing, the City Council at a public hearing has reviewed the request and the circumstances of the
Property and finds that a substantial change in circumstances of the Property, sufficient to warrant a
change in the zoning of the Property, has transpired,;

NOW, THEREFORE, BE IT ORDAINED BY THE CITY COUNCIL OF THE CITY OF
MANOR, TEXAS, THAT:

Section 1. Findings. The foregoing recitals are hereby found to be true and correct and are
hereby adopted by the City Council and made a part hereof for all purposes as findings of fact.

Section 2. Amendment of Ordinance. City of Manor Code of Ordinances Chapter 14
Zoning Ordinance ("Zoning Ordinance™ or "Code"), is hereby modified and amended by rezoning the
Property as set forth in Section 3.

Section 3. Rezoned Property. The Zoning Ordinance is hereby amended by changing the
zoning district for the land and parcel of property described in Exhibit “A” (the “Property”), from
Single Family Suburban (SF-1) to zoning district Two-Family (TF). The Property is accordingly
hereby rezoned to Two Family (TF).

Section 4. Open Meetings. That it is hereby officially found and determined that the meeting
at which this ordinance is passed was open to the public as required and that public notice of the time,
place, and purpose of said meeting was given as required by the Open Meetings Act, Chapt. 551,
Texas Gov't. Code.

Iltem 7.

141




ORDINANCE NO. Page 2

PASSED AND APPROVED FIRST READING on this the 17" day of May 2023,
PASSED AND APPROVED SECOND AND FINAL READING onthisthe ___day of May 2023.

THE CITY OF MANOR, TEXAS

Dr. Christopher Harvey,
Mayor
ATTEST:

Lluvia T. Almaraz, TRMC
City Secretary

Iltem 7.

142




ORDINANCE NO. Page 3
EXHIBIT “A”

Property Address:
707 North Bastrop Street, Manor, TX 78653

Property Legal Description:
The South forty (40) feet of Lots 6, 7, 8, 9 and 10, Block 1, A.E. Lane’s Addition to the Town of

Manor, according to the map or plat thereof, recorded in VVolume 2, Page 223, Plat Records, Travis
County, Texas.

Iltem 7.

143




Letter of Intent

March 12, 2023
City of Manor
Development Services Department
Attn: Mr. Scott Dunlop, Director
105 E. Eggleston Street
Manor, Texas 78653

Re: 707 BASTROP ST TX 78653
Dear Mr. Dunlop,
We are writing to you to zone the subject property to TF.

The subject property 707 Bastrop ST TX 78653, Legal description as: S40FT OF LOT 6-10 BLK 1
LANE A E ADDN. The current configuration is 39.94 ft wide and 250 ft long, with a total of 9,986 sqft.

We are requesting to:
1. Zoneitas TF (Two-Family) — currently it doesn’t have zoning assigned ( (per zoning map
downloaded from https://www.cityofmanor.org/), see below. Since the total lot size is 9,986 sqft, we are
proposing the property to TF (Two Family) in support the growth of Manor TX.

Subject Property: 707 BASTROP ST TX 78653

Please see below conceptual design of the proposed TF (duplex).

Item 7.

144



https://www.cityofmanor.org/

Please help to grant these requests and let me know if you have any questions.

Respectfully,

Katherine Chen
Savvy ATX Realty

Item 7.

145




abue reuonmusul - z-1 [
~N ri3a llews jeuonniisu - L-| >
| 5 |eawnpeued-and 7/,  swoH pemoemuen - L-HW A ﬂ -_- v _ _ we m =OM -_-
3
- elysnpu| AnesH - z- A -1 -7
tewsnpu Aneen - z-NI [ sz Anwe-mnp - z-an [ "“v@mogo.h&
leuysnpu| 61T - L-NI g1 Anwed-mni - -4 [
ssauisng umoyumo( - ga I sWwoyuMol - H1 I
ssauisng pooyloqyubian - gN I Aweg om| - 41 I
ferosowwod AnesH - ¢-O [l prepuers Alwes ofuis-z-4s |
[e1oIswwod E:__uos_.N.oI ueqingng Ajiwed s|buls - |-4S A —\ - H_ w v C m Q .h 3 Q 3 m > _ _ E m H_ m _ @ C _ w
lersawwo) 61T - -0 leanynouby - v ” H. C m .h .h 3 O
soyo eseuen - 09 [ auoz

J

06¢ Gl O

}S dosyseg "N 202
:Auadoud yo9lgng




Untitled Map pra T | e AR B Legend
3 ey = ot 2 - [ 707 M Ba
CITY OF h
¢ Future Dental
® MMURPHY

Write a description for your map.

-

P O/aNIBEtiopStreet

Google Earth e B




2/28/2023 7:45:06 PM

TWO-STORY
RESIDENCE "B"

UNIT "B"

UNIT "A"

@ 3D AXONOMETRIC EXHIBIT

TWO-STORY
RESIDENCE "A"

CONCEPT SITE PLAN INFORMATION:

@ SITE PLAN
1" = 10!_0“

LOT SIZE:

BUILDING COVER:
UNIT "A":

UNIT "B":

TOTAL:

PAVED AREA:
DRIVEWAY:
SIDEWALK:
TOTAL:

TOTAL IMPERVIOUS COVER:
IMPERVIOUS COVER %:

PRINCIPAL STRUCTURE %:
PRINCIPAL/ACCESSORY %:

CONCEPT SITE PLAN

9,986 SF

1,500 SF
1,500 SF
3,000 SF

2,131 SF
382 SF
2,513 SF

5,513 SF
55.2%

15%
30%

INTERIM
REVIEW DOCUMENTS
NOT FOR REGULATORY
APPROVAL, PERMITTING
OR CONSTRUCTION
Daniel B. Shearer
Tx. Reg. No. 26562

2.28.2023

CIRCLE + SQUARE
14th Floor
Austin, Texas
214.280.3627

600 Congress Avenue

PROJECT OWNER
Katherine Chen

PROJECT NAME
707 N. Bastrop St
Manor, Texas 78653

COMMENTS:

2.28.2023

ARCHITECTURAL
SITE PLAN

A-100 148




COMMUNITY MIXED-USE

The Community Mixed-Use allows a
combination of dense residential and
nonresidential uses in a compact design to
create a walkable environment, but at a larger
scale than Neighborhood Mixed-Use.

The category encourages a density range of 18-
40 dwelling units per acre, although elements
within a coordinated community mixed-use
area could reach higher densities provided
superior access to services and amenities and
appropriate compatibility to adjacent uses is
provided.

Community Mixed-Use areas allow residential
units in close proximity to goods, services and
civic activities, reducing residents’ dependence
on the car.

Community Mixed-Use places a great emphasis
on the following design elements: density,
intensity and scale; the mix of housing;
walkability; streetscapes and a high quality
public realm; parking management; and access
to amenities such as parks, civic spaces and
neighborhood services.

This district is especially appropriate for several
needs that residents of Manor currently look
elsewhere to provide, including:

* Healthcare services, including hospitals.

» Larger employers in a variety of industries
that residents currently commute to
outside of Manor.

» Specialized facilities that support workforce
and skills development, such as information
technology, skilled trades and advanced
manufacturing; provided such facilities fit
the form described above.

78 Destination Manor 2050 Comprehensive Plan

Development
Ratio

= Nonres.

Avg. 21 jobs/acre

Residential

Figure 3.9. Community Mixed-Use Land Use Mix Dashboard

Residential
Development Types

20% 20%

SFD
SFA
= Small MF

= | arge ME
60%

18 to 40 units per acre
Higher densities considered
conditionally (see description)

Medium
High in some circumstances

40%

Iltem 7.

Nonresidential
Development Types
10%

= Retail
Office
= [ndustrial

Other
50%

Low/Mid-Rise

149




Iltem 7.

DEVELOPMENT TYPE APPROPRIATENESS CONDITIONS

Single-Family Detached
(SED)

®O000

SFD + ADU

®O000O

SFA, Duplex

®O000

Not considered appropriate since the intent is to provide retail, services, activity centers and diversified
housing to support surrounding neighborhoods, achieve strong fiscal performance, and drive community
identity and gathering.

SFA, Townhomes and De-
tached Missing Middle

0000 0

Apartment House (3-4
units)

0000 0

Small Multifamily (8-12
units)

0000 0

This can be appropriate provided that the overall Community Mixed-Use area also contains mixed-use
buildings and/or shopping centers with which this product integrates in a manner to promote walkability
and access. Can be utilized as a transition between Community Mixed-Use and other uses. These develop-
ment types should be located on secondary roads rather than primary thoroughfares, as primary frontages
are best reserved for ground-floor retail and services.

Large Multifamily (12+

units) 00600

Mixed-Use Urban, Neigh- 00000 This is the ideal form of development within the Community Mixed Use category; provides for activity
borhood Scale centers, retail, services and diverse housing options. Design should emphasize the pedestrian experience

Mixed-Use Urban, Com-
munity Scale

rather than people driving automobiles. Vertical mixed-use is likely most appropriate, in order to achieve
the intended densities. Ground floor uses are encouraged to be food and beverage or pedestrian-oriented
retail and services, to promote foot traffic and activity.

Shopping Center, Neigh-
borhood Scale

00000

Shopping Center, Commu-
nity Scale

00000

While less preferred, this use can provide retail and services near housing, promoting walkability and
10-minute neighborhoods. Becomes more appropriate if a horizontal approach to mixed-use is deployed.

Light Industrial Flex Space

00000

Not generally considered appropriate due to lower sales tax generation and limited ability to design at pe-
destrian scale, but can be if particularly small-scale and included alongside more appropriate development
types, or with integration of a storefront experience.

Manufacturing Q@O0O000 Not considered appropriate.

Civic 00000 Considered supportlvle to thei functlon and hvabllllt.y of this future land use category, government buildings,
schools and community facilities can serve as activity hubs.

Parks and Open Space 00000 Generally considered appropriate or compatible within all Land Use Categories.

Land Use and Development Let




3/27/2023

City of Manor Development Services

Notification for a Subdivision Rezoning Application

Project Name: 707 Bastrop St Rezoning SF-1 to TF
Case Number: 2023-P-1523-Z0

Case Manager: Michael Burrell

Contact: mburrell@manortx.gov — 512-215-8158

The City of Manor Planning and Zoning Commission and City Council will be conducting a
Regularly Scheduled meeting for the purpose of considering and acting upon on a Rezoning
Application for 707 Bastrop Street, Manor, TX. The request will be posted on the agenda as
follows:

Public Hearing: Conduct a public hearing on Rezoning Application for five (5) lots on .23 acres,
more or less, out of the South 40 ft of Lots 6-10, Block 1, AE Lanes Addition, and being located
at 707 Bastrop St, Manor, TX from Single-Family Suburban (SF-1) to Two-Family Residential
(TF).

Applicant: SAVVY ATX REALTY LIMITED LIABILITY COMPANY

Owner: Wenkai Chen

The Planning and Zoning Commission will meet at 6:30PM on April 12, 2023 at 105 East
Eggleston Street in the City Hall Council Chambers.

The Manor City Council will meet at 7:00 PM on April 19, 2023 at 105 East Eggleston Street in
the City Hall Council Chambers.

You are being notified because you own property within 300 feet of the property for which
this Subdivision Rezoning Application has been filed. Comments may be addressed to the
email address or phone number above. Any communications received will be made available
to the Commissioners during the discussion of this item.

105 E. EGGLESTON STREET * P.O. Box 387 ® MANOR, TEXAS 78653
(T) 512.272.5555 » (F) 512.272.8636 * www.CITYOFMANOR.ORG

Iltem 7.

151



mailto:mburrell@manortx.gov

MARTINEZ ORALIA
1301 CHICON ST 303
AUSTIN TX 78702-2154

JASMIN SHAKESPEARE & LINDA
PO BOX 455 MANOR TX 78653-0455

GUERRERO JOSE
& MAXIMINA CLEMENS
307 W TOWNES ST
MANOR TX 78653-2107

LOZANO BENJAMIN KEEF
8005 Briarwood Ln
Austin TX 78757-8111

TREJO GERARDO &
JENNIFER | BARAHONA DE TREJO
801 CALDWELL ST
MANOR TX 78653-3318

GARCIA EDWARD
PO BOX 452
MANOR TX 78653-0452

JOHNSON ONNIE MAE LIFE ESTATE
PO BOX 228
MANOR TX 78653-0228

CERON AMPARO PATRICIA C & MIGUEL

ANEL CASTILLO MENDIETA
305 W TOWNES ST
MANOR TX 78653-2107

ECKART STEPHEN
PO BOX 170309
AUSTIN TX 78717-0019

ROMERO RONALDO & ANTONIA
5808 HERON DR
BUDA TX US 78610

SEPECO
PO BOX 170309
AUSTIN TX 78717-0019

RIVER CITY PARTNERS LTD
501 E KOENIG LN
AUSTIN TX 78751-1426

ROBINSON WALTER L

& CURTIS ROBINSON

3608 EAGLES NEST ST
ROUND ROCK TX 78665-1131

MANOR INDEPENDENT SCHOOL
DISTR DISTRICT
PO BOX 359
MANOR TX 78653-0359

Iltem 7.

PAZ NAUL MAURICIO & ZOILA MORE
1116 CANYON MAPLE RD
PFLUGERVILLE TX 78660-5808

JACKSON BONNIE & VSYNTHIA
LENA MCCOY
PO BOX 985
MANOR TX 78653-0985

FORREST DELORES M
3262 KESTRAL WAY
SACRAMENTO CA 95833-9616

BARRS PHYLLISY & SANDRA V

& S MCCARTHER LIFE ESTATE
13604 HARRIS RIDGE BLVD UNIT A

PFLUGERVILLE TX 78660-8892

SHAW HUGHIE L & RUBY L
8808 CINCH LN # 1060
AUSTIN TX 78724-5011

LUNA BENITA GONZALEZ
802 N BASTROP ST
MANOR TX 78653-5430

TURMAN THOMAS M
21609 UNION LEE CHURCH RD
MANOR TX 78653-5329

152




Item 8.

AGENDA ITEM NO. 8

CITY OF

MANOR

EST. ‘*’ 1872

AGENDA ITEM SUMMARY FORM

PROPOSED MEETING DATE: May 17, 2023
PREPARED BY: Scott Dunlop, Director
DEPARTMENT: Development Services

AGENDA ITEM DESCRIPTION:

First Reading: Consideration, discussion, and possible action on an ordinance rezoning one (1) lot on 1.069 acres,
more or less, out of the Gates G Survey 63, Abstract 315 and being located at 13500 FM 973, Manor, TX from
Industrial Light (IN-1) to Commercial Light (C-1).

Applicant: Henry Juarez

Owner: Henry Juarez

BACKGROUND/SUMMARY:

This property was annexed on April 20, 2016, and zoned Light Industrial (IN-1) also on April 20, 2016. At the time
the adjacent 40-acre property was zoned Light Industrial, and this 1-acre tract was intended to be a contractor’s
shop for a plumbing company that occupies the site. The adjacent 40-acre tract was rezoned to Institutional Large
(I-2) on September 1, 2021, for the MISD K-8 Campus. The Comprehensive Plan has the majority of the portion of
N. FM 973 south of Gregg Lane as Commercial Corridor or Community Mixed-Use, both which align with the uses
in the requested Light Commercial C-1 zoning category.

P&Z voted 7-0 to recommend approval.

LEGAL REVIEW: Not Applicable
FISCAL IMPACT: No
PRESENTATION: No
ATTACHMENTS: Yes
e Ordinance e Preliminary Site Layout
e Letter of Intent e FLUM
e Rezoning map e Commercial Corridor Dashboard
e Aerial Image e Community Mixed-Use Dashboard

e Notice and Mailing Labels

STAFF RECOMMENDATION:

It is the City Staff’s recommendation that the City Council approve a first reading of an ordinance rezoning one (1)
lot on 1.069 acres, more or less, out of the Gates G Survey 63, Abstract 315 and being located at 13500 FM 973,
Manor, TX from Industrial Light (IN-1) to Commercial Light (C-1).

PLANNING & ZONING COMMISSION: Recommend Approval Disapproval None
X

153




ORDINANCE NO.

AN ORDINANCE OF THE CITY OF MANOR, TEXAS, AMENDING THE
ZONING ORDINANCE BY REZONING A PARCEL OF LAND FROM
LIGHT INDUSTRIAL (IN-1) TO LIGHT COMMERCIAL (C-1); MAKING
FINDINGS OF FACT; AND PROVIDING FOR RELATED MATTERS.

Whereas, the owner of the property described hereinafter (the "Property") has requested that
the Property be rezoned;

Whereas, after giving ten days written notice to the owners of land within three hundred feet
of the Property, the Planning & Zoning Commission held a public hearing on the proposed rezoning
and forwarded its recommendation on the rezoning to the City Council;

Whereas, after publishing notice of the public at least fifteen days prior to the date of such
hearing, the City Council at a public hearing has reviewed the request and the circumstances of the
Property and finds that a substantial change in circumstances of the Property, sufficient to warrant a
change in the zoning of the Property, has transpired,;

NOW, THEREFORE, BE IT ORDAINED BY THE CITY COUNCIL OF THE CITY OF
MANOR, TEXAS, THAT:

Section 1. Findings. The foregoing recitals are hereby found to be true and correct and are
hereby adopted by the City Council and made a part hereof for all purposes as findings of fact.

Section 2. Amendment of Ordinance. City of Manor Code of Ordinances Chapter 14
Zoning Ordinance ("Zoning Ordinance™ or "Code"), is hereby modified and amended by rezoning the
Property as set forth in Section 3.

Section 3. Rezoned Property. The Zoning Ordinance is hereby amended by changing the
zoning district for the land and parcel of property described in Exhibits “A” (the “Property”), from
Light Industrial (IN-1) to zoning district Light Commercial (C-1). The Property is accordingly hereby
rezoned to Light Commercial (C-1).

Section 4. Open Meetings. That it is hereby officially found and determined that the meeting
at which this ordinance is passed was open to the public as required and that public notice of the time,
place, and purpose of said meeting was given as required by the Open Meetings Act, Chapt. 551,
Texas Gov't. Code.

Item 8.

154




ORDINANCE NO. Page 2

PASSED AND APPROVED FIRST READING on this the 17" day of May 2023,
PASSED AND APPROVED SECOND AND FINAL READING onthisthe ___day of June 2023.

THE CITY OF MANOR, TEXAS

Dr. Christopher Harvey,
Mayor
ATTEST:

Lluvia T. Almaraz, TRMC
City Secretary

Item 8.

155




ORDINANCE NO. Page 3
EXHIBIT “A”
Property Address: 13500 N. FM 973 Manor, TX 78653
Property Legal Description:

1.069 acres of land more or less, being all of that certain 1.062 acres of land of the Greenbury Gates
Survey No. 63, Travis County, Texas as conveyed to Michael and James Paclik Jr. by warranty
deed recorded in Document Number 2013171610, Official Pubic Records, Travis County, Texas;
more particularly described by metes and bounds as follows:

BEGINNING at an iron rod with cap in the west right-of-way of F.M. 973 at the S.E. corner of that
certain 1.062 acres of land recorded in Document Number 2013171610, Official Public Records,
Travis County, Texas; for the S.E. corner hereof, from which point a spindle found on the east right-
of-way of F.M. 973 bears S 58° 26’ 39” E at a distance of 40.44 feet;

THENCE N 62° 05 04” W for a distance of 189.74 feet to a 14" iron rod found for the S.W. corner
hereof;

THENCE N 28° 08’ 03” E for a distance of 247.31 feet to a %4 iron rod found for the N.W. corner
hereof;

THENCE S 61° 39’ 20” E for a distance of 188.00 feet to an iron rod with cap found on the west
right-of-way of F.M. 973 for the N.E. corner hereof;

THENCE S 27° 43° 45” W along the west right-of-way of F.M. 973 for a distance of 245.90 feet to
the POINT OF BEGINNING, containing 1.069 acres of land, more or less.

Item 8.

156




April 10, 2023

City Of Manor

Development Services Department
Attn: Mr. Scott Dunlop, Director
105 E. Eggleston Street

Manor, Texas 78653

RE:  Letter of Intent
Rezoning Request — 13500 FM 973

Dear Mr. Dunlop,

Please accept this Letter of Intent for a Rezoning Request for the subject property located at
13500 FM 973 in Manor, Texas 78653. The TCAD Parcel Property ID is 786707, is 1.069 acres
in size, and is legally described as Abstract 315 Survey 63 Gates G Acreage 1.0690 in Travis
County, Texas.

The property is currently zoned IN-1 and we are requesting to change to C-1. The property is
current in use as a plumbing company. The property owner wants to remove the existing
building and construct a new building with parking for restaurant use.

The property is on the border between Public/Semi-Public, Mixed-Density Neighborhood, and
Commercial Corridor future land use as per the City’'s Comprehensive Plan 2050. The
proposed restaurant development will follow City of Manor's vision and guidelines for
development in that area and will be complementary to the existing and future neighborhoods.

Please feel free to contact me at (512) 576-4399 or at juarezje@gmail.com if you have any
questions or require additional information.

Respectfully submitted,

Henry Juarez
Development Consultant

Item 8.

157




Item 8.

T T
§ % Moy o

S
S
%o, S S
T ﬁ@ SAS
". oy “* TV S/ "’/"

Uyl S/
oS S @

N
S
S

U
B

Nq vy

)

sy
Sy /
775\

Jjﬁfs G
g RR
Gg e/ / //(
==
SN

1]
G TERe, %
QLA
LD #
R,

==E/E

7/
0 375 750 1,500

Feetoo HWY WB

| E US 290 HWY EB

i

. Zone - GO - General Office
C u r r e n t - A - Agricultural C-1 - Light Commercial
L | g h t I n d us t r | a I ( I N - 1 ) SF-1 - Single Family Suburban [ C-2 - Medium Commercial
SF-2 - Single Family Standard - C-3 - Heavy Commercial
- TF - Two Family - NB - Neighborhood Business
[ TH-Townhome Il 0B - Downtown Business
P ro p ose d . I MF-1 - Multi-Family 15 IN-1 - Light Industrial
. . I VF-2 - Multi-Family 25 Il N-2 - Heavy Industrial
L | g h t C ommercila I ( C - 1 ) MH-1 - Manufactured Home "/, PUD - Planned Unit
I-1 - Institutional Small ETJ 158
I -2 - institutional Large




13500 FM 973

rite a description far your map.

A,
ey

5 g &ff{ﬁ'{n Eﬁﬁ_ﬁk‘éeping Services,
™ 'b._l- - i -

/1350

oy
JLS#403 ?_5 4

1

i : : % & .
ﬂ: E M?S JE-?: Fﬂu:rﬁﬁ Ine. |

‘l: -

)

Fik

ture 1

-
- M=
il i %

200 ft

¥ UM Plumbing, Inc. MLS#40335

=




Item 8.

160




Item 8.

ot &
$AF9NNN L 93UG
LAYHASY 40 4904
cm_L o&@
PR PR G ININZY 1102 ° _\/_ ° “_
SN
ZQ;?%QMQZMZ&QO 21L430N0D 20 1M 92
= |J// LIVHIOY 0 4904
\n
o AN Y Aoy _ N [ _ o o e e XNSLLRLLLSLSLS L _____
S _. 3
— 06°GH2 M GH.CH L2 6 /%ﬁAWWMW\
..IIS “ \rzw_\,&@x\%wvfs G JW
< W G40Y 46| G| 0-.92 !
o -7t " 1" 1" 1" "> """"""- O i i e
~ . i
A | S (). 1< D L ]
i i 90913 \S¢ i .
_ _ _ ]
- _ | | i
w __O(_Omn__/ m&\_<0® _ | | " _
o8 NV 1d 3116 — Ny —H
_ _ _ ]
X _ _ _ _ ,
= = | | | GBS |4 | ! _ ol
=N G/ GZ " _ - . iz
= {9 i | — — | i >
" > | ! ! | IR =~
WVA _OO/ _Qm _O ) " | _ | " _ _ " "ﬂmuu NOd
0" - _ _ _ _ .
o | — | | — 1 |1 Ul
: | ] ] | e -
o= JAN0D GNOIAIDINT 44604030 & | ar o ! I —~
LAT06 = ¥IN0D SNOIANZIN| 02504034 AVL0L D _ o o | —1
1206 = ANINA/ININIVE 0350403 . O ! ! BN D
% L0 =29Y33N0D INICING 32604034 N N o ! > 5 =
11706 4056 = 9NIOING 03604037 o T = o o T2 T = N
14706 L1°G9S 9L -  ¥9Y 0690°1 - 4716 L0 = S ] . BN N <
*NO1IVWIOINT 1020034 o - 13 S 105’6 o i —
ANAN . | _ | ONIATINgG d3ISOd0dd _ | | _ . O
CLIO-CLL +21G+ | _ o o _ 'S ~
CSLQL SYXFL CIONYN | _ L L _ NS = o
CLb6 W2 N Q0S¢ | — | | N
ﬁi&: G3A3IIN 0 O1AN0  :IZNMO > | | —— —— | —i N S
. S | ! ! | LN
D LOL9QL A ALIA24038 ° _ | _ _ _ _ _% _ _ _ w
OV 0690°1 - M0V o N | | R o
. 9 631Y¥9 €9 JNS SIC 69V © mmw_ o o < al ;
— 5 . = | - S | )
N ALINNOD GIAYSL G0N002Y 0290 <0191L1C102 33GNNN " ST | S| >
= 5 O INZWND00 NI 09030023 0240 AINYIIYM AQ m SISY L Sk 5
A B NNNIYD GANYD 19YHOIW 0 dFA3ANOD ONYA 40 _ | ) =k i\
ENS NG 6330¥ 290"\ NIV1¥29 LVYHL 20 1Y IN|20 m | o ey A
— * wv. I 66311 M0 2¥0W ONVA 40 6230V 690" | _ /f \\Aw 5 =
0 O\ m...i.*l,. _ _||||||||||||||||IIII|||||||||||||||||||||||||||||||IIII!I_wA L
m % w.l g ZQ_\_\K_MOQ&Q \_<®&\_ _ SIVG LEG 94019, 07 " _ —
~N = @ _ _
ct _
0 . AN AN
1 6GQ092C00Z #0200 i .
5 49119 N211Y e L
¢ ey 2 .¢0.90 8¢ N |
/ \ _
_
Z |
_
\ _
ON | aNn I AVA4J000 D1 A104704  LANNOG2A(11¢ _
_
NO 114130630 | 21v0 |
ENATAVES |
_



Item 8.

162




COMMERCIAL CORRIDOR

Commercial Corridors consist of
nonresidential land uses that meet the needs
of both local and regional residents. This
includes big box stores and multi-tenant
commercial or retail uses.

They are typically located along high volume
roadways or at high volume intersections and
generate large amounts of sales tax revenue.

Commercial corridors often consist of
traditional and suburban commercial
development with large surface parking lots
that front a major roadway or highway.

While it is recognized these corridors rely
upon automobile accessibility and exposure,
development should seek opportunities to
leverage different forms with elements of
mixed-use within the non-residential use
framework. This introduces walkability for

people once they arrive, reducing the number

of trips and increasing the area’s appeal as a
destination.

This district is especially appropriate for
several needs that residents of Manor

currently look elsewhere to provide, including:

» Healthcare services, including hospitals.
» Retail and entertainment.

» Specialized facilities that support
workforce and skills development, such
as information technology, skilled trades
and advanced manufacturing.

72 Destination Manor 2050 Comprehensive Plan

Item 8.

Figure 3.6. Commercial Corridor Land Use Mix Dashboard

Nonresidential
Development Types
10%

Residential

Devel
evelopment Development Types

Ratio

0% 70%

10% = Retail

Residential

10% Office
0

= Nonres. = |[ndustrial

Other

Medium ‘ ‘ Low/Mid-Rise ‘

Avg. 19 jobs/acre ‘

163




Item 8.

DEVELOPMENT TYPE APPROPRIATENESS CONDITIONS

Single-Family Detached
(SFD)

®O000

SFD + ADU

®O00O0

SFA, Duplex

®O000

SFA, Townhomes and De-
tached Missing Middle

®O000

Apartment House (3-4
units)

®O00O0

Small Multifamily (8-12
units)

®O000

Not considered appropriate, as the Commercial Corridors are generally oriented towards uses that rely on
access and visibility to major roadways and highways and residential is not encouraged along the major
roadways and highways for environmental justice and quality of life reasons. The activity and traffic gener-
ated by Commercial Corridor uses is not compatible with residential housing.

Large Multifamily (12+

units) ®O0O00

Mixed-Use Urban, Neigh- 00000 May be nonresidential mixed-use, such as office over retail or some residential can be appropriate if deeper
borhood Scale

Mixed-Use Urban, Com-
munity Scale

0000 0

within a site and less proximate to the major roadways. Residential mixed-use can also be appropriate to
support transition to adjacent, lower density or residential areas. To note, mixed-use buildings are typically
considered the highest fiscally performing development type on a per-acre basis.

Shopping Center, Neigh-
borhood Scale

Shopping Center, Commu-
nity Scale

Appropriate overall.

Light Industrial Flex Space

00000

Not considered appropriate due to limited potential for sales tax revenue generation and lower dependence
on direct exposure to major roadways; can be appropriate if deeper within a site and less proximate to the
major roadways, but should not be predominant use.

Manufacturing [ JOIOI0]0) Not considered appropriate.

Civic 00000 Cons'lfiéred supportive to the function of this future' land use categgr.y; likely more functional facilities, such
as utilities, rather than people-centered or community serving facilities.

Parks and Open Space 00000 Generally considered appropriate or compatible within all Land Use Categories.

164

Land Use and Development




COMMUNITY MIXED-USE

The Community Mixed-Use allows a
combination of dense residential and
nonresidential uses in a compact design to
create a walkable environment, but at a larger
scale than Neighborhood Mixed-Use.

The category encourages a density range of 18-
40 dwelling units per acre, although elements
within a coordinated community mixed-use
area could reach higher densities provided
superior access to services and amenities and
appropriate compatibility to adjacent uses is
provided.

Community Mixed-Use areas allow residential
units in close proximity to goods, services and
civic activities, reducing residents’ dependence
on the car.

Community Mixed-Use places a great emphasis
on the following design elements: density,
intensity and scale; the mix of housing;
walkability; streetscapes and a high quality
public realm; parking management; and access
to amenities such as parks, civic spaces and
neighborhood services.

This district is especially appropriate for several
needs that residents of Manor currently look
elsewhere to provide, including:

* Healthcare services, including hospitals.

» Larger employers in a variety of industries
that residents currently commute to
outside of Manor.

» Specialized facilities that support workforce
and skills development, such as information
technology, skilled trades and advanced
manufacturing; provided such facilities fit
the form described above.

78 Destination Manor 2050 Comprehensive Plan

Development
Ratio

= Nonres.

Avg. 21 jobs/acre

Residential

Figure 3.9. Community Mixed-Use Land Use Mix Dashboard

Residential
Development Types

20% 20%

SFD
SFA
= Small MF

= | arge ME
60%

18 to 40 units per acre
Higher densities considered
conditionally (see description)

Medium
High in some circumstances

40%

Item 8.

Nonresidential
Development Types
10%

= Retail
Office
= [ndustrial

Other
50%

Low/Mid-Rise

165




Item 8.

DEVELOPMENT TYPE APPROPRIATENESS CONDITIONS

Single-Family Detached
(SED)

®O000

SFD + ADU

®O000O

SFA, Duplex

®O000

Not considered appropriate since the intent is to provide retail, services, activity centers and diversified
housing to support surrounding neighborhoods, achieve strong fiscal performance, and drive community
identity and gathering.

SFA, Townhomes and De-
tached Missing Middle

0000 0

Apartment House (3-4
units)

0000 0

Small Multifamily (8-12
units)

0000 0

This can be appropriate provided that the overall Community Mixed-Use area also contains mixed-use
buildings and/or shopping centers with which this product integrates in a manner to promote walkability
and access. Can be utilized as a transition between Community Mixed-Use and other uses. These develop-
ment types should be located on secondary roads rather than primary thoroughfares, as primary frontages
are best reserved for ground-floor retail and services.

Large Multifamily (12+

units) 00600

Mixed-Use Urban, Neigh- 00000 This is the ideal form of development within the Community Mixed Use category; provides for activity
borhood Scale centers, retail, services and diverse housing options. Design should emphasize the pedestrian experience

Mixed-Use Urban, Com-
munity Scale

rather than people driving automobiles. Vertical mixed-use is likely most appropriate, in order to achieve
the intended densities. Ground floor uses are encouraged to be food and beverage or pedestrian-oriented
retail and services, to promote foot traffic and activity.

Shopping Center, Neigh-
borhood Scale

00000

Shopping Center, Commu-
nity Scale

00000

While less preferred, this use can provide retail and services near housing, promoting walkability and
10-minute neighborhoods. Becomes more appropriate if a horizontal approach to mixed-use is deployed.

Light Industrial Flex Space

00000

Not generally considered appropriate due to lower sales tax generation and limited ability to design at pe-
destrian scale, but can be if particularly small-scale and included alongside more appropriate development
types, or with integration of a storefront experience.

Manufacturing Q@O0O000 Not considered appropriate.

Civic 00000 Considered supportlvle to thei functlon and hvabllllt.y of this future land use category, government buildings,
schools and community facilities can serve as activity hubs.

Parks and Open Space 00000 Generally considered appropriate or compatible within all Land Use Categories.

Land Use and Development LiEiE




\ EST. 1872
I TEXAS

4/26/2023

City of Manor Development Services

Notification for a Rezoning Application

Project Name: 13500 FM 973 Rezoning IN-1 to C-1
Case Number: 2023-P-1534-Z0

Case Manager: Michael Burrell

Contact: mburrell@manortx.gov — 512-215-8158

The City of Manor Planning and Zoning Commission and City Council will be conducting a
Regularly Scheduled meeting for the purpose of considering and acting upon on a Rezoning
Application for one lot out of the Gates G Survey 63, Abstract 315 and being located at 13500 FM
973, Manor, TX. The request will be posted on the agenda as follows:

Public Hearing: Conduct a public hearing on a Rezoning Application for one (1) lot on 1.069
acres, more or less, out of the Gates G Survey 63, Abstract 315 and being located at 13500
FM 973, Manor, TX from Industrial Light (IN-1) to Commercial Light (C-1).

Applicant: LIQUE Engineers
Owner: Rapid Express Car Wash

The Planning and Zoning Commission will meet at 6:30PM on May 10, 2023 at 105 East Eggleston
Street in the City Hall Council Chambers.

The City Council will meet at 7:00PM on May 17, 2023 at 105 East Eggleston Street in the City
Hall Council Chambers.

You are being notified because you own property within 300 feet of the property for which this
Rezoning Application has been filed. Comments may be addressed to the email address or phone
number above. Any communications received will be made available to the Commissioners during
the discussion of this item.

105 E. EGGLESTON STREET * P.O. Box 387 ® MANOR, TEx4As 78653
(T) 512.272.5555 » (F) 512.272.8636 * www.CITYOFMANOR.ORG

Item 8.

167



mailto:mburrell@manortx.gov

Board of Trustees of The Manor ISD
PO Box 9190
Austin, TX 78766-9190

Cottonwood Holdings LTD
9900 US Highway 290 E
Manor, TX 78653-9720

Bluebonnet Electric Cooperative Inc
650 Highway 21 E
Bastrop, TX 78602-5864

Click Allen
10813 Decker Lane
Austin, TX 78724-1017

Item 8.

SG Land Holdings LLC
2646 Dupont Dr Suite 60 PMB 520
Irvine, CA 92612-7651

Cottonwood Holdings LTD
9900 US Highway 290 E
Manor, TX 78653-9720

168




Item 9.

AGENDA ITEM NO. 9

Tty oF

i 1} EST. 1872

AGENDA ITEM SUMMARY FORM

PROPOSED MEETING DATE: May 17, 2023
PREPARED BY: Scott Dunlop, Director
DEPARTMENT: Development Services

AGENDA ITEM DESCRIPTION:
Consideration, discussion, and possible action on a Performance Bond Extension request for the Village at Manor
Commons Phase 3.

BACKGROUND/SUMMARY:

Section 60(e) of our Subdivision Code provides a one-year time limit on to complete the subdivision improvements
from the date the final plat is approved. The final plat for Village at Manor Commons Phase 3 was approved on
June 8, 2023.

P&Z voted 7-0 to recommend approval.

LEGAL REVIEW: Not Applicable
FISCAL IMPACT: No
PRESENTATION: No
ATTACHMENTS: Yes

e Request

STAFF RECOMMENDATION:

It is the City staff’s recommendation that the City Council approve a Performance Bond Extension request for the
Village at Manor Commons Phase 3 to June 8, 2024

PLANNING & ZONING COMMISSION: Recommend Approval Disapproval None
X

169




14400 The Lakes Bivd. Building C, Suite 200 Pflugerville, TX 78660 AL' »
QUALICOCOMMUNITIES.COM Symun,c,,?s

May 4th, 2023

To whom this may concern,

On behalf of Qualico MC, LLC and in accordance with City of Manor Code of Ordinances;
Chapter 10, Exhibit A, Article IV., Section 60(e), we wish to request an extension of the
Subdivision Performance and Payment Bond (Bond No. 800086159) in the amount of
$1,157,022.80 delivered and posted with the City of Manor on April 3r4, 2023 for the Village
at Manor Commons Phase 3 project.

The Village at Manor Commons Phase 3 Plat was approved on June 8th, 2022. The first
anniversary date of the plat approval is June 8th, 2023. Therefore, our extension request is
not to exceed 1 year beyond the first anniversary date of the Phase 3 plat approval, taking
the extension through to June 8t, 2024.

Currently, the Phase 3 improvements are underway. However, the improvements will not
be completed by the first anniversary date of the Plat approval of June 8th, 2023. All utilities
are in the ground with streets ready for first course base. Given our latest project schedule,
we expect to be completed, ready for City inspection and acceptance by June 26th, 2023.

Thank you for your consideration.

Brandon Reinhart
Land Development Project Manager

14400 The Lakes Boulevard
Building C, Suite 200
Pflugerville, TX 78660

Office: (512) 703-9439
Cell: (512) 605-9606

Email: breinhart@Qualico.com

Encl: village at Manor Commons Ph. 3 - Subdivision Performance & Payment Bond No. 800086159

A QUALICO

170




SUBDIVISION PERFORMANCE AND PAYMENT
BOND

Bond No. 800086159

KNOW ALL MEN BY THESE PRESENTS, that we Qualico MC, LLC, of the City of
Pflugerville, County of Travis, and State of Texas, as Principal, and Atlantic Specialty Insurance
Company a corporation organized and existing under the laws of New York and authorized under
the laws of the State of Texas to act as Surety on bonds for Principal, as Surety, are held and
firmly bound unto the City of Manor, Texas, as Obligee, in the penal sum of One Million One
Hundred Fifty Seven Thousand Twenty Two and 80/100 ($1.157,022.80) DOLLARS, lawful
money of the United States of America, for the payment of which well and truly to be made, we
bind ourselves, our heirs, executors, administrators, successors and assigns, jointly and severally,
firmly by these presents.

WHEREAS, Principal is required by ordinances, regulations, and agreements of the City
of Manor (the "City") to construct certain erosion control, manville w.s.c.. sanitary sewer, storm
water, streets, electrical improvements shown in the approved construction plans dated

and entitled Village at Manor Commons, Ph 3 for the subdivision known as
Village at Manor Commons, Ph 3 (the "Improvements") within the timeframes required by said
City ordinances, regulations, and agreements as a condition of final plat approval for the Village
at Manor Commons, Ph 3 subdivision, and the Improvements shall constitute the project for
which this bond shall guarantee completion. Obligee shall be entitled to recover attorneys' fees
and court costs from the Surety and Principal in an action on this bond.

NOW, THEREFORE, THE CONDITION OF THIS OBLIGATION IS SUCH, that: (I) if
the said Principal shall faithfully construct and complete the project in accordance with the
approved construction plans for the Improvements, ordinances, and regulations of the City of
Manor, by and shall save the Obligee harmless from any loss, cost or
damage by reason of Principal' s failure to complete said project; and (2) if the said Principal
shall pay all claimants supplying labor and material to it or a subcontractor in the prosecution of
the Improvements; then this obligation shall be null and void; otherwise to remain in full force
and effect until Obligee accepts the Improvements.

Obligee may draw on any part or all of the total amount of this bond by submitting a written
request for a draw from the Obligee's Public Works Director or designee to Surety’s Attorney-in-
fact. The bond shall be irrevocable until the Improvements are completed and accepted by the

City.

In the event that either Principal fails to promptly pay when due persons who have supplied labor,
materials, or supplies used in the prosecution of the project, the Surety will, upon receipt of notice
from the Obligee or a claim in the form required by law, satisfy all undisputed balances due, and
make arrangements satisfactory to the interested parties to resolve all amounts disputed in good
faith, but in no event shall the liability for the Surety for the Principal's failure to promptly pay
for labor, materials, or supplies exceed the penalty of this bond. obligation by the Surety.
Provided further, that in any legal action be filed upon this bond, venue shall lie in the county
where the project is to be constructed.

Item 9.

171




IN WITNESS WHEREOF, the said PRINCIPAL and SURETY have signed and sealed this
instrument this 23" day of March 2023.

Qualico MC, LI.C Atlantic Specialty Insurance Company
Principal Surety
FoTs By M*?Q‘L
) Feerrup b NameAeremy Pofk )
. SEceariste Titlé' Attorney-it-Fact /
Address / Address —
605 Highway 169 North
14400 The Lakes Blvd
Suite 800
Building C, Suite 200
Plymouth, MN 55441

Pflugerville, TX 78660

The name and address of the Resident Agent of Surety is:

Scott David Chapman

480 Wildwood Forest Dr, Suite 760

Spring, TX 77380

(Seal)

Item 9.

172




mtact

INSURANCE

KNOW ALL MEN BY THESE PRESENTS, that ATLANTIC SPECIALTY INSURANCE COMPANY, a New York corporation with its principal office in Plymouth,
Minnesota, does hereby constitute and appoint: Jeremy Polk, Jorge Mendez, Matthew Erra, each individually If there be more than ane named, its true and jawful
Attomey-in-Fact, to make, execute, seal and deliver, for and on its behalf as surety, any and all bonds, recognizances, contracts of Indemnity, and ali other writings obligatary in
the nature thereof; provided that no bond or undertaking executed under this authority shall exceed in amount the sum of: unlirited and the execution of such bonds,
recognizances, contracts of indemnity, and all other writings obligatory in the nature thereof in pursuance of these presents, shall be as binding upon said Company as if they had
been fully signed by an authorized officer of the Company and sealed with the Company seal. This Power of Artomey is made and executed by authority of the following
resolutions adopted by the Board of Directors of ATLANTIC SPECIALTY INSURANCE COMPANY on the twenty-fifth day of September, 2012;

Resolved: That the President, any Senior Vice President or Vice-President (each an “Authorized Officer”) may execute for and in behalf of the Company any and
all bonds, recognizances, contracts of indemnity, and all other writings obligatory in the nature thereof, and atfix the seal of the Company thereto; and that the
Authorized Officer may appoint and authorize an Attorney-in-Fact to execute on behalf of the Company any and all such instruments and 1o affix the Company
seal thereto; and that the Authorized Officer may at any time remove any such Attorney-in-Fact and revoke all power and authority given to any such Attorney-in-
Fact,

Resolved: That the Attorney-in-Fact may be given full power and authority to execute for and in the name and on behalf of the Company any and all bonds,
recognizances, contracts of indemnity, and all ather writings obligatory in the nature thereof, and any such instrument executed by any such Attorney-in-Fact shall
be as binding upon the Company as if signed and sealed by an Authorized Officer and, further, the Attorney-in-Fact is hereby authorized to verify any affidavit
required to be attached to bonds, recognizances, contracts of indemnity, and all other writings obligatory in the nature thereof.

This power of attorney is signed and sealed by facsimile under the authority of the following Resolution adopted by the Board of Directors of ATLANTIC SPECIALTY
INSURANCE COMPANY on the twenty-fifth day of September, 2012:

Resolved: That the signature of an Autharized Officer, the signature of the Secretary or the Assistant Secretary, and the Company seal may be affixed by
facsimile to any power of attorney or to any certificate relating thereto appointing an Attormey-in-Fact for purposes only of execuring and sealing any bond,
undertaking, recognizance or ather written obligation in the nature thereof, and any such signature and seal where so used, being hereby adopted by the Company
as the original signature of such officer and the original seal of the Company, to be valid and binding upon the Company with the same force and effect as though
manually affixed.

IN WITNESS WHEREOF, ATLANTIC SPECIALTY INSURANCE COMPANY has caused these presents to be signed by an Authorized Officer and the seal of the Company
1o be affixed this twenty-seventh day of April, 2020.

‘_,.m“ .“ :‘“}:”\;‘;L’; v,
i A

£a RO T

i85 “seAL” @i

12 1986 § By

NNE V2 4, s &8

S by, W 0% GBS Paul J. Brehm, Senior Vice President
HENNEPIN COUNTY gl b Aot

e, "
RUTTRN e

On this twenty-seventh day of April, 2020, before me personally came Paul J. Brehm, Senior Vice President of ATLANTIC SPECIALTY INSURANCE COMPANY, to me
personally known to be the individual and officer described in and who executed the preceding instrument, and he acknowledged the execution of the same, and being by me
duly swom, that he is the said officer of the Company aforesaid, and that the seal affixed to the preceding instrument is the seal of said Company and that the said seal and the
signature as such officer was duly affixed and subscribed to the said instrument by the authority and at the direction of the Company.

/ﬁ;m/téf«/f

Notary Public

ALISON DWAN NASH.TROUT §

SAE} NOTARY PUBLIC - MINNESOTA
5/ My Commission Explres j
January 31, 2026

[, the undersigned, Secretary of ATLANTIC SPECIALTY INSURANCE COMPANY, a New York Corporation, do hereby certify that the foregoing power of attorney is in full
force and has not been revoked, and the resolutions set forth above are now in force.

Signed and sealed. Dated_23rd dayof _ March | 2023

LI
C

S N r"""-’,
a“\?-"“ § 5,

2 1986 S ’[/-*:'/;7/;;5“1'___.

This Pawer of Attorney expires ’a,fb):’sw 10‘7‘:_&7)‘;—“
January 31, 2025 gt b Ko
4 I Kara Barrow, Secretary

Please direct bond verifications to surety @ inactinsirance, com 173




Item 10.

AGENDA ITEM NO. 10

TciITY OF

LA} EST. 1872
| TEXAS

AGENDA ITEM SUMMARY FORM

PROPOSED MEETING DATE: May 17, 2023
PREPARED BY: Scott Dunlop, Director
DEPARTMENT: Development Services

AGENDA ITEM DESCRIPTION:

Consideration, discussion, and possible action on a resolution of the City of Manor, Texas approving and
authorizing the Manor Heights Public Improvement District Reimbursement Agreement (Improvement Area #3).

BACKGROUND/SUMMARY:

On November 7, 2018, the City authorized the creation of the Manor Heights PID and entered into a development
agreement with the developer which contemplated multiple bond issuances. Bonds were previously issued for
Improvement Areas #1 and #2 and Major Improvement Area. The developer is now requesting the issuance of
bonds for Improvement Area #3 and entering into a reimbursement agreement with the City for reimbursement
of public improvements the developer is constructing within Improvement Area #3. The attached resolution and
reimbursement agreement are provided for City Council’s consideration.

LEGAL REVIEW: Yes
FISCAL IMPACT: No
PRESENTATION: No
ATTACHMENTS: Yes

e Resolution No. 2023-18
e Reimbursement Agreement

STAFF RECOMMENDATION:

It is the City Staff’s recommendation that the City Council approve Resolution No. 2023-18 of the City of Manor,
Texas approving and authorizing the Manor Heights Public Improvement District Reimbursement Agreement
(Improvement Area #3) and directing the Mayor to execute the Reimbursement Agreement (Improvement Area
#3).

PLANNING & ZONING COMMISSION: Recommend Approval Disapproval None

174




RESOLUTION NO. 2023-18

A RESOLUTION OF THE CITY OF MANOR, TEXAS APPROVING
AND AUTHORIZING THE MANOR HEIGHTS PUBLIC
IMPROVEMENT DISTRICT REIMBURSEMENT AGREEMENT
(IMPROVEMENT AREA #3).

WHEREAS, the City of Manor, Texas (the "City"), pursuant to and in accordance with the
terms, provisions and requirements of the Public Improvement District Assessment Act, Chapter
372, Texas Local Government Code (the "PID Act"), authorized the creation of the "Manor
Heights Public Improvement District" (the "District") pursuant to Resolution No. 2018-10 adopted
by the Manor City Council (the "City Council") on November 7, 2018; and

WHEREAS, on October 7, 2020, the City authorized additional land be included within
the District pursuant to Resolution No. 2020-11; and

WHEREAS, the City entered into a Development Agreement with Sky Village Kimbro
Estates LLC ("Sky Village") and RHOF, LLC ("RHOF") that stated the intent and expectation of
the parties that the City would reimburse Sky Village and RHOF, or their successors in interest,
for the costs of the construction of certain public improvements constructed for the benefit of the
District; and

WHEREAS, Forestar (USA) Real Estate Group, Inc., a Delaware corporation ("Forestar")
is, for the purposes of the Development Agreement, the successor in interest to the obligations and
interests of Sky Village and RHOF under the Development Agreement; and

WHEREAS, in connection with the development of the property within the District and
the planned issuance of the "City of Manor, Texas Special Assessment Revenue Bonds, Series
2023 (Manor Heights Public Improvement District Improvement Area #3 Project)" (the "Bonds"),
the City Council intends to approve the forms, terms, and/or provisions of a Reimbursement
Agreement to be by and between the City and Forestar; and

WHEREAS, this Resolution and the Reimbursement Agreement approved by it, are in
furtherance of the intentions of the parties to the Development Agreement; and

WHEREAS, the meeting at which this Resolution is considered is open to the public as
required by law, and the public notice of the time, place and purpose of said meeting was given as
required by Chapter 551, Texas Government Code, as amended,

NOW, THEREFORE, BE IT RESOLVED BY THE CITY COUNCIL OF THE CITY
OF MANOR, TEXAS:

Section 1. Findings. The findings and determinations set forth in the preamble hereof are
hereby incorporated by reference for all purposes as if set forth in full herein. Capitalized terms
used in this Resolution and not otherwise defined herein shall have the meanings assigned to them
in the Service and Assessment Plan.

Item 10.

175




RESOLUTION NO. 2023 - 18 Page ]

Item 10.

Section 2. Approval of Reimbursement Agreement. The Manor Heights Public
Improvement District Reimbursement Agreement (Improvement Area #3) (the "Reimbursement
Agreement"), between the City of Manor, Texas and Forestar, is hereby approved in substantially
the form attached hereto as Exhibit A, and the Mayor of the City is hereby authorized and directed
to execute and deliver the Reimbursement Agreement, with such changes as may be required by
the Mayor to carry out the purposes of this Resolution, such approval to be evidenced by the
execution thereof. The Mayor's signature on the Reimbursement Agreement may be attested by
the City Secretary.

Section 3. Additional Actions. The Mayor, Finance Director, City Manager, and City
Secretary of the City are hereby authorized and directed to take all actions on behalf of the City
necessary or desirable to carry out the intent and purposes of this Resolution. The Mayor, Finance
Director, City Manager, and City Secretary of the City are hereby directed to execute and deliver
any and all certificates, agreements, notices, instruction letters, requisitions, and other documents
which may be necessary or advisable in the carrying out of the purposes and intent of this
Resolution.

Section 4. Governing Law. This Resolution shall be construed and enforced in accordance
with the laws of the State of Texas and the United States of America.

Section 5. Effect of Headings. The section headings herein are for convenience only and
shall not affect the construction hereof.

Section 6. Severability. If any provision of this Resolution or the application thereof to any
circumstance shall be held to be invalid, the remainder of this Resolution or the application thereof
to other circumstances shall nevertheless be valid, and this governing body hereby declares that
this Resolution would have been enacted without such invalid provision.

Section 7. Construction of Terms. If appropriate in the context of this Resolution, words of
the singular number shall be considered to include the plural, words of the plural number shall be
considered to include the singular, and words of the masculine, feminine or neuter gender shall be
considered to include the other genders.

[Execution page follows]

176




Item 10.

RESOLUTION NO. 2023 - 18 Page |

DULY PASSED AND APPROVED on the 17™ day of May 2023.

THE CITY OF MANOR, TEXAS

Dr. Christopher Harvey
Mayor, City of Manor, Texas

ATTEST:

Lluvia T. Almaraz
City Secretary

[SIGNATURE PAGE — RESOLUTION APPROVING REIMBURSEMENT AGREEMENT-IA#3]

177




RESOLUTION NO. 2023 - 18

EXHIBIT A

MANOR HEIGHTS PUBLIC IMPROVEMENT DISTRICT
REIMBURSEMENT AGREEMENT (IMPROVEMENT AREA #3)

Page 4

Item 10.

178




MANOR HEIGHTS PUBLIC IMPROVEMENT DISTRICT
REIMBURSEMENT AGREEMENT
(IMPROVEMENT AREA #3)

This Manor Heights Public Improvement District Reimbursement Agreement (Improvement Area
#3) (this “Reimbursement Agreement”) is executed between the City of Manor, Texas (“City”)
and Forestar (USA) Real Estate Group, Inc., a Delaware corporation (the “Owner”) (each
individually referred to as a “Party” and collectively as the “Parties”) effective as of the  day
of , 2023.

RECITALS

WHEREAS, on November 7, 2018, the City Council of the City (the "City Council")
authorized the formation of the Manor Heights Public Improvement District (the "District" or
"PID") pursuant to Resolution No. 2018-10 (the "Creation Resolution") in accordance with the
PID Act, covering approximately 599.2 acres of land described in the Creation Resolution (the
“District Property”); and

WHEREAS, the City Council authorized additional land to be added to the boundaries of the
District pursuant to Resolution No. 2020-11 adopted by the City Council on October 7, 2020; and

WHEREAS, the purpose of the District is to finance certain improvements authorized by
Chapter 372, Texas Local Government Code (as may be amended, the “PID Act”) that promote
the interests of the City and confer a special benefit on the assessed property within the District;
and

WHEREAS, the District Property was originally contemplated to be developed in phases
("Improvement Areas") beginning with Improvement Area #1, Improvement Area #2, and the
Major Improvement Area;

WHEREAS, pursuant to the Manor Heights Public Improvement District Financing and
Reimbursement Agreement (the “PID Financing Agreement”), the Owner now intends to further
divide the Major Improvement Area into two or more Improvement Areas including Improvement
Area #3, as depicted on Exhibit “A”, and the Owner intends that certain Authorized Improvements
(as defined herein) be constructed over time to serve District Property (or portions thereof); and

WHEREAS, it is intended that the City Council shall pass and approve an assessment
ordinance determining, among other things, the estimated costs of the Authorized Improvements
allocable to Improvement Area #3 (the “Improvement Area #3 Improvements” and to be further
defined in a Service and Assessment Plan (hereinafter defined)) and levy assessments against
certain District Property within Improvement Area #3 (the “Improvement Area #3 Assessments”
or the “Assessments”) in accordance with the Assessment Roll (as defined herein) attached to a

Item 10.

179




Service and Assessment Plan for the District (as the same may be amended or updated from time
to time, the “Service and Assessment Plan”); and

WHEREAS, it is intended that bonds secured by the Improvement Area #3 Assessments (the
“PID Bonds”) will be issued to finance a portion of the Actual Costs of, among other things, the
Improvement Area #3 Improvements (the Actual Costs of the Improvement Area #3 Improvements
being the “Improvement Area #3 Improvements Cost”); and

WHEREAS, the proceeds of the PID Bonds shall be used to reimburse the Owner for the
Improvement Area #3 Improvements Cost; and

WHEREAS, it is anticipated that one or more series of PID Bonds will be issued pursuant to
an Indenture of Trust (the “Indenture”) by and between the City and a legally qualified trustee
selected by the City (the “Bond Trustee™); and

WHEREAS, it is anticipated that the City shall deposit the revenues received and collected by
the City from the Improvement Area #3 Assessments, including foreclosure sale proceeds, first
into segregated funds held by the City for Improvement Area #3’s revenues (an “Operating
Account”), and then further transferred pursuant to the Indenture when executed; and

WHEREAS, the Parties intend that all or a portion of the Improvement Area #3 Improvements
Cost shall be paid for with the hereinafter-defined Improvement Area #3 Reimbursement
Obligation pursuant to the terms of this Reimbursement Agreement, and as further described
pursuant to the PID Financing Agreement; and

WHEREAS, following the issuance of a series of PID Bonds, the Pledged Revenues, as
defined herein, will secure the PID Bonds, and then, on a subordinate basis, the Improvement Area
#3 Reimbursement Obligation; and

NOW THEREFORE, FOR VALUABLE CONSIDERATION THE RECEIPT AND
ADEQUACY OF WHICH ARE ACKNOWLEDGED, THE PARTIES AGREE AS FOLLOWS:

1. Recitals. The recitals to this Reimbursement Agreement are true and correct, and are
incorporated as part of this Reimbursement Agreement for all purposes.

2. Definitions. Capitalized terms not otherwise herein defined shall be given the meaning
assigned to such term in the PID Financing Agreement and/or Indenture, as applicable,
and such definition shall govern in the event of a conflict with a definition herein.

a. Actual Costs — shall mean, with respect to Authorized Improvements, the actual
costs paid or incurred by or on behalf of the Owner: (1) to plan, design, acquire,
construct, install, and dedicate such improvements to the City; (2) to prepare
plans, specifications (including bid packages), contracts, and as-built drawings;
(3) to obtain zoning, licenses, plan approvals, permits, inspections, and other
governmental approvals; (4) for third-party professional consulting services

2

Item 10.

180




Item 10.

including but not limited to, engineering, surveying, geotechnical, land
planning, architectural, landscaping, legal, accounting, and appraisals; (5) of
labor, materials, equipment, fixtures, payment and performance bonds and
other construction security, and insurance premiums; and (6) to implement,
administer, and manage the above-described activities. Actual Costs shall not
include general contractor’s fees in an amount that exceeds a percentage equal
to the percentage of work completed or construction management fees in an
amount that exceeds an amount equal to the construction management fee
amortized in approximately equal monthly installments over the term of the
applicable construction management contract. Amounts expended for costs
described in subsection (3), (4), and (6) above shall be excluded from the
amount upon which the general contractor and construction management fees
are calculated.

b. Assessment Roll — shall mean one or more assessment rolls for the assessed
property within the District, as updated, modified or amended from time to time

in accordance with the Service and Assessment Plan.

c. Authorized Improvements — shall mean any authorized improvement listed in
the PID Act.

d. Improvement Area #3 Reimbursement Obligation — shall mean the
Improvement Area #3 Reimbursement Obligation.

e. Pledged Revenues — shall mean the sum of (i) revenues generated by the
Improvement Area #3 Assessments less delinquent collection costs; (ii) the
moneys held by the City in the Operating Account; and (iii) any additional
revenues that the City may pledge to the payment of the PID Bonds.

3. City Deposit of Revenue. Until a series of PID Bonds are issued, the City shall cause
the revenue generated by the Improvement Area #3 Assessments to be deposited into
the Operating Account. After a series of PID Bonds secured by the Pledged Revenues
are issued, the City shall cause those Pledged Revenues to be deposited pursuant to the
Indenture once executed.

4. Payment of Improvements Cost. The City shall pay the Improvement Area #3
Improvements Cost pursuant to executed and approved Payment Requests (defined
herein) in the manner provided for in the PID Financing Agreement from the applicable
Operating Account. Following the execution of the Indenture, the Bond Trustee shall
pay the Improvement Area #3 Improvements Cost pursuant to executed and approved
certifications for payment in the manner provided for in the PID Financing Agreement
and the Indenture for PID Bonds.

5. Improvement Area #3 Reimbursement Obligation. Subject to the terms, conditions, and
requirements contained herein, the City agrees to reimburse the Owner, and the Owner

3

181




shall be entitled to receive from the City in an amount not to exceed $4,255,000 for the
Improvement Area #3 Improvements Cost (the “Improvement Area #3 Reimbursement
Obligation”) in accordance with the terms of this Reimbursement Agreement, and
subject to any further limitations as may be contained in the PID Financing Agreement,
until December 31, 2053 (the “Maturity Date”). It is hereby acknowledged that the City
is not responsible hereunder for any amount of the Improvement Area #3
Improvements Cost in excess of the amount of the Improvement Area #3 Assessments
collected. The Improvement Area #3 Reimbursement Obligation, including accrued
and unpaid interest, shall be payable to the Owner, solely from the Pledged Revenues
deposited in the Operating Account or, if PID Bonds are issued, the Project Fund or the
reimbursement fund, as applicable, created by the Indenture. The Improvement Area
#3 Reimbursement Obligation is authorized by the PID Act, is hereby approved by the
City Council, and represents the total allowable costs to be assessed against
Improvement Area #3 for the Improvement Area #3 Improvements. The interest rate
paid to the Owner on the Improvement Area #3 Reimbursement Obligation shall be of
5.50%. The interest rate is hereby approved by the City Council and complies with the
PID Act. Interest will accrue on the Improvement Area #3 Reimbursement Obligation
at the interest rate stated above from the later to occur of: (i) the date that the
Improvement Area #3 Assessment is levied by the City or (ii) the date a certificate for
payment for the Improvement Area #3 Improvements Cost is approved by the City.
Following the issuance of PID Bonds, interest on the Improvement Area #3
Reimbursement Obligation will accrue from the date of delivery of the PID Bonds at
the interest rate of the PID Bonds. Interest shall be calculated on the basis of a 360-
day year, comprised of twelve 30-day months.

Obligated Payment Sources. The Improvement Area #3 Reimbursement Obligation,
plus accrued and unpaid interest as described above, is payable to the Owner and
secured under this Reimbursement Agreement solely as described herein. No other
City funds, revenue, taxes, income, or property shall be used even if the Improvement
Area #3 Reimbursement Obligation is not paid in full at the Maturity Date, and the
Improvement Area #3 Reimbursement Obligation is not a debt of the City, within the
meaning of Article XI, Section 5, of the Constitution of the State of Texas. The City
acknowledges and agrees that until the Improvement Area #3 Reimbursement
Obligation and accrued and unpaid interest is paid in full, the obligation of the City to
use amounts on deposit in the Operating Account or if PID Bonds are issued, in the
Project Fund or the reimbursement fund, as applicable, created by the Indenture to pay
the Improvement Area #3 Reimbursement Obligation and accrued and unpaid interest
to the Owner is absolute and unconditional and the City does not have, and will not

assert, any defenses to such obligation.

Item 10.

182




Item 10.

7. City Collection Efforts. The City will use all reasonable efforts to receive and collect,
or cause to be received and collected by the Travis County Tax Assessor-Collector,
Assessments (including the foreclosure of liens resulting from the nonpayment of the
Assessments or other charges due and owing under the Service and Assessment Plan)
and shall not permit a reduction, abatement, or exemption in the Assessments due on
any portion of the District Property until the earlier of (i) the PID Bonds related to that
particular portion of the District Property are no longer outstanding, whether as a result
of payment in full, defeasance, or otherwise, or (ii) the Owner has been reimbursed for
the unreimbursed Actual Costs in accordance with this Reimbursement Agreement.
The City shall use best efforts to collect the Assessments consistent with the City’s
policies and standard practices applicable to the collection of City taxes and
assessments.

8. Process for Payment for the Improvement Area #3 Reimbursement Obligation. The
Owner may submit to the City a written request for payment in the form and manner
provided for in the PID Financing Agreement (a “Payment Request”) of any funds then
available in the Operating Account or, after the issuance of PID Bonds, the Project
Fund created by the Indenture, following February 1% of each year. Upon receipt of the
Payment Request for the Improvement Area #3 Improvements described in the Service
and Assessment Plan with all required documentation attached, the City shall cause
available funds within the appropriate account under the Indenture or the Operating
Account to be disbursed to the Owner within thirty (30) days. This process will
continue until the Improvement Area #3 Reimbursement Obligation and accrued and
unpaid interest is paid in full, or until PID Bonds are issued in an amount sufficient to
pay the unpaid Improvement Area #3 Reimbursement Obligation in full, less any
amounts required for reserves and any other costs or expenses associated with issuing
the PID Bonds.

9. Termination. Upon either (1) all payments paid to the Owner under this Reimbursement
Agreement equal to the Improvement Area #3 Reimbursement Obligation plus any
accrued and unpaid interest, (ii) the PID Bonds being issued for Improvement Area #3
that is equal to the Improvement Area #3 Reimbursement Obligation, less any amounts
required for reserves and any other costs or expenses associated with issuing the PID
Bonds, less any payments made from the Bond Trustee pursuant to this Agreement,
(ii1) a combination of (i) and (i1) above that, collectively, is equal to the Improvement
Area #3 Reimbursement Obligation, or (iv) the Maturity Date is reached, this
Reimbursement Agreement shall terminate; provided, however that if on the Maturity
Date, any portion of the Improvement Area #3 Reimbursement Obligation or accrued
and unpaid interest remains unpaid, the Improvement Area #3 Reimbursement
Obligation shall be canceled and for all purposes of this Reimbursement Agreement
shall be deemed to have been conclusively and irrevocably PAID IN FULL; provided
further however that if any Assessments remain due and payable and are uncollected

5

183




10.

11.

12.

13.

on the Maturity Date for Improvement Area #3, such Assessment, when, as, and if
collected after the Maturity Date, shall be applied, first, to any amounts due in
connection with Improvement Area #3 for any outstanding PID Bonds, and then paid
to the Owner and applied to the Improvement Area #3 Reimbursement Obligation.
Under no circumstances will either payments made under this Agreement or the PID
Bonds equal more than the Improvement Area #3 Reimbursement Obligation.

Non-Recourse Obligation. The obligations of the City under this Reimbursement
Agreement are non-recourse and payable only from Pledged Revenues and such
obligations do not create a debt or other obligation payable from any other City
revenues, taxes, income, or property. Neither the City nor any of its elected or
appointed officials nor any of its employees shall incur any liability hereunder to the

Owner or any other party in their individual capacities by reason of this Reimbursement
Agreement or their acts or omission under this Reimbursement Agreement. Owner
acknowledges that no appropriation of City funds has been or will be made to provide
payments due under this Agreement. Further, Owner acknowledges that the only source
of funds for payment under this Agreement is from the Operating Account or if PID
Bonds are issued, from the Project Fund or the reimbursement fund, as applicable,
created by the Indenture to pay the Improvement Area #3 Reimbursement Obligation.

Mandatory Prepayments. Notwithstanding any provision of this Reimbursement
Agreement to the contrary, the Parties hereby acknowledge and agree that to the extent
a prepayment of an Assessment is due and owing pursuant to the provisions of a Service
and Assessment Plan (including any requirement to provide notice to Owner pursuant
to the provisions thereof) in effect as of the date of this Agreement and remains unpaid
for ninety (90) days after such notice, the City, upon providing written notice to the
Owner, may reduce the amount of the Improvement Area #3 Reimbursement
Obligation associated with that Assessment by a corresponding amount; provided,
however, any reduction shall never result in a reduction in the amount of the
Improvement Area #3 Reimbursement Obligation to be less than zero.

No Waiver. Nothing in this Reimbursement Agreement is intended to constitute a
waiver by the City of any remedy the City may otherwise have outside this
Reimbursement Agreement against any person or entity involved in the design,
construction, or installation of the Improvement Area #3 Improvements.

Governing Law, Venue. This Reimbursement Agreement is being executed and
delivered, and is intended to be performed in the State of Texas. Except to the extent
that the laws of the United States may apply to the terms hereof, the substantive laws
of the State of Texas shall govern the wvalidity, construction, enforcement, and
interpretation of this Reimbursement Agreement. In the event of a dispute involving
this Reimbursement Agreement, venue for such dispute shall lie in any court of
competent jurisdiction in Travis County, Texas.

Item 10.

184




14.

15.

16.

Notice. Any notice required or contemplated by this Reimbursement Agreement shall
be deemed given at the addresses shown below: (i) one (1) business day after deposit
with a reputable overnight courier service for overnight delivery such as FedEx or UPS;
or (i) one (1) business day after deposit with the United States Postal Service, Certified
Mail, Return Receipt Requested. Any Party may change its address by delivering
written notice of such change in accordance with this section.

If to City: City of Manor
Attn: City Manager
105 East Eggleston Street
Manor, Texas 78653

With a copy to:  The Knight Law Firm, LLP
Attn: Paige Saenz/Veronica Rivera
223 West Anderson Lane, Suite A-105
Austin, Texas 78752

If to Owner: Forestar (USA) Real Estate Group, Inc.
Attn: John Maberry
10700 Pecan Park Blvd. Suite 150
Austin, Texas 78750

With a copy to:  Metcalfe Wolff Stuart & Williams, LLP
Attn: Talley J. Williams
221 W. 6th, Suite 1300
Austin, Texas 78701
Facsimile: (512) 404-2234

Invalid Provisions; Severability. If any provision of this Reimbursement Agreement is
held invalid by any court, such holding shall not affect the validity of the remaining
provisions, and the remainder of this Reimbursement Agreement shall remain in full
force and effect. If any provision of this Reimbursement Agreement directly conflicts
with the terms of the Indenture, then the Indenture shall control.

Exclusive Rights of Owner. Owner’s right, title and interest into the payments of the
Improvement Area #3 Reimbursement Obligation (including any accrued and unpaid
interest thereon), as described herein, shall be the sole and exclusive property of Owner
(or its Transferee (defined herein)) and no other third party shall have any claim or right
to such funds unless Owner transfers its rights to its Improvement Area #3
Reimbursement Obligation (including any accrued and unpaid interest thereon) to a
Transferee in writing and otherwise in accordance with the requirements set forth
herein. Owner has the right to convey, transfer, assign, mortgage, pledge, or otherwise
encumber, in whole or in part, all or any portion of Owner’s right, title, or interest under
this Reimbursement Agreement including, but not limited to, any right, title or interest
of Owner in and to payment of its Improvement Area #3 Reimbursement Obligation
plus any accrued and unpaid interest thereon (a “Transfer,” and the person or entity to
whom the transfer is made, a “Transferee”). Provided, however, that no such

7

Item 10.

185




Item 10.

conveyance, transfer, assignment, mortgage, pledge or other encumbrance shall be
made without the prior written approval of the City Council if such conveyance,
transfer, assignment, mortgage, pledge or other encumbrance would result in the
payments hereunder being pledged to the payment of debt service on public securities
issued by any other state of the United States or political subdivision thereof.
Notwithstanding the foregoing, no Transfer shall be effective until written notice of the
Transfer, including (A) the name and address of the Transferee and (B) a representation
by the Owner that the Transfer does not and will not result in the issuance of municipal
securities by any other state of the United States or political subdivision thereof is
provided to the City. The Owner agrees that the City may rely conclusively on any
written notice of a Transfer provided by Owner without any obligation to investigate
or confirm the Transfer.

17. Assignment.

a. Subject to subparagraph (b) below, Owner may, in its sole and absolute
discretion, assign this Reimbursement Agreement with respect to all or part of
the District Property from time to time to any party in connection with the sale
of the Project or any portion thereof and in connection with a corresponding
assignment of the rights and obligations in the PID Financing Agreement, if
then existing, to any party, so long as the assignee has demonstrated to the
City’s satisfaction that the assignee has the financial, technical, and managerial
capacity, the experience, and expertise to perform any duties or obligations so
assigned and so long as the assigned rights and obligations are assumed without
modifications to this Reimbursement Agreement or the PID Financing
Agreement. Owner shall provide the City thirty (30) days prior written notice
of any such assignment. Upon such assignment or partial assignment, Owner
shall be fully released from any and all obligations under this Reimbursement
Agreement and shall have no further liability with respect to this
Reimbursement Agreement for the part of the Project so assigned.

b. Any sale of a portion of the Property or assignment of any right hereunder shall
not be deemed a sale or assignment to a Designated Successor or Assign unless
the conveyance or transfer instrument effecting such sale or assignment
expressly states that the sale or assignment is to a Designated Successor or
Assign.

c. Any sale of a portion of the Property or assignment of any right hereunder shall
not be deemed a Transfer unless the conveyance or transfer instrument effecting
such sale or assignment expressly states that the sale or assignment is deemed
to be a Transfer.

d. Provided, however, that no such conveyance, transfer, assignment, mortgage,
pledge or other encumbrance shall be made without the prior written approval
of the City Council if such conveyance, transfer, assignment, mortgage, pledge
or other encumbrance would result in the payments hereunder being pledged to
the payment of debt service on public securities issued by any other state of the
United States or political subdivision thereof.

8

186




18.

19.

20.

e. Notwithstanding anything to the contrary contained herein, this Section 17 shall
not apply to Transfers which shall be governed by Section 16 above.

f. It is hereby acknowledged that the limitations on the ability to make a Transfer
as described in Section 16 above shall also apply to the Designated Successors
and Assigns.

Failure: Default: Remedies.

a. If either Party fails to perform an obligation imposed on such Party by this
Reimbursement Agreement (a “Failure”) and such Failure is not cured after
written notice and the expiration of the cure periods provided in this section,
then such Failure shall constitute a “Default.” Upon the occurrence of a Failure
by a non-performing Party, the other Party shall notify the non-performing
Party in writing specifying in reasonable detail the nature of the Failure. The
non-performing Party to whom notice of a Failure is given shall have at least
30 days from receipt of the notice within which to cure the Failure; however, if
the Failure cannot reasonably be cured within 30 days and the non-performing
Party has diligently pursued a cure within such 30-day period and has provided
written notice to the other Party that additional time is needed, then the cure
period shall be extended for an additional period (not to exceed 90 days) so long
as the non-performing Party is diligently pursuing a cure.

b. Ifthe Owner is in Default, the City’s sole and exclusive remedy shall be to seek
specific enforcement of this Reimbursement Agreement. No Default by the
Owner, however, shall: (1) affect the obligations of the City to use the Pledged
Revenues on deposit in the reimbursement fund as provided in Section 6 of this
Reimbursement Agreement; or (2) entitle the City to terminate this
Reimbursement Agreement. In addition to specific enforcement, the City shall
be entitled to attorney’s fees, court costs, and other costs of the City to obtain
specific enforcement.

c. Ifthe City is in Default, the Owner’s sole and exclusive remedies shall be to:
(1) seek a writ of mandamus to compel performance by the City; or (2) seek
specific enforcement of this Reimbursement Agreement.

Estoppel Certificate. Within thirty (30) days after the receipt of a written request by
Owner or any Transferee, the City will certify in a written instrument duly executed
and acknowledged to any person, firm or corporation specified in such request as to (i)
the validity and force and effect of this Reimbursement Agreement in accordance with
its terms, (ii) modifications or amendments to this Reimbursement Agreement and the
substance of such modification or amendments; (ii1) the existence of any default to the
best of the City’s knowledge; and (iv) such other factual matters that may be reasonably
requested.

Anti-Boycott Verification, No business with Sanctioned Countries. The Owner hereby
verifies that it and its parent company, wholly- or majority-owned subsidiaries, and
other affiliates, if any, do not boycott Israel and, to the extent this Agreement is a
contract for goods or services, will not boycott Israel during the term of this Agreement.
The foregoing verification is made solely to comply with Section 2271.002, Texas

9

Item 10.

187




21.

Government Code, and to the extent such Section does not contravene applicable Texas
or federal law. As used in the foregoing verification, ‘boycott Israel” means refusing
to deal with, terminating business activities with, or otherwise taking any action that is
intended to penalize, inflict economic harm on, or limit commercial relations
specifically with Israel, or with a person or entity doing business in Israel or in an
Israeli-controlled territory, but does not include an action made for ordinary business
purposes. The Owner understands ‘affiliate’ to mean an entity that controls, is
controlled by, or is under common control with the Owner and exists to make a profit.

The Owner represents that neither it nor any of its respective parent companies, wholly-
or majority-owned subsidiaries, and other affiliates, if any, is a company identified on
a list prepared and maintained by the Texas Comptroller of Public Accounts under
Section 2252.153 or Section 2270.0201, Texas Government Code, and posted on any
of the following pages of such officer’s internet website:

https://comptroller.texas.gov/purchasing/docs/sudan-list.pdf,
https://comptroller.texas.gov/purchasing/docs/iran-list.pdf, or
https://comptroller.texas.gov/purchasing/docs/fto-list.pdf.

The foregoing representation is made solely to comply with Section 2252.152, Texas
Government Code, and to the extent such Section does not contravene applicable
Federal law and excludes the Owner and any of its respective parent companies,
wholly- or majority-owned subsidiaries, and other affiliates, if any, that the United
States government has affirmatively declared to be excluded from its federal sanctions
regime relating to Sudan or Iran or any federal sanctions regime relating to a foreign
terrorist organization. The Owner understands “affiliate” to mean any entity that
controls, is controlled by, or is under common control with the Owner and exists to
make a profit.

No Discrimination Against Firearm Entities and Firearm Trade Associations.

To the extent this Reimbursement Agreement constitutes a contract for goods or
services for which a written verification is required under Section 2274.002 (as added
by Senate Bill 19 in the 87th Texas Legislature, Regular Session), Texas Government
Code, as amended, the Owner hereby verifies that it and its parent company, wholly-
or majority-owned subsidiaries, and other affiliates, if any, do not have a practice,
policy, guidance, or directive that discriminates against a firearm entity or firearm trade
association and will not discriminate against a firearm entity or firearm trade
association during the term of this Reimbursement Agreement. The foregoing
verification is made solely to enable the City to comply with such Section and to the
extent such Section does not contravene applicable Texas or federal law. As used in
the foregoing verification and the following definitions:

1. ‘discriminate against a firearm entity or firearm trade association,” a term defined
in Section 2274.001(3), Texas Government Code (as enacted by such Senate Bill), (A)
means, with respect to the firearm entity or firearm trade association, to (i) refuse to
engage in the trade of any goods or services with the firearm entity or firearm trade
association based solely on its status as a firearm entity or firearm trade association,
(1) refrain from continuing an existing business relationship with the firearm entity or

10

Item 10.

188




22.

firearm trade association based solely on its status as a firearm entity or firearm trade
association, or (iii) terminate an existing business relationship with the firearm entity
or firearm trade association based solely on its status as a firearm entity or firearm trade
association and (B) does not include (i) the established policies of a merchant, retail
seller, or platform that restrict or prohibit the listing or selling of ammunition, firearms,
or firearm accessories and (ii) a company’s refusal to engage in the trade of any goods
or services, decision to refrain from continuing an existing business relationship, or
decision to terminate an existing business relationship (aa) to comply with federal,
state, or local law, policy, or regulations or a directive by a regulatory agency or (bb)
for any traditional business reason that is specific to the customer or potential customer
and not based solely on an entity’s or association’s status as a firearm entity or firearm
trade association,;

ii. ‘“firearm entity,” a term defined in Section 2274.001(6), Texas Government Code
(as enacted by such Senate Bill), means a manufacturer, distributor, wholesaler,
supplier, or retailer of firearms (defined in Section 2274.001(4), Texas Government
Code, as enacted by such Senate Bill, as weapons that expel projectiles by the action
of explosive or expanding gases), firearm accessories (defined in Section 2274.001(5),
Texas Government Code, as enacted by such Senate Bill, as devices specifically
designed or adapted to enable an individual to wear, carry, store, or mount a firearm on
the individual or on a conveyance and items used in conjunction with or mounted on a
firearm that are not essential to the basic function of the firearm, including detachable
firearm magazines), or ammunition (defined in Section 2274.001(1), Texas
Government Code, as enacted by such Senate Bill, as a loaded cartridge case, primer,
bullet, or propellant powder with or without a projectile) or a sport shooting range
(defined in Section 250.001, Texas Local Government Code, as a business
establishment, private club, or association that operates an area for the discharge or
other use of firearms for silhouette, skeet, trap, black powder, target, self-defense, or
similar recreational shooting); and

iii. ‘firearm trade association,” a term defined in Section 2274.001(7), Texas
Government Code (as enacted by such Senate Bill), means any person, corporation,
unincorporated association, federation, business league, or business organization that
(1) is not organized or operated for profit (and none of the net earnings of which inures
to the benefit of any private shareholder or individual), (ii) has two or more firearm
entities as members, and (iii) is exempt from federal income taxation under Section
501(a), Internal Revenue Code of 1986, as an organization described by Section 501(c)
of that code.

No Discrimination Against Fossil Fuel Companies. To the extent this Reimbursement
Agreement constitutes a contract for goods or services for which a written verification
is required under Section 2274.002 (as added by Senate Bill 13 in the 87th Texas
Legislature, Regular Session), Texas Government Code, as amended, the Owner
hereby verifies that it and its parent company, wholly- or majority-owned subsidiaries,
and other affiliates, if any, do not boycott energy companies and will not boycott energy
companies during the term of this Reimbursement Agreement. The foregoing
verification is made solely to enable the City to comply with such Section and to the

11

Item 10.

189




23.

extent such Section does not contravene applicable Texas or federal law. As used in
the foregoing verification, “boycott energy companies,” a term defined in Section
2274.001(1), Texas Government Code (as enacted by such Senate Bill) by reference to
Section 809.001, Texas Government Code (also as enacted by such Senate Bill), shall
mean, without an ordinary business purpose, refusing to deal with, terminating business
activities with, or otherwise taking any action that is intended to penalize, inflict
economic harm on, or limit commercial relations with a company because the company
(A) engages in the exploration, production, utilization, transportation, sale, or
manufacturing of fossil fuel-based energy and does not commit or pledge to meet
environmental standards beyond applicable federal and state law; or (B) does business
with a company described by (A) above. The Owner understands ‘affiliate’ to mean an
entity that controls, is controlled by, or is under common control with the Owner within
the meaning of SEC Rule 405, 17 C.F.R. § 230.405, and exists to make a profit.

Form 1295. If required, Owner shall complete Form 1295 in connection with the
Owner’s participation in the execution of this Reimbursement Agreement generated by
the Texas Ethics Commission’s (the “TEC”) electronic filing application in accordance
with the provisions of Section 2252.908 of the Texas Government Code and the rules
promulgated by the TEC (the “Form 1295”). Ifrequired, the City shall confirm receipt
of the Form 1295 once received from the Owner, and the City agrees to acknowledge
such form with the TEC through its electronic filing application not later than the 30th
day after the receipt of such form. The Owner and the City understand and agree that,
with the exception of information identifying the City and the contract identification
number, neither the City nor its consultants are responsible for the information
contained in the Form 1295; that the information contained in the Form 1295 shall be
provided solely by the Owner; and, neither the City nor its consultants shall have
verified such information.

24. Miscellaneous.

a. The City does not waive or surrender any of its governmental powers,
immunities, or rights except to the extent permitted by law and necessary to
allow the Owner to enforce its remedies under this Reimbursement Agreement.

b. Nothing in this Reimbursement Agreement, expressed or implied, is intended
to or shall be construed to confer upon or to give to any person or entity other
than the City and the Owner any rights, remedies, or claims under or by reason
of this Reimbursement Agreement, and all covenants, conditions, promises, and
agreements in this Reimbursement Agreement shall be for the sole and
exclusive benefit of the City and the Owner.

c. This Reimbursement Agreement may be amended only by written agreement
of the Parties.

d. This Reimbursement Agreement may be executed in counterparts, each of
which shall be deemed an original.

[Signature pages to follow]

12

Item 10.

190




IN WITNESS WHEREOF, the Parties have executed this Reimbursement Agreement to
be effective as of the date written on the first page of this Reimbursement Agreement.

CITY OF MANOR, TEXAS

By:

Item 10.

Name: Dr. Christopher Harvey
Title: Mayor

ATTEST:

By:

Lluvia T. Almaraz, City Secretary

STATE OF TEXAS

Lo Lo Lo

COUNTY OF TRAVIS

BEFORE ME, a Notary Public, on this day personally appeared, Dr. Christopher Harvey, Mayor
of the City of Manor, Texas known to me to be the person whose name is subscribed to the
foregoing instrument and acknowledged to me that he executed the same for the purposes and
consideration therein expressed on behalf of that municipal corporation.

GIVEN UNDER MY HAND AND SEAL of office this day of ,2023.

(SEAL)

Notary Public, State of Texas

[Signatures Continue on Next Page]

Signature Page — City of Manor

191




Item 10.

FORESTAR (USA) REAL ESTATE GROUP,
INC., a Delaware corporation

By:
Name:
Title:
STATE OF TEXAS §
§
COUNTY OF TRAVIS §
This instrument was acknowledged before me on the day of , 2023 by

, ,of FORESTAR (USA) REAL ESTATE GROUP, INC., a Delaware
corporation, on behalf of said corporation.

Notary Public, State of Texas
(SEAL)

Name printed or typed
Commission Expires:

Signature Page - Owner o




Exhibit “A”

Improvement Area #3

Item 10.

LEGEND

*6 S —
W ] =

TRAVIS COUNTY
PARCEL 1D: 477389

TRAVIS COUNTY
PARCEL ID: 248121

rﬁﬁsawﬁ71
PARCEL ID: 858418

IMPROVEMENT
AREA #3

TRAVIS COUNTY
PARCEL 1D: 966229

TRAVIS COUNTY
// PARCEL 1D: 248146

Kimley»Homn
S IMPROVEMENT AREA #3 EETs

Exhibit A

193




Item 11.

AGENDA ITEM NO. 11

Tty oF

Il |} EST. 1872

AGENDA ITEM SUMMARY FORM

PROPOSED MEETING DATE: May 17, 2023
PREPARED BY: Lydia Collins, Director
DEPARTMENT: Finance

AGENDA ITEM DESCRIPTION:

Consideration, discussion, and possible action on the City of Manor Fiscal Year 2023-2024 Budget Priorities with the
Legislative Agenda.
BACKGROUND/SUMMARY:

At the City Council regular meeting August 19, 2022, the following was outlined as a supporting legislation resolution
for the following.

e Economic Development — Business incentives and community development

e Workforce Development —Job training and internships

e Education — Leisure services (library and shared spaces)

e 21 Century Infrastructure — public safety and utility expansion

e Health Science, Tech & Manufacturing — To establish a partnership with bio-tech companies and health
science industries.

City staff is seeking Council direction to continue working on these agenda items/add additional priorities.
Preliminary valuation is showing an increase of taxable value of 14% compared to last year

2022 $1,788,475,384

2023 $2,045,512,492

Our new value is up 8% compared to last year.

LEGAL REVIEW: Not Applicable

FISCALIMPACT: Not Applicable

PRESENTATION: No
ATTACHMENTS: Yes

e Budget Committee Calendar

STAFF RECOMMENDATION:

It is the City staff’s recommendation that the City Council give staff and Budget Committee direction for the Fiscal
Year 2023-2024 budgeting priorities.

PLANNING & ZONING COMMISSION: Recommend Approval Disapproval None 194




BUdget Committee s M ATpr‘iA|"2$ F s s M J':mv?llz'r3 F s s M "JrUI\)l,vlz'?

1 1.2 3

2 3 4 5 6 7 8 4 5 6 7 8 9 10 2 3 4 5 6 7 8
9 10 11 12 13 14 15 11 12 13 14 15 16 17 9 10 11 12 13 14 15
16 17 18 19 20 21 22 18 19 20 21 22 23 24 16 17 18 19 20 21 22
23 24 25 26 27 28 29 25 26 27 28 29 30 23 24 25 26 27 28 29

30 30 31

Sunday Monday Tuesday Wednesday Thursday Friday Saturday
5

ManorPalooza

7 8 9 10 11 12 13

Cinco de Mayo

Cap Improvements
Committee @ 5pm

14 MothersDay | 15 16 17 18 19 20 Armed Forces Day

21 22 23 BN Spcl CC Mitg Rl 26 27

Staff deadline for )
budget submission Potential Budget

Committee Meeting

28 29 MemorialDay | 30 31

City Hall Closed

Notes

195




Item 12.

AGENDA ITEM NO. 12

 CITY OF

AGENDA ITEM SUMMARY FORM

PROPOSED MEETING DATE: May 17, 2023
PREPARED BY: Pauline Gray, P.E.
DEPARTMENT: City Engineer

AGENDA ITEM DESCRIPTION:

Consideration, discussion, and possible action on a resolution to conduct a public hearing to consider amendment
of Water and Wastewater Community Impact Fees as recommended by the Advisory Committee.

BACKGROUND/SUMMARY:

Periodically, updates to the City's adopted Community Impact Fee Program are necessary to address changing
development conditions. The City Council reappointed the Planning and Zoning Commission and one representative
of the development community as the Community Impact Fee Advisory Committee. The Committee has met several
times and has evaluated the City’s current Impact Fee Program and has come up with recommendations for
proposed changes to the Community Impact Fees for Water and Wastewater.

LEGAL REVIEW: No
FISCAL IMPACT: No
PRESENTATION: No
ATTACHMENTS: Yes

e Resolution No. 2023-19

STAFF RECOMMENDATION:

Itis the City staff's recommendation that the City Council approve Resolution No. 2023-19 to conduct a public hearing
for the purpose of amending Water and Wastewater Community Impact Fees.

PLANNING & ZONING COMMISSION: Recommend Approval Disapproval None

196




Item 12.

RESOLUTION NO. 2023-19

A RESOLUTION OF THE CITY OF MANOR, TEXAS SETTING
A PUBLIC HEARING TO BE HELD AT 7:00 P.M. ON
WEDNESDAY, JULY 5§, 2023, AT MANOR CITY HALL, 105 E.
EGGLESTON STREET, MANOR, TEXAS 78653 TO CONSIDER
AMENDMENT OF WATER AND WASTEWATER
COMMUNITY IMPACT FEES.

WHEREAS, Chapter 395, Texas Local Government Code requires a political subdivision, prior to
amending an impact fee, to hold a public hearing to consider amending the Community Impact Fee,
and

WHEREAS, it is deemed in the best interest of the City of Manor to consider amending its impact
fees pursuant to said code;

NOW THEREFORE, BE IT RESOLVED BY THE CITY COUNCIL OF THE CITY OF
MANOR, TEXAS, THAT:

SECTION 1. A public hearing shall be held at 7:00 PM on Wednesday, July 5, 2023, at Manor City
Hall, located at 105 E. Eggleston Street, Manor, Texas 78653 for the purpose of amending Water and
Wastewater Community Impact Fees. Community Impact Fees may be used to generate revenues for
funding or recouping the costs of water and wastewater facilities, or the expansion of such facilities
by and which are attributable to new development.

SECTION 2. That before the date of the first publication of the notice of public hearing, the City
make available to the Community Impact Fee calculations.

SECTION 3. That the City provide public notice of such public hearing as follows:

(a) By serving notice of the hearing at least thirty (30) days prior to the hearing by certified mail
to any person who has given written notice by certified or registered mail to the City Secretary
requesting notice of such hearing within two (2) years preceding the date of adoption of this
resolution setting the public hearing; and

(b) By publishing notice at least thirty (30) days, but not more than sixty (60) days, prior to the
date set for the hearing, in a newspaper of general circulation within Travis County.

197




RESOLUTION NO. 2023 -19 P{ item 12.

SECTION 4. Should any section or part of this Resolution be held unconstitutional, illegal, or invalid, or
the application to any person or circumstance thereof ineffective or inapplicable, such
unconstitutionality, illegality, invalidity, or ineffectiveness of such section or part shall in no way
affect, impair or invalidate the remaining portion or portions thereof; but as to such remaining portion or
portions, the sanle shall be and remain in full force and effect and to this end the provisions of this
Resolutionaredeclared severable.

SECTION 5. It is hereby officially found and determined that the meeting at which this Resolution is
passed was open to the public as required and that the public notice of the time, place, and purpose of
said meeting was given as required by the Open Meetings Act, Chapter 551, Tex. Gov't. Code.

DULY PASSED AND APPROVED on this 17" day of May 2023.

THE CITY OF MANOR, TEXAS

Dr. Christopher Harvey
Mayor

ATTEST:

Lluvia T. Almaraz
City Secretary

198




Item 13.

AGENDA ITEM NO. 13

TCITY OF

AGENDA ITEM SUMMARY FORM

PROPOSED MEETING DATE: May 17, 2023
PREPARED BY: Pauline M. Gray, P.E.
DEPARTMENT: City Engineer

AGENDA ITEM DESCRIPTION:

Consideration, discussion, and possible action on the submission of the FY2023 Project Improvement List to
Capital Metro.

BACKGROUND/SUMMARY:

The proposed project list will include street reconstruction and resurfacing including excavation, subgrade
preparation, flexible base, and hot mix asphalt concrete in selected areas. Also proposed is mill and overlay in
selected areas. The project list will also include fog seal maintenance work in Greenbury, Wildhorse, and Bell
Farms.

LEGAL REVIEW: Not Applicable
FISCAL IMPACT: Yes
PRESENTATION: No
ATTACHMENTS: Yes
e Manor Paving Projects
e 2023 Paving Projects-Reconstruction
e 2023 Paving Projects- Mill and Overlay
e 2023 Paving Projects-FOG SEAL

STAFF RECOMMENDATION:

It is the City staff’'s recommendation that the City Council approve the submission of the FY2023 Project
Improvement List to Capital Metro.

PLANNING & ZONING COMMISSION: Recommend Approval Disapproval None

199




Iltem 13.
1500 County Road 269
1 Leander, TX 78641

Mailing Address:
9601 Amberglen Blvd. #109
Austin, TX 78729

CITY OF MANOR PROPOSED PAVING PROJECTS - FY2023

1. Paving Projects (This list will be provided to Cap Metro) based on FY2022 Roadway Analysis:

Street Reconstruction and Resurfacing Including Excavation, Subgrade Preparation, Flex Base,
and Hot Mix Asphalt Concrete in selected areas.

Wheeler from Dead End to Bastrop Street

Wheeler from North Caldwell to Lexington

North Caldwell from W Boyce to Eggleston

North Caldwell from E Wheeler to E Browning

North Caldwell from E Eggleston to E Wheeler
Carrie Manor — from Burnet to Mid-Block San Marcos

Street Repair — Mill & Overlay

Boyce from N Lockhart to Parsons

Carrie Manor from S Lexington to S Burnet
Carrie Manor from S San Marcos to S Lockhart
JF Nagle from S Lampasas to Smith

Browning from the Dead End to N Bastrop
Rector from N LaGrange to Dead End

Smith from JF Nagle to the School

Gregg Street from E Wheeler to E Browning

N Bastrop from W Townes to W Lane

Burnet from E Burton to E Carrie Manor

2. Fog Seal Projects — Maintenance Portion of the FY2023 Paving Improvements
Greenbury
Wildhorse Creek
Bell Farms

A fog seal is an asphalt emulsion applied just once over an existing asphalt pavement surface. This
renews any oxidization (that faded gray look) on the surface of the asphalt. It also seals minor cracks,
stops the road from raveling, and makes the surface look better.

200




150 300 600

™ —

SCALE IN FEET
SCALE: 1" = 300'

2023 CAPITAL METRO PAVING IMPROVEMENTS

STREET RECONSTRUCTION

1500 CR 269 IMPROVEMENTS

Leander, Texas 78641
512 . 259 . 3882

Texas Engineering Firm #4242 DATE: 04/27/2023 DRAWN BY: JG£



AutoCAD SHX Text
CALDWELL ST.

AutoCAD SHX Text
LAMPASAS  ST.

AutoCAD SHX Text
GREGG ST.

AutoCAD SHX Text
RECTOR ST.

AutoCAD SHX Text
TOWNES ST.

AutoCAD SHX Text
PARSONS ST.

AutoCAD SHX Text
CARRIE MANOR ST.

AutoCAD SHX Text
JESSE ST.

AutoCAD SHX Text
SAMARIPA ST.

AutoCAD SHX Text
ST. HWY 212

AutoCAD SHX Text
BASTROP

AutoCAD SHX Text
CALDWELL ST.

AutoCAD SHX Text
LEXINGTON ST.

AutoCAD SHX Text
CARRIE MANOR ST.

AutoCAD SHX Text
ATHENS ST.

AutoCAD SHX Text
BRENHAM ST.

AutoCAD SHX Text
BURTON ST.

AutoCAD SHX Text
ABERNATHY ST.

AutoCAD SHX Text
BURNET ST.

AutoCAD SHX Text
SAN MARCOS ST.

AutoCAD SHX Text
LOCKHART ST.

AutoCAD SHX Text
LAMPASAS ST.

AutoCAD SHX Text
PARSONS ST.

AutoCAD SHX Text
BURNET  ST.

AutoCAD SHX Text
ST. HWY 212

AutoCAD SHX Text
JOHN F. NAGLE ST.

AutoCAD SHX Text
SMITH LN.

AutoCAD SHX Text
HAMILTON POINT CIR.

AutoCAD SHX Text
BOYCE ST.

AutoCAD SHX Text
EGGLESTON ST.

AutoCAD SHX Text
LOCKHART ST.

AutoCAD SHX Text
LEXINGTON ST.

AutoCAD SHX Text
BASTROP ST.

AutoCAD SHX Text
LA GRANGE ST.

AutoCAD SHX Text
BROWNING ST.

AutoCAD SHX Text
SAN MARCOS ST.

AutoCAD SHX Text
LLANO ST.

AutoCAD SHX Text
WHEELER ST.

AutoCAD SHX Text
TOWNES ST.

AutoCAD SHX Text
BROWNING ST.

AutoCAD SHX Text
LEXINGTON ST.

AutoCAD SHX Text
ST.

AutoCAD SHX Text
0

AutoCAD SHX Text
SCALE IN FEET

AutoCAD SHX Text
75

AutoCAD SHX Text
150

AutoCAD SHX Text
300

AutoCAD SHX Text
600


400

100 200

0

SCALE IN FEET

SCALE: 1" = 400'

STREET MILL AND OVERLAY

2023 CAPITAL METRO PAVING IMPROVEMENTS

STREET MILL AND OVERLAY
IMPROVEMENTS

1500 CR 269
Leander, Texas 78641

512 . 259 . 3882

DRAWN BY: JG£

DATE: 04/27/2023

[
<
3
€
k=
[
o
£
=
@
o}
£
=)
c
w
»
©
X
o
T



AutoCAD SHX Text
CALDWELL ST.

AutoCAD SHX Text
LAMPASAS  ST.

AutoCAD SHX Text
GREGG ST.

AutoCAD SHX Text
MURRAY AV.

AutoCAD SHX Text
RECTOR ST.

AutoCAD SHX Text
TOWNES ST.

AutoCAD SHX Text
PARSONS ST.

AutoCAD SHX Text
CARRIE MANOR ST.

AutoCAD SHX Text
JESSE ST.

AutoCAD SHX Text
SAMARIPA ST.

AutoCAD SHX Text
ST. HWY 212

AutoCAD SHX Text
BASTROP

AutoCAD SHX Text
CALDWELL ST.

AutoCAD SHX Text
LEXINGTON ST.

AutoCAD SHX Text
CARRIE MANOR ST.

AutoCAD SHX Text
ATHENS ST.

AutoCAD SHX Text
BRENHAM ST.

AutoCAD SHX Text
BURTON ST.

AutoCAD SHX Text
ABERNATHY ST.

AutoCAD SHX Text
BURNET ST.

AutoCAD SHX Text
SAN MARCOS ST.

AutoCAD SHX Text
LOCKHART ST.

AutoCAD SHX Text
LAMPASAS ST.

AutoCAD SHX Text
BROWNSBORO

AutoCAD SHX Text
PARSONS ST.

AutoCAD SHX Text
DIMMIT WY.

AutoCAD SHX Text
BURNET  ST.

AutoCAD SHX Text
ST. HWY 212

AutoCAD SHX Text
JOHN F. NAGLE ST.

AutoCAD SHX Text
SMITH LN.

AutoCAD SHX Text
TREVIN CV.

AutoCAD SHX Text
HAMILTON POINT CIR.

AutoCAD SHX Text
JARON DR.

AutoCAD SHX Text
BOYCE ST.

AutoCAD SHX Text
EGGLESTON ST.

AutoCAD SHX Text
LOCKHART ST.

AutoCAD SHX Text
LEXINGTON ST.

AutoCAD SHX Text
BASTROP ST.

AutoCAD SHX Text
LA GRANGE ST.

AutoCAD SHX Text
BROWNING ST.

AutoCAD SHX Text
BURNET  ST.

AutoCAD SHX Text
SAN MARCOS ST.

AutoCAD SHX Text
LLANO ST.

AutoCAD SHX Text
WHEELER ST.

AutoCAD SHX Text
TOWNES ST.

AutoCAD SHX Text
LANE AV.

AutoCAD SHX Text
BROWNING ST.

AutoCAD SHX Text
LEXINGTON ST.

AutoCAD SHX Text
ST.

AutoCAD SHX Text
GREGG MANOR RD.

AutoCAD SHX Text
0

AutoCAD SHX Text
SCALE IN FEET

AutoCAD SHX Text
100

AutoCAD SHX Text
200

AutoCAD SHX Text
400

AutoCAD SHX Text
800


Item 13.

%

0 250500 1000

SCALE IN FEET
SCALE: 1" = 1000

2023 CAPITAL METRO PAVING IMPROVEMENTS

STREET FOG SEAL

1500 CR 269 IMPROVEMENTS

Leander, Texas 78641
512 . 259 . 3882

Texas Engineering Firm #4242 DATE: 04/27/2023 DRAWN BY: JG.



AutoCAD SHX Text
SHADOWLAWN

AutoCAD SHX Text
JOHN TYLER ST.

AutoCAD SHX Text
CARRIAGE

AutoCAD SHX Text
HILLS DR.

AutoCAD SHX Text
CALDWELL ST.

AutoCAD SHX Text
LAMPASAS  ST.

AutoCAD SHX Text
GREGG ST.

AutoCAD SHX Text
MURRAY AV.

AutoCAD SHX Text
RECTOR ST.

AutoCAD SHX Text
TOWNES ST.

AutoCAD SHX Text
PARSONS ST.

AutoCAD SHX Text
CARRIE MANOR ST.

AutoCAD SHX Text
JESSE ST.

AutoCAD SHX Text
SAMARIPA ST.

AutoCAD SHX Text
ST. HWY 212

AutoCAD SHX Text
BASTROP

AutoCAD SHX Text
CALDWELL ST.

AutoCAD SHX Text
LEXINGTON ST.

AutoCAD SHX Text
CARRIE MANOR ST.

AutoCAD SHX Text
HILL LN.

AutoCAD SHX Text
OLD HWY. 20

AutoCAD SHX Text
BLAKE-MANOR RD.

AutoCAD SHX Text
MARIE LN.

AutoCAD SHX Text
CONSTELLATION DR.

AutoCAD SHX Text
MIZZEN ST.

AutoCAD SHX Text
CANOPY LN.

AutoCAD SHX Text
TOPSAIL DR.

AutoCAD SHX Text
GALLANT ST.

AutoCAD SHX Text
SKYSAIL DR.

AutoCAD SHX Text
MAXA DR.

AutoCAD SHX Text
GREENBURY DR.

AutoCAD SHX Text
MAXA DR.

AutoCAD SHX Text
MARSHALL ST.

AutoCAD SHX Text
MORGAN'S POINT ST.

AutoCAD SHX Text
MURCHISON ST.

AutoCAD SHX Text
ATHENS

AutoCAD SHX Text
BASTROP ST.

AutoCAD SHX Text
BASTROP

AutoCAD SHX Text
ATHENS ST.

AutoCAD SHX Text
HEREFORD ST.

AutoCAD SHX Text
BRENHAM ST.

AutoCAD SHX Text
BURTON ST.

AutoCAD SHX Text
ABERNATHY ST.

AutoCAD SHX Text
BASTROP ST.

AutoCAD SHX Text
ATHENS ST.

AutoCAD SHX Text
LIBERTY ST.

AutoCAD SHX Text
LAPOYNOR ST.

AutoCAD SHX Text
CANTON

AutoCAD SHX Text
BURNET ST.

AutoCAD SHX Text
SAN MARCOS ST.

AutoCAD SHX Text
LOCKHART ST.

AutoCAD SHX Text
LAMPASAS ST.

AutoCAD SHX Text
BROWNSBORO

AutoCAD SHX Text
OLD HWY. 20

AutoCAD SHX Text
GREGG MANOR RD.

AutoCAD SHX Text
OLD HWY 20

AutoCAD SHX Text
PARSONS ST.

AutoCAD SHX Text
DIMMIT WY.

AutoCAD SHX Text
BURNET  ST.

AutoCAD SHX Text
ST. HWY 212

AutoCAD SHX Text
BRENHAM ST.

AutoCAD SHX Text
NAVASOTA

AutoCAD SHX Text
JOHN F. NAGLE ST.

AutoCAD SHX Text
SMITH LN.

AutoCAD SHX Text
TREVIN CV.

AutoCAD SHX Text
HAMILTON POINT CIR.

AutoCAD SHX Text
HAMILTON POINT CIR.

AutoCAD SHX Text
JARON DR.

AutoCAD SHX Text
HAMILTON

AutoCAD SHX Text
PT.

AutoCAD SHX Text
LAPOYNOR ST.

AutoCAD SHX Text
OWLING

AutoCAD SHX Text
PILLION PL.

AutoCAD SHX Text
CALERA

AutoCAD SHX Text
CV.

AutoCAD SHX Text
RUNNEL RIDGE RD.

AutoCAD SHX Text
BRUSHFIELD

AutoCAD SHX Text
SHADOWGLEN BLVD

AutoCAD SHX Text
PILLION PL.

AutoCAD SHX Text
SHADOW

AutoCAD SHX Text
GLADE PL.

AutoCAD SHX Text
SHADY

AutoCAD SHX Text
GOLD RUN

AutoCAD SHX Text
CV.

AutoCAD SHX Text
TERRACE MEADOW WY.

AutoCAD SHX Text
SUN DAPPLE

AutoCAD SHX Text
AMBER DAWN

AutoCAD SHX Text
BRANCH LIGHT LN.

AutoCAD SHX Text
ST MARY DR.

AutoCAD SHX Text
RING DR.

AutoCAD SHX Text
DOOR BELL DR.

AutoCAD SHX Text
WEDDING DR.

AutoCAD SHX Text
CHIME DR.

AutoCAD SHX Text
SNOW LN.

AutoCAD SHX Text
CARILLON WY.

AutoCAD SHX Text
FOREST SAGE ST.

AutoCAD SHX Text
RING DR.

AutoCAD SHX Text
INDIAN OAK BND.

AutoCAD SHX Text
PRAIRIE

AutoCAD SHX Text
SAGE CV.

AutoCAD SHX Text
GEORGE BUSH ST.

AutoCAD SHX Text
WILLIAM HARRISON ST.

AutoCAD SHX Text
JAMES POLK ST.

AutoCAD SHX Text
JAMES MADISON ST.

AutoCAD SHX Text
WHITE

AutoCAD SHX Text
HOUSE ST.

AutoCAD SHX Text
JAMES MONROE ST.

AutoCAD SHX Text
 BOIS D' ARC LN. 

AutoCAD SHX Text
DWIGHT

AutoCAD SHX Text
BOYCE ST.

AutoCAD SHX Text
EGGLESTON ST.

AutoCAD SHX Text
LOCKHART ST.

AutoCAD SHX Text
LEXINGTON ST.

AutoCAD SHX Text
BASTROP ST.

AutoCAD SHX Text
LA GRANGE ST.

AutoCAD SHX Text
BROWNING ST.

AutoCAD SHX Text
BURNET  ST.

AutoCAD SHX Text
SAN MARCOS ST.

AutoCAD SHX Text
LLANO ST.

AutoCAD SHX Text
CT.

AutoCAD SHX Text
CT.

AutoCAD SHX Text
WHEELER ST.

AutoCAD SHX Text
TOWNES ST.

AutoCAD SHX Text
LANE AV.

AutoCAD SHX Text
BROWNING ST.

AutoCAD SHX Text
LEXINGTON ST.

AutoCAD SHX Text
RING DR.

AutoCAD SHX Text
PECAN HILL

AutoCAD SHX Text
CV.

AutoCAD SHX Text
HIGH SIERRA ST.

AutoCAD SHX Text
PINE NEEDLE ST.

AutoCAD SHX Text
WEDDING DR.

AutoCAD SHX Text
RING DR.

AutoCAD SHX Text
ST MARY DR.

AutoCAD SHX Text
BELL PKWY.

AutoCAD SHX Text
WHITE

AutoCAD SHX Text
HOUSE

AutoCAD SHX Text
ST.

AutoCAD SHX Text
WILLIAM HARRISON

AutoCAD SHX Text
CT.

AutoCAD SHX Text
EISENHOWER ST.

AutoCAD SHX Text
GEORGE BUSH ST.

AutoCAD SHX Text
THOMAS JEFFERSON ST.

AutoCAD SHX Text
DWIGHT EISENHOWER ST.

AutoCAD SHX Text
THEODORE ROOSEVOLT ST.

AutoCAD SHX Text
JOHN ADDAMS ST.

AutoCAD SHX Text
GEORGE BUSH ST.

AutoCAD SHX Text
JAMES GARFIELD ST.

AutoCAD SHX Text
RUTHERFORD B. HAYES ST.

AutoCAD SHX Text
GERARLD  FORD ST.

AutoCAD SHX Text
ULYSSES S. GRANT ST.

AutoCAD SHX Text
RICHARD NIXON ST.

AutoCAD SHX Text
JOHN F. KENNEDY ST.

AutoCAD SHX Text
MAXA DR.

AutoCAD SHX Text
OZ DR.

AutoCAD SHX Text
CANOPY LN.

AutoCAD SHX Text
WY.

AutoCAD SHX Text
CT.

AutoCAD SHX Text
TR.

AutoCAD SHX Text
CT.

AutoCAD SHX Text
FIELD SPAR DR.

AutoCAD SHX Text
JOHN MICHAEL DR.

AutoCAD SHX Text
CHRISTINA

AutoCAD SHX Text
GARZA LN.

AutoCAD SHX Text
ST.

AutoCAD SHX Text
ST.

AutoCAD SHX Text
RIDGE LN.

AutoCAD SHX Text
ST.

AutoCAD SHX Text
ST.

AutoCAD SHX Text
SHIP BELL DR.

AutoCAD SHX Text
TINKER ST.

AutoCAD SHX Text
PEALING WY.

AutoCAD SHX Text
CASTIN DR.

AutoCAD SHX Text
LEXINGTON BLVD.

AutoCAD SHX Text
SHADOWGLEN BLVD.

AutoCAD SHX Text
CAMELLIA

AutoCAD SHX Text
CV.

AutoCAD SHX Text
GENOME DR.

AutoCAD SHX Text
TILLGANG PASS

AutoCAD SHX Text
GREGG MANOR RD.

AutoCAD SHX Text
HILL LN.

AutoCAD SHX Text
MURCHISON ST.

AutoCAD SHX Text
TEXANA TRL.

AutoCAD SHX Text
S. SAN MARCOS ST.

AutoCAD SHX Text
CARRIZO SPRINGS PATH

AutoCAD SHX Text
MEXIA PASS

AutoCAD SHX Text
COMEDERO WY.

AutoCAD SHX Text
0

AutoCAD SHX Text
SCALE IN FEET

AutoCAD SHX Text
250

AutoCAD SHX Text
500

AutoCAD SHX Text
1000

AutoCAD SHX Text
2000


Item 14.

AGENDA ITEM NO. 14

Tty oF

Il |} EST. 1872

AGENDA ITEM SUMMARY FORM

PROPOSED MEETING DATE: May 17, 2023
PREPARED BY: Frank T. Phelan, P.E.
DEPARTMENT: City Engineer

AGENDA ITEM DESCRIPTION:

Consideration, discussion, and possible action on a change order to the construction contract for the Cottonwood
Creek Phase 2 Wastewater Collection System Improvement project.

BACKGROUND/SUMMARY:

The proposed change order includes adjusting and upsizing 500 LF of piping that will eliminate a utility conflict
and increase pipe capacity and provide reimbursement for pumping and hauling costs incurred due to inflow and
infiltration caused by a faulty manhole bore installation. Contract time has been increased due to project delays
caused by the necessitation of an easement acquisition following the start of construction. The developer had
withdrawn authorization to acquire an easement on the subject tract because the tract was to be purchased by
the developer. When the closing on the tract did not occur, the easement was again necessary.

LEGAL REVIEW: Not Applicable
FISCAL IMPACT: Yes
PRESENTATION: Yes
ATTACHMENTS: Yes

e Change Order No. 2

STAFF RECOMMENDATION:

It is the City staff’s recommendation that the City Council approve Change Order No. 2 to the construction contract for
the Cottonwood Creek Phase 2 Wastewater Collection System Improvement project with R Construction Civil, LLC in the
amount of $68,122.75.00

PLANNING & ZONING COMMISSION: Recommend Approval Disapproval None

204




Item 14.
1500 County Road
1 Leander, TX 78641

P.O. Box 2029
Leander, TX 78646-2029

CHANGE ORDER

ORDER NO.: 2
DATE: 5/17/2023
AGREEMENT DATE: 23" February, 2022

NAME OF PROJECT: Cottonwood Creek Phase 2 Wastewater Collection System Improvements
OWNER: City of Manor
CONTRACTOR: R Construction Civil, LLC

The following changes are hereby made to the CONTRACT DOCUMENTS:
1. Justification:

Iltem No. 1 — Add Change Order Item, C.O. 2-1, Excavation, removal and disposal of 500 LF of 8”
PVC pipe @ $49/LF

Item No. 2 — Add Change Order Item, C.O. 2-2, Installation of 500 LF of 12" PVC pipe @ $136/LF

Item No. 3 — Add Change Order Item, C.O. 2-3, Installation of 4.61 VF of Manhole Riser, including
coating @ $3,980.04/VF

Item No. 4 — Add Change Order Item, C.O. 2-4, 500 LF of Extra Depth for pipe installation @
$36.88/LF

Item No. 5. — Add Change Order Deduct Item, C.O. 2-5, 48.29 Loads of Groundwater Infiltration
Removal and Disposal @ ($1,039.91)/Load

2. Change to CONTRACT PRICE:

Original CONTRACT PRICE: $697,645.00

Current CONTRACT PRICE adjusted by previous CHANGE ORDER $788,069.00

The CONTRACT PRICE due to this CHANGE ORDER will be INCREASE by: $68,122.75
The new CONTRACT PRICE including this CHANGE ORDER will be: $856,191.75

3. Change to CONTRACT TIME:

The CONTRACT TIME will be increased or (decreased) by 350 calendar days.
The date for completion of all work will be July 17, 2023

4. Approvals Required:

To be effective, this order must be signed by all parties to the Agreement if it changes the scope or
objective of the PROJECT, or as may otherwise be required by the SUPPLEMENTAL GENERAL
CONDITIONS.

205




GBA

Recommended by: _ Frank Phelan, P.E. Signed:

Ordered by:

Engineer

Accepted by:

Owner City of Manor

Signed

Page 2

Signed:

Item 14.

of 2




Item 15.

AGENDA ITEM NO. 15

AGENDA ITEM SUMMARY FORM

PROPOSED MEETING DATE: May 17, 2023
PREPARED BY: Frank T. Phelan, P.E.
DEPARTMENT: City Engineer

AGENDA ITEM DESCRIPTION:

Consideration, discussion, and possible action on a statement of work for engineering services for the Manor
Commercial Park Wastewater Collection System & Carriage Hills Lift Station #5 Improvements project.

BACKGROUND/SUMMARY:

The proposed project will provide centralized wastewater collection system improvements to the existing Manor
Commercial Park development. Presently, the developed lots in this subdivision are all on septic systems. This
project is to be primarily funded with $3,400,000 of Coronavirus State and Local Fiscal Recovery Funds (SLFRF)
proceeds. The project will include approximately 8,700 LF of 8-inch & 12-inch gravity sewer mains, 18 manholes
and upgrades to the Carriage Hills lift station/piping. The project will also provide for decommissioning of septic
systems via connection of developed lots to the installed collection system. This project was discussed along with
our 2021 Bond projects during the August 18™ and September 7%, 2021 Capital Improvements Committee
meetings. This project would provide economic benefits to the city through the voluntary annexation of properties
within the Manor Commercial Park and by decommissioning of existing septic tanks and fields, existing businesses
will be able to more fully utilize their lots to grow their businesses, providing more jobs and economic benefit to
the city. There is also a proposal to extend another 12” line off the wastewater lines in this project to serve an
even larger area, which includes many of the properties along the western side of Kimbro Road, which also have
the potential for light industrial development. With the initiation process of the SLFRF program, the statement of
work for the Manor Commercial Park wastewater collection system extension project should have been reviewed
and approved by the City Council in 2021. The project plans are 90% complete, which has helped city staff
facilitate several successful meetings with the landowners and explain the benefits of the project. This has led to
the City Council to approve several annexation agreements this year and positioned the city to market the
commercial park for suitable industrial development projects looking to expand in the region.

LEGAL REVIEW: Yes, Completed

FISCAL IMPACT: Yes, Funding through SLFRF
PRESENTATION: Yes

ATTACHMENTS: Yes

e Statement of Work #7

STAFF RECOMMENDATION:

It is the city staff's recommendation that the City Council approve and award Statement of Work #7 to George
Butler Associates, Inc. for the Manor Commercial Park Wastewater Collection System & Carriage Hills Lift Station
#5 Improvements in the amount of $344,600.

PLANNING & ZONING COMMISSION: Recommend Approval Disapproval None

207




1500 County Road 269
Leander, TX 78641 Item 15.
PO Box 2029

JAY ENGINEERING, ADIVISION OF GBA Leander, TX 78646-2029

EXHIBIT A
Statement of Work (SOW) No. 7
TO MASTER SERVICES AGREEMENT

Statement of Work No. 7 to the Master Services Agreement between the City of Manor, Texas, as CITY, and
George Butler Associates, Inc., as ENGINEER, dated October 7, 2020.

Through this SOW, CITY hereby authorizes ENGINEER to undertake the work assignment described in the
following, said assignment to be performed within the terms and conditions defined in said Master Services
Agreement, except as modified herein.

ASSIGNMENT: Professional Engineering Services to establish a comprehensive plan for preliminary
engineering, final design, permitting, bidding and construction phase services for the wastewater collection
system improvements to serve the area of Manor Commercial Park, a portion of Manor Villa Estates and
select adjacent properties. These improvements include the design of approximately 8,700 linear feet (LF) of

8-inch & 12-inch diameter gravity sewer main, 18 manholes and upgrades to the existing Carriage Hills lift
station/piping. Preliminary design services will also include calculation of associated Wilbarger wastewater
treatment plant capacity.

SCOPE OF SERVICES:

TASK 1: PROJECT MANAGEMENT

Coordinate project goals and align CITY and ENGINEER expectations and purposes. Subtasks will include:
SUBTASK 1: Kickoff Meeting
SUBTASK 2: Schedule Maintenance
SUBTASK 3: Progress Meetings
SUBTASK 4: Invoices and Progress Reports
SUBTASK 5: Principal Oversight

TASK 2: PRELIMINARY ENGINEERING

SUBTASK 1: Collect all maps, drawings, and specifications available on the relevant portions of the
project.

SUBTASK 2: Define the project criteria in accordance with funding commitments and limits.

SUBTASK 3: Review field investigations, surveying and mapping analysis to refine the quantitative
limits of the project.

SUBTASK 4: Identify alternative designs, methodologies, equipment and configurations for the
proposed project.

208




1500 County Road 269
Leander, TX 78641 Item 15.
PO Box 2029

JAY ENGINEERING, ADIVISION OF GBA Leander, TX 78646-2029

SUBTASK 5: Complete preliminary design calculations and drawing for the construction of the
facilities.

SUBTASK 6: Submit preliminary design to Owner for review and approval.

SUBTASK 7: Prepare preliminary opinion of probable cost for the anticipated quantities involved for
identified alternatives.

TASK 3: CONSTRUCTION DOCUMENT PHASE

SUBTASK 1: Review field investigation, survey and other data for performance of detailed designs, as
required.

SUBTASK 2: Prepare drawings for construction of the project.
SUBTASK 3: Prepare technical specifications for construction of the project.
SUBTASK 4: Prepare contract documents for construction of the project.

SUBTASK 5: Prepare Texas Commission on Environmental Quality (TCEQ) permitting submittal for
construction of the project.

TASK 4: PERMITTING PHASE

SUBTASK 1: Prepare and submit applications for: City of Manor Coronavirus Local Fiscal Recovery Fund
Project Approval and TCEQ.

SUBTASK 2: Respond to reviewing entity comments.

SUBTASK 3: Finalize plans and documents accordingly with any necessary changes from regulating
entities.

TASK 5: BIDDING PHASE

SUBTASK 1: Provide bidding documents to CITY and assist with bidding.

SUBTASK 2: Issue bid documents to potential bidders.

SUBTASK 3: Answer potential bidder inquiries and issue addenda as necessary.

SUBTASK 4: Conduct pre-bid conference.

SUBTASK 5: Submit opinion of probable construction costs (OPCC) and attend bid opening.

SUBTAKS 6: Reviewing bids, develop bid tabulation, perform contactor qualifications verification and
provide recommendation of award.

SUBTASK 7: Submit to CITY for review and approval to award.

SUBTASK 8: Provide contracts and execution of award.

209




1500 County Road 269
Leander, TX 78641 Item 15.
PO Box 2029

JAY ENGINEERING, ADIVISION OF GBA Leander, TX 78646-2029

TASK 6: CONSTRUCTION PHASE

SUBTASK 1: Review required bonding and insurance requirements and prepare notice to proceed.
SUBTASK 2: Conduct pre-construction conference and review contract requirements.
SUBTASK 3: Perform submittal review and approval in accordance with construction documents.

SUBTASK 4: Conduct periodic observations of construction progress and prepare record copies of
inspections.

SUBTASK 5: Review field testing reports.

SUBTASK 6: Issue construction-related decisions to contractor on proceeding with alternative or unit
price work items.

SUBTASK 7: Review contractor's pay requests for accurate progress representation and make
recommendations to Owner for payment.

SUBTASK 8: Conduct a final inspection of all completed work and quantities, and issue
recommendations for final payment.

SUBTASK 9: Issue a certificate of substantial construction compliance and closeout documents.
SUBTASK 10: Prepare record construction drawings to reflect any adjustments.

ADDITIONAL SERVICES:
Services specifically excluded under this Agreement include:

1. Easement acquisition services.

Re-designs after first approval or due to changes in regulatory criteria or Owner options.

3. Topographic or boundary surveys or survey corrections, easement surveys and field
notes/descriptions.

4. Design or survey services for other improvements, conveyances, or utilities other than listed.

5. Site development plans.

6. Permitting not specifically listed, payment of review fees, filing fees, permit fees, advertising
fees, service commitment charges, aid to construction or other similar charges.

7. Inspection or testing services.

8. SWPPP or TPDES permits.

9. Permitting Support.

10. Construction phase services not specifically listed.

11. Any designs or reports not specifically listed.

12. Additional meetings and site visits not specifically listed.

13. Any other service not specifically listed.

g

210




1500 County Road 269
Leander, TX 78641 Item 15.
PO Box 2029

JAY ENGINEERING, ADIVISION OF GBA Leander, TX 78646-2029
COMPENSATION:
TASK 1. FEE: $9,300
TASK 2. FEE: $137,500
TASK 3. FEE: $129,500
TASK 4. FEE: $12,600
TASK 5. FEE: $11,700
TASK 6. FEE: $44,000
TOTAL: $344,600
CITY OF MANOR, TEXAS GEORGE BUTLER ASSOCIATES, INC.

,476{,?'5: Bk

By: By:

Date: Date: 10/22/21

211




M:\Proposals_Quals\40_WEG\_Scope&Fee Only\5892_Manor_Beltex_WW_Clixn_System_Improvements\03_Working documents\GIS\P5892 Beltex WW.aprx

v Item 15.
%)
"S{

2
7%,

Legend

I 8" Gravity Main

Andre, JohnsonDMY®

G 12" Sewer Main WS iy . ¢

$ City Limits
- 1% Annual Chance Flood Hazard

Project Area
Lift Station
Manville Water Main

Manor Sewer Main

Carriage Hills Lift
Station Improvements
500 1,000 1,500 2,000

Austin[Ghost
= »Town

PROJECT NUMBER Concept Layout
P5892.00 Manor Commercial Park
DATE Wastewater Collection System Improvements
JAY ENGINEERING, ADIVISION OF GBA 110/21/2021 Manor, Travis County, Texas




Item 16.

AGENDA ITEM NO. 16

Tty oF

Il |} EST. 1872

AGENDA ITEM SUMMARY FORM

PROPOSED MEETING DATE: May 17, 2023
PREPARED BY: Daria Sakharova, P.E.
DEPARTMENT: City Engineer

AGENDA ITEM DESCRIPTION:

Consideration, discussion, and possible action on the 2022 Fall Inflow and Infiltration Report.

BACKGROUND/SUMMARY:

The City of Manor has been contending with elevated wet-weather flows at its wastewater treatment facilities.
To begin the process of addressing high levels of wet-weather flows, the City Council engaged GBA to initiate a
flow monitoring program. An initial flow monitoring study was conducted in the Fall of 2021 which identified
several sanitary sewer drainage basins with elevated rates of Inflow and Infiltration (I&I). A second (more
focused) round of flow monitoring was performed in the Fall of 2022 to further delineate 1&I locations within
the City’s system. Additionally, two basins from the 2021 project that had been identified as having excessive 1&I
were selected for Sanitary Sewer Evaluation Study (SSES) investigations for the Fall of 2022, which consisted of
manhole inspections, smoke testing, and closed-circuit televising (CCTV) of the basins’ sanitary sewers.

The attached project report provides analysis of all flow and rainfall monitoring from the Fall 2022
investigations, including manhole condition assessments, CCTV, and smoke testing results, GIS updates, and
engineering recommendations for wastewater collection system administrative, maintenance, and construction
items. The report’s Conclusions and Recommendations section includes annual inflow-reduction investigative
budget amounts and scheduling for overall 1&I mitigation program preliminary engineering, design,
construction, and post-construction activities. Construction project scopes will be defined based upon capital
budget amounts established to accomplish desired I&| mitigation objectives.

LEGAL REVIEW: Not Applicable

FISCAL IMPACT: No

PRESENTATION: Yes

ATTACHMENTS: Yes
1. 2022 Fall Inflow and Infiltration PowerPoint Presentation Deck
2. 2022 Fall Inflow and Infiltration Report

STAFF RECOMMENDATION:

Staff recommends that the City Council accept the report as presented.

PLANNING & ZONING COMMISSION: Recommend Approval Disapproval None
(Type X before choice to indicate)

213




IIIIIII

2023 INFLOW & INFILTRATION
INVESTIGATIONS PROJECT

Preliminary Engineering Report

City of Manor
Public Works Department

SOW No. 22
GBA NO. 15333
April 24, 2023

FINAL REPORT

]ITY OF

« |IMANOR
GBA ] e e




Item 16.

FALL 2022 FLOW MONITORING MANOR, TX
TABLE OF CONTENTS
List of Tables ..o 3
LISE OF FIBUI@S ... eiiiiiiiiie ettt e e s et e e e s et e e e s eabeeeessbaeeessbeeeeseseeeessnseenesnnns 4
Definitions and Abbreviations...........cccccooviviiiininiii 5
1 Project Background and Description 6
1.1 Introduction and Objectives.............ccccciiiiiiiiiiiiiiiicee 6
1.2 Project ATea........ccoiiiiiiiiiiic s 6
1.3 Project Background and Past Field Studies.............cccccccceiiiiiiiiiiiiinne. 7
2 Flow and Rainfall Monitoring and Analysis 10
21 Flow and Rainfall Monitoring.............ccooviviniiiiniiiicccccccccce, 10
211 Metering Plan ..........cccccccciiiiiiiiiiiiin e 10
2.1.2 Installation and Servicing of Meters.............cccccecucuiuiiiiiiiiiiinnen. 10
2.1.3 System Characteristics..........cccccoeiiininiiininiiiiiiiiciccccccee 10
22 Evaluation of Collected Data........cccceeeirirueuerinnieenininccieecereeccseeeeenes 17
221 Manual Field Measurements............ccoeeuerererueueinierercrenennereeneeneneens 17
222 Mass Balance Checks.........coceerinrieininniceniniccieeceneeeceee s 17
2.3 Surcharge CoNditions...........ceeiiriiiiiniiieee s 20
24 Flow and Rainfall Monitoring Data Analysis...........ccccccoeeininniicinnccnne. 23
241 Selection of Data for Analysis .........cccoeeevinreicininciirecceeene 23
2.4.2 Analysis of Rainfall Data ..........cccoccoeeiviiiiiiniiiiiciicccccene 23
243 Average Daily Dry Weather Flow (ADDF)........cccccccccvviiiinncnnne. 28
244 INAITAtION ..o 30
245 INEIOW ..o 35
2.4.6 Peak System Flow Rates.........ccccoeuiiiinniiiniiiiccceecceeee 39
2.4.7 Volumetric ANALYSis ......ccccovuieiiiniiiiiicireceeeeeee s 40
2.5 Flow and Rainfall Monitoring Results Summary..........cccccccccvvveicinnenenne. 41
3 Manhole Condition Assessments 42
3.1 Inspection Background ............cccccoiiiiniiiiniiiice e 42
3.2 Inspection ReSUILS .........ccciiiiiiiiiicccc s 42
3.2.1 Structural Condition SUMMATY.......cccovueiinireiiiirciiecceene 48
4 CCTYV Inspections.......ceececencrncnenes 51
41 Inspection Background ............cccccoiiiiniiininiiiceee e 51
42 Heavy Cleaning..........cccoeueerireueiirineieeineeeeeeeeeeeese et eaes 51
43 Structural Condition SUMMATY .........ccccviiieiiinriiircce s 54
5 Smoke Testing.......ccceveercreerereenernnnes 57
6 GIS Updates.......oeveeveerniecncnnnnee 62
7 Conclusions and Recommendations 63
7.1 CONCIUSIONS. ...ttt s 63
7.2 Recommendations ...........ccccveeeirineieeninnieeieceeee s 63
721 Maintenance Items............ccooiiiiiiiiiiiii 63
7.2.2  Construction Items...........ccooooviiiiiiiiiiiic 69
7.2.3  Administrative Items............ccocooiiiiiiiic 69
Appendix A - Flow Monitoring Site Data 72
Appendix B - Manhole Inspections Rated 3 73
Appendix C - CCTV Results .75
Appendix D - Defective Clean-out List 77
DRAFT REPORT ) GBA PN 15333.00

215




Item 16.

FALL 2022 FLOW MONITORING MANOR, TX
LIST OF TABLES

Table 2-1 - Flow Monitoring Site SUMMATY..........cccccccuiiiiiiiiiiiii e 11
Table 1-2 - Rain Gauge SUMMATY ........ccccouviiiiiiiiiiiiiiciiiecce e 11
Table 2-3 - City of Manor Subsystem Characteristics.............ccccoviirinniiinniiiiccccee 15
Table 2-4 - Mass Balance — Al Meters............cccooviiiiiiiiiiiiicccc e 18
Table 2-4 - Mass Balance — All Meters (Cont'd) ........cccoeeieenriniiniiniicineincceneeeeeeceeveeeees 19
Table 2-5 - 2021 vs 2022 Surcharge Depths............ccccoiiiiiiiiiiniiiiiicccce 20
Table 2-6 — 2022 Surcharge SUMMATY ..........cccccciviiiiiiiniiiiic e 21
Table 2-7 - Rainfall Depth-Duration-Frequency Relationship for City of Manor .......................... 24
Table 2-8 - Weighted Rain Gauge Delineation..............cccccovuiiiviiiiiiiiiiiiniiiinccccecceeee 25
Table 2-9 - Rain Gauge 1 & 2 - Rainfall Summary...........cccccoceoioiviiiiinniiinicccecceeeceenees 25
Table 2-10 - Rain Gauge 3 - Rainfall SUMMATrY .........cccccceoiviiiiiiniiiiiicceceeeeeeeeeeees 26
Table 2-11 = ADDEF SUIMIMATY ......c.ciiiiiiiiiiiiciinieeieee et 29
Table 2-12 - Infiltration SUMMATY .........ccccoiiiiiiiiiii s 33
Table 2-13 - Excessive Inflow Rate Thresholds ..o 36
Table 2-14 - INfIOW SUMIMATY ......cocooiiiiiiiiiiiiiiiiiiic e 37
Table 2-15 - Calculated Capacity vs Peak FIOWS..........ccccccciiiiiiiiiiiiiiiiiccccccccee 40
Table 2-16 - Statistical Analysis of Rain to Sewer Volume..............ccccoouviviiinninininiiiciiccce, 40
Table 2-17 - Flow Monitoring Results SUMMAIY ..........cccccceiiiiiiiiiiiiiicceeceee 41
Table 3-1 - Manholes NOt INSPpected .........oociriieirniciccrccrcce s 45
Table 3-2 - New Manholes FOUNd. ..........cccoouiiiiiiiiiiiiiiiiiic e 45
Table 3-3 - Manholes Rated 4.............coooiiiiiiiiiiiiiiiic e 48
Table 3-4 - Inflow Rates for Manhole Defects..............cccccciiiiiiiiiniininiiiiccccccecee 49
Table 3-5 - Manholes in Need of Rehabilitation..............ccccccciiiiiiininiiincccccccce 50
Table 4-1 = CCTV SUIMIMATY ....c.coiiiiiiiiiiiiiieiiee ettt 51
Table 4-2 - CCTV Lines with a Highest Defect Rating of 4..............ccccoeviinnnininniiiiiicccce, 55
Table 4-3 - Lines with a Highest Defect Rating of 3 ...........cccccceoiviiiinniiiccccecceees 55
Table 5-1 - Houses with No Vent SmoKe ...........ccccooiiiiiiiiiiiii s 58
Table 5-2 — Smoke Testing RESULLS.........c.ccoeuiiiiiiiiiiciceee s 59
Table 6-1 - Updates Needed in GIS..........cccociiiiiiiiiiicciceccee s 62
Table 7-1 - Inflow Reduction Program for the City of Manor...........cccocceeiviiiiniiinnncccrenees 66
Table 7-2 - Inflow Reduction Program Schedule for the City of Manor............cccccccevuiiiiniiiiinnnnnnee. 67
Table 7-3 = CCTV Major Defects........c.ccuiiviriiiiiieieiiecrneete et 68
Table 7-4 - Manholes in Need of Rehabilitation.............cccccccciiiiiiiiiiiicccce, 70
Table 7-5 - GIS Updates Recommended.............ccceoiviriiiiniiciicincceeeeeeeeee s 71

]
DRAFT REPORT GBA PN 15333.00

216




Item 16.

FALL 2022 FLOW MONITORING MANOR, TX
LIST OF FIGURES

Figure 1-1 - Flow Monitoring Project ATeM..........ccccucucuiuiuiuiuiiiiiiiiiiiiiiiiisieie e 8
Figure 1-2 — SSES PilOt ATC .....ovuueeeieieieieieeeeeet ettt ettt ettt 9
Figure 1-3 - 2021 Flow Monitoring LOCAEIONS ..........ccveivuiuiuioiniiiiiiinieiciciricicctieie s 10
Figure 2-1 - Flow and Rainfall Monitoring LOCAHIONS..........ccccvueuiiviiiiuiiiiiiiiinieceiieeecsesee s 12
Figure 2-2 - Flow and Rainfall Monitoring Locations (Continued).............ccccoeevvviivinniicinnccnininnennes 13
Figure 2-3 - Flow and Rainfall Monitoring Locations (Continued).............ccococevvviivinniinnnccnininnenne. 14
Figure 2-4 - City of Manor Subsystem FIow Dia@ram...............cccccccvviiviiiiiiiniiiinieeisieeeeseeneenes 16
Figure 2-5 - 2022 Surcharging SUMMATY ..........cccvveuioiniiuciiniieeeieeeieeeseeeee s 22
Figure 2-6 — Measured Versus Expected Monthly Average Rainfall...............ccccooevviniiivnnicninnnenne. 27
Figure 2-7 — Inflow and INfIlEFAHION SOUTCES.........ccoouvueuiireiiiiiiiciciieieceteeeeeeteeee e 31
Figure 2-8 — Graphical Illustration of I&1 COMPONENEs...........ccceeieiveiuieiiiieiiinieieeeneeeeeeeee s 32
Figure 2-9 — Excessive INfITTALION ...........coiviviiiiuiiriiiiiieicceee ettt 34
Figure 2-10 — EXCESSIVE INIOT.........cueieiiiiiiiiiiiieiciccteeee et 38
Figure 3-1 - Manhole Condition AssesSments MAp .............ccccceceeivnuiininiieiininneeineeeeeseeee s 43
Figure 3-2 — Manhole Condition Assessments SCOrNG GUIME...............ccceueuvinievicneiiiiccieeeisccnes 44
Figure 3-3 — Incomplete Manhole INSPECtions.............ccevvuvirruiieiniiiiiicicieisicccce s 46
Figure 3-4 — New Manholes FOUN..............ccooiiiiiiiiniiiiiiccesce s 47
Figure 4-1 — CCTV COMPIELEU.........ocoouiviiiiiiiiiiiiiiiiiiiciciiciccccccc e 52
Figure 4-2 — Heavy Cleaning LiNes...........ccccovuvueuiuiuiiiiiiiiiiiiiicecicciecsccsstieiess e 53
Figure 4-3 — CCTV Lines with Major Defects ............ccuviiiiiinniniiiicicieiiscccss s 56
Figure 5-1 — Typical Smoke TeSHNG SOUTCES .........cccuvuiuiiviiiiuiiiiiiiiiiiiicicieic s 58
Figure 5-2 — 51110ke TeSHING LINES .......ccoovvuvuviriiiiiiiiiiiicicicicicicec e 60
Figure 5-3 — Smoke TeStiNg RESUIES .........cccueuviviviiiiiiiiiiiiiiicicicccccccc e 61

DRAFT REPORT GBA PN 15333.00

217




FALL 2022 FLOW MONITORING MANOR, TX

Definitions and Abbreviations

cctv
CIPP
City
DS
DSMH
FBS
FL
GBA
GIS
GPM
&I

IR
MCU
MH
MSA
MWLS
PACP
PVC
SSO
UMH
us
USMH
VCP

DRAFT REPORT

Closed-Circuit Television
Cured-In-Place Pipe

City of Manor

Downstream

Downstream Manhole

Frame Base Seal

Fracture Longitudinal

George Butler Associates, Inc.
Geographic Information System
Gallons Per Minute

Inflow and Infiltration

Infiltration Runner

Miscellaneous Camera Under Water
Manhole

Miscellaneous Survey Abandoned
Miscellaneous Water Level Survey
Pipeline Assessment Certification Program
Polyvinyl Chloride

Sanitary Sewer Overflow
Unknown Manhole

Upstream

Upstream Manhole

Vitrified Clay Pipe

GBA PN 15333.00

Item 16.

218




Item 16.

FALL 2022 FLOW MONITORING MANOR, TX

1 Project Background and Description

1.1 Introduction and Objectives

This Field Work Summary presents the results of the Inflow and Infiltration (I&I) Field Investigations
Project performed for the City of Manor (City) by George Butler Associates, Inc. (GBA). The field
investigations for this Work Order included manhole condition assessments, closed-circuit televising
(CCTV), smoke testing, and dyed water testing of sanitary sewer lines within a specific area of the City.
Additionally, flow monitoring was performed at 12 locations through the City for a contracted period of
90 days from September 1 through November 30, 2022, although meters were installed several days prior
to the start date and remained installed through at least December 10™".

The objectives for this project are:

1. Check for pipe connectivity, structural defects, and potential sources of 1&I in existing manholes
and sanitary sewer lines within the specific neighborhoods selected to be investigated.

2. Collect flow and rainfall data and perform 1&I analysis on the separated sanitary sewers in the City
of Manor.

3. Use the data collection to update the City’s GIS
4. Ensure accurate routing is documented

The ultimate goal for the City of Manor is to reduce the flows in its sanitary sewer system. The City has
documented several instances of sanitary sewer overflows (SSQO’s) as well as concerns of residential sewer
backups. The Pilot Areas identified for field investigations were systems of particular concern based on
the results of previous flow monitoring performed in 2021.

1.2 Project Area

This project encompassed two project areas:

Area 1 —the entire City of Manor was studied by the installation of flow meters and rain gauges. This
area is shown on Figure 1-1.

Area 2 — a specific subsection of the City specifically identified for in-depth Sanitary Sewer Evaluation
Study (SSES) will be referred to as the “Pilot Area”. This area is generally bound by Wedding Drive on
the North, Old HWY-20 on the South, Beltex Drive on the East, and Skimmer Run on the West. This
area is shown on Figure 1-2.

Both areas are made up of primarily residential neighborhoods as well as a limited amount of commercial
development throughout the area. Most of the existing infrastructure was originally built between 1985
and 2005 and is comprised of 6 to 24 inch diameter, predominantly PVC, sewers. The general flow of the
project area is from the outside northeast and southwest corners into the treatment plant located at the
center of the City near E Parsons St and Llano St. The study area included facilities within the Wilbarger
Creek watershed. However, wastewater collected from a portion of the Cottonwood watershed is
pumped into the Wilbarger Creek watershed.

DRAFT REPORT GBA PN 15333.00

219




Item 16.

FALL 2022 FLOW MONITORING MANOR, TX

The City’s Wilbarger Creek Wastewater Treatment Plant (WWTP) is located at 547 Llano Street. Reducing
the amount of 1&I in the project area will reduce the stress on this WWTP during wet weather events.

1.3 Project Background and Past Field Studies

The City of Manor has encountered high wastewater collection and treatment system flows during
storm events and rainy periods. These high flows jeopardize the City’s ability to meet permitted flow
requirements at treatment plant facilities (excursions) and present potential for system spills (bypasses).

In the Fall of 2021, the City contracted with GBA to perform city-wide flow monitoring. The locations of
2021 flow meters are shown on Figure 1-3. That flow monitoring and subsequent analysis indicated
several drainage basins in the City had particularly high 1&I rates. Two of the basins metered in 2021
showed especially elevated levels of 1&I (Sites 6 and 7) and as such were selected for further SSES
investigations in this 2022 project. The City then engaged GBA to conduct this focused scope
investigation with the purpose of identifying surface water inflow and ground water infiltration into the
City’s existing wastewater system in an effort to identify deficiencies contributing to high wastewater
collection and treatment system flow conditions.

DRAFT REPORT GBA PN 15333.00

220




FALL 2022 FLOW MONITORING

Figure 1-1 — Flow Monitoring Project Area

] Pilot Project Area
Flow Meter Basin
Basin ID

DRAFT REPORT

MANOR, TX

GBA PN 15333.00

Item 16.

221




FALL 2022 FLOW MONITORING

Item 16.

MANOR, TX

Figure 1-2 —

DRAFT REPORT

SSES Pilot Area

Legend

Lift Station

O  Sewer Manhole
—* Sewer Line
[ rilot Project Area
Flow Meter Basin

Basin ID
CJos
CJoz

GBA PN 15333.00

222




FALL 2022 FLOW MONITORING

Figure 1-3 — 2021 Flow Monitoring Locations

DRAFT REPORT

MANOR, TX

GBA PN 15333.00

Item 16.

223




FALL 2022 FLOW MONITORING MANOR, TX

2 Flow and Rainfall Monitoring and Analysis

Item 16.

The 2021 flow monitoring period experienced very low rainfall levels. In order to perform more precise
I&I analysis, it was decided to repeat the flow monitoring in 2022. The results from this repeat flow
monitoring are summarized in the following sections.

2.1 Flow and Rainfall Monitoring

211 Metering Plan

The metering plan for the City of Manor, TX 2022 flow monitoring included 12 flow meter sites and 3 rain
gauges. All of the flow meter locations are in the Wilbarger Creek Watershed.

Site investigations at monitoring sites were conducted prior to and during installation. All meter sites are
listed in Table 2-1 and the rain gauges are listed in Table 2-2. The monitoring basins are shown on Figure
2-1. Figures 2-2 and 2-3 show more focused pictures of the meter sites and rain gauges.

2.1.2 Installation and Servicing of Meters

Installation of the 12 flow meters began on 8/21/2022 and was completed by 8/22/2022. A change from
the 2021 flow monitoring, the basin which contributed to meter site 2 was broken up into three (3)
smaller basins — 2A, 2B, and 2C in an effort to identify a more precise location for the significant I1&lI
previously measured at Site 2 during the 2021 investigations.

The monitoring equipment was inspected and checked biweekly to download data and collect manual
measurements for velocity and depth adjustments. The flow meters were synchronized to collect data
on a 5-minute interval and on a concurrent basis. Flow monitoring was contracted to last for a 90-day
period through the end of November, however meter removal did not take place until 12/16/2022. It

was desired to capture rainfall that was anticipated at the beginning of December, so the meters were
left in place until the 16™.

Rainfall monitoring was conducted at three locations that were selected to accurately represent the
rainfall received in each meter basin. Rain gauge locations are listed in Table 1-2.

2.1.3 System Characteristics

Flow monitoring sites were selected to isolate areas in the system and establish basin flow
characteristics. A basin inventory for each meter site including acreages, sewer footages tributary to the
meter sites, and inch-diameter mile totals are listed in Table 2-3. A basin flow schematic diagram was
created to represent the established basins. This schematic shows how meters and basins are
inter-connected. The basin flow schematic is provided as Figure 2-4.

DRAFT REPORT GBA PN 15333.00

224




FALL 2022 FLOW MONITORING

Table 2-1 — Flow Monitoring Site Summary

MANOR, TX

Item 16.

T N N N N N N N AN NN N N NN N N N NN N N N NN N N N N NN NN NN NN N .
GBA PN 15333.00

DRAFT REPORT

Meter| Manhole Metered Meter Pipe Analysis Analysis .
Address . . K . . Equipment
ID | Number Segment Basin [Diam (in)|Period Start|Period End
1 N10-004 547 Llano St. N10-005_N10-004 1 15 8/22/2022 (12/16/2022|1SCO 2150- A/V Sensor
2 N11-003 546 Llano St. N11-004_N11-003 2 24 8/22/2022 (12/16/2022|1SCO 2150- A/V Sensor
2A | M12-034 12131 FM 973 M12-035_M12-034 2A 15 8/22/2022 |12/16/2022|1SCO 2150 - A/V Sensor
2B | M12-006 @8001 Maxa Dr. M12-006_M12-005 2B 10 8/22/2022 |12/16/2022|1SCO 2150 - A/V Sensor
2C | M12-013 | 13100 Greenbury Dr. | M12-014 M12-013| 2C 15 8/22/2022 (12/16/2022|1SCO 2150- A/V Sensor
3 010-027 Gregg St. 010-027_011-004 3 15 8/22/2022 (12/16/2022|1SCO 2150- A/V Sensor
4 P09-034 11806 Athens St. P09-035_P09-034 4 12 8/22/2022 (12/16/2022|1SCO 2150- A/V Sensor
6 013-007 | 13300 Prairie Sage Cv. | 013-007_013-006 6 8 8/22/2022 (12/16/2022|1SCO 2150- A/V Sensor
7 012-003 Old TX-20 012-004_012-003 7 15 8/22/2022 (12/16/2022|1SCO 2150- A/V Sensor
8 N09-001 | 11616 USHWY 290 | N09-002_N09-001 8 12 8/22/2022 (12/16/2022|1SCO 2150- A/V Sensor
10 113-003 12002 Pyrite Rd. 113-003_113-003 10 12 8/22/2022 |12/16/2022|1SCO 2150 - A/V Sensor
13 [ 009-007 409 Parsons St. 009-007_009-007 13 12 8/22/2022 (12/16/2022|1SCO 2150- A/V Sensor
Table 1-2 — Rain Gauge Summary
Rain Gauge ID General Location
RG 1 Wilbarger Creek Sludge Processing Plant
RG 2 Wildhorse Creek Lift Station Site
RG 3 Stonewater North Lift Station Site

225




FALL 2022 FLOW MONITORING

Figure 2-1 — Flow and Rainfall Monitoring Locations

MANOR, TX

| & Rain Gauge
' O Flow Meter Location
B  Lift Station

Flow Meter Basin

Basin ID
[ wcot
[ wco2
[ wco2a
[ wecoze
] weoe
[ wco3
[ weos
[ wcos
[: wco7
[ wcos /
1 wcio ;
[Jwecs

Glen Phisfsssion Creek West
Tributary
L Shadowglen
& Oid ¢ 13' Goif-@b: Reclanmed 7
o == Water Pun'!) Station j
| V% - =S —
/4 [CartieiMafor—=esa"
/ 3| /
: i
‘. | e
[ N
i G,
! 7 Texas
\ Matenals
\ ém ~ i 04 A Manor S,
WlldhufJe?‘,»\J =Y { 1 .
m . A Map data £l UpenStreetMap contributors, Microsoft, Facebook: Inc. and its affillates, Esri Community Maps contribitoss, &
2 Creek peng 2 Wi 1.5
3 l —Lagos 3
DRAFT REPORT

& ~f Hégights Ph. 1

- presicentialy,

"?‘hr;sidennal

Presidential
Glen Ph. 48

= T US2%0 - =
o Cottonviood

GBA PN 15333.00

Item 16.

226




FALL 2022 FLOW MONITORING

Item 16.

MANOR, TX

Figure 2-2 — Flow and Rainfall Mon/tor/ng Locations (Continued)

\
4 Rain Gauge \ ‘.
O Flow Meter Location \

@ Lift Station l
Flow Meter Basin

Basin ID
[ Jwco1
[ weo2
[ wco2a
[ wcozs
[ weo2c
[ wco3
[ weo4
[ wcos
[ wcoz
[ wcos
[ wcio
[ wcis

Q g f »" f hadowglen Golf Wilbarger
L (G5 Club Reclaimed (32ek WWTP-

Water Pump sca@u — S

dap contributors
1

N \\-.
Q’?e/
EJQ =

Microsoft, Faceboo

DRAFT REPORT

GBA PN 15333.00

227




FALL 2022 FLOW MONITORING

Figure 2-3 — Flow and Rainfall Monitoring Locations (Continued)

4 Rain Gauge / >4 dured oLl 4,,%‘.“ ;
© Flow Meter Location e / Vi
D Lift Station 10

Flow Meter Basin

Basin ID
[ weo1
wCo2
WC02A
WC028
WC02C
WCo3
WCo04
WC06
wCo7
WCo8
WC10 g
wC13

H0000800000

02

Presidential
Meadows

Kimbr¢ ) Creek
Eslates

Seramgen 02

“
B

Y
s,

Vi,
e,

B presidentia
/  Heights Ph. 1

/ 02C

——-GlenPhr T

treetMa, ;n uuL o

DRAFT REPORT

%
&

g

Presigential

Glen Ph-48

US220-

Cottonwood

e g"'l s "hess .'2&4 ayer by Esr
Tributa
-:“;_:_ZdMlles

MANOR, TX

GBA PN 15333.00

Item 16.

228




Item 16.

FALL 2022 FLOW MONITORING MANOR, TX
Table 2-3 - City of Manor Subsystem Characteristics
Site/ Subsystem Cumulative | Subsystem | Cumulative | Subsystem | Cumulative
Subsystem Area (acres) | Area (acres) | Length (ft) [ Length (ft) IDM IDM
1-N10-004 118 118 16,668 16,668 27 27
2-N11-003 766 1,493 103,846 215,660 198 385
2A-M12-034 215 309 36,064 43,430 63 75
2B-M12-006 58 58 9,396 9,396 14 14
2C-M12-013 360 360 58,988 58,988 97 97
3-010-027 117 611 22,230 87,886 36 131
4-P09-034 258 258 37,396 37,396 55 55
6-013-007 50 50 8,913 8,913 14 14
7-012-003 100 150 17,328 26,241 31 44
8-N09-001 136 136 10,672 10,672 18 18
10-113-003 94 94 7,366 7,366 13 13
13-009-007 100 100 17,588 17,588 23 23

Notes:

(1) IDM =inch-diameter miles, a benchmark used to quantify total amount of sanitary sewer

pipe in each subsystem. It is cound by taking the product of the diameterininces and

multiplying it by the length in miles.

DRAFT REPORT

GBA PN 15333.00

229




FALL 2022 FLOW MONITORING MANOR, Tx| 'tem 16.

Figure 2-4 — City of Manor Subsystem Flow Diagram

sita 1
Sub; 118 Wilbarger Creek
Basin I(ev Total: 118
Site 2C A‘"\-\ T
. Sub = Subsystem Area |acres) Sub: 360 )‘—»._\_‘_‘s oy
Sulb: 1000 i -
, Total: 360 0. g
) Tetd = Cumnulative Area [T ]:“ Diarer o
Upstraam of Site [acres) Oy e 214
12013 ﬁ""“""*—ﬂqqﬂ-ﬂni_
Site 2 Site 2- 147 Ciameter Mew
LEgErld Sub: 766 +———— ushE .- N11008 —» Wilbarger Creek
; DSV - N11-003
e 28 10° Dim_.m‘___________‘_m“- 1,489 Lift Station
Site 28 s - W16 i‘ "
Wilbarger Craek Sub:58 " Louk.M120S R
Total: 58 =R
w;g, |
=%
S
Lift Statien “’:'-_.-.‘_;%}
LR
Sive 10 SHe 10 - 12° Ciameter Narth Site 28
Sub:94  ——  USMH- (13004 ——p St o #*  Sub: 215
Total: 94 DS H — (32003 Lift Station Total: 309 -
L]
=]
BZE
W
'-l X
"2
= =20
s
Site 6 site & - B Dlameter Site 7 Site 7 - 15" ameter
Subi80 b uswH-opm7 — 5 camiage Hills > Sub-200 ———— UswH .01z —— 4 Bell Farms
Total: 50 DSMH - 013-006 Lift Station Total: 150 DSMH-012-003 Lift Station
Site 13 Site 13 - 12 Diameter izl
sub: 100 LSMH - 003008 > c“':“ WETE? A b Sub:117
Total: 100 DSWH - 009-007 Lift Station Total: 611
Site B Site 1. 12" Diameter Site 4 e d- 12" Mameter
Sub:136 ———— ustH-noans —— O/ High School Sub: 258 b—— UShH - pisns ——p Wildhorse Creek
Tatak: 136 DSMIH - NO9-001 b DT Total: 258 DS H - 05 4 Lift Statien

GBA PN 15333.00
16 230

DRAFT REPORT




FALL 2022 FLOW MONITORING Item 16.

MANOR, TX

2.2 Evaluation of Collected Data

2.2.1 Manual Field Measurements

Manual measurements for level and velocity were taken at the metering sites to compare to meter
readings. The manual measurements were used to calibrate the flow monitoring data. Adjustments to
level could be made in the field but adjustments to velocity were generally made in the office.
Adjustments were made in the field only when excessive discrepancies were identified. The relative
accuracy of the collected flow data can be evaluated by comparison of real-time flow meter readings
and manually obtained flow-profiling data. These measurements have a generally accepted percentage
error of 10%. This error is compounded under the following conditions: high velocity (3 feet per second
(fps) and higher), low velocity (1 fps and lower), low flow level (less than 1 inch), or silting conditions in
the pipe. Manual field measurements compared to meter readings are summarized for each flow
monitoring site in Appendix A.

2.2.2 Mass Balance Checks

Mass balance checks were performed during flow monitoring as a quality assurance measure. These
checks involved summing daily flows at each meter site throughout the monitoring period and
comparing upstream to downstream base flows for connected meter sites. Daily volumes from flow
meter data were calculated and summarized. The mass balance was conducted to provide assurance
that recorded flows were acceptably accurate. A summary of the mass balance performed is provided in
Table 2-4.

There were only a handful of days with negative mass balance results and most were attributed to
meter malfunctions. Since subsystem calculations are performed by subtracting contributing flow
meters from the cumulative meter in question, if the cumulative meter gets fouled and misses readings,
the mass balance results in a negative value. There were no imbalances that raised concern for system
routing or exfiltration during this project.

DRAFT REPORT GBA PN 15333.00

231




FALL 2022 FLOW MONITORING MANOR, TX
Table 2-4 — Mass Balance — All Meters
Site 1 - Site 2 - Site 2 - Site 2A - Site 2A - Site 2B- Site 2C- Site 3 - Site 3 - Site 4 - Site 6 - Site 7 - Site 7 - Site 8 - Site 10 - Site 13 - Average
Cumulative | Cumulative | Subystem | Cumulative | Subsystem |Cumulative| Cumulative | Cumulative | Subsystem | Cumulative | Cumulative | Cumulative | Subsystem | Cumulative | Cumulative | Cumulative | RG 1 RG 2 RG 3 Rain
Flow Flow Flow Flow Flow Flow Flow Flow Flow Flow Flow Flow Flow Daily Daily Daily
Volume Volume Volume Volume |Flow Volume| Volume Volume Volume [Flow Volume| Volume Volume Volume |Flow Volume| Volume Volume Volume Total Total Total |Daily Total
Date (MG) MG) (MG) (MG) (MG) (MG) (MG) (MG) (MG) (MG) (MG) (MG) (MG) (MG) (MG) (MG) (in) (in) (in) (in)
26-Aug-22 0.03 0.70 0.47 0.20 0.16 0.08 0.27 -0.11 0.12 0.05 0.22 0.17 0.08 0.03 0.02 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00
27-Aug-22 0.03 0.77 0.49 0.21 0.18 0.07 0.60 0.39 0.12 0.06 0.24 0.17 0.06 0.03 0.03 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00
28-Aug-22 0.03 0.79 0.46 0.25 0.22 0.08 0.79 0.55 0.14 0.07 0.25 0.19 0.07 0.03 0.03 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00
29-Aug-22 0.02 0.70 0.36 0.25 0.21 0.09 0.76 0.53 0.13 0.05 0.23 0.17 0.07 0.04 0.03 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00
30-Aug-22 0.02 0.67 0.38 0.22 0.18 0.07 0.63 0.40 0.13 0.06 0.25 0.19 0.07 0.03 0.03 0.00 0.03 0.03 0.01
31-Aug-22 0.03 0.74 0.44 0.25 0.22 0.05 0.56 0.33 0.13 0.06 0.27 0.21 0.07 0.03 0.03 0.00 0.14 0.02 0.03
1-Sep-22 0.03 0.80 0.48 0.27 0.24 0.05 0.56 0.32 0.14 0.06 0.27 0.20 0.08 0.03 0.03 0.00 0.00 0.02 0.01
2-Sep-22 0.03 0.78 0.48 0.24 0.22 0.05 0.52 0.28 0.14 0.07 0.26 0.19 0.08 0.03 0.02 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00
3-Sep-22 0.04 0.82 0.50 0.26 0.24 0.06 0.54 0.29 0.14 0.07 0.26 0.19 0.08 0.02 0.03 0.00 0.02 0.02 0.01
4-Sep-22 0.04 0.84 0.49 0.29 0.26 0.06 0.51 0.28 0.13 0.06 0.24 0.18 0.07 0.02 0.02 0.00 0.02 0.02 0.01
5-Sep-22 0.03 0.95 0.58 0.30 0.28 0.07 0.53 0.28 0.14 0.07 0.24 0.18 0.07 0.03 0.03 0.00 0.01 0.00 0.00
6-Sep-22 0.03 0.85 0.51 0.28 0.24 0.06 0.56 0.30 0.14 0.06 0.23 0.17 0.09 0.04 0.03 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00
7-Sep-22 0.03 0.87 0.53 0.27 0.21 0.08 0.58 0.32 0.15 0.06 0.26 0.20 0.09 0.06 0.03 0.00 0.08 0.12 0.05
8-Sep-22 0.04 0.92 0.46 0.37 0.32 0.09 0.57 0.31 0.14 0.07 0.44 0.37 0.10 0.05 0.02 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00
9-Sep-22 0.03 0.81 0.42 0.24 0.19 0.07 0.15 0.50 0.25 0.14 0.09 0.30 0.22 0.09 0.05 0.02 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00
10-Sep-22 0.01 0.88 0.46 0.19 0.15 0.08 0.14 0.48 0.25 0.14 0.08 0.28 0.19 0.07 0.04 0.02 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00
11-Sep-22 0.04 0.97 0.52 0.19 0.15 0.10 0.17 0.48 0.24 0.15 0.07 0.27 0.20 0.07 0.04 0.02 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00
12-Sep-22 0.03 0.91 0.51 0.16 0.11 0.11 0.14 0.49 0.25 0.14 0.05 0.24 0.19 0.08 0.04 0.02 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00
13-Sep-22 0.04 0.87 0.46 0.17 0.12 0.10 0.14 041 0.19 0.13 0.06 0.22 0.16 0.08 0.05 0.02 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00
14-Sep-22 0.03 0.76 0.30 0.22 0.16 0.10 0.14 0.42 0.18 0.13 0.05 0.22 0.17 0.09 0.06 0.02 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00
15-Sep-22 0.03 0.80 0.32 0.22 0.18 0.10 0.15 0.39 0.16 0.13 0.05 0.21 0.16 0.08 0.05 0.02 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00
16-Sep-22 0.04 0.81 0.32 0.22 0.17 0.10 0.16 0.44 0.20 0.14 0.05 0.21 0.16 0.08 0.05 0.02 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00
17-Sep-22 0.04 0.91 0.38 0.24 0.19 0.10 0.18 0.44 0.16 0.15 0.07 0.24 0.17 0.09 0.05 0.03 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00
18-Sep-22 0.04 0.96 0.38 0.26 0.21 0.10 0.21 0.40 0.16 0.16 0.08 0.25 0.17 0.07 0.05 0.02 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00
19-Sep-22 0.04 0.87 0.36 0.24 0.19 0.08 0.18 0.41 0.15 0.15 0.06 0.23 0.17 0.09 0.06 0.02 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00
20-Sep-22 0.04 0.86 0.36 0.23 0.16 0.08 0.18 0.40 0.14 0.16 0.06 0.22 0.16 0.08 0.07 0.02 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00
21-Sep-22 0.04 0.84 0.36 0.22 0.17 0.08 0.18 0.40 0.14 0.16 0.07 0.23 0.17 0.08 0.05 0.02 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00
22-Sep-22 0.05 0.84 0.37 0.21 0.16 0.09 0.18 0.41 0.16 0.15 0.06 0.23 0.17 0.08 0.05 0.02 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00
23-Sep-22 0.04 0.83 0.35 0.22 0.17 0.08 0.18 0.37 0.11 0.16 0.06 0.22 0.16 0.08 0.05 0.02 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00
24-Sep-22 0.04 0.85 0.40 0.15 0.09 0.09 0.21 0.37 0.11 0.17 0.06 0.24 0.18 0.07 0.06 0.02 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00
25-Sep-22 0.04 0.93 0.22 0.39 0.32 0.10 0.23 0.39 0.12 0.17 0.01 0.26 0.24 0.07 0.06 0.02 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00
26-Sep-22 0.03 0.90 0.30 0.32 0.26 0.09 0.19 0.39 0.13 0.16 0.01 0.24 0.23 0.08 0.06 0.02 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00
27-Sep-22 0.03 0.76 0.31 0.22 0.16 0.09 0.14 0.39 0.14 0.15 0.01 0.23 0.22 0.07 0.05 0.02 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00
28-Sep-22 0.04 0.70 0.27 0.21 0.15 0.07 0.15 0.39 0.15 0.16 0.04 0.23 0.19 0.07 0.06 0.02 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00
29-Sep-22 0.04 0.80 0.37 0.18 0.12 0.06 0.19 0.37 0.13 0.15 0.06 0.23 0.17 0.07 0.06 0.02 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00
30-Sep-22 0.05 0.86 0.48 0.13 0.06 0.06 0.19 0.39 0.13 0.16 0.06 0.23 0.16 0.07 0.07 0.02 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00
1-Oct-22 0.04 0.92 0.44 0.21 0.15 0.06 0.21 0.37 0.10 0.18 0.06 0.24 0.18 0.05 0.06 0.03 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00
2-Oct-22 0.05 0.91 0.37 0.24 0.16 0.07 0.23 0.40 0.12 0.20 0.07 0.26 0.20 0.06 0.08 0.03 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00
3-Oct-22 0.06 0.92 0.47 0.18 0.12 0.07 0.21 0.42 0.14 0.19 0.05 0.24 0.19 0.06 0.06 0.03 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00
4-Oct-22 0.08 0.74 0.28 0.20 0.14 0.06 0.20 0.38 0.13 0.16 0.06 0.24 0.18 0.07 0.06 0.03 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00
5-Oct-22 0.09 0.76 0.28 0.22 0.15 0.06 0.20 0.38 0.12 0.16 0.05 0.24 0.19 0.06 0.07 0.03 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00
6-Oct-22 0.08 0.75 0.27 0.22 0.16 0.06 0.20 0.30 0.06 0.15 0.06 0.24 0.18 0.06 0.06 0.03 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00
7-Oct-22 0.08 0.80 0.32 0.22 0.16 0.06 0.21 0.43 0.18 0.16 0.06 0.22 0.16 0.06 0.06 0.03 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00
8-Oct-22 0.08 0.87 0.36 0.23 0.17 0.06 0.22 0.40 0.14 0.18 0.05 0.23 0.18 0.06 0.07 0.03 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00
9-Oct-22 0.07 0.87 0.31 0.25 0.18 0.06 0.25 0.36 0.09 0.17 0.06 0.23 0.17 0.06 0.08 0.03 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00
10-Oct-22 0.05 0.84 0.28 0.25 0.17 0.06 0.25 0.41 0.13 0.19 0.06 0.25 0.19 0.06 0.07 0.03 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00
11-Oct-22 0.05 0.83 0.33 0.22 0.15 0.06 0.22 0.33 0.04 0.18 0.05 0.24 0.19 0.08 0.08 0.03 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00
12-Oct-22 0.05 0.77 0.32 0.18 0.13 0.06 0.21 0.33 0.05 0.18 0.05 0.24 0.19 0.08 0.05 0.03 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00
13-Oct-22 0.05 0.78 0.34 0.19 0.13 0.06 0.20 0.38 0.10 0.18 0.05 0.23 0.18 0.07 0.05 0.03 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00
14-Oct-22 0.05 0.75 0.31 0.19 0.12 0.06 0.20 0.35 0.08 0.17 0.05 0.23 0.18 0.08 0.07 0.03 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00
15-Oct-22 0.05 0.83 0.31 0.23 0.16 0.06 0.22 0.28 0.00 0.18 0.06 0.26 0.20 0.07 0.07 0.03 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00
16-Oct-22 0.04 0.89 0.31 0.25 0.19 0.07 0.26 0.34 0.06 0.19 0.08 0.26 0.18 0.07 0.06 0.03 0.00 0.03 0.07 0.03
17-Oct-22 0.05 1.00 0.33 0.29 0.19 0.08 0.30 0.51 0.11 0.21 0.10 0.49 0.40 0.11 0.10 0.08 0.07 0.05 0.07 0.05
18-Oct-22 0.04 0.94 0.38 0.26 0.20 0.06 0.24 0.34 0.07 0.16 0.09 0.36 0.27 0.08 0.06 0.03 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00
19-Oct-22 0.05 0.83 0.27 0.28 0.22 0.06 0.22 0.34 0.08 0.17 0.08 0.28 0.20 0.06 0.06 0.03 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00
20-Oct-22 0.04 0.81 0.28 0.25 0.19 0.06 0.23 0.35 0.10 0.17 0.08 0.27 0.19 0.06 0.06 0.03 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00
21-Oct-22 0.06 0.79 0.29 0.23 0.19 0.06 0.21 0.33 0.05 0.17 0.08 0.26 0.18 0.08 0.04 0.03 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00

DRAFT REPORT

GBA PN 15333.00

Item 16.

232




FALL 2022 FLOW MONITORING

DRAFT REPORT

Table 2-4 - Mass Balance — All Meters (Cont’d)

Site 1 - Site 2 - Site 2 - Site 2A - Site 2A - Site 2B- Site 2C- Site 3 - Site 3 - Site 4 - Site 6 - Site 7 - Site 7 - Site 8 - Site 10 - Site 13 - Average
Cumulative [ Cumulative | Subystem | Cumulative | Subsystem [Cumulative| Cumulative | Cumulative [ Subsystem | Cumulative | Cumulative | Cumulative | Subsystem | Cumulative | Cumulative | Cumulative | RG 1 RG 2 RG 3 Rain
Flow Flow Flow Flow Flow Flow Flow Flow Flow Flow Flow Flow Flow Daily Daily Daily
Volume Volume Volume Volume |Flow Volume| Volume Volume Volume |Flow Volume| Volume Volume Volume |Flow Volume| Volume Volume Volume Total Total Total |Daily Total
Date (MG) (MG) (MG) (MG) (MG) (MG) (MG) (MG) (MG) (MG) (MG) (MG) (MG) (MG) (MG) (MG) (in) (in) (in) (in)
22-Oct-22 0.06 0.87 0.34 0.25 0.18 0.06 0.22 0.33 0.07 0.17 0.08 0.27 0.19 0.06 0.06 0.03 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00
23-Oct-22 0.07 0.94 0.39 0.24 0.17 0.07 0.24 0.36 0.09 0.17 0.10 0.30 0.20 0.07 0.07 0.03 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00
24-Oct-22 0.07 0.89 0.36 0.24 0.18 0.06 0.23 0.47 0.18 0.17 0.08 0.28 0.20 0.08 0.07 0.04 0.00 0.06 0.09 0.05
25-Oct-22 0.05 0.90 0.36 0.27 0.19 0.06 0.22 0.43 0.14 0.17 0.08 0.31 0.24 0.08 0.08 0.04 0.82 0.00 0.00 0.27
26-Oct-22 0.06 0.88 0.32 0.28 0.22 0.06 0.22 0.38 0.12 0.16 0.08 0.29 0.20 0.08 0.06 0.03 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00
27-Oct-22 0.06 0.86 0.33 0.26 0.20 0.06 0.21 0.34 0.09 0.16 0.08 0.26 0.19 0.06 0.06 0.03 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00
28-Oct-22 0.07 0.95 0.34 0.29 0.23 0.06 0.25 0.44 0.14 0.16 0.09 0.38 0.30 0.08 0.06 0.06 0.04 0.04 0.03 0.03
29-Oct-22 0.07 0.98 0.36 0.30 0.26 0.06 0.26 0.37 0.11 0.16 0.11 0.40 0.29 0.06 0.05 0.03 0.01 0.00 0.00 0.00
30-Oct-22 0.06 0.98 0.36 0.28 0.19 0.07 0.27 0.37 0.12 0.16 0.11 0.34 0.23 0.06 0.09 0.03 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00
31-Oct-22 0.06 0.85 0.30 0.25 0.16 0.06 0.23 0.35 0.10 0.15 0.09 0.29 0.20 0.07 0.09 0.03 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00
1-Nov-22 0.06 0.84 0.31 0.24 0.16 0.06 0.23 0.29 0.05 0.15 0.08 0.23 0.15 0.06 0.07 0.02 0.03 0.01 0.02 0.01
2-Nov-22 0.06 0.92 0.45 0.21 0.14 0.05 0.21 0.31 0.08 0.15 0.07 0.23 0.16 0.06 0.07 0.02 0.01 0.00 0.00 0.00
3-Nov-22 0.06 0.92 0.44 0.22 0.15 0.06 0.20 0.33 0.08 0.15 0.07 0.28 0.21 0.08 0.07 0.02 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00
4-Nov-22 0.07 0.90 0.40 0.23 0.15 0.06 0.21 0.39 0.11 0.17 0.08 0.29 0.21 0.07 0.08 0.03 0.00 0.08 0.05 0.04
5-Nov-22 0.06 0.90 0.30 0.29 0.22 0.07 0.25 041 0.13 0.18 0.11 043 0.33 0.07 0.07 0.04 0.68 0.00 0.00 0.23
6-Nov-22 0.06 0.56 -0.03 0.27 0.19 0.07 0.25 0.39 0.11 0.18 0.11 0.37 0.26 0.07 0.07 0.03 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00
7-Nov-22 0.07 0.47 -0.18 0.30 0.21 0.07 0.27 0.51 0.17 0.19 0.12 047 0.35 0.09 0.10 0.06 0.05 0.07 0.06 0.04
8-Nov-22 0.07 0.65 0.05 0.28 0.20 0.07 0.25 0.44 0.14 0.18 0.13 0.48 0.34 0.08 0.08 0.04 0.00 0.06 0.07 0.03
9-Nov-22 0.08 141 0.78 0.28 0.20 0.08 0.27 0.46 0.14 0.19 0.13 0.53 0.40 0.08 0.08 0.05 0.11 0.00 0.00 0.04
10-Nov-22 0.08 1.10 0.57 0.24 0.18 0.06 0.23 0.41 0.12 0.18 0.13 0.41 0.27 0.08 0.06 0.03 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00
11-Nov-22 0.06 1.06 0.48 0.24 0.17 0.07 0.26 0.54 0.21 0.19 0.12 0.42 0.30 0.08 0.07 0.06 0.03 0.03 0.03 0.02
12-Nov-22 0.08 1.10 0.50 0.24 0.18 0.08 0.28 0.52 0.22 0.18 0.16 0.53 0.37 0.08 0.07 0.04 0.03 0.00 0.00 0.01
13-Nov-22 0.06 0.93 0.35 0.23 0.16 0.07 0.28 0.47 0.19 0.18 0.14 0.39 0.25 0.07 0.07 0.03 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00
14-Nov-22 0.05 0.47 -0.04 0.20 0.13 0.07 0.23 0.42 0.15 0.17 0.12 0.32 0.20 0.08 0.07 0.03 0.02 0.03 0.05 0.01
15-Nov-22 0.06 0.82 0.33 0.19 0.13 0.06 0.23 0.42 0.12 0.19 0.10 0.30 0.20 0.08 0.07 0.02 0.01 0.00 0.01 0.00
16-Nov-22 0.06 1.01 0.53 0.18 0.11 0.07 0.23 0.36 0.07 0.20 0.10 0.30 0.20 0.07 0.06 0.02 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00
17-Nov-22 0.06 1.33 0.91 0.17 0.10 0.06 0.22 0.32 0.05 0.17 0.09 0.29 0.20 0.07 0.05 0.02 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00
18-Nov-22 0.06 1.45 1.17 -0.05 0.06 0.22 0.35 0.11 0.15 0.09 0.29 0.20 0.06 0.05 0.02 0.01 0.01 0.00 0.00
19-Nov-22 0.06 1.59 1.27 -0.06 0.06 0.26 0.39 0.13 0.17 0.09 0.32 0.22 0.06 0.06 0.04 0.01 0.01 0.01 0.01
20-Nov-22 0.05 1.67 1.31 -0.06 0.07 0.28 0.38 0.11 0.17 0.10 0.37 0.27 0.07 0.06 0.03 0.01 0.00 0.01 0.00
21-Nov-22 0.06 1.65 1.32 -0.05 0.06 0.27 0.35 0.08 0.17 0.10 0.37 0.27 0.07 0.05 0.03 0.01 0.01 0.01 0.00
22-Nov-22 0.07 1.65 1.30 -0.06 0.07 0.28 0.38 0.10 0.17 0.11 0.43 0.32 0.06 0.06 0.04 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00
23-Nov-22 0.06 1.65 131 -0.05 0.08 0.27 0.32 0.05 0.18 0.10 0.37 0.26 0.07 0.05 0.03 0.03 0.02 0.02 0.01
24-Nov-22 0.07 2.04 1.52 0.34 0.03 0.10 0.34 0.42 0.07 0.20 0.14 0.51 0.38 0.08 0.05 0.07 0.02 0.03 0.02 0.01
25-Nov-22 0.08 1.79 1.10 0.31 0.26 0.06 0.33 0.34 0.04 0.18 0.15 0.59 0.44 0.07 0.05 0.05 0.03 0.03 0.02 0.01
26-Nov-22 0.29 2.06 1.33 0.49 0.15 0.10 0.41 1.30 0.59 0.36 0.24 0.87 0.63 0.14 0.07 0.21 0.02 0.02 0.02 0.02
27-Nov-22 0.07 154 1.20 -0.06 0.05 0.29 0.35 0.06 0.18 0.16 0.58 0.43 0.06 0.06 0.04 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00
28-Nov-22 0.06 1.33 1.00 0.41 0.00 0.06 0.22 0.42 0.14 0.18 0.12 0.42 0.30 0.07 0.05 0.03 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00
29-Nov-22 0.05 1.14 0.89 -0.04 0.05 0.19 0.30 -0.74 0.95 0.11 0.35 0.25 0.06 0.04 0.03 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00
30-Nov-22 0.05 1.20 0.14 0.05 0.16 0.30 0.02 0.19 0.09 0.34 0.25 0.06 0.05 0.02 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00
1-Dec-22 0.05 131 0.97 0.12 0.06 0.05 0.17 0.38 0.15 0.14 0.08 0.33 0.25 0.06 0.06 0.02 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00
2-Dec-22 0.05 1.48 1.13 0.12 0.06 0.05 0.17 0.36 0.12 0.15 0.07 0.31 0.24 0.06 0.06 0.03 0.01 0.01 0.01 0.00
3-Dec-22 0.08 1.71 1.29 0.17 0.11 0.06 0.19 0.34 0.10 0.16 0.07 0.35 0.29 0.05 0.06 0.03 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00
4-Dec-22 0.07 1.81 1.34 0.19 -0.08 0.06 0.22 0.36 0.11 0.17 0.08 0.33 0.25 0.05 0.27 0.03 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00
5-Dec-22 0.06 1.79 1.42 0.12 -0.02 0.06 0.18 0.36 0.12 0.16 0.08 0.32 0.24 0.05 0.14 0.03 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00
6-Dec-22 0.07 1.84 1.49 0.13 -0.01 0.06 0.17 0.33 0.09 0.15 0.08 0.28 0.21 0.06 0.14 0.03 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00
7-Dec-22 0.07 1.94 1.54 0.18 0.09 0.06 0.17 0.36 0.14 0.14 0.07 0.30 0.23 0.06 0.09 0.03 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00
8-Dec-22 0.06 1.89 1.47 0.19 0.15 0.06 0.17 0.37 0.14 0.14 0.08 0.30 0.23 0.06 0.05 0.03 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00
9-Dec-22 0.07 1.75 1.33 0.19 0.14 0.06 0.17 0.33 0.10 0.14 0.08 0.35 0.27 0.06 0.05 0.03 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00
10-Dec-22 0.05 172 1.27 0.20 0.14 0.06 0.19 0.30 0.07 0.15 0.08 0.35 0.27 0.05 0.06 0.03 0.03 0.03 0.02 0.02
11-Dec-22 0.07 1.75 1.20 0.23 0.17 0.07 0.24 0.38 0.11 0.17 0.09 0.43 0.34 0.06 0.06 0.05 0.03 0.02 0.02 0.02
12-Dec-22 0.06 1.44 0.96 0.22 0.15 0.06 0.20 0.29 0.03 0.16 0.09 0.39 0.31 0.07 0.07 0.03 0.01 0.00 0.00 0.00
13-Dec-22 0.07 1.18 0.72 0.21 0.15 0.06 0.20 0.31 0.04 0.17 0.08 0.33 0.25 0.06 0.06 0.03 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00
Dry Weather Average(l) 0.05 1.04 0.57 0.23 0.14 0.07 0.22 0.42 0.14 0.17 0.08 0.31 0.23 0.07 0.06 0.03
Dry Weather Minimum® 0.01 0.47 -0.32 0.12 -0.08 0.05 0.14 0.27 -0.74 0.12 0.01 0.21 0.14 0.05 0.02 0.02
Dry Weather Maximum® 0.29 2.06 154 0.49 0.32 0.11 0.41 1.30 0.59 0.95 0.24 0.87 0.63 0.14 0.27 0.21
Wet Weather Average 0.06 1.13 0.64 0.26 0.15 0.07 0.25 0.45 0.16 0.17 0.10 0.37 0.27 0.07 0.06 0.04
Average Negative Imbalance 0.00 0.00 -0.12 0.00 -0.05 0.00 0.00 0.00 -0.19 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00

Notes:

(1) Dry weather days exclude days with over 1/4" of rain and the day after.

Indicates incomplete data
Indicates rain event occurred
Indicates an imbalance in the system

MANOR, TX

GBA PN 15333.00

Item 16.

233




FALL 2022 FLOW MONITORING

2.3 Surcharge Conditions

Surcharge is the depth of water in a sewer that exceeds the top of the pipe. Surcharge occurred in 8 of
the 12 sites during the 2022 flow monitoring period.

MANOR, TX

Surcharge conditions are less desirable than gravity flow conditions to measure peak flows in sanitary
sewer systems. However, many of the recorded surcharge events provided high quality hydrographs and
data for I&I volume measurements. A high quality hydrograph is one where direct correlation can be
made between rainfall and increased flow in the sewer line that is being monitored. Maximum
surcharge depth levels and duration of the surcharge was documented.

For each surcharge event, a backup or pressure flow designation was assigned. The backup designation

means that the surcharge elevation is impacted by downstream capacity limitations and is

demonstrated by significant slowing of velocities as depths are increasing. Pressure flow is when
velocities are increasing as levels are rising. This indicates that downstream conditions are not restricting
flow. Table 2-5 shows a comparison of surcharging recorded during the 2021 Flow Monitoring to
surcharging during the 2022 Flow Monitoring. Four (4) of the sites monitored in 2022 did not surcharge
in 2021 and are indicated by the NA in Table 2-5. A more detailed summary of surcharge recordings for

each site for the 2022 Flow Monitoring are provided in Table 2-6 and shown on Figure 2-5.

Most of the surcharging was due to backing up from downstream restrictions. Several sites are just
upstream of lift stations. Backups at sites near lift stations were also visually noted during wet weather
and dry weather. The maximum dry weather surcharge caused by lift station backup was 85.65 inches at
Site 4 This was suspected to be caused by backup at the Wildhorse Creek Lift Station. Site 10 also
experienced a large surcharge of 76.72 inches which is suspected to be caused by the Stonewater Lift
Station. These lift stations should be reviewed to determine if residents are or could be impacted by
possible backup and overflows. The pump stations should also be examined to see if pumps are
functioning properly (debris buildup and/or blockages), and that operational set points are correct so
that the pipes do not surcharge during normal pump cycles. Other sites that surcharged were Sites 1, 2,
2A, 2C, 3, and 8. Four (4) of these sites (Sites 1, 2, 3, and 10) also surcharged during the 2021 flow

monitoring conducted by GBA.

DRAFT REPORT

Table 2-5 — 2021 vs 2022 Surcharge Depths

Site 2021 Max Surcharge 2022 Max Surcharge
Depth (in) Depth (in)
1-N10-004 42.63 24.76
2-N11-003 21.12 95.67
2A-M12-034 NA* 1.55
2C-M12-013 NA* 3.66
3-010-027 9.74 16.13
4-P09-034 NA 85.65
8-N09-001 NA 37.38
10-113-003 12.14 76.72

*Note: Sites not monitored in 2021.

20

GBA PN 15333.00

Item 16.

234




FALL 2021 FLOW MONITORING

Table 2-6 — 2022 Surcharge Summary

MANOR, TX

Date of Storm

9/7/2022

9/17/2022

9/28/2022

11/7/2022

11/11/2023

11/25/2022

11/29/2023

12/4/2022

Total Storm Rainfall (in.)

0.81

Site

Dia. (in.)

Storm Duration (hr)

3.42

Dry Weather

0.91

0.72

1.61

Dry Weather

2.00

11.17

15.17

Dry Weather

Dry Weather

1-N10-004

15

Max Depth Value from Invert (in.)

39.76 (B)

Level of Surcharge (in.)

24.76

Surcharge Duration (hrs)

3.25

2-N11-003

24

Max Depth Value from Invert (in.)

24.37 (B)

119.67 (B)

Level of Surcharge (in.)

0.37

95.67

Surcharge Duration (hrs)

0.083

8.25

2A-M12-034

15

Max Depth Value from Invert (in.)

16.55 (P)

Level of Surcharge (in.)

1.55

Surcharge Duration (hrs)

0.083

2C-M12-013

15

Max Depth Value from Invert (in.)

18.66 (P)

Level of Surcharge (in.)

3.66

Surcharge Duration (hrs)

0.25

3-010-027

15

Max Depth Value from Invert (in.)

15.61 (P)

31.13(B)

15.62 (P)

Level of Surcharge (in.)

0.61

16.13

0.62

Surcharge Duration (hrs)

0.083

6.25

0.083

4-P09-034

12

Max Depth Value from Invert (in.)

97.65 (B)

Level of Surcharge (in.)

85.65

Surcharge Duration (hrs)

56.75

8-N09-001

12

Max Depth Value from Invert (in.)

49.38 (B)

19.52 (B)

Level of Surcharge (in.)

37.38

7.52

Surcharge Duration (hrs)

2.92

0.33

10-113-003

12

Max Depth Value from Invert (in.)

17.48 (B)

88.72 (B)

Level of Surcharge (in.)

5.48

76.72

Surcharge Duration (hrs)

0.17

69.17

Notes:

(P) Denotes pressurized flow caused by lack of capacity (flow velocities generally increase as flow depths increase)

(B) Denotes flow backup caused by downstream restriction (flow velocities generally decrease as flow depths increase)

DRAFT REPORT

21

GBA PN 15333.00

Item 16.

235




FALL 2021 FLOW MONITORING

Figure 2-5 — 2022 Surcharging Summary

DRAFT REPORT

22

MANOR, TX

GBA PN 15333.00

Item 16.

236




Item 16.

FALL 2022 FLOW MONITORING MANOR, TX

2.4 Flow and Rainfall Monitoring Data Analysis

This Fall 2022 flow monitoring collected data from 12 flow meter sites to isolate subsystems
contributing sanitary sewer flow within the City of Manor, TX. The information gathered was used to:
e Analyze flow and rainfall monitoring data.

e Determine Average Daily Dry Weather Flow (ADDF).
e Determine high groundwater infiltration.

e Determine inflow.

e Conduct a volumetric analysis.

Detailed results for each flow monitoring site are provided in Appendix A.

2.4.1 Selection of Data for Analysis

The collected flow and rainfall data was reviewed for each monitoring site and representative days were
selected for investigation of average dry weather flow (ADDF) periods, high groundwater infiltration
flow periods, and peak storm inflow periods. Storms chosen for detailed flow analysis were selected
based on high rainfall depths throughout the sub-systems. A number of factors were considered when
selecting storm events for detailed analysis. These factors included:

e Total measured rainfall (typically greater than 0.20 in. but preferably at least 0.4 in.).

e Peak rainfall intensity (typically greater 0.30 in/hr).

e Consistent base flow before and after storm events (typically a period of three days before and
after a storm).

e Flow monitoring data showed a measurable reaction (typically a peak flow measuring at least
twice where the base flow would be).

e Interval between storm events (typically at least three days or enough time to allow flows to
return to base flow levels).

2.4.2 Analysis of Rainfall Data

Historical rainfall data provided by the National Oceanic and Atmospheric Administration’s (NOAA)
National Weather Service was used as a point of comparison. The total annual average rainfall for the
City of Manor is 36.33 inches. NOAA Atlas 14 Point Precipitation Frequency Estimates were referenced
as well. A summary of the probability that a storm event with a particular recurrence interval will not be
equaled or exceeded during a specified period is presented with historical data on average monthly
rainfall amounts, total annual rainfall, and normal expected rainfall. Table 2-7 shows the historical
rainfall depth-duration-frequency relationships.

]
DRAFT REPORT GBA PN 15333.00
23

237




FALL 2022 FLOW MONITORING MANOR, TX

Table 2-7 — Rainfall Depth-Duration-Frequency Relationship for City of Manor

. Total Rainfall (in) for Duration Indicated
Return Period

(years) 30 min 1hr 2hr 6 hr 12 hr 24 hr

1 1.3 1.6 2.0 2.5 2.8 3.2

2 15 2.0 2.4 3.2 3.6 4.1

5 1.9 2.5 3.1 4.1 4.7 5.4

10 2.2 2.9 3.7 5.1 5.8 6.7

25 2.6 3.5 4.6 6.5 7.5 8.6

50 3.0 4.0 5.4 7.7 8.9 10.2

100 3.4 4.6 6.2 9.1 10.6 12.1

Rainfall data for this project was collected from 3 rain gauge sites that were installed by GBA field crews.
These gauges are considered representative of the project area and its basin tributary areas. Rain
gauges 1 and 2 were averaged together to create a representative rain gauge that could be used to
analyze sites 1-8 and 13. Site 10 was analyzed using the data from rain gauge 3. Table 2-8 shows the
delineation of the percentages for each rain gauge per meter site.

Tables 2-9 and 2-10 provide summaries of the recorded storm events during the monitoring period at
the rain gauges. The average total depth of rainfall recorded at the rain gauge sites during the
monitoring period was 11.62 inches which is just slightly higher than to the expected average in the area
of 11.52 inches for the monitored period based on the U.S. Climate Data and NOAA historical rainfall
data. Monthly rain gauge totals are compared with expected monthly averages on Figure 2-6.

]
DRAFT REPORT GBA PN 15333.00
24

Item 16.

238




FALL 2022 FLOW MONITORING MANOR, TX
Table 2-8 — Weighted Rain Gauge Delineation
RG ID
Meter - ~ o
Basin ID 8 8 8
1| 50%| 50%
50%| 50%
2A| 50%| 50%
2B| 50%| 50%
2C| 50%| 50%
3| 50%| 50%
4/ 50%| 50%
6| 50%| 50%
7] 50%| 50%
8 50%| 50%
10 100%
13| 50%| 50%
Table 2-9 — Rain Gauge 1 & 2 — Rainfall Summary
RG1 & RG2 - 13220 Old Hwy. 20/13220 Old Hwy. 20
15 min Storm | 60 min Storm Return
Storm Time of Peak Total Storm Intensity Intensity Interval
Date Storm Time Start | Duration (hr) Rainfall Rainfall (in) (in/hr) (1) (in/hr) (1) (years)
8/30/22 8/30/22 10:25 7.58 8/30/22 10:40 0.32 0.48 0.26 <1
8/31/22 8/31/2217:40 0.25 8/31/22 17:45 0.55 1.96 0.55 <1
9/3/22 9/3/22 15:40 1.58 9/3/22 15:50 0.24 0.48 0.20 <1
9/4/22 9/4/22 23:00 4.00 9/5/22 3:00 0.03 0.08 0.02 <1
9/7/22 9/7/22 19:00 3.42 9/7/22 19:10 0.81 2.20 0.74 <1
10/16/22 10/16/22 23:05 11.92 10/17/22 0:20 2.30 1.36 0.98 <1
10/24/22 10/24/22 21:40 2.33 10/25/22 0:00 0.68 1.64 041 <1
10/28/22 10/28/22 0:00 11.08 10/28/22 8:40 0.86 1.36 0.71 <1
10/29/22 10/29/22 0:00 0.00 10/29/22 11:55 0.01 0.02 0.01 <1
11/1/22 11/1/22 0:00 1.08 11/1/22 1:05 0.05 0.06 0.03 <1
11/2/22 11/2/22 12:00 0.00 11/2/22 23:55 0.01 0.02 0.01 <1
11/4/22 11/4/22 15:00 9.00 11/5/22 0:00 0.69 1.36 0.35 <1
11/7/22 11/7/22 8:50 2.00 11/7/22 9:35 0.91 1.60 0.82 <1
11/8/22 11/8/22 20:00 16.00 11/9/22 0:00 0.31 0.66 0.19 <1
11/11/22 11/11/22 12:50 11.17 11/11/22 16:30 0.72 0.74 0.33 <1
11/14/22 11/14/22 13:00 11.00 11/14/22 15:00 0.17 0.18 0.08 <1
11/18/22 11/18/22 20:10 0.25 11/18/22 20:25 0.01 0.02 0.01 <1
11/19/22 11/19/22 9:10 9.67 11/19/22 13:10 0.34 0.16 0.10 <1
11/20/22 11/20/22 22:50 23.00 11/21/22 16:50 0.26 0.08 0.05 <1
11/23/22 11/23/22 22:45 21.00 11/24/22 16:30 0.66 0.64 0.34 <1
11/25/22 11/25/22 16:00 15.17 11/25/22 23:55 1.61 1.42 0.64 <1
12/2/22 12/2/22 0:25 6.92 12/2/22 7:20 0.08 0.04 0.02 <1
12/10/22 12/10/22 7:55 17.00 12/10/22 23:35 0.48 0.60 0.35 <1
12/12/22 12/12/22 3:25 0.00 12/12/22 15:20 0.01 0.02 0.01 <1
12/14/22 12/14/22 6:10 1.42 12/14/22 7:35 0.02 0.04 0.01 <1

Note: Red highlighted cells indicate storms with a Total Storm Rainfall greater than 0.4 inches.

DRAFT REPORT

25

GBA PN 15333.00

Item 16.

239




FALL 2022 FLOW MONITORING MANOR, TX
Table 2-10 - Rain Gauge 3 — Rainfall Summary
RG3 - 11957 Johnson Rd.

Storm 15 min Storm | 60 min Storm Return

Duration Time of Peak Total Storm Intensity Intensity Interval

Date Storm Time Start (hr) Rainfall Rainfall (in)| (in/hr) (1) (in/hr) (1) (years)
8/30/22 8/30/22 10:30 9.50 8/30/22 11:15 0.33 0.52 0.26 <1
8/31/22 8/31/22 16:00 2.25 8/31/22 17:50 0.13 0.28 0.12 <1
9/1/22 9/1/22 20:10 0.25 9/1/22 20:20 0.09 0.32 0.09 <1
9/3/22 9/3/22 15:35 1.33 9/3/22 15:45 0.22 0.48 0.20 <1
9/4/22 9/4/22 22:10 0.17 9/4/22 22:20 0.05 0.20 0.05 <1
9/7/22 9/7/22 18:55 3.42 9/7/22 19:05 0.87 3.12 0.84 <1
10/16/22 10/16/22 23:20 8.67 10/17/22 8:00 2.71 1.60 1.10 <1
10/24/22 10/24/22 21:05 1.83 10/24/22 21:55 0.86 2.52 0.82 <1
10/28/22 10/28/22 4:00 7.08 10/28/22 8:45 0.80 1.16 0.62 <1
11/1/22 11/1/22 4:00 0.00 11/1/22 15:55 0.02 0.08 0.02 <1
11/4/22 11/4/22 19:55 0.67 11/4/22 20:10 0.36 0.88 0.36 <1
11/7/22 11/7/22 9:25 1.00 11/7/22 9:55 0.76 2.08 0.75 <1
11/8/22 11/8/22 20:30 0.50 11/8/22 20:45 0.49 1.56 0.49 <1
11/11/22 11/11/22 13:30 6.50 11/11/22 16:30 0.59 0.80 0.31 <1
11/14/22 11/14/22 13:55 14.08 11/14/22 16:00 0.11 0.24 0.06 <1
11/19/22 11/19/22 9:10 9.67 11/19/22 13:15 0.29 0.16 0.09 <1
11/20/22 11/20/22 17:00 4.33 11/20/22 21:20 0.02 0.04 0.01 <1
11/21/22 | 11/21/22 10:00 9.67 11/21/22 19:40 0.17 0.12 0.06 <1
11/23/22 11/23/22 22:50 22.83 11/24/22 16:30 0.60 0.52 0.27 <1
11/25/22 11/25/22 17:05 12.75 11/26/22 0:00 1.39 1.48 0.66 <1
12/2/22 12/2/22 0:50 6.58 12/2/22 7:25 0.06 0.04 0.02 <1
12/10/22 12/10/22 23:25 1.17 12/11/22 0:15 0.22 0.24 0.20 <1
12/14/22 12/14/22 6:10 0.67 12/14/22 6:50 0.02 0.04 0.02 <1

Note: Red highlighted cells indicate storms with a Total Storm Rainfall greater than 0.4 inches.

DRAFT REPORT

26

GBA PN 15333.00

Item 16.

240




FALL 2022 FLOW MONITORING

Figure 2-6 — Measured Versus Expected Monthly Average Rainfall

6.00

5.00

4.00

3.00

Raingall (inches)

2.00

1.00

0.00

Expected
RG1 & RG2 [RG3 Rainfall (in)
Aug-22 0.87 0.46 0.61
Sep-22| 1.08 1.23 2.99
Oct-22 3.89 4.37 3.88
MNov-22 5.66 4.80 2.96
Dec-22| 0.58 0.30 1.08
Total 12.07 11.16 11.52

Sep-22

W////////M

Oct-22
Month

/24

Nov-22

I 0

Dec-22

Note: The months of August and December are pro-rated to represent partial months of measuring.

DRAFT REPORT

27

WM

MANOR, TX

B RG1 & RG2
B RG3

" Expected Totals

GBA PN 15333.00

Item 16.

241




FALL 2022 FLOW MONITORING MANOR, TX

2.4.3 Average Daily Dry Weather Flow (ADDF)

Average Daily Dry Weather Flow (ADDF) is defined as the normal wastewater flow generated in the
sanitary sewer system during dry weather conditions. This flow includes wastewater production and
permanent infiltration naturally present during dry conditions with low groundwater levels. This flow
does not include rainfall-induced infiltration and inflow. The ADDF rate can be measured directly during
dry weather/low groundwater conditions. The instantaneous ADDF rate varies throughout each day with
the highest rates normally observed near 8:00 a.m. and 10:00 p.m.

The ratio of peak instantaneous flow to ADDF is the ADDF peaking factor and is typically determined
from representative flow data days. The best way to measure ADDF is in gallons per day per
inch-diameter-mile (IDM) which creates an even comparison between basins, regardless of the length or
diameters of sewers within them. A summary of ADDF for each subsystem is shown in Table 2-11.

]
DRAFT REPORT GBA PN 15333.00
28

Item 16.

242




FALL 2022 FLOW MONITORING MANOR, TX|
Table 2-11 — ADDF Summary
) Subsystem | Cumulative | Subsystem | Cumulative
. Subsystem | Cumulative [Subsystem . . .
Site/ Area Area ADDE Cumulative | Peaking | Cumulative | ADDF Per | ADDF Per ADDF Per ADDF Per
Subsystem (acres) (acres) (mgd) ADDF (mgd) [ Factor | Peak ADDF Acre Acre IDM IDM
(gpd/acre) | (gpd/acre) | (gpd/IDM) | (gpd/IDM)
1 118 118 0.03 0.03 1.89 0.06 267 267 1,180 1,180
2 766 1,493 0.36 0.84 1.58 1.33 466 564 1,806 2,189
2A 215 309 0.15 0.20 1.73 0.35 702 657 2,407 2,699
2B 58 58 0.06 0.06 1.64 0.10 1,018 1,018 4,112 4,112
2C 360 360 0.22 0.22 1.74 0.39 620 620 2,289 2,289
3 117 611 0.13 0.35 1.67 0.59 1,149 572 3,760 2,662
4 258 258 0.14 0.14 141 0.19 531 531 2,502 2,502
6 50 50 0.06 0.06 1.82 0.11 1,158 1,158 4,287 4,287
7 100 150 0.17 0.22 1.44 0.32 1,670 1,499 5,431 5,082
8 136 136 0.06 0.06 1.43 0.08 411 411 3,096 3,096
10 94 94 0.05 0.05 1.58 0.08 554 554 4,159 4,159
13 100 100 0.02 0.02 1.71 0.04 223 223 979 979

Notes:

(1) Cumulative Peak ADDF is the product of the Cumulative ADDF and the ADDF Peaking Factor.

DRAFT REPORT

29

GBA PN 15333.00

Item 16.

243




FALL 2022 FLOW MONITORING MANOR, TX

2.4.4 Infiltration

Infiltration is defined as flows entering the wastewater collection system through defects below ground
such as defective pipes, pipe joints, and manholes. The rate of infiltration depends on the depth of
groundwater above the defects, as well as the percentage of the collection system below the
groundwater table. The variation in groundwater levels and subsequent infiltration is seasonal and
weather dependent. Since the groundwater levels are normally a relative constant over periods of
several days, the peak infiltration can be considered as the maximum infiltration, which occurs during
the maximum groundwater period of the year. To determine high groundwater infiltration, flow data
from the day following significant storm events were analyzed.

The hydrographs were examined to verify inflow had subsided. If inflow had not subsided, the flow from
the next day was used to determine infiltration. The total flow measured during these infiltration
periods included ADDF plus infiltration flow. Infiltration flow was determined by subtracting the ADDF
from the total flow measured during the infiltration periods. Night flow readings were used for the
analysis since the least temporal variation in base flow occurs during this period. Infiltration is calculated
by subtracting the minimum three-hour flow during the ADDF week from the minimum three-hour flow
during an infiltration day.

Some common inflow and infiltration source examples are shown on Figure 2-7. The difference between
ADDF, inflow, and infiltration is further demonstrated graphically on Figure 2-8.

The infiltration parameters are shown for each subsystem for the flow monitoring period in Table 2-12
and Figure 2-9. Subsystems with excessive infiltration were based on an infiltration rate above 2,500
gpd/IDM. The 2,500 gpd/IDM threshold is based on GBA’s historical flow monitoring observations and
experience as well as guidelines set forth by the EPA. Two (2) subsystems — Basins 6 and 7 — indicated
having excessive infiltration based on an infiltration rate above the 2,500 gpd/IDM for the monitoring
period. Coincidentally, these basins also had excessive infiltration rates during the 2021 Fall flow
monitoring, and due to this were selected as the “pilot” study areas for this 2022 project.

]
DRAFT REPORT GBA PN 15333.00
30

Item 16.

244




FALL 2022 FLOW MONITORING MANOR, TX Item 16.

Figure 2-7 — Inflow and Infiltration Sources

Connection
| Root Intrusion >
into Side Sewer

Brgken_/Faulty s =y, - y"
Side Lateral ™ N\ 4
Sewer (onnection v 2 4

e

¢ P Deteriorated Manhole
INFILTRATION SOURCES (white text)

W Cracked or
SANITARY ' Broken Pipe

SEWER MAIN

DRAFT REPORT GBA PN 15333.00
3 245




FALL 2022 FLOW MONITORING MANOR, TX Item 16.

Figure 2-8 — Graphical lllustration of 1&l Components

| I nfiow NN Infiltration [EEEEEN)Base Flow C———JRainfall - - - - - ADDF
0.6 "r wr‘\i 0
0.5 ' 0.5
0.4 1
T _
& E
E— 0.3 15 ¢
E Inflow Volume E
PeakDfily Flow Infiltration Volume
0.2 2
0.1 - 2.5
0 3
Day100:00 12:00 Day200:00 12:00 Day300:00 12:00 Day400:00 12:.00 Day500:00
Time of Day
DRAFT REPORT

GBA PN 15333.00
82 246




FALL 2022 FLOW MONITORING MANOR, TX
Table 2-12 - Infiltration Summary
) Subsystem | Cumulative | Cumulative
X . . Subsystem | Cumulative i . . . . . Subsystem
Site/ Subsystem | Cumulative | Subsystem|Cumulative i . . ) Infiltration Infiltration Infiltration . )
Infiltration | Infiltration Infiltration
Subsystem | Area (acres) |Area (acres) IDM IDM Rate Rate Per Acre .
(mgd) (mgd) Ranking
(gpd/IDM) | (gpd/IDM) | (gpd/acre)

1 118 118 27 27 0.018 0.018 663 663 150 8

2 766 1493 198 385 0.174 0.262 881 681 175 6

2A 215 309 63 75 0.060 0.063 958 835 203 5

2B 58 58 14 14 0.011 0.011 754 754 187 7

2C 360 360 97 97 0.014 0.014 145 145 39 12

3 117 611 36 131 0.036 0.081 995 613 132 4

4 258 258 55 55 0.016 0.016 290 290 61 10

6 50 50 14 14 0.078 0.078 5,751 5,751 1,553 1

7 100 150 31 44 0.122 0.200 3,962 4,508 1,330 2

8 136 136 18 18 0.019 0.019 1,030 1,030 137 3

10 94 94 13 13 0.003 0.003 223 223 30 11

13 100 100 23 23 0.010 0.010 461 461 105 9
Notes:

Excessive Infiltration > 2,500 gpd/IDM

DRAFT REPORT

33

GBA PN 15333.00

Item 16.

247




FALL 2022 FLOW MONITORING

Figure 2-9 — Excessive Infiltration

MANOR, TX

Item 16.

3

Infiltration Comparison (Subsystem Flow)

8000

7000

6000
—_ L
£
°
= 5000
Q.
2
& 4000 *
w 7
o
c
2 3000
o
; o
£ 2000

1000 - _213;’4.‘8'___‘_2?’r $2

4 .1.3 1
10 & ¢4 & 2C
0 T T T T T T T T T T 1
0 100 200 300 400 500 600 700 800 900 1,000
Subsystem Area (acres)
GBA Historical Infiltration Rates ——High Infiltration Boundary * 2022 - Infiltration Linear (Medium Infiltration Boundary)
DRAFT REPORT GBA PN 15333.00

248




Item 16.

FALL 2022 FLOW MONITORING MANOR, TX

2.4.5 Inflow

Inflow is defined as rainfall-related water entering the collection system from sources such as private
sewer laterals, downspouts, foundation drains, yard and area drains, storm sump pumps, manhole
covers, and cross connections from storm drains. Inflow is directly influenced by the intensity and
duration of a storm event and therefore is not a fixed quantity.

A value for the design inflow is not directly calculated. Instead, a constant is calculated based on the
storm duration, intensity, and the monitored flow. This constant, “K,” is then used to predict inflow
values for different rainfall return intervals. The “K” coefficient accounts for rainfall that enters the
sewer system as inflow.

For each selected storm, the peak rainfall, peak flow, and time from peak rainfall to peak flow (also
referred to as Time of Concentration, Toc) were used to calculate the “K” value at the flow monitoring
point. Values for ADDF and infiltration were subtracted from the peak flow to determine the peak
inflow. Once the peak inflow was determined and rainfall intensity was calculated from the rainfall
monitoring data, a “K” value was determined. Several “K” values were averaged to arrive at a “K” value
for the basin being monitored.

The inflow coefficient “K” for each storm event at each monitoring point was determined by the
following formula:

k=2
1A
Where:
K = inflow coefficient
Q = peak inflow (cfs) calculated by subtracting dry-weather base flow from the peak flow for each

rain event that is being analyzed
i = rainfall intensity for selected recurrence interval and time of concentration (in/hr)
A = sewered area (acres)

Interior basins are basins with at least one upstream tributary area. Basin inflow coefficients for interior
basins were calculated using measured cumulative flow, tributary basin inflow coefficients and tributary
areas. The flow generated within an interior basin must be calculated because measured flow includes
the dynamic cumulative effect from all tributary basins. System dynamics considers the time of travel
through the sewer system. Each interior basin inflow coefficient was determined using the following
weighted coefficient formula.

Kt = (K1A1 + K2A2 + ... + KiAi) / At

Where:

Kt = cumulative inflow coefficient (measured)

Ki = tributary basin inflow coefficient (calculated)

Ai = tributary sewered basin area (acres)

At = total sewered tributary area (acres)

i = Number of tributary basins

DRAFT REPORT GBA PN 15333.00

35

249




FALL 2022 FLOW MONITORING MANOR, TX

Item 16.

Exterior basins are basins in which there is no additional upstream tributary area coming into the basin.
The relative accuracy of the “K” coefficient determined for a basin is typically higher for exterior basins
that have only one sewer line outlet from the basin monitored. A decrease in the relative accuracy of
the “K” coefficient is typical for interior flow basins due to cumulative flow effects. Inflow coefficients
may also be skewed in basins that are largely undeveloped or contain pockets of undeveloped area.

A table showing the calculation of inflow for each storm event and calculation of an inflow coefficient at
each monitoring location is included in the individual site analysis located in Appendix A. The inflow
calculations required determining the sewered acreage tributary to the site and a time of concentration,
which in turn was determined after review of storm event time of concentrations. Many storm data
dates were available that showed measurable inflow responses, which included a minimum of four
events to provide an average value at each metering site.

The 1-year subsystem inflow rates for each basin were calculated by ratio of 1-year subsystem storm
inflow (gpd) to the subsystem’s sewer footage length per 1,000 feet. Based on GBA's historical data
from past flow monitoring projects as well as guidelines set forth by the EPA and other entities, an
excessive subsystem inflow rate boundary line was established from the middle third of data. As
subsystem area and sewer footage increases, the excessive inflow rate boundary decreases to represent
the larger subsystems more accurately.

The excessive inflow rate boundary line is generally greater than or equal to 26,000 gpd/1000 ft for
basins less than 300 acres in area. It then gradually decreases from 26,000 gpd/1000 ft to 8,000
gpd/1000 ft for areas between 300 and 900 acres. Finally inflow is considered excessive above 8,000
gpd/1000 ft for areas greater than 900 acres. This is also demonstrated in Table 2-13 below.

Table 2-13 — Excessive Inflow Rate Thresholds

Basin Area (Acres) Excessive Inflow Rate Threshold
<300 > 26,000 gpd /1000 ft
300 - 900 26,000 — 8,000 gpd/1000 ft
> 900 > 8,000 gpd/1000 ft

A summary of inflow parameters for each subsystem is shown in Table 2-14.

As shown in Table 2-14 and on Figure 2-10, 11 of the 12 basins exceeded this high inflow rate. Site 3 had
the largest subsystem “K” value and highest 1-year inflow rate of 173,260 gpd/1000 ft. This site collects
flow from sites 4, 8, and 13, in addition to its own, and of those three subsystems, Site 13 has the
highest subsystem inflow rate of 60,947 gpd/1000 ft.

The only site that did not have excessive inflow was Site 2A. Since Site 2 was further divided into 2A, 2B,
and 2C for this year’s flow monitoring to attempt to isolate sources of excessive I&l, it can be concluded
that basins 2B and 2C should be the primary focus of any further investigations.

]
DRAFT REPORT GBA PN 15333.00
36

250




FALL 2022 FLOW MONITORING MANOR, TX
Table 2-14 - Inflow Summary
- Subsyst |Cumul |subsyst. |cumul. Time of - Time of . Infl.oYv Infl.oyv 1-Year Storm Inflow 1-Year 1-Year_ 10-Year Storm Sl
Site/ _Area | . Area | Sewer | Sewer Concentratio | Concentratio |Coefficient | Coefficient Subsystem | Cumulative Inflow Infilow
Subsystem (acres) |(acres)|  (Ft) () n Subsystem (n Cumulative | Subsystem |Cumulative| Subsyst. | Cumul. | Inflow Rate | Inflow Rate (Subsyst.| Cumul. Ranking®
(min) (min) K K (mgd) | (mgd) |(gpd/1000ft)|(gpd/1000ft)| (mgd) | (mgd)

1 118 118 | 16,668 | 16,668 75 75 0.0047 0.0047 0.53 0.53 31,668 31,668 0.94 0.94 8

2 766 1,493 | 103,846 |215,660 90 105 0.0033 0.0040 2.14 4.50 20,565 20,857 3.87 8.29 12

2A 215 309 | 36,064 | 43,430 90 105 0.0048 0.0059 0.88 1.37 24,459 31,551 1.60 2.52 10

2B 58 58 9,396 | 9,396 45 45 0.0064 0.0064 0.50 0.50 53,235 53,235 0.88 0.88 5

2C 360 360 | 58,988 | 58,988 60 60 0.0037 0.0037 1.41 1.41 23,855 23,855 2.49 2.49 11

3 117 611 | 22,230 | 87,886 90 90 0.0386 0.0120 3.85 6.26 173,260 71,238 6.98 11.34 1

4 258 258 | 37,396 | 37,396 60 60 0.0037 0.0037 1.02 1.02 27,281 27,281 1.80 1.80 9

6 50 50 8,913 | 8,913 45 45 0.0056 0.0056 0.38 0.38 42,300 42,300 0.66 0.66 6

7 100 150 | 17,328 | 26,241 90 210 0.0324 0.0235 2.76 1.50 159,536 57,029 5.01 2.95 2

8 136 136 | 10,672 | 10,672 135 135 0.0045 0.0045 0.36 0.36 34,128 34,128 0.69 0.69 7

10 94 94 7,366 | 7,366 90 90 0.0085 0.0085 0.68 0.68 92,973 92,973 1.24 1.24 3

13 100 100 | 17,588 | 17,588 90 105 0.0126 0.0126 1.07 0.94 60,947 53,300 1.94 1.73 4
Notes:

(1) Excessive Inflow is > 25,000 gpd/1000ft for less than 300 acre area, between 25,000 and 8,000 gpd/1000ft for areas between 300 and 900 acres, or > 8,000 gpd/1000ft
(2) Time of concentrationis calculated by averaging the time from peak rainfall to peak inflow for selected storms.
(3) 1year storm and 10 year storm inflow are based on the following formula: Q=KiA*0.6463 (conversion factor from CFS to MGD)
(4) Ranking based on 1-Year Inflow Rate (gpd/1000 ft).

DRAFT REPORT

37

GBA PN 15333.00

Item 16.

251




FALL 2022 FLOW MONITORING

Figure 2-10 — Excessive Inflow

MANOR, TX

Inflow Comparison (subsystem Flow)

180,000 -

170,000

160,000

L 2
~

150,000

140,000

130,000

120,000

110,000

100,000

90,000

80,000

70,000

1-Yr Inflow Rate (gpd/1000")

60,000 >

50,000

40,000

30,000 1 &

202 Lo

<@
)]

20,000

10,000 -

O T T T T T T T

- 100 200 300 400 500 600 700

Cumulative Area (acre)

800

900

1,000

GBA Historical Inflow Rates ——High Inflow Rate Boundary + 2022 - Inflow

——Linear (Medium Inflow Rate Boundary)

DRAFT REPORT
38

GBA PN 15333.00

Item 16.

252




FALL 2022 FLOW MONITORING MANOR, Tx| 'tem 16.

2.4.6 Peak System Flow Rates

The sewer system capacity at the flow monitoring sites was compared to peak flows with various
recurrence intervals. The sewer capacities were calculated using measured pipe diameters and the
calibrated energy gradient determined from Manning’s equation and flow meter data. These capacities
may not represent the capacity of sewers upstream or downstream of the monitoring locations. The
approximate level of protection at each of the flow monitoring points was estimated by comparing the
cumulative peak flows for various return periods with the existing capacity. A summary of peak
subsystem flow rates and known capacities is shown in Table 2-15.

The lowest level of protection was estimated as flows from greater than a 1-year storm but less than a
2-year storm at Sites 2C, 3, and 13. The next lowest protection was estimated as flows from greater than
a 2-year storm but less than a 5-year storm at Sites 7 and 8.

DRAFT REPORT GBA PN 15333.00

39 253




FALL 2022 FLOW MONITORING

Table 2-15 - Calculated Capacity vs Peak Flows

MANOR, TX

Item 16.

site/ P.ipe Emstmg(l) Average Dry- Maximum Peak-to- Cumulative Peak Flows (mgd) Approximate Level of
Subsystem Diam | Capacity Weather Recorded ADDF 1 5 . o T Protection®
(in) (mgd) Flow (mgd) |Flowrate (mgd)| Ratio Year | Year | Year | Year | Year | Year | Year
1 15 3.5591 0.0315 2.5700 81.6:1 0.61(0.71 1088 | 1.02 | 1.23 | 1.40 | 1.58 Greater than 100 Year
2 24 9.5038 0.8417 6.8970 8.2:1 6.09 | 7.07 | 8.54 | 9.88 [11.81]|13.42(15.16 Between 5 and 10 Year
2A 15 2.7138 0.2029 2.1500 10.6:1 1.79 12.09 | 253 | 294 | 3.53 [ 4.02 | 455 Between 5 and 10 Year
2B 10 0.8436 0.0590 0.3630 6.1:1 0.61(0.7010.85(098 | 1.17 | 132 1.48 Between 2 and 5 Year
2C 15 1.9569 0.2230 1.6000 7.2:1 1.8112.08 (251|289 (342 (3.85]|4.32 Between 1 and 2 Year
3 15 8.0504 0.3496 6.7000 19.2:1 6.93 | 8.24 |10.22(12.01(14.56 |16.66(18.93 Between 1 and 2 Year
4 12 4.2335 0.1369 2.2038 16.1:1 1231143 (1.74| 2.01 | 240 | 2.71 | 3.05 Greater than 100 Year
6 8 1.4359 0.0579 0.3800 6.6:1 0.56 (0.6310.75(0.84 | 098 | 1.09 | 1.21 Greater than 100 Year
7 15 2.9728 0.2249 1.5600 6.9:1 2.02 (2.40 (296 | 3.48 | 4.26 | 493 | 5.67 Between 5 and 10 Year
8 12 0.7333 0.0559 0.4900 8.8:1 0.46 |0.55(0.67 [ 0.79 | 096 | 1.11 | 1.26 Between 5 and 10 Year
10 12 3.2792 0.0520 1.8425 35.4:1 0.77 {091 )1.13 (133|161 |1.83(2.08 Greater than 100 Year
13 12 1.1594 0.0223 0.6940 31.1:1 099 (119150 1.78 | 2.18 | 2.51 | 2.88 Between 1 and 2 Year

(1) Existing Capacity is calculated using the pipe diameter and calibrated energy gradient determined from modified Mannings equation.
(2) Level of protection =storm recurrence interval which will surcharge the metered location.

T N N N N N N N N AN NN N N NN N N N N NN N N N NN N N N N NN NN NN NN N .
GBA PN 15333.00

DRAFT REPORT

40

254




FALL 2022 FLOW MONITORING

2.4.7 Volumetric Analysis

Utilizing significant storm events, the amount of rainfall (I&! volume, or percent rain to sewer) entering
the sanitary sewer system was calculated. Using the meter data for each storm, the 1&I volume was
determined by creating an 1&I hydrograph, which is the difference between an adjusted dry weather
flow period and the storm’s wet weather hydrograph. The adjusted dry weather flow period represents
what the predicted dry weather flow would be if the rain event had not occurred. Typically, flows from
the day or week before the storm event are used as the adjusted dry weather flow. The total I&I
volumes were plotted on a graph against the corresponding 24-hour rainfall total for each event. A
linear regression analysis was then used to determine the total 1&I volumes for any given amount of

rain.

MANOR, TX

Table 2-16 indicates which subsystems have excessive |&| volumes. A subsystem is considered to have
excessive |&l if it averaged 2% or greater total rain volume entering the sanitary sewer. Each subsystem
was ranked for excessiveness of I&I volume. Only one of the basins was above the excessive level — Basin
7, which is similar to its excessive ranking during the 2021 flow monitoring project. Individual site
percent rain to sewer analyses are detailed in Appendix A.

Table 2-16 — Statistical Analysis of Rain to Sewer Volume

Item 16.

Average Rain | Average Rain
to Sewer to Sewer Number 10-Year
Site/ Cumulative Subsystem(” of Events | 24-Hour I&I
Subsystem (%) (%) Ranking'? | Analyzed | Volume (MG)
1 0.85% 0.85% 7 15 0.34
2 0.53% 0.10% 12 12 1.00
2A 1.28% 1.54% 11 0.30
2B 1.13% 1.13% 14 0.08
2C 0.72% 0.72% 11 0.28
3 0.81% 0.98% 14 1.46
4 0.50% 0.50% 11 15 0.31
6 1.41% 1.41% 4 15 0.12
7 5.60% 8.40% 15 1.41
8 0.63% 0.63% 10 15 0.31
10 0.67% 0.67% 9 11 0.12
13 1.68% 1.68% 2 15 0.34

(1) Highlight excessive I/l which is I/l greater than 2% subsystem, based on
historical analysis.
(2) Ranking based on Subsystem average

DRAFT REPORT GBA PN 15333.00
40 255




Item 16.

FALL 2022 FLOW MONITORING MANOR, TX

2.5 Flow and Rainfall Monitoring Results Summary

The 2022 Fall flow monitoring in Manor, TX showed several sub-basins with excessive I&| characteristics.
Table 2-17 shows a summary of the flow monitoring sub-basins and the 1&I characteristics each basin
had including capacity issue indicators such as wet-weather surcharging. Table 2-17 demonstrates that
nine (9) of the thirteen (13) flow meter sub-basins had at least one excessive &I characteristic. The only
sub-basin that did not have any I&I indicators is 2A, however the inflow rate for this sub-basin is 2%
away from the excessive threshold of 25,000 gpd/1000ft. Overall, inflow seems to be a significant issue
in the City’s sanitary sewer system and should be further investigated to determine the sources of
inflow.

Table 2-17 - Flow Monitoring Results Summary

Capacity Issue
Excessive Parameters Indicator
Average
Subsystem 1-Year Percent Rain
Infiltration | Subsystem to Sewer
Site/ Rate Inflow Rate | Subsystem | WetWeather | Dry Weather
Subsystem | (gpd/IDM) |(gpd/1000 ft) (%) Surcharge Surcharge
663 31,668 0.85% Yes No
881 20,565 0.10% Yes No
958 24,459 1.54% No Yes
754 53,235 1.13% No No
145 23,855 0.72% No Yes
995 173,260 0.98% Yes Yes
290 27,281 0.50% No Yes
5,751 42,300 1.41% No No
3,962 159,536 8.40% No No
1,030 34,128 0.63% Yes Yes
223 92,973 0.67% Yes Yes
461 60,947 1.68% No No

Indicates excessive characteristics

Two of three parameters are excessive

DRAFT REPORT GBA PN 15333.00
“ 256




Item 16.

FALL 2022 FLOW MONITORING MANOR, TX

3 Manhole Condition Assessments

3.1 Inspection Background

The 2021 Fall flow monitoring project indicated several basins with excessive 1&I characteristics. Two of
those basins - Sites 6 and 7 — were selected as a “pilot” study area. Detailed SSES investigations would be
completed in these basins to collect further I1&I data. The next three chapters will present the findings of
these investigations.

Manhole Condition Assessments were performed on 137 manholes within the Pilot Area to assess the
structural condition of the manholes and to gather information regarding the presence and degree of I&l.
Simple manhole inspections were performed and logged using a GIS Application called Field Maps. If a
manhole was suspected to have a defect that was not clearly visible from the surface, or if better
measurements and pictures were required, an internal inspection could be completed. Manholes in the
project area on which an inspection was attempted by GBA are shown on Figure 3-1.

After a primary investigation, it was determined that only simple surface inspections were necessary. No
defects were found that indicated the necessity of an internal inspection. A Simple Surface inspection
gathers general upper manhole condition information from the surface, as well as basic information about
lower manhole conditions that can be observed and measured from the surface without entering the
manhole. The accuracy of a simple surface inspection with regard to pipe sizes and lower manhole
condition is lower than an internal inspection. An internal inspection gathers the highest level of
measurement and condition information primarily used as part of a comprehensive condition analysis. An
internal inspection includes a manned entry into the structure to collect all pipe measurements, lamping
defects, and pictures.

A scoring guide to the Simple Inspections which were performed is included on Figure 3-2.

3.2 Inspection Results

There were 137 attempted simple surface inspections, of which six (6) were not able to be fully inspected.
Of the incomplete inspections three (3) manholes were located behind fences and could not be accessed,
two (2) were not found, and one (1) had a locked cover that the crews could not open. All of these
manholes are listed in Table 3-1. The locations of the incomplete inspections are shown on Figure 3-3.

Additionally, two (2) new manholes were found during inspections. These are listed in Table 3-2 and
shown on Figure 3-4.

]
DRAFT REPORT GBA PN 15333.00
42

257




FALL 2022 FLOW MONITORING

Figure 3-1 — Manhole Condition Assessments Map

|

- ) ™

Legend

MH Condition:

O ofs1)

@ 1(18)

O 2(11)

Q 3(22)

@ 4(19

@ Unable to Inspect (6)
—> Sewer Line

] Project Boundary

DRAFT REPORT

43

MANOR, TX

GBA PN 15333.00

Item 16.

258




FALL 2022 FLOW MONITORING

MANOR, TX
Figure 3-2 — Manhole Condition Assessments Scoring Guide
» Photo
Defect Definition Required
Topside,
0 No defects found Vicinity &
Channel

3/8" to 3/4"
Inflow or Infilitration-(Light)  |Trickle and/or dripping (1-3 gallons per minute)

o |Pebris(Moderate) 1-3 gallons Jmm‘
Offset of any manhole part 2-3" (measuring the greatest offset distance) Channel
Surcharge Evidence Greater than pipe height
Mortar or Joint Material Missing

DRAFT REPORT

44

GBA PN 15333.00

Item 16.

259




FALL 2022 FLOW MONITORING

Table 3-1 — Manholes Not Inspected

MH ID

Condition

Reason Not Inspected

013-001

Unable to Inspect

Could Not Open, Bolted Cover

013-002

Unable to Inspect

Could Not Access, In Private Yard

013-004

Unable to Inspect

Could Not Find

013-021

Unable to Inspect

Could Not Access, In Private Yard

013-012

Unable to Inspect

Could Not Find

013-025

Unable to Inspect

Could Not Access, In Private Yard

Table 3-2 — New Manholes Found

MANOR, TX

MHID |Condition [Upstream Manhole [Downstream Manhole Address
UMH-1 0 013-056 013-047 13012 Ship Bell Drive
UMH-2 4 013-057 013-046 13012 Tinker Street

DRAFT REPORT

45

GBA PN 15333.00

Item 16.

260




FALL 2022 FLOW MONITORING

Figure 3-3 — Incomplete Manhole Inspections

"' @ MH Unable to Inspect | “;\ \

—=> Sewer Line

£ 0137002
W,

O/g, FX»QO

DRAFT REPORT GBA PN 15333.00




FALL 2022 FLOW MONITORING

Figure 3-4

DRAFT REPORT

— New Manholes Fou

Legend

©  Sewer Manhole
— Sewer Line
¢ [ Project Boundary
@® New Manhole

nd

47

MANOR, TX

013:023

GBA PN 15333.00

Item 16.

262




FALL 2022 FLOW MONITORING

MANOR, TX

3.2.1 Structural Condition Summary

Of the 131 manholes successfully inspected, 19 were rated 4 on the condition rating. This is the most

severe rating available and is given when significant I&I or structural defects are found. Table 3-3 lists the

manholes which were rated 4 as well as the reason for this rating. It is recommended that the City perform
rehabilitation on these 19 manholes first to ensure the continued functionality of its system. As shown in

Table 3-3, most of the defects are related to liner failures throughout the manholes. If large chunks of

liner are allowed to break off, they can get stuck in a sewer line and cause severe back-ups upstream in

Item 16.

the system.
Table 3-3 — Manholes Rated 4
COVER MH MH DEPTH
MH ID TYPE |MATERIAL| (ft) |RATING |REASON FOR RATING

Liner peeling around grade ring and around pipes (3), manhole
012-003 [Bolt Down |CONCRETE 19.6 4 offset at grade ring (4).

Lining peeling off at bottom of chamber (2), manhole joint
012-004 |Bolt Down [CONCRETE 18.25 4 separating at chamber (3), infiltration at chamber (4).

Liner is peeling at the chamber (3), manhole separation at
012-006 |Bolt Down |CONCRETE 16.05 4 midpoint (4).

Liner bubbles in chamber (4), flow line obstruction in north in
012-007 |Standard |CONCRETE|N/A ? 4 |pipe (3).

Total liner failure in chamber (4),south in pipe (dry) full of debris
012-008 [Standard |PVC 13.4 4 (2), debris on bench (2).
012-010 |Standard [PVC 6.15 4 A chunk of PVC pipe is in the mouth of the in pipe (4).

Crack surrounding chimney with liner failure (4), crack
013-058 [Standard |CONCRETE 7.59 4 surrounding half of the chamber with bubbling (4).

Lining around grade ring is peeling all around (3), cracks around

concrete base (3), major infiltration point at bench of manhole
012-021 |Bolt Down |CONCRETE 12.32 4 (4).

18.37to Grease surcharge flowline obstruction and debris (4), liner

013-006 |Standard |CONCRETE [grease ® 4 failure at mouth of chimney (3).
013-041 [Standard |CONCRETE 7.03 4 Crack surrounding chimney (4)
013-038 [Standard |CONCRETE 6.2 4 Large crack all the way around and I&I staining.
013-037 [Standard |CONCRETE 7.62 4 Large crack all the way around chimney, quarter inch in width.
013-023 [Standard |CONCRETE 8.2 4 Manhole lid broken.

Crack surrounding grade ring (3), asphalt surrounding manhole
013-013 |Standard [CONCRETE 10.04 4 cover is broken (4), roots growing through crack in chimney.
013-017 |Standard [CONCRETE 7.83 4 No lining, large crack all the way around chimney.
013-035 |Standard [CONCRETE 5.7 4 Cracked all the way around and no lining.
013-036 |Standard [CONCRETE 6.25 4 Cracked all the way around chamber and no lining.
013-005 [Bolt Down |CONCRETE 19.16 4 Manhole surcharged (4).

Manhole between 013-057 and 013-046, large crack surround
UMH-2 [Standard |CONCRETE 9.26 4 chimney with void visible (4).
Notes

1. Numbers in parenthesis in the Reason for Rating column indicate the severity rating given to each defect found, if
multiple significant defects were found.
2. Manhole was too deep to get a depth measurement with the level rod.

3. There was a grease plug partway up the chamber that blocked crew access to manhole invert.

DRAFT REPORT

GBA PN 15333.00
48

263




Item 16.

FALL 2022 FLOW MONITORING MANOR, TX

Structural manhole defects allow certain amounts of I&I to enter the sanitary system. Based on studies by
both GBA and other entities, average inflow rates have been assigned to certain defects. Table 3-4 details
these estimates:

Table 3-4 — Inflow Rates for Manhole Defects

Average Inflow
Manhole Defect Rate (gpm)
Ponding Manhole 3
Rim Seal 1-5
Corbel Lead or Cracked 0.5-1.5
Frame Base Seal (FBS)
Chimney Cracks 1-2
Broken Frame 1-2

*Flow rate is per hole and assuming 2” head of rainfall accumulation

Using the inflow rates from Table 3-4, a total of approximately 46 gpm can be potentially removed if the
indicated rehabilitation is performed.

In addition to the 19 manholes rated 4, there were 22 manholes rated 3. Typically in an I1&I rehabilitation
project it would be recommended to fix manholes rated 3 and 4 together, as both can allow significant
amounts of 1&I to enter the system. These manholes are listed in Appendix B.

The manholes that are recommended for further rehabilitation work are listed in Table 3-5. It is important
to keep in mind that 1&I rehabilitation has the potential to push the I&I to a different point on the manhole
or line where it could thus still enter the sanitary system. Sanitary sewer rehabilitation will not completely
remove all 1&1 and create a water-tight system. The goal of any rehabilitation should be instead to reduce
I&I while also increasing the functional life cycle of the collection system.

]
DRAFT REPORT GBA PN 15333.00
49

264




FALL 2022 FLOW MONITORING

Table 3-5 — Manholes in Need of Rehabilitation

MANOR, TX

Location of defect Recommended Rehabilitation/Maintenance
Manhole | Inspection | Frame | FBS | Grade | Chimney | Chamber | Channel | Other Reset Install | Line | Cleaning | Point | Pipe Other Comments
ID Rating Ring MH part | FBS MH Repair | Seals
012-003 v v v v vV Liner peeling around grade ring and around pipes, manhole offset at
4 grade ring.
012-004 v v Lining peeling off at bottom of chamber, manhole joint separating at
4 chamber, infiltration at chamber.
012-006 4 v v v Liner is peeling at the chamber, manhole separation at midpoint.
012-007 4 v v v v Liner bubbles in chamber, flow line obstruction in north in pipe.
012-008 v v v v Total liner failure in chamber, south in pipe (dry) full of debris, debris on
4 bench.
012-010 4 v v A chunk of PVC pipe is in the mouth of the in pipe .
012-021 v v v v v Lining around grade ring is peeling all around, cracks around concrete
4 frame surround, major infiltration point at bench of manhole.
013-005 4 Surcharge v Manhole surcharged, most likely due to back-up from lift station.
013-006 v v Vv Vv Grease surcharge flowline obstruction and debris, liner failure at mouth
4 of chimney.
013-013 v v v v v v Re-pave
surrounding | Crack surrounding grade ring, asphalt surrounding manhole is broken,
asphalt roots growing through crack in chimney.
013-017 v v No lining, large crack all the way around chimney.
013-023 Broken New MH lid
4 lid Manhole lid broken.
013-035 4 v v Chamber seal is missing, no lining.
013-036 4 v v Cracked all the way around chamber and no lining.
013-037 v v v v Large crack all the way around chimney, quarter inch in width. 1&I
4 staining from under the frame.
013-038 4 v v v v Large crack all the way around and I&I staining.
013-041 4 v v Crack surrounding chimney.
013-058 v v v Crack surrounding chimney with liner failure, crack surrounding half of
4 the chamber with bubbling.
UMH-2 v v v v Manhole between 013-057 and 013-046, large crack surround chimney
4 with void visible. Heavy staining from under frame.

FBS = Frame Base Seal

DRAFT REPORT

50

GBA PN 15333.00

Item 16.

265




Item 16.

FALL 2022 FLOW MONITORING

4 CCTV Inspections

MANOR, TX

41 Inspection Background

Tunnel Vision Pipeline Cleaning and Video Inspection, Inc. attempted CCTV inspections in 2022 on 107 line
segments for a total of 30,386 linear feet. All CCTV inspections attempted are shown on Figure 4-1 and
the statistics are listed in Table 4-1.

Table 4-1 — CCTV Summary

Project Area | Pipe Size | LF Scoped LF Inspected
o 8” 26,108 26,907
© 12” 1,428 1,641
2~
‘= 15" 2,759 2,791
©
@ Total 30,295 30,386

All of the lines scoped for this project were successfully inspected. There were no major issues with tree
roots in the system however debris was present in many line segments. Section 4.2 will discuss the heavy
cleaning that was completed for this project.

Additionally, two new manholes were found during CCTV (and noted again during manhole inspections)
which were labeled UMH-1 and UMH-2. These are discussed in more detail in Section 3.2.

4.2 Heavy Cleaning

A total of 48.5 hours was spent on heavy cleaning in this targeted Project Area. Most of this time was
spent cleaning the 12”-15” lines along Old TX-20. These lines were found to be at least 50% full of silt,
rock, and other debris at the time of inspections. It is suspected that the two lift stations located along
this trunk line are at least partially responsible for the debris accumulation. The lift station operation
cycles were not perfectly calibrated so flows were not always pumped out at the correct intervals and
this caused flows to back-up into the sewer lines and debris to settle out.

Additionally, the 8” lines along St Mary Drive had heavy gravel-type debris that needed heavy cleaning.
It is unclear where the debris originated, but it is suspected to have been introduced into the lines
during the construction taking place northwest of St Mary Drive.

It was also noted that the two (2) lift stations along Old Hwy 20 (Carriage Hills and Bell Farms Lift
Stations) should be cleaned as a follow-up to the work completed during this project. Since not every bit
of debris is able to be vacuumed out of the lines at the time of heavy cleaning, it is probably that some
debris made its way into the lift stations. Heavy cleaning of the stations will ensure that similar backing
up into the system as has been seen before does not happen again.

The lines on which heavy cleaning was performed are shown on Figure 4-2.

]
DRAFT REPORT GBA PN 15333.00
51

266




FALL 2022 FLOW MONITORING

Figure 4-1 — CCTV Completed

OO

US| Highway2901ES

Legend
CCTV SewerMain

s CCTV Completed (107)
— Sewer Line
[ Project Boundary

DRAFT REPORT GBA PN 15333.00




FALL 2022 FLOW MONITORING

Figure 4-2 — Heavy Cleaning Lines
/ = \‘ m ] ‘LJ'-‘" LI RO

1290 E
S oMighway san
USHig v

USIHighways2e

USiHighway 2901

DRAFT REPORT GBA PN 15333.00




Item 16.

FALL 2022 FLOW MONITORING MANOR, TX

4.3 Structural Condition Summary

Water level sags were the most noted defect within this project area identified during CCTV inspections.
As can be seen in Table 4-2, three (3) lines experienced sagging severe enough to be rated a 4, and one
(2) line had an infiltration defect rated 4. Sagging can occur when pipe joints separate and pipe bedding
settles below the line. Over time, sags can worsen and lead to pipe failures, but CIPP lining can reinforce
the structural strength of the line segment and keep it from failing.

There were additionally seven (7) lines identified that had a defect rating of 3 which are listed in Table
4-3. Figure 4-2 shows the locations of lines identified to have defects.

The reports produced by the CCTV contractor are included in Appendix C.

DRAFT REPORT GBA PN 15333.00
54 269




FALL 2022 FLOW MONITORING MANOR, TX
Table 4-2 — CCTV Lines with a Highest Defect Rating of 4
Pipe ID USMH DSMH Diam Matl PAPC Defect Defect Ft DS Comment
Score
012-009 - 012-008 012-009 012-008 8 PVC  4G34 MWLS 50.1, 26.2- MSA at 50.1 ft D. due to debris. Rated 3423D,
196.8 reversal was rated 4G00. Sag rated 3/4 for
30.1U-196.8U
013-001 - 013-021 013-001 013-021 12 PVC 4100 IR 272.3 Infiltration Runner rated 4 at 272.3ft DS
013-010- 013-009 013-010 013-009 8 PVC  4A37 MWLS 175.2-200.1, Multiple significant sags in line. 175.2-200.1,
227.3-243.2, 227.3-243.2,315.3-335.1
315.3
013-016 - 013-015 013-016 013-015 8 PVC 4135 MWLS 39.6-66.0 Sag rated 3 from 39.6-66.0 ft DS. MCU rated
4 at 46.5
Table 4-3 — Lines with a Highest Defect Rating of 3
Pipe ID USMH DSMH Diam Matl PAPC Defect Defect Ft DS Comment
Score
N12-009 - 012-019 N12-009 012-019 8 PVC 3700 MWLS 230-265 Sag rated 3 from 230-265Ft DS
N13-012 - N12-009 N13-012 N12-009 8 PVC 3112 FL 503 Flow Level rated 3 at 503 ft DS most likely
due to a sag
012-008 - 012-007 012-008 012-007 8 PVC 3424 MWLS 8-23.9, 237.2 Sag rated 3 at 8-23.9ft D and at 237.2ft D.
Other minor sags in line rated 2.
012-019-012-018 012-019 012-018 8 PVC 382A MWILS 29-125, 289- Sag rated 3 from 29-125 DS and 289-361 DS
361 sags rated 2 also in line
013-012-013-011 013-012 013-011 8 PVC 3900 MWLS 190-251, 377-  Sag rated 3 from 190-251, and 377-558 ft DS
558
013-044 - 013-043 013-044 013-043 8 PVC 372C MWILS 126.4-184.5 Sag rated 3 from 126.4-184.5 ft DS. MSA due
to debris. Line had significant amount of
debris which had to be cleaned. Line rated
3A22 DS initially, rated 372C upon redo. Redo
was 241.5D, first pass was 184.6D.
013-046 - 013-045 013-046 013-045 8 PVC 3A25 MWLS 4.5-55.8, Sag rated 3 from 4.5-55.8 DS and again at

DRAFT REPORT

237.8-250.8 237.8-250.8 DS. Sags rated 2 also in line.

GBA PN 15333.00
55

Item 16.

270




FALL 2022 FLOW MONITORING

Figure 4-3 — CCTV Lines with Major Defects

USEHIG 0N Sy s in
£

USiHighway 290

DRAFT REPORT GBA PN 15333.00




Item 16.

FALL 2022 FLOW MONITORING MANOR, TX

5 Smoke Testing

Smoke testing is typically performed on sewer segments by introducing a non-toxic heated liquid smoke
into the collection system. The smoke is forced through the system with a gas-powered blower. The
smoke exits the system at locations where rainfall or groundwater can enter. A three-person crew visually
inspects areas tributary to the line segment. Typical &I sources identified during smoke testing are shown
on Figure 5-1.

Careful planning preceded the smoke testing to reduce public inconvenience. Due to the potential public
concern resulting from smoke in and near buildings, the public and the fire department were notified prior
to testing. Smoke testing notices were delivered to every residence in the area a minimum of 48 hours
prior to testing. Instructions were included on the notices for ensuring each building’s p-traps were full
of standing water ahead of the smoke testing. This would prevent smoke from entering a building through
the lateral connection to the sanitary sewer. Daily contact was made with the fire and police department
dispatch to inform them of specific areas being tested.

Smoke testing was conducted on approximately 37,500 feet of sanitary sewer lines in the project area.
The testing observations were recorded in a GIS database created by GBA and approved by the City.

A source was considered positive if the smoke was observed in the area tributary to the line segment
being tested. Suspect sources, which are sources that are potentially connected to the system but did not
smoke during the tests, were also identified. Clogs, sags, collapsed pipes, or water traps may prevent a
suspect source from smoking. A negative source was used if a house plumbing vent did not smoke when
the line segment the house was assumed to be connected to was tested. It is possible that the house
lateral was full of water or roots, and that prevented smoke from traveling up and out of the vent stack.
GBA documented these negative sources as back-up information for the City if a homeowner calls about
a problem with their sewer lateral.

A total of 280 positive, 12 negative, and 1 suspect sources were identified during this process. Figures 5-2
and 5-3 show the lines smoke tested and the locations of the smoke sources identified during testing,
respectively. All smoke testing sources are also included in a Table in Appendix B.

There were twelve (12) houses that had negative plumbing vent smoke sources. It is suspected that clogs
or sags in the laterals were the cause of the smoke not exiting the vent stacks. Table 5-1 shows the
properties where vent smoke was not observed.

There were 237 properties with uncapped, broken, or defective cleanouts that should be rehabilitated,
out of the 259 total properties with cleanouts present. Although uncapped cleanouts are small in diameter
and do not typically introduce a lot of rainfall into the sewer system, they can still pose problems to the
system. Foreign objects are often lodged into the cleanouts, and if the top of the cleanout is flush with
the surface, it can create a sump scenario that can pool rainfall flow and increase 1&I in the system.
Appendix D contains the complete list of the 237 defective clean-outs along with recommendations for
next steps.

A summary of the types of smoke testing sources and their respective I1&I flow rates is shown in Table 5-2.
The defects highlighted in gray should be first priority for removal or rehabilitation as they are the most
cost-effective sources of I&l that can be removed. More in-depth cost analysis should be performed during
the design phase to ensure the most viable solutions are reached.

DRAFT REPORT GBA PN 15333.00
57

272




FALL 2022 FLOW MONITORING

Figure 5-1 — Typical Smoke Testing Sources

MANOR, TX

Item 16.

Downspout

Connection L\/W
»
o

~
i

Driveway
Drain
A
/i" 1
)
Frame
Seal
g
= —’i:":::.;—:_ﬁ; A
- Foundation
Drain

Storm Smoke
Connection  ~ Blower
/"‘w‘[ \(j f \
L Y
/N [
i [
o / ,\,N\
BR—— L
(Y]
]
&/ﬂ‘%ﬂ-
| -
,_—:.-»:::“:“:»":":JZ: " Main Line
— iz Crack

Table 5-1 — Houses with No Vent Smoke

Defect Smoke Smoke Blower

Type Intensity Address Public/Private Result MH
Vent Stack | None 12916 Wedding Drive Private Negative N13-005
Vent Stack | None 12701 Carillon Way Private Negative 013-046
Vent Stack | None 12925 Carillon Way Private Negative 013-055
Vent Stack | None 12805 Wedding Drive Private Negative N13-006
Vent Stack | None 12721 Wedding Drive Private Negative N13-006
Vent Stack | None 12725 Wedding Drive Private Negative N13-006
Vent Stack | None 12812 St Mary Drive Private Negative N12-010
Vent Stack | None 12753 Bella Parkway Private Negative 013-058
Vent Stack | None 12737 Bella Parkway Private Negative 013-058
Vent Stack | None 12549 Ostrich Trail Private Negative 012-006
Vent Stack | None 13300 Prairie Sage Cove Private Negative 013-042
Vent Stack | None 13333 Indian Oak Bend Private Negative 013-009

DRAFT REPORT

58

GBA PN 15333.00

273




FALL 2022 FLOW MONITORING

Table 5-2 — Smoke Testing Results

Item 16.

MANOR, TX

Source Units Estimated Potential 1-Year Total Potential 1-Year
Storm Inflow!® (gpm) Storm Inflow (gpm)
Positive Sources
Cleanout 259 0.25 64.75
Foundation Drain 1 3.0 3.0
Indirect Storm Inlets/Lines 0.5 0
Plumbing Defect 1 0.25 0.25
Sanitary Manholes 15 1.0 15.0
Service Laterals 4 0.5 2.0
Stairwell Drain 0 3.0 0
Total 280 - 85.0
Negative Sources
Plumbing Vent or Inside Building 12 0 0
Total 12 0 0
Suspect Sources
Inconclusive/Suspect Sources? 1 0 0
Total 1 - 0
() Estimates for unit flows are based on average values used in previous studies by GBA and other entities.
) This source is a line segment that did not smoke during testing. It could have been due to blockages in the
pipe. CCTV did not show any evidence of a blockage, so suspect this was just a momentary issue.
The defects highlighted in blue should be first priority for removal or rehabilitation as they are the most cost
effective sources of I1&I that can be removed.

DRAFT REPORT

59

GBA PN 15333.00

274




FALL 2022 FLOW MONITORING

Figure 5-2

DRAFT REPORT

— Smoke Testing Lines

Legend

Smoke Testing Sewerlines
— Sewer Line
[ Project Boundary

60

MANOR, TX

GBA PN 15333.00

Item 16.

275




FALL 2022 FLOW MONITORING

Figure 5-3 — Smoke Testing Results

Legend

Smoke Test Results:
Negative (12)
Positive (280)
Suspect (1)

— Sewer Line

[ Pilot Project Area

DRAFT REPORT GBA PN 15333.00




Item 16.

FALL 2022 FLOW MONITORING MANOR, TX

6 GIS Updates

Table 6-1 lists the necessary GIS updates that should be done. All necessary updates are highlighted in
yellow :

Table 6-1 — Updates Needed in GIS

USMH DSMH Pipe ID Diam Material Length Comment

N12-001 012-012 N12-001_012-012 8 PVC 343 Original length was 338.88
N13-002 N13-001 N13-002_N13-001 8 PVC 218.7 Original length was 199.12
N13-013 013-050 N13-013_013-050 8 PVC 394.8 Original length was 371.6
012-008 012-007 012-008_012-007 8 PVC 240.5 Original length was 288.81
012-012 012-002 012-012_012-002 12 PVC 146.31 Line appears to be 12”, not 8”
013-017 013-016 013-017_013-016 8 PVC 269.6 Original length was 308.43
013-020 013-008 013-020_013-008 8 PVC 294.7 Original length was 321.85
013-021 013-020 013-021_013-020 8 PVC 73.4  Original length was 54.77
013-023 013-022 013-023_013-022 8 PVC 206.1 Original length was 229.47
013-024 013-023 013-024_013-023 8 PVC 84.6 Original length was 64.34
013-026 013-025 013-026_013-025 8 PVC 213.1 Original length was 198.06
013-035 013-025 013-035_013-025 8 PVC 158.7 Original length was 107.5
013-036 013-035 013-036_013-035 8 PVC 418.3 Original length was 458.59
013-040 013-039 013-040_013-039 8 PVC 415.3  Original length was 392.31
013-043 012-021 013-043_012-021 8 PVC 315.4 Original length was 292.5
013-044 013-043 013-044_013-043 8 PVC 241.5  Original length was 309.09
013-045 013-044 013-045_013-044 8 PVC 177.4 Original length was 202.54
013-056 UMH1 013-056_ UMH1 8 PVC 379.2 New MH labeled UMH1
UMH1 013-047 UMH1_013-047 8 PVC 199.2 New MH labeled UMH1
013-057 UMH2 013-057_UMH2 8 PVC 368.2 New MH labeled UMH2
UMH2 013-046 UMH2_013-046 8 PVC 192.2 New MH labeled UMH2
013-002 013-001 013-002_013-001 12  PVC 403.9 | Original length was 346.96
013-001 013-021 013-001_013-021 12 PVC 272.3 Original length was 330.88
012-021 012-020 012-021_012-020 15  PVC 294.5  Original length was 382.66
012-021 012-020 012-021_012-020 15 PVC 415.4 Original length was 382.66
012-006 012-005 012-006_012-005 15  PVC 503.3 Original length was 434.11
012-005 012-004 012-005_012-004 15 PVC 505.2 Original length was 362.54
012-004 012-003 012-004_012-003 15  PVC 284.2 | Original length was 499.1
012-003 010-002 012-003_010-002 15 PVC 188.9 Original length was 150.46

The locations of unknown manholes 013-046A and 013-047A were shown previously in Figure 3-4 and
were the same unknown manholes identified during manhole inspections.

DRAFT REPORT GBA PN 15333.00
62

277




Item 16.

FALL 2022 FLOW MONITORING MANOR, TX

7 Conclusions and Recommendations

7.1 Conclusions

The objectives of this project were:

1. Check for pipe connectivity, structural defects, and potential sources of 1&I in existing manholes
and sanitary sewer lines within the specific neighborhoods selected to be investigated.

2. Collect flow and rainfall data and perform I&I analysis on the separated sanitary sewers in the City
of Manor.

3. Use the data collection to update the City’s GIS and ensure accurate routing is documented.

All objectives were met through the completion of manhole inspections, smoke testing, CCTV, and flow
monitoring in this Project Area. Several areas of GIS updates have been identified and were discussed in
Chapter 6. Many sources of |&| were discovered throughout the completion of the field inspections and
can be addressed with a rehabilitation program.

The conclusions for this project area are:

e The sanitary sewer lines appear to be in good shape and only approximately 10.2% of the 107
lines inspected have significant structural defects that should be fixed.

e The manhole structures are in slightly worse condition, with approximately 31% needing some
level of rehabilitation.

e Smoke testing identified 237 clean-outs that have broken, missing, or leaking lids that could be
addressed to reduce storm inflow into the system.

7.2 Recommendations

7.2.1 Maintenance ltems

Flow Monitoring Items

Based on the 2022 Fall flow monitoring results, seven (7) of the twelve (12) basins showed evidence of
inflow sources. Inflow is most often associated with system surcharging because it is the result of sources
directly tied into the system and causes rain-induced flows to enter the system much quicker than through
infiltration sources.

The best way to detect infiltration sources is by performing sanitary sewer smoke testing. GBA
recommends that the City adopt a multi-year inflow-reduction program, similar to what is shown below
in Table 7-1, to identify, design, and rehabilitate I1&I sources in the leakiest basins. Smoke testing would
be the first round of inspections to be completed, and the results of the smoke testing would indicate
more specific locations for additional investigations in the form of CCTV and manhole inspections. It is
anticipated that approximately 30% of the system will need to be televised, and 25% of the manholes will
need further inspection. Once sources and conditions are identified, rehabilitation design documents can
be created and construction of repairs accomplished.

DRAFT REPORT GBA PN 15333.00
63

278




Item 16.

FALL 2022 FLOW MONITORING MANOR, TX

Based on the aforementioned quantities, the recommended City annual budget amounts for the
investigations should follow the schedule shown below:

e 2023:568,225
e 2024:5104,390
e 2025:584,088
e 2026:5113,745

The basins listed in Table 7-1 were ranked in order from highest to lowest inflow rates as the leakiest
basins should be addressed first. These costs also include the estimated costs of Administration, Analysis,
and Reporting.

To ensure the most effective discovery, analysis, design, and rehabilitation of I&I sources, a schedule
similar to one shown in Table 7-2 is recommended. This schedule is broken up into three phases for each
problem area:

1. Field work or Preliminary Engineering — the investigation and analysis of specific basins with a
focus on 1&I sources. This task will also include post-construction flow monitoring to help
determine if &I was successfully reduced.

2. Designor Final Engineering —the preparation of construction documents, plans, and specifications
for competitive sealed bidding.

3. Construction and Observation —the periodic observation of the rehabilitation of defects identified
and designed in Phases 1 and 2. Construction observation is crucial at this phase because it will
ensure the construction is done correctly and future construction-related failures such as sagging
of pipes will be minimized.

The rate of these phases will depend on City budgets and staff availability to work with consultant on the
various phases. GBA has seen great success of programs like this in other similarly-sized clients.

Manhole Inspection Items

Inspection attempts were made at all manholes assigned to this project to confirm pipe connectivity. Out
of the 136 structures selected for inspections and analysis, 6 were not able to be inspected.

e It is recommended that the City locate and inspect the three (3) manholes located in private
back-yards: 013-002, 013-021, and 013-025.

e It is recommended that the City uncover the two (2) buried manholes and raise them to grade:
013-004 and 013-012.

e The lift stations along Old Hwy 20 — Carriage Hills and Bell Farms — should be heavily cleaned and
calibrated to ensure they are operating with correct levels. The systems upstream of these lift
stations showed signs of flow backing up and being held in the lines which leads to deposition of
debris, the formation of grease plugs (as was seen in manhole 013-006), and potential back-ups
into residents’ homes.

CCTV Items

The lines identified in Table 7-3 that have sagging in them should be placed on a routine maintenance and
inspection schedule. It is recommended that the lines are televised at a minimum every 5 years and

]
DRAFT REPORT GBA PN 15333.00
64

279




Item 16.

FALL 2022 FLOW MONITORING MANOR, TX

cleaned as needed. If a sag is not cleaned periodically, sump conditions will cause debris to collect,
eventually filling the pipe and stopping flow.

DRAFT REPORT GBA PN 15333.00

65 280




FALL 2022 FLOW MONITORING MANOR, TX
Table 7-1 — Inflow Reduction Program for the City of Manor
Focus of Investigations| Inflow Inflow Inflow Inflow Inflow Inflow Inflow
2024 2024 2024 2025 2025 2025 2026
Basin Location| Basin3 | Basin10 | Basin13 | Basin2B | Basin8 Basin 1 Basin 4
Total LF of sewer 22,230 7,366 17,588 9,396 10,672 16,668 37,396
91 23 55 28 58 61 105
Total Smoke Testing (LF) 22,230 7,366 17,588 9,396 10,672 16,668 37,396
Cost of Total Smoke Testing S 22230|S 7366|S 17,588 |S 9,39 | S 10,672|S 16,668 | S 37,396
Number of Dyed Water Tests 10 4 7 5 5 7 20
Cost of Dyed Water Testing S 1,300| S 5201 $ 910 | $ 650 § 650] S 910 | S 2,600
% of System to CCTV 30% 30% 30% 30% 30% 30% 30%
Cost of CCTV S 26676 S 8839|S 21,106| S 11,275| S 12,806 | S 20,002 | S 44,875
% of Manholes to Inspect 25% 25% 25% 25% 25% 25% 25%
Cost of Manhole Inspections S 2275| S 575 S 1,375 S 7000 S 1,450 S 1,525|S 2,625
Total Cost of Field Work $ 52481 | S 17,300 S 40,979 | $ 22,021| S 25,578 | S 39,105| S 87,496
Administration, Analysis, and Reporting S 15744 S 5190 S 12294|S 6606| S 7674|S 11,731| S 26,249
Total Cost of Investigations $ 68,225 $ 22,490| $ 53,272| S 28,628 | $ 33,252| S 50,836 | S 113,745

DRAFT REPORT

66

GBA PN 15333.00

Item 16.

281




FALL 2022 FLOW MONITORING

MANOR, TX
Table 7-2 — Inflow Reduction Program Schedule for the City of Manor
2024 2025 2026 2027 2028
Fall Winter | Spring [Summer Fall Winter | Spring |Summer| Fall | Winter| Spring | Summer Fall Winter | Spring Summer | Fall
Field Work ("Preliminary
Basin 3 Investigations Engineering’) : “Final ! o
Basin 10 Investigations Dizeli (] EnioaldiG
. L. Construction/Observation
Basin 13 Investigations ,
Post-Construction Flow
Monitoring

Basin 2B Investigations
Basin 8 Investigations
Basin 1 Investigations

Field Work ("Preliminary

Engineering")

Design ( "Final Engin

eering")

Construction/Observation

Post-Construction
Flow Monitoring

Basin 4 Investigations

Field Wo

rk ("Preliminary
Engineering")

Design (

"Final Engi

neering")

Construction/Observation

Post-Construction
Flow Monitoring

DRAFT REPORT

67

GBA PN 15333.00

Item 16.

282




FALL 2022 FLOW MONITORING

Pipe ID

012-009 - 012-008

013-010 - 013-009

013-016 - 013-015

013-001 - 013-021
N12-009 - 012-019
N13-012 - N12-009
012-008 - 012-007

012-019 - 012-018
013-012 - 013-011

013-044 - 013-043

013-046 - 013-045

DRAFT REPORT

USMH

012-009

013-010

013-016

013-001
N12-009
N13-012
012-008

012-019

013-012

013-044

013-046

DSMH

012-008

013-009

013-015

013-021
012-019
N12-009
012-007

012-018

013-011

013-043

013-045

Diam Matl
8 PVC
8 PVC
8 PVC
12 PVC
8 PVC
8 PVC
8 PVC
8 PVC
8 PVC
8 PVC
8 PVC

Table 7-3 — CCTV Major Defects

PAPC
Score
4G34

4A37

4135

4100
3700
3112
3424

382A

3900

372C

3A25

Defect

MWLS

MWLS

MWLS

MWLS
FL
MWLS

MWLS

MWLS

MWLS

MWLS

68

Defect Dist.
From USMH
50.1, 26.2-
196.8

175.2-200.1,
227.3-243.2,
315.3
39.6-66.0

272.3
230-265

503

8-23.9, 237.2

29-125, 289-
361

190-251, 377-
558
126.4-184.5

4.5-55.8,
237.8-250.8

MANOR, TX

Comment

MSA at 50.1 ft DS. due to debris. Rated
3423D, reversal was rated 4G00. Sag rated
3/4 for 30.1 US-196.8 US

Multiple significant sags in line. 175.2-200.1,
227.3-243.2,315.3-335.1

Sag rated 3 from 39.6-66.0 ft DS. MCU rated
4 at 46.5

Infiltration Runner rated 4 at 272.3ft DS

Sag rated 3 from 230-265Ft DS

Flow Level rated 3 at 503 ft DS

Sag rated 3 at 8-23.9ft D and at 237.2ft D.
Other minor sags in line rated 2.

Sag rated 3 from 29-125 DS and 289-361 DS
sags rated 2 also in line

Sag rated 3 from 190-251, and 377-558 ft DS

Sag rated 3 from 126.4-184.5 ft DS. MSA due
to debris. Line had significant amount of
debris which had to be cleaned. Line rated
3A22 DS initially, rated 372C upon redo. Redo
was 241.5D, first pass was 184.6D.

Sag rated 3 from 4.5-55.8 DS and again at
237.8-250.8 DS. Sags rated 2 also in line.

GBA PN 15333.00

Item 16.

283




Item 16.

FALL 2022 FLOW MONITORING MANOR, TX

7.2.2 Construction Items

Based on structural condition assessments of the 127 successfully inspected manholes, it is recommended
that the City perform rehabilitation on the 19 manholes with the worst rating. The manholes in need of
rehabilitation, as well as the type of rehabilitation recommended, are listed in Table 7-4.

Smoke testing exposed several areas of storm water inflow into the sanitary system that should be
addressed.

e Itis recommended that the City address the following private I&I sources:
o Work with homeowner to disconnect the foundation drain at 12828 Doorbell Drive.
o Check and fix broken caps or replace missing caps on 237 cleanouts listed in Appendix D.

Based on the flow monitoring analysis and the SSES work completed as part of this project, the drainage
areas to meter sites 6 and 7 had an excessive infiltration rate, inflow rate, and rain to sewer percentage.
The rehabilitation recommendations listed in Tables 7-3 and 7-4 should decrease these &I rates.

e Itisrecommended that the City perform post-rehabilitation flow monitoring to see if a reduction
in 1&1 can be measured.

7.2.3 Administrative ltems

The SSES investigations completed showed that the City’s GIS network is lacking correct information on
line size and material for several segments.

e Itis recommended the City consider performing a system-wide update to incorporate CCTV data
and manhole inspection data into their GIS databases. The lines with the necessary changes are
listed in Table 7-5.

]
DRAFT REPORT GBA PN 15333.00
69

284




FALL 2022 FLOW MONITORING

Table 7-4 — Manholes in Need of Rehabilitation

MANOR, TX

Location of defect Recommended Rehabilitation/Maintenance
Manhole | Inspection | Frame | FBS | Grade | Chimney | Chamber | Channel | Other Reset Install | Line | Cleaning | Point | Pipe Other Comments
ID Rating Ring MH part | FBS MH Repair | Seals
012-003 v v v v v Liner peeling around grade ring and around pipes, manhole offset at
4 grade ring.
012-004 v v Lining peeling off at bottom of chamber, manhole joint separating at
4 chamber, infiltration at chamber.
012-006 4 v v v Liner is peeling at the chamber, manhole separation at midpoint.
012-007 v v v v Liner bubbles in chamber, flow line obstruction in north in pipe.
012-008 v v v v Total liner failure in chamber, south in pipe (dry) full of debris, debris on
4 bench.
012-010 4 v v A chunk of PVC pipe is in the mouth of the in pipe .
012-021 v v v v v Lining around grade ring is peeling all around , cracks around concrete
4 frame surround, major infiltration point at bench of manhole.
013-005 4 Surcharge v Manhole surcharged, most likely due to back-up from lift station.
013-006 v v v v Grease surcharge flowline obstruction and debris, liner failure at mouth
4 of chimney.
013-013 v v v Broken v v v New MH | Crack surrounding grade ring, asphalt surrounding manhole cover is
4 lid lid broken, roots growing through crack in chimney.
013-017 4 v v No lining, large crack all the way around chimney.
013-023 Broken New MH
4 lid lid Manhole lid broken.
013-035 4 v v Chamber seal is missing, no lining.
013-036 4 v v Cracked all the way around chamber and no lining.
013-037 v v v v Large crack all the way around chimney, quarter inch in width. 1&I
4 staining from under the frame.
013-038 4 v v v v Large crack all the way around and I&I staining.
013-041 4 v v Crack surrounding chimney.
013-058 v v v Crack surrounding chimney with liner failure, crack surrounding half of
4 the chamber with bubbling.
UMH-2 v v v v Manhole between 013-057 and 013-046, large crack surround chimney
4 with void visible. Heavy staining from under frame.

FBS = Frame Base Seal

DRAFT REPORT

70

GBA PN 15333.00

Item 16.

285




FALL 2022 FLOW MONITORING

Item 16.

MANOR, TX

USMH

N12-001
N13-002
N13-013
012-008
012-012
013-017
013-020
013-021
013-023
013-024
013-026
013-035
013-036
013-040
013-043
013-044
013-045
013-056
UMH1

013-057
UMH2

013-002
013-001
012-021
012-021
012-006
012-005
012-004
012-003

DSMH

012-012
N13-001
013-050
012-007
012-002
013-016
013-008
013-020
013-022
013-023
013-025
013-025
013-035
013-039
012-021
013-043
013-044
UMH1

013-047
UMH2

013-046
013-001
013-021
012-020
012-020
012-005
012-004
012-003
010-002

Table 7-5 — GIS Updates Recommended

Pipe ID
N12-001_012-012
N13-002_N13-001
N13-013_013-050
012-008_012-007
012-012_012-002
013-017_013-016
013-020_013-008
013-021_013-020
013-023_013-022
013-024_013-023
013-026_013-025
013-035_013-025
013-036_013-035
013-040_013-039
013-043_012-021
013-044_013-043
013-045_013-044
013-056_ UMH1
UMH1_013-047
013-057_ UMH2
UMH2_013-046
013-002_013-001
013-001_013-021
012-021_012-020
012-021_012-020
012-006_012-005
012-005_012-004
012-004_012-003
012-003_010-002

Diam
8
8
8
8

[
0O 00 00O 00O 0O 00 0O 00 00O 00 0O 00 0O 00 00 00 N

el e i i i e
(ARG AR ARG R RN, RN RN N

Material

PVC
PVC
PVC
PVC
PVC
PVC
PVC
PVC
PVvC
PVC
PVC
PVvC
PVC
PVvC
PVC
PVvC
PVC
PVC
PVvC
PVC
PVvC
PVC
PVvC
PVvC
PVC
PVvC
PVC
PVC
PVC

Length

343
218.7
394.8
240.5

146.31
269.6
294.7

73.4
206.1

84.6
213.1
158.7
418.3
415.3
3154
241.5
177.4
379.2
199.2
368.2
192.2
403.9
272.3
294.5
415.4
503.3
505.2
284.2
188.9

Comment

Original length was 338.88
Original length was 199.12
Original length was 371.6
Original length was 288.81
Line appears to be 12", not 8”
Original length was 308.43
Original length was 321.85
Original length was 54.77
Original length was 229.47
Original length was 64.34
Original length was 198.06
Original length was 107.5
Original length was 458.59
Original length was 392.31
Original length was 292.5
Original length was 309.09
Original length was 202.54
New MH labeled UMH1
New MH labeled UMH1
New MH labeled UMH2
New MH labeled UMH2
Original length was 346.96
Original length was 330.88
Original length was 382.66
Original length was 382.66
Original length was 434.11
Original length was 362.54
Original length was 499.1
Original length was 150.46

DRAFT REPORT

il

GBA PN 15333.00

286




Item 16.

FALL 2022 FLOW MONITORING MANOR, TX

Appendix A — Flow Monitoring Site Data

Due to the size of this Appendix, it will be included as a separate document submitted with this report.

DRAFT REPORT GBA PN 15333.00
72 287




FALL 2022 FLOW MONITORING

MANOR, TX

Appendix B — Manhole Inspections Rated 3

Item 16.

DRAFT REPORT

73

GBA PN 15333.00

288




FALL 2022 FLOW MONITORING MANOR, TX
COVER MH MH TYPE OF
MH ID TYPE MATERIAL | DEPTH | RATING DEFECT DEFECT LOCATION | COMMENTS
N12-009 [Standard CONC 10.36 3 Maintenance |Bench or Channel Sanitation debris in invert, grease in invert.
Liner flaking off with cracks underneath surrounding
chimney,grease in channel, manhole cowver pick hole is filled
N12-010 |Standard PVC 10.9 3 Structural Chimney with concrete.
N13-010 [Standard CONC 6.59 3 Structural Frame or Cover Manhole frame has liner pealing and cracking around it.
012-005 |Bolt Down |CONC 17.4 3 Structural Grade Ring Manhole ring offset from grade ring.
Seems to be heawy debris in invert and on bench, flow
Maintenance obstruction in east in pipe. Liner failure above out pipe in
012-009 |Standard CONC 12.61 3 and Structural [Bench or Channel chamber.
013-008 |Standard CONC 16.19 3 Structural Grade Ring Liner bubbling, cracks surrounding reducer.
013-009 |Standard CONC 16.98 3 Structural Chimney Frame deterioration, crack surrounding chimney.
013-010 |Standard CONC 14.58 3 Structural Chimney Cracks surrounding chimney.
013-011 |Standard CONC 13.85 3 Structural Grade Ring Rag obstructing flow, crack surrounding grade ring.
013-014 |Standard CONC 9.2 3 Structural Grade Ring Crack around grade ring.
013-018 |Standard CONC 8.47 3 Structural Reducer or Chamber [No lining no cracked all the way around
013-019 |Standard CONC 6.13 3 Structural Reducer or Chamber [No liner in manhole, crack all the way around chamber.
013-020 |Standard CONC 8.26 3 Structural Grade Ring Crack surrounding grade ring.
013-026 |[Standard CONC 8.64 3 Structural Reducer or Chamber |No liner in manhole; crack around manhole chamber.
013-027 |Standard CONC 6.06 3 Structural Reducer or Chamber [No liner in manhole,crack around manhole chamber.
013-028 [Standard CONC 6.13 3 Structural Reducer or Chamber |No liner around manhole, 2 cracks around manhole chamber.
013-029 |Standard CONC 8.12 3 Structural Chimney Crack all the way around at lower chimney
013-032 |Standard CONC 6.52 3 Structural Chimney Crack along chimney and crying
013-042 |Standard CONC 6.53 3 Structural Reducer or Chamber [Crack surrounding chamber.
Grease in chamber, cracks surround frame liner failing, liner
013-045 |Standard CONC 12.42 3 Structural Frame or Cover cracks in chamber cracks in liner above north in pipe,
Bench missing large section of liner, liner cracks on top of
013-047 |Standard PVC 14.21 3 Structural Bench or Channel both in and out pipe.
013-057 |Standard CONC 5.27 3 Structural Chimney Liner pealing in chimney.

DRAFT REPORT

74

GBA PN 15333.00

Item 16.

289




FALL 2022 FLOW MONITORING

Appendix C— CCTV Results

MANOR, TX

Item 16.

DRAFT REPORT

75

GBA PN 15333.00

290




Tunnel Vision Pipeline Cleaning and Video Inspection, Inc.

512-581-8669

Item 16.

Project Summary

Main ID

MHO13046MHO13046AA

MH012017MH012016A

MHN13001MHO13055A

MHN13013MHO13050A

MHO13050MHO13049A

MHO13054MHO13049A

MHO13049MHO13048A

MHO13056MHO13047A

MHO13047MHO13047AA

Project Summary

Date

9/16/2022

9/8/2022

9/15/2022

9/16/2022

9/16/2022

9/16/2022

9/16/2022

9/16/2022

9/16/2022

Address

Tinker St

Albatross Pass

Carillon Way

Snow Lane

Snow Lane

Ring Dr

Ring Dr

Ship Bell Dr

Ship Bell Dr

Thursday, September 29, 2022 6:25 PM

Manor 9-8-22

Start MH

MH 013-046

MH 012-017

MH N13-001

MH N13-013

MH 013-050

MH 013-054

MH 013-049

MH 013-056

MH 013-047

Finish MH

MH 013-046A

MH 012-016

MH 013-055

MH 013-050

MH 013-049

MH 013-049

MH 013-048

MH 013-047

MH 013-047A

Pipe

PVC

PVC

PVC

PVC

PVC

PVC

PVC

PVC

PVC

Asset length Surveyed Length

199.7

373.2

402.2

394.8

401.0

246.6

320.8

379.5

199.2

Page

199.7

373.2

402.2

394.8

401.0

246.6

320.8

379.5

199.2

291




Tunnel Vision Pipeline Cleaning and Video Inspection, Inc.

512-581-8669

Main ID

MHO13055MHO13048A

MHN13005MHN13002A

MHO13057MHO13046A

MHN13003MHN13002A

MHO13053MHO13052A

MHO13052MHO13051A

MHO13047MHO13046A

MHO13046MHO13045A

MHO13051MHO13045A

MHO13045MHO13044A

MHO13044MHO13043A

Project Summary

Date

9/16/2022

9/15/2022

9/16/2022

9/15/2022

9/21/2022

9/21/2022

9/21/2022

9/21/2022

9/21/2022

9/21/2022

9/21/2022

Address

Carillon Way

Carillon Way

Manor

Wedding Dr

Casting Dr

Casting Dr

Carillon Way

Carillon Way

Pealing Way

Pealing Way

Pealing Way - Heavy Cleaning

Thursday, September 29, 2022 6:25 PM

Start MH

MH 013-055

MH N13-002

MH 013-057

MH N13-003

MH 013-053

MH 013-052

MH 013-047

MH 013-046

MH 013-051

MH 013-045

MH 013-044

Finish MH

MH 013-048

MH N13-005

MH 013-046

MH N13-002

MH 013-052

MH 013-051

MH 013-046

MH 013-045

MH 013-045

MH 013-044

MH 013-043

Pipe

PVC

PVC

PVC

PVC

PVC

PVC

PVC

PVC

PVC

PVC

PVC

Item 16.

Asset length Surveyed Length

405.2

170.4

368.2

402.0

324.2

307.3

279.3

250.8

298.3

177.4

241.7

Page

405.2

170.4

368.2

402.0

324.2

307.3

279.3

250.8

298.3

177.4

184.6

of 9

292




Tunnel Vision Pipeline Cleaning and Video Inspection, Inc.

512-581-8669

Main ID

MHO13028MHO13027A

MHO13036MHO13035A

MHO13038MHO13037A

MH 013-048MH 013-047AA

MHN13006MHN12011A

MHO12016MHO12015A

MHO12024MHO12015A

MHO12015MHO12014A

MHO12014MHO12013A

MHO12013MHO12012A

MHO12027MHO12026A

Project Summary

Date

9/21/2022

9/21/2022

9/21/2022

9/16/2022

9/9/2022

9/8/2022

9/8/2022

9/8/2022

9/8/2022

9/8/2022

9/8/2022

Address

Pine Needle

Forest Sage

High Sierra St

Carillon Way

Wedding Dr

Albatross Pass

Woodcock Way

Woodcock Way

Woodcock Way

Woodcock Way

Ostrich Trail

Thursday, September 29, 2022 6:25 PM

Start MH

MH 013-028

MH 013-036

MH 013-038

MH 013-048

MH N13-006

MH 012-016

MH 012-024

MH 012-015

MH 012-014

MH 012-013

MH 012-027

Finish MH

MH 013-027

MH 013-035

MH 013-037

MH 013-047A

MH N12-011

MH 012-015

MH 012-015

MH 012-014

MH 012-013

MH 012-012

MH 012-026

Pipe

PVC

PVC

PVC

PVC

PVC

PVC

PVC

PVC

PVC

PVC

PVC

Item 16.

Asset length Surveyed Length

358.2

418.3

475.1

288.7

403.0

79.5

283.1

396.9

406.6

335.4

413.5

Page

358.1

418.3

475.1

288.7

403.0

79.5

283.1

396.9

406.5

335.4

413.5

of 9

293




Tunnel Vision Pipeline Cleaning and Video Inspection, Inc.

512-581-8669

Main ID

MHO12026MHO12025A

MHO12025MHN12001A

CON13P01MHN3008A

MHN13002MHN13001A

MHN13007MHN13006A

MHO13037MHO13024A

MHN12011MHN12010A

MHN12010MHN12009A

MHN12009MHO12019A

MHO12019MHO12018A

MHN13010MHN13009A

Project Summary

Date

9/8/2022

9/8/2022

9/9/2022

9/15/2022

9/9/2022

9/24/2022

9/9/2022

9/9/2022

9/9/2022

9/9/2022

9/15/2022

Address

Ostrich Trail

Ostrich Trail

Wedding Dr.

Carillon Way

Wedding Dr.

High Sierra St

St. Mary Dr

St. Mary Dr

St. Mary Dr

St. Mary Dr

Door Bell Dr

Thursday, September 29, 2022 6:25 PM

Start MH

MH 012-026

MH 012-025

MH N13-008

MH N13-002

MH N13-007

MH 013-037

MH N12-011

MH N12-010

MH N12-009

MH 012-019

MH N13-010

Finish MH

MH 012-025

MH N12-001

CO N13-P01

MH N13-001

MH N13-006

MH 013-024

MH N12-010

MH N12-009

MH 012-019

MH 012-018

MH N13-009

Pipe

PVC

PVC

PVC

PVC

PVC

PVC

PVC

PVC

PVC

PVC

PVC

Item 16.

Asset length Surveyed Length

323.5

267.0

170.8

218.7

404.7

161.7

303.6

286.5

325.7

398.5

372.8

Page

323.5

267.0

170.8

218.7

404.7

161.7

303.5

286.5

325.7

398.5

372.8

of 9

294




Tunnel Vision Pipeline Cleaning and Video Inspection, Inc.

512-581-8669

Main ID

MHN13009MHN12010A

MHN13011MHO13058A

MHO13058MHN13012A

MHN13012MHN12009A

MHN13004MHN13003A

MHN13008MHN13007A

MHN12003MHN12002A

MHO12009MHO12008A

MHO12008MHO12007A

MHO12009MHO12008A

MHO13011MHO13010A

Project Summary

Date

9/15/2022

9/15/2022

9/15/2022

9/15/2022

9/15/2022

9/9/2022

9/27/2022

9/25/2022

9/25/2022

9/25/2022

9/24/2022

Address

Door Bell Dr

Chime Dr

Ring Dr

Ring Dr

Wedding Dr

Wedding Dr.

Skimmer Run

Bella Prky - reversal

Bella Prky

Bella Prky - reversal

Indian Oak Bend

Thursday, September 29, 2022 6:25 PM

Start MH

MH N13-009

MH N13-011

MH 013-058

MH N13-012

MH N13-004

MH N13-008

MH N12-003

MH 012-009

MH 012-008

MH 012-008

MH 013-011

Finish MH

MH N12-010

MH 013-058

MH N13-012

MH N12-009

MH N13-003

MH N13-007

MH N12-002

MH 012-008

MH 012-007

MH 012-009

MH 013-010

Pipe

PVC

PVC

PVC

PVC

PVC

PVC

PVC

PVC

PVC

PVC

PVC

Item 16.

Asset length Surveyed Length

399.0

505.5

376.1

503.9

331.2

231.2

135.8

223.0

240.5

223.0

182.9

Page

399.0

505.5

376.1

503.9

331.2

231.2

135.7

50.1

240.5

196.8

182.9

of 9

295




Tunnel Vision Pipeline Cleaning and Video Inspection, Inc.

512-581-8669

Main ID

MHO13012MHO13011A

MHO13010MHO13009A

MHO13009MHO13008A

MHO13041MHO13009A

MHO13008MHO13007A

MHO13019MHO13018A

MH N12-004MH N12-003

MHO13044MHO13043A

MHN12002MHN12001A

MHN12007MHN12006A

MHN12008MHN12006A

Project Summary

Date

9/24/2022

9/24/2022

9/24/2022

9/24/2022

9/24/2022

9/21/2022

9/27/2022

9/25/2022

9/27/2022

9/27/2022

9/27/2022

Address

Indian Oak Bend

Indian Oak Bend

Indian Oak Bend

Camellia Cove

Carriage Hills Dr

Pine Needle

Skimmer Run

Pealing Way - Heavy Cleaning

Skimmer Run

Skimmer Run

Skimmer Run

Thursday, September 29, 2022 6:25 PM

Start MH

MH 013-011

MH 013-010

MH 013-009

MH 013-041

MH 013-008

MH 013-019

MH N12-004

MH 013-044

MH N12-002

MH N12-006

MH N12-006

Finish MH

MH 013-012

MH 013-009

MH 013-008

MH 013-009

MH 013-007

MH 013-018

MH N12-003

MH 013-043

MH N12-001

MH N12-007

MH N12-008

Pipe

PVC

PVC

PVC

PVC

PVC

PVC

PVC

PVC

PVC

PVC

PVC

Item 16.

Asset length Surveyed Length

167.6

365.0

202.9

165.1

327.5

284.8

140.0

241.7

187.0

64.4

50.8

Page

167.6

365.0

202.9

165.1

327.5

284.8

140.0

241.5

187.0

64.4

50.8

of 9

296




Tunnel Vision Pipeline Cleaning and Video Inspection, Inc.

512-581-8669

Main ID

MHO12018MHO12009A

MHO13029MHO13015A

MHO13035MHO13025A

MHO13043MHO12021A

MHN12001MHO12012A

MHO12012MHO12002A

MHN12006MHN12005A

MHO13007MHO13006A

MHO13015MHO13014A

MHN12005MHN12004A

MHO13023MHO13022A

Project Summary

Date

9/27/2022

9/25/2022

9/25/2022

9/25/2022

9/25/2022

9/25/2022

9/27/2022

9/24/2022

9/24/2022

9/27/2022

9/24/2022

Address

St Mary Dr

Forest Sage

Manor Forest Sage

Pealing Way

Skimmer Run

Manor Skimmer Run

Skimmer Run

Carriage Hills Dr

Ring Dr

Skimmer Run

Ring Dr

Thursday, September 29, 2022 6:25 PM

Start MH

MH 012-018

MH 013-029

MH 013-035

MH 013-043

MH N12-001

MH 012-012

MH N12-006

MH 013-007

MH 013-014

MH N12-005

MH 013-022

Finish MH

MH 012-009

MH 013-015

MH 013-025

MH 012-021

MH 012-012

MH 012-002

MH N12-005

MH 013-006

MH 013-015

MH N12-004

MH 013-023

Pipe

PVC

PVC

PVC

PVC

PVC

PVC

PVC

PVC

PVC

PVC

PVC

Item 16.

Asset length Surveyed Length

325.2

269.5

158.7

315.4

343.3

143.6

64.9

138.6

89.1

91.6

206.1

Page

325.2

269.5

158.7

315.4

343.0

143.6

64.9

138.6

89.1

91.4

206.1

of 9

297




Tunnel Vision Pipeline Cleaning and Video Inspection, Inc.

512-581-8669

Main ID

MHO13024MHO13023A

MHO13025MHO13024A

MHO13026MHO13025A

MHO13022MHO13021A

MHO13020MHO13008A

MHO13021MHO13020A

MHO13031MHO13014A

MHO13017MHO13016A

MHO12010MHO12009A

MHO13014MHO13013A

MHO12011HO12010A

Project Summary

Date

9/24/2022

9/24/2022

9/24/2022

9/24/2022

9/24/2022

9/24/2022

9/24/2022

9/24/2022

9/25/2022

9/24/2022

9/25/2022

Address

Ring Dr

Ring Dr

Ring Dr

Ring Dr

Pecan Hill Cove

Pecan Hill Cove

High Sierra St

Pine Needle

Bella Prky

Ring Dr

Bella Prky

Thursday, September 29, 2022 6:25 PM

Start MH

MH 013-023

MH 013-024

MH 013-025

MH 013-022

MH 013-020

MH 013-020

MH 013-031

MH 013-017

MH 012-010

MH 013-013

MH 012-011

Finish MH

MH 013-024

MH 013-025

MH 013-026

MH 013-021

MH 013-008

MH 013-021

MH 013-014

MH 013-016

MH 012-009

MH 013-014

H 012-010

Pipe

PVC

PVC

PVC

PVC

PVC

PVC

PVC

PVC

PVC

PVC

PVC

Item 16.

Asset length Surveyed Length

84.6

305.4

213.1

309.6

294.7

73.4

276.6

269.6

402.2

298.9

202.2

Page

84.6

305.4

213.1

309.6

294.7

73.4

276.6

269.5

402.2

298.9

202.2

of 9

298




Tunnel Vision Pipeline Cleaning and Video Inspection, Inc.

512-581-8669

Main ID

MHO13016MHO13015A

MHO13018MHO13017A

MH 013-030MH 013-029

MHO13032MHO13031A

MHO13040MHO13039A

MHO13039MHO13022A

MHO13034MHO13033A

MHO13033MHO13013A

MHO13042MHO13007A

MHO13027MHO13026A

MHO13013HO13012A

Number of inspections:

Project Summary

Date

9/24/2022

9/21/2022

9/21/2022

9/21/2022

9/21/2022

9/21/2022

9/21/2022

9/21/2022

9/25/2022

9/24/2022

9/24/2022

97

Address

Ring Dr

Manor

Forest Sage St

High Sierra St

Ring Dr

Ring Dr

Ring Dr

Ring Dr

Prairie Sage Cove

Pine Needle

Ring Dr

Thursday, September 29, 2022 6:25 PM

Start MH

MH 013-015

MH 013-018

MH 013-030

MH 013-032

MH 013-040

MH 013-039

MH 013-034

MH 013-033

MH 013-042

MH 013-027

MH 013-013

Pipe

Finish MH
MH 013-016 PVC
MH 013-017 PVC
MH 013-029 PVC
MH 013-031 PVC
MH 013-039 pPvC
MH 013-022 PVC
MH 013-033 pPvC
MH 013-013 PVC
MH 013-007 PVC
MH 013-026 PVC
MH 013-012 PVC
Subtotal

Item 16.

Asset length Surveyed Length

204.8

258.9

403.7

281.9

415.3

205.7

283.5

277.2

200.5

213.8

212.5

26,616.6 ft

Page

204.8

258.9

403.7

281.9

415.3

205.7

283.5

277.2

200.5

213.8

212.5

26,359.2 ft

9

of 9

299




Tunnel Vision Pipeline Cleaning and Video Inspection, Inc.

512-581-8669

Item 16.

Project Summary

Main ID

MHO12-002_MHO12-001A

MHO12-003_MHO12-002A

MHO12004_MHO12003A

MHO12-005_MHO12-004A

MHO12-006_MHO12-005A

MHO12-007_MHO12-006A

MHO12-020_MHO12-007A

MHO12-021_MHO12-020A

MHO13-003_MHO13-002A

Project Summary

Date

1/30/2023

1/27/2023

1/27/2023

1/18/2023

1/18/2023

1/18/2023

1/17/2023

1/17/2023

12/29/2022

Manor - Heavy cleaning & CCTV 12-28-22 thru 1-30-23

Address

Skimmer Run - Old Tx-20 Hwy Easement

Old Tx-20 Hwy Easement

Old TX 20 Hwy Easement

Old Tx-20 Hwy Easement

Old Tx-20 Hwy Easement

Old Tx-20 Easement

Old Tx-20 Easement

Old Tx-20 Easement

Casting Dr-Old Tx-20 Hwy Easement

Start MH

MH 012-002

MH 012-003

MH 012-004

MH 012-005

MH 012-006

Drive MH 012-007

MH 012-020

MH 012-021

MH 013-003

Tuesday, January 31, 2023 9:24 AM

Finish MH

MH 012-001

MH 012-002

MH 012-003

MH 012-004

MH 012-005

MH 012-006

MH 012-007

MH 012-020

MH 013-002

Pipe

PVC

PVC

PVC

PVC

PVC

PVC

PVC

PVC

PVC

Asset length Surveyed Length

81.2

188.9

284.2

505.2

503.3

504.9

294.5

415.4

263.6

Page

81.1

188.9

284.2

505.2

503.3

504.9

294.5

415.4

263.6

300




Tunnel Vision Pipeline Cleaning and Video Inspection, Inc.

512-581-8669

Main ID

MHO13-002_MHO13-001

MHO13-001_MHO12-021A

MHO13-004_MHO13-003A

MHO13-005_LS05A

MHO13-006_MHO13-005A

Number of inspections:

Project Summary

Date

12/29/2022

12/29/2022

12/28/2022

12/28/2022

12/28/2022

14

Address

Old Tx-20 Hwy Easement

Old Tx-20 Hwy Easement

Old Tx-20 Hwy Easement

Old Tx-20 Hwy Easement

Carriage Hills Drive -Old Tx-20 Hwy Easement

Start MH

MH 013-002

MH 013-001

MH 013-003

MH 013-005

MH 013-006

Tuesday, January 31, 2023 9:24 AM

Pipe

Finish MH
MH 013-001 PVC
MH 012-021 PVC
MH 013-004 PVC
LS05 PVC
MH 013-005 PVC
Subtotal
Total

Item 16.

Asset length Surveyed Length

403.9

272.3

139.4

58.8

302.4

4,218.0 ft

4,218.0 ft

Page

403.9

272.3

139.4

58.8

302.3

4,217.8 ft

4,217.8 ft

301




FALL 2022 FLOW MONITORING

Appendix D — Defective Clean-out List

MANOR, TX

Item 16.

DRAFT REPORT

m

GBA PN 15333.00

302




Item 17.

AGENDA ITEM NO. 17
T CITY OF

AGENDA ITEM SUMMARY FORM

PROPOSED MEETING DATE: May 17, 2023

PREPARED BY: Lydia Collins, Director
DEPARTMENT: Finance

AGENDA ITEM DESCRIPTION:
Consideration, discussion, and possible action on an amendment to the Space Needs Assessment and
Facilities Master Plan Contract with PGAL.

BACKGROUND/SUMMARY:

e PGAL was chosen by Council on February 2, 2022
e April 6, 2022 a professional services contract was awarded and signed to PGAL
e May 3, 2023 PGAL presented the City facility needs assessment findings

LEGAL REVIEW: Yes
FISCAL IMPACT: Yes
PRESENTATION: No
ATTACHMENTS: Yes

e Scope & Proposal Letter for Concept Design Services
STAFF RECOMMENDATION:

It is the City staff’'s recommendation that the City Council approve the Scope & Proposal Letter for Concept
Design Services with PGAL.

PLANNING & ZONING COMMISSION: Recommend Approval Disapproval None

303




ARCHITECTURE
ENGINEERING
INTERIORS
PLANNING

PGAL.COM

May I 1,2023

Scott Moore

City Manager

City of Manor

Phone: 512-215-8290

E-mail: smoore@cityofmanor.org

Add Service to Space Needs Assessment And Facilities Master Plan Contract:
Scope & Proposal Letter for CONCEPT DESIGN SERVICES

Dear Mr. Moore,

Based on our work on the City’s Space Needs Assessment and Facilities Master Plan, the
City is considering the need for the following projects: a New Police Complex, a new City
Hall, a new Recreation Center, a new City Warehouse, and a Library. As the City decides
which projects to accomplish in the short term and potentially include on a bond election
item, we propose to assist by providing concept design and rendering imagery to support
the bond election for the Police Complex, City Hall, and Recreation Center.

CHARACTER AND EXTENT OF SERVICES: CONCEPT DESIGN SERVICES

Services will include the following Architectural (Phase |, Phase 2, Phase 3) and Budget
Verification (Phase 4) services:

I. Phase |:Establish design aesthetic preference:

a. City to establish a ‘Design Committee’ to assist in determining preferred design
aesthetic/style for the projects

b. PGAL will host two design aesthetic meetings with the Design Committee to
discuss and determine preferred aesthetic. PGAL will provide a presentation of
precedent imagery of various styles for Committee to react to.

c. PGALto provide a PDF package of images reflecting the aesthetic preferences
and goals of the Design Committee.

d. Phase 3 renderings’ aesthetic style will be based on Design Committee
aesthetic direction.

2. Phase 2: Site Plans

a. Provide concept site plans to serve as the basis for Phase 3 Renderings:
i. Police Complex: site layout of full program on a generic |0 acre site or
actual site (if a site is selected/purchased)
ii. City Hall: site layout of full program on a generic 5 acre site or actual
site (if a site is selected/purchased)
iii. Recreation Center: site layout of full program on a generic 5 acre site or
actual site (if a site is selected/purchased)

3601 S. Congress Ave., Suite D100 512 2361005
Austin, TX 78704 512 8536126

Item 17.

PGAL

304




3. Phase 3:Renderings
a. Provide concept rendering imagery using established design aesthetic during
Phase .
i. Police Complex: 3 exterior rendering views
ii. City Hall: 3 exterior rendering views
iii. Recreation Center: 3 exterior rendering views
b. Renderings will be provided as digital files for use in bond support graphics,
website, and printed materials.
c. PGAL will create graphic boards with the renderings and project information
that can be printed and mounted on rigid boards for display.

4. Phase 4: Budget Estimate Verification
a. PGAL provided high level budget estimates for the Needs Assessment. This
phase includes an allowance to engage a cost estimating firm to double check
and verify the high level budgets. PGAL will provide estimator with the needs
assessment budget, the site plans, and the renderings. The cost estimator will
adjust based on their experience/expertise.

COMPENSATION
We understand the architectural design fee will be based on an 'hourly not-to-exceed’ fee
structure. The table below

Item 17.

Service Fee
Phase |: Establish Design Aesthetic $5,000
Phase 2: Site Plans:

Police Complex $4,000

City Hall $4,000

Recreation Center $4,000
Phase 3: Renderings:

Police Complex $8,000

City Hall $8,000

Recreation $8,000
Phase 4: Budget Verification (by Cost Estimator) $5,000
TOTAL $46,000

Reimbursable Costs:

We would expect to be reimbursed for any out-of-pocket expenses we incur on behalf of the
project such as cost of reproduction, plotting, special handling or delivery, and travel.
Reimbursable expenses will be billed at our cost, plus a 10% service charge. We would

recommend a reimbursable expenses budget of $1,000.00 be established for the project. Note:

this allowance would include cost of printing six large boards of the renderings for public
display.

305




Item 17.

Thank you for the opportunity to continue service the City on these important projects. Please
don't hesitate to call should you have any questions regarding this proposal.

Sincerely,

oz

PGAL
Cris Ruebush, AIA, LEED AP

Approved and Accepted by:

Name Date

Title

306




Item 18.

AGENDA ITEM NO. 18

T CITY OF

AGENDA ITEM SUMMARY FORM

PROPOSED MEETING DATE: May 17, 2023
PREPARED BY: Lydia Collins, Director
DEPARTMENT: Finance

AGENDA ITEM DESCRIPTION:

Consideration, discussion, and possible action on creating the City Facilities Design Committee,
appointing Mayor Harvey and two (2) City Councilmembers to the City Facilities Design Committee with
City staff.

BACKGROUND/SUMMARY:

On May 3, 2023, the City Council was presented the City of Manor Facility needs assessment findings for
our current and future space needs for City Hall and Police Department operations as well as future
warehouse and recreational facilities. The next step is to form the ad hoc committee that will evaluate
facility design concepts and initiate the process of conducting public engagement meetings to seek
citizen input for our future facilities. This committee will consist of Mayor Harvey, two (2) City
Councilmembers, City Manager and the Department Heads.

LEGAL REVIEW: Not Applicable
FISCAL IMPACT: No
PRESENTATION: No
ATTACHMENTS: No

STAFF RECOMMENDATION:

It is the City staff’s recommendation that the City Council appoint Mayor Harvey and two (2) Councilmembers to
the City Facilities Design Committee.

PLANNING & ZONING COMMISSION: Recommend Approval Disapproval None

307




Item 19.

AGENDA ITEM NO. 19

Tty oF

|} EST. 1872

AGENDA ITEM SUMMARY FORM

PROPOSED MEETING DATE: May 17, 2023
PREPARED BY: Scott Jones, Economic Development Director
DEPARTMENT: Economic Development

AGENDA ITEM DESCRIPTION:

Consideration, discussion, and possible action on approving and authorizing the Scope of Work included in the
Request for Proposals for City Branding and Ongoing Communications Services.

BACKGROUND/SUMMARY:

The Department of Economic Development is seeking proposals for a qualified firm to provide the development
of a comprehensive brand for the City of Manor. The project scope will include the development of a new brand
for the City of Manor and ongoing marketing and communication services as the public relations agency of record
for the City. The proposals will be weighed on proposal factors that include the firm’s experience and
qualifications, the project team involved, the project approach and timeline, the costs and fee schedule, and the
quality of references provided. Any contract entered into as a result of this request for proposal will be in an
amount less than $50,000. The attached request for proposal is provided for City Council consideration.

LEGAL REVIEW: Yes

FISCAL IMPACT: No

PRESENTATION: No

ATTACHMENTS: Yes

e Request for Proposals

STAFF RECOMMENDATION:

Staff recommends City Council approve and authorize the Scope of Work included in the Request for Proposals
for City Branding and Ongoing Communications Services.

CITY COUNCIL: Recommend Approval Disapproval None

308




Item 19.

TCITY OF

s IMANOR

L |} EST. 1872
I TEXAS

City of Manor

REQUEST FOR PROPOSALS

Proposal Reference Number: 2023-27
Project Title: City Branding and Ongoing Communications Services

Proposal Closing Date: June 2, 2023

309




TABLE OF CONTENTS

Table of Contents

Request for Proposals

(1) Introduction

(2) Definitions

(3) General Information

(4) RFP Withdrawals and/or Amendments
(5) Proposal Submittal Requirements

(6) Proposal Evaluation and Contract Award

Appendix A- Scope of Services
(1) Project Title

(2) Scope of Services

Appendix B - Proposal
(1) Checklist and Label Format for Submittal Packet's Sealed Envelope

Required Proposal Information
(1) Proposal Format

Contract Terms and Conditions

(1) Delivery of Products and/or Services
(2) Miscellaneous

(3) Financial Responsibility Provisions

Appendix C - Form CIQ
Appendix D — Professional Services Agreement - Sample

Page 1

Page 2
Page 2
Page 3
Page 3
Page 3
Page 4

Page 6
Page 6

Page 8

Page 9

Page 12
Page 12
Page 13

Page 15
Page 19

Item 19.

310




Item 19.

City of Manor, Texas

Request for Proposals
Introduction

A. Project Overview: The City of Manor is requesting proposals and seeks to hire a qualified firm for the

development of a comprehensive brand for the City of Manor, as well as for ongoing communications.

services, as detailed in Appendix A - Scope of Services.

B. Questions: Following are contacts for questions as identified.

i. RFP Clarifications: All questions related to requirements or processes of this RFP should be submitted in

writing to Scott Moore, City Manager, at smoore@manortx.gov.

ii. Scope of Service Questions: All questions related to the scope of services should be submitted in

writing to the City Manager.

iii. Replies: Responses to inquiries which directly affect an interpretation or effect a change to this RFP
will be issued in writing by addendum posted to the City of Manor website (www.cityofmanor.org). All
such addenda issued by the City prior to the submittal deadline shall be considered part of the RFP. The
City shall not be bound by any reply to an inquiry” unless such reply is made by such formal written

addendum.

iv. Acknowledgement of Addenda: The Proposer must acknowledge all addenda by signing
and returning such document(s) or by initialing appropriate area of the Proposal.

C. Notification of Errors or Omissions: Proposers shall promptly notify the City of any omissions, ambiguity,

inconsistency, or error that they may discover upon examination of this RFP. The City shall not be
responsible or liable for any errors and/or misrepresentation that result from the solicitations which are
inadvertently incomplete, ambiguous, inconsistent or obviously erroneous.

D. Conflict of Interest Questionnaire (Form ClQ): A person or business, and their agents, who seek to contract or

enter into an agreement with the City, are required by Texas Local Government Code, Chapter 176, to file a
conflict of interest questionnaire (FORM CIQ) which is found in Appendix
C. The form must be filed with the City Secretary no later than seven (7) days after the date the person or
business begins contract discussions or negotiations with the City, or submits an application, response to
a request for proposals or bids, correspondence, or other writing related to any potential agreement with
the City.

City of Manor

311



mailto:smoore@manortx.gov
http://www.cityofmanor.org/

2. Definitions

Item 19.

Proposal: The signed and executed submittal of the entirety of Appendix B - Proposal.

Proposer: The Proposer and the Proposer's designated contact signing the first page of the Proposal.

City of Manor ("City"): The City of Manor, Texas.

City Secretary's Office: The office of the City Secretary of the City of Manor, located at 105 E. Eggleston St.,
Manor, Texas 78653. (512) 272-5555.

Project: The name of this Request for Proposals as identified on the cover sheet and first page of Appendix A -

Scope of Service.

Request for Proposals (RFP): The entirety of this document, including all Appendices and Addenda.
Scope of Services: The entirety of Appendix A- Scope of Services.

3. General Information

A. Tax Exempt Status: City purchases are exempt from State Sales Tax and Federal Excise Tax. Do not
include tax in the Proposal. City will furnish Excise Tax Exemption Certificate upon request.

B. Public Inspection of Proposals: The City strictly adheres to the Texas Public Information Act (Texas
Government Code Chapter 552.001, et seq.) and all other governing statutes, regulations, and laws
regarding the disclosure of RFP information. Proposals are not available for public inspection until
after the contract award. If the Proposer has notified the City, in writing, that the Proposal contains
trade secrets or confidential information, the City will generally take reasonable steps to prevent
disclosure of such information, in accordance with the Public Information Act. This is a statement of

general policy only, and in no event shall the City be liable for disclosure of such information by the
City in response to a request, regardless of the City's failure to take any such reasonable steps, even
if the City is negligent in failing to do so.

4. RFP Withdrawals and/or Amendments

A. RFP Withdrawal: The City reserves the right to withdraw this RFP for any reason.

B. RFP Amendments: The City reserves the right to amend any aspect of this RFP by formal written
Addendum prior to the Proposal submittal deadline and will endeavor to notify all potential Proposers
that have registered with the City, but failure to notify shall impose no obligation or liability on the City.

5. Proposal Submittal Requirements

A. Submittal Packet Format and Required Content: Proposals should be prepared in accordance with the
instructions outlined in Appendix B, and C. Utmost attention should be given to accuracy, completeness,
and clarity of content. Proposals should be prepared as simply as possible and provide a straightforward,
concise description of the proposer's capabilities to satisfy the requirements of the RFP. All Proposal
Documents must be prepared in single-space type on standard 8-1/2" x 11" vertically oriented pages,
numbered at the bottom. The proposal submittal should include two (2) hard copies and one (l) electronic
copy on a flash drive. Proposals should be submitted in a sealed envelope with the following information

marked plainly on the front:

City of Manor

312




Item 19.

B. Submittal Deadline: The deadline for submittal of Proposals shall be 10:00 A.M. (CST), Friday, May 26,

2023. It is the Proposer's responsibility to have the Proposal Documents correctly submitted by the
deadline. No extensions will be granted and no late submissions will be accepted.

C. Key Events Schedule:

Proposal Release Date 3:00 PM (CST) Friday, May 19, 2023
Sealed Proposals Due to City 10:00 AM (CST) Friday, June 2, 2023
Anticipated Committee Evaluation Review Tuesday, June 6, 2023

Anticipated City Council Approval Wednesday, June 21, 2023
Anticipated Contract Award Friday, June 23, 2023

D. Proposals Received Late: Proposers are encouraged to submit their proposals as soon as possible. The time

and date of receipt as recorded by City staff when the proposal is delivered shall be the official time of
receipt. The City is not responsible for late submission regardless of the reason. Late Proposals will not be
considered under any circumstances.

E. Alterations or Withdrawals of Proposal Document: Any submitted Proposal may be withdrawn or a revised

proposal substituted prior to the submittal deadline. Proposal Documents cannot be altered, amended or
withdrawn by the Proposer after the submittal deadline.

F. Validity Period: Once the submittal deadline has passed, any Proposal Document shall constitute an
irrevocable bid to provide the commodities and/or services set forth in the Scope of Services at the price(s)
shown in the Proposal Document. Such proposal shall be irrevocable until the earlier of the expiration of
ninety (90) days from the submittal deadline, or until a contract has been awarded by the City.

6. Proposal Evaluation and Contract Award

A. Proposal Evaluation and Contract Award Process: All proposals must not exceed $50,000. The City will

evaluate all proposals to determine which proposers are reasonably qualified for the award of the contract,
applying the anticipated evaluation factors and emphasis to be placed on each factor as identified in the
Scope of Services. The City may, at its option, conduct discussions with or accept proposal revisions from
any reasonably qualified proposer. The City reserves the right to determine which proposal will be most
advantageous to the City.

B. Proposal Evaluation Factors:

Emphasis Factor

25% Firm Experience and Qualifications
25% Project Team

20% Project Approach and Timeline
20% Project Cost/Fee Schedule

10% References

C. Completeness: If the Proposal is incomplete or otherwise fails to conform to the requirements of the RFP,

City of Manor

313




D.

City of Manor

Item 19.

City alone will determine whether the variance is so significant as to render the Proposal non- responsive,

or whether the variance may be cured by the Proposer or waived by the City, such that the Proposal may be
considered for award.

Ambiguity: Any ambiguity in the Proposal as a result of omission, error, lack of clarity or non- compliance by
the Proposer with specifications, instructions and all conditions shall be construed in the favor of the City.
In the event of a conflict between these standard RFP requirements and details provided in Appendix A-
Scope of Services or Appendix B- Proposal, the Appendices shall prevail.

Sub-Contractor/Partner Disclosure: A single firm or multiple firms may propose the entire solution. If the

proposal by any firm requires the use of subcontractor, partners, and/or third-party products or services,
this must be clearly stated in the proposal. The firm submitting the proposal shall remain solely responsible
for the performance of all work, including work that is done by subcontractor.

Additional Information: City may request any other information necessary to determine Proposer's ability

to meet the minimum standards required by this RFP.

Partial Contract Award: City reserves the right to award one contract for some or all the requirements

proposed or award multiple contracts for various portions of the requirements to different Proposers
based on the unit prices proposed in response to this request, or to reject any and all Proposals and re-
solicit for Proposals, as deemed to be in the best interest of City.

Terminate for Cause: The occurrence of more of the following events will justify termination of the

contract by the City of Manor for cause:

i.  The successful proposer fails to perform in accordance with the provisions of these
specifications; or,

ii.  The successful proposer violates any of the provisions of these specifications; or,

iii. The successful proposer disregards laws or regulations of any public body having
jurisdiction; or,

iv. The successful proposer transfers, assigns, or conveys any or all of its obligations or duties
under the contract to another without written consent of the City.

v. If one or more of the events identified in Subparagraphs G i) through iv) occurs, the City of
Manor may terminate the contract by giving the successful proposer seven (7) days written
notice. In such case, the successful proposer shall only be entitled to receive payment for
goods and services provided before the effective date of termination. The successful
proposer shall not receive any payment on account of loss of anticipated profits or revenue
or other economic loss resulting from such termination.

vi.  When the contract has been so terminated by the City of Manor, such termination shall

not affect any rights or remedies of the City then existing or which may thereafter accrue.

Terminate for Convenience: This contract may be cancelled or terminated at any time by giving vendor

thirty (30) days written notice. Vendor may be entitled to payment for services actually performed, to the
extent said services are satisfactory.

314




Appendix A - Scope of Services
1. Project Title: City Branding and Ongoing Communications Services

2. Background and Scope of Services:
Located in eastern Travis County, the City of Manor has experienced explosive growth that has
transformed what was a small, rural town of 1,200 people just 20 years ago into a thriving
community of more than 18,000 residents today.

With Manor’s growth projected to continue in the coming years, the City seeks to create a new brand
identity that captures the unique personality and strengths of the evolving community and helps
distinguish it from other fast-growing Central Texas municipalities.

Ultimately, the City aims to define the community as a highly and uniquely desirable place to live,
visit, build a career or locate a business.

The City of Manor seeks the services of an experienced public relations and branding consultant to
help develop this unique brand and tell the positive story of Manor on an ongoing basis as the City’s
public agency of record.

PROJECT SCOPE
A. Develop a New Brand - The City seeks to develop a distinct, comprehensive brand that will visually
represent Manor and its place within Central Texas. The consultant should demonstrate experience
with municipal branding.
The selected firm will be expected to complete the following:
® Market Research - Complete an audit of the City’s existing brand and materials;
analyze branding of neighboring Central Texas municipalities; work with key
stakeholders to better understand what sets Manor apart.
e Brand Development - Create an eye-catching brand that is visually appealing,
memorable and flexible enough to work across departments.
e Brand Positioning and Messaging - Update the City’s messaging to capture the spirit
of Manor and ensure all departments are talking about the City in the same way.
e Collateral Development - Once the new brand is finalized, create collateral, gateway
and wayfinding signage to deploy across the City of Manor.

B. Ongoing Marketing and Communications - the City seeks a firm that will also serve as its public
relations agency of record. This firm will assist with all forms of communication across all City
departments and entities including: City Council, the Police Department, Public Works, Tourism,

Human Resources, Economic Development and Finance.

The selected firm will be expected to assist with the following:

City of Manor

Item 19.

315




City of Manor

Communications Strategy - The consultant will help devise and implement
communications strategies identified and as needs arise, providing staff with counsel on
messaging, stakeholder outreach, communication channels and reputation
management. The consultant should have a thorough understanding of the issues and
needs of the local environment and of Central Texas in general.

Media Relations - The consultant will work with the City to secure opportunities to
proactively tell the positive story of Manor through traditional media and assist with
media inquiries. The consultant should demonstrate experience with and knowledge of
the Central Texas media landscape.

Media Training - The consultant will conduct media training for City spokespeople across
departments.

Crisis Communications - The consultant will provide counsel to staff and help coordinate
the City’s communication with the public and the media when crises arise. The
consultant should demonstrate experience with crisis communications, ideally as relates
to municipalities or public entities.

Public Education and Community Engagement - The City may need to conduct
education campaigns in support of future bond and other elections. The consultant
should be able to demonstrate a history of successful public education and community
engagement efforts for bond elections in Central Texas.

Wayfinding and Signage throughout the City — design, placement and frequency
Recruitment - As Manor grows, so do the staffing needs across departments. The
consultant will be expected to develop a recruitment strategy, work with staff to
implement that strategy, create materials, etc.

Item 19.

316




Appendix B - Proposal

Submittal Checklist: (To determine validity of proposal)

Firm Experience and Qualifications

Project Team

Project Approach and Timeline

Project Cost/Fee Schedule

References -Appendix B, page 11

Additional Information -Appendix B, pages 11 and 12
Appendix C, page 16, Conflict of Interest Form

All proposals submitted to the City of Manor shall include this page with the submitted Proposal

Item 19.

2023-27
RFP Number:

Project Title: City Branding and Ongoing Communications Services

Submittal Deadline: |10 a.m. (CST) Friday, June 2, 2023

Submittal Location: Manor City Hall

Attn: City Secretary's Office
105 E. Eggleston St.

Manor, Texas 78653

Proposer Information:

Proposer's Legal Name:

Address:

City, State & Zip

Federal Employers
Identification Number #
Phone Number

Fax Number

E-Mail Address:

Proposer Authorization

behalf of the Proposer.
Printed Name and Position of Authorized Representative:

I, the undersigned, have the authority to execute this Proposal in its entirety as submitted and enter into a contract on

Signature of Authorized Representative:

Signed this, (day) of (month),

(year)

City of Manor

317




Item 19.

Appendix B- Proposal (continued)

REQUIRED PROPOSAL INFORMATION. IN ORDER FOR A PROPOSAL TO BE CONSIDERED COMPLETE,

AND TO BE EVALUATED FOR A CONTRACT AWARD BY THE CITY, PROPOSER MUST SUBMIT ALL OF THE
FOLLOWING INFORMATION, ORGANIZED INTO SECTIONS:

Firm Experience and Qualifications

Project Team
Project Approach and Timeline

Project Cost/Fee Schedule

MmO 0w e

References

Additional Information

1. Proposal Format

A. Firm Experience and Qualifications: Please provide information about your company, experience and

services. Respond to each item and provide supporting documentation, as requested or desired.

i
ii.

iii.

1v.

Vi.

Vii.

Company name, address, website, telephone number, email address

Name and contact information of single point of contact

Name/signature and contact information of person with binding authority to enter into
contracts

An overview of your company's history including detailed information on firm size, number of
employees, years in business, and financial stability

Provide information on current workload and how this project will be accomplished with
current staff

Provide a description and images of a minimum of three similar, relevant projects to the scope
of services requested. Include reference information for the projects including an email or
phone number for the primary contact.

Please provide any additional information about your company's unique abilities to meet the
project requirements as described in this RFP.

B. Project Team: Identify all members of the Proposer's team (including both team members and

management) who will be providing the services proposed and include information which details their

experience. Indicate the functions each person will perform and list the percentage of time assigned staff

will dedicate to this project.

C. Project Approach and Timeline: Demonstrate your understanding of the scope of work and describe your

timeline and approach to completing each phase of the project. Provide a clear project schedule noting

delivery dates for all deliverables covered by the RFP. Include a description of specific tasks or information

you will require from City staff.

D. Project Cost/Fee Schedule: Provide a detailed schedule of all fees by phase, including reimbursable

expenses. Pricing shall reflect the full Scope of Services defined herein, inclusive of all associated cost for

delivery, labor, insurance, taxes, overhead, and profit.

City of Manor

10

318




E. References: Proposer shall provide three (3) references where Proposer has performed similar to or the
same types of services as described herein. Please include Municipal references.

Reference #1

Item 19.

Client / Company Name:

Contact Name:

Contact Title:

Phone:

Email:

Date and Scope of Work Provided:

Reference #2

Client /| Company Name:

Contact Name:

Contact Title:

Phone:

Email:

Date and Scope of Work Provided:

Reference #3

Client / Company Name:

Contact Name:

Contact Title:

Phone:

Email:

Date and Scope of Work Provided:

City of Manor

11

319




Item 19.

F. Additional Information: Provide the following, along with a signed Conflict of Interest Questionnaire.

ii.

iil.

Trade Secrets and/or Confidential Information: This proposal [ ] (does) [ ](does not) contain trade
secrets and/or confidential information. If applicable, describe such trade secrets and confidential
information, and the basis for your assertion that such material qualifies for legal protection from
disclosure.

Federal, State and/or Local Identification Information:

a. Centralized Master Bidders List registration number:

b. Prime contractor HUB / MWBE registration number:

¢. Anindividual Proposer acting as a sole proprietor must also enter the Proposer's
Social Security Number: # - -

Cooperative Governmental Purchasing Notice: Other governmental entities maintaining interlocal

agreements with the City, may desire, but are not obligated, to purchase goods and services defined in
this RFB from the successful Bidder, all purchases by governmental entities, other than the City, will be
billed directly to and paid by that governmental entity. The City will not be responsible for another
governmental entity's debts. Each governmental entity will place their own orders with the successful
Bidder and be responsible for ensuring full compliance with the RFB specifications. Prior to other
governmental entities placing orders, the City will notify the successful Bidder of their intent.

Please indicate below if you will permit other governmental entities to purchase from your agreement with the City.

City of Manor

[ 1Yes, Others can purchase [ ] No, Only the City can purchase

12

320




Item 19.

CONTRACT TERMS AND CONDITIONS. EXCEPT WHERE PROPOSER MAKES SPECIFIC EXCEPTION IN THE
SUBMITTED PROPOSAL, ANY CONTRACT RESULTING FROM THIS RFP WILL CONTAIN THE FOLLOWING TERMS
AND CONDITIONS, WHICH PROPOSER HEREBY ACKNOWLEDGES, AND TO WHICH PROPOSER AGREES BY
SUBMITTING A PROPOSAL:

1. Delivery of Products and/or Services

A. Term of Contract and Option to Extend: Any contract resulting from this RFP shall be effective for twelve
(12) months from date of award, with a one (1) year renewal option pending annual budget

appropriation.

B. Payment Terms: Unless otherwise specified in the Scope of Services or otherwise agreed to in writing by
the City, payment terms for the City are Net thirty (30) days upon receipt of invoice.

C. Warranty of Products and Services: All products furnished under this contract shall be warranted to be

merchantable and good quality and fit for the purposes intended as described in this Proposal, to the
satisfaction of City and in accordance with the specifications, terms, and conditions of the Scope of
Services, and all services performed shall be warranted to be of a good and workmanlike quality, in
addition to, and not in lieu of, any other express written warranties provided.

D. Late Delivery or Performance: If Proposer fails to deliver acceptable goods or services within the

timeframes established in the Project Schedule, the City shall be authorized to purchase the goods or
services from another source and assess any increase in costs to the defaulting Proposer, who agrees to
pay such costs within ten days of invoice.

E. Title to Goods and Risk of Loss: For goods to be provided by Proposers hereunder, if any, the title and risk

of loss of the goods shall not pass to City until City actually receives, takes possession, and accepts the
goods and the installation of such goods, has tested the system, and determined that it is in good and
acceptable working order.

2. Miscellaneous

A. Independent Contractor: Proposer agrees that Proposer and Proposer's employees and agents have no

employer-employee relationship with City. Proposer agrees that if Proposer is selected and awarded a
contract, City shall not be responsible for the Federal Insurance Contribution Act (FICA) payments,
Federal or State unemployment taxes, income tax withholding, Workers Compensation Insurance
payments, or any other insurance payments, nor will City furnish any medical or retirement benefits or
any paid vacation or sick leave.

B. Assignments: The rights and duties awarded the successful Proposer shall not be assigned to another
without the written consent of the Purchasing Manager. Such consent shall not relieve the assigner of
liability in the event of default by the assignee.

C. Removal or Replacement of Staff: If an assigned staff person must be removed or replaced for any

reason, the replacement person must be approved by City prior to joining the project.

D. Liens: Proposer shall indemnify and save harmless the City against any and all liens and encumbrances for
all labor, goods, and services which may be provided to the City by Proposer or Proposer's vendor(s), and

if the City requests, a proper release of all liens or satisfactory evidence of freedom from liens shall be

13
City of Manor

321




Item 19.

delivered to the City.

E. Gratuities/ Bribes: Proposer certifies that no bribes in the form of entertainment, gifts, or otherwise,

were offered or given by the successful Proposer, or its agent or representative, to any City officer,
employee or elected representative, with respect to this RFP or any contract with the City, and that if any
such bribe is found to have been made this shall be grounds for voiding of the contract

F. Financial Participation: Proposer certifies that it has not received compensation from the City to

participate in preparing the specifications or RFP on which the Proposal is based and acknowledges that
this contract may be terminated and/or payment withheld if this certification is inaccurate.

G. Regquired Licenses: Proposer certifies that they hold all licenses required by the State of Texas for a

provider of the goods and/or services described by the Scope of Services herein.

H. Authority to Submit Proposal and Enter Contract: The person signing on behalf of Proposer certifies that

the signer has authority to submit the Proposal on behalf of the Proposer and to bind the Proposer to any
resulting contract.

I.  Compliance with Applicable Law: Proposer agrees that the contract will be subject to, and Proposer will

strictly comply with, all applicable federal, state, and local laws, ordinances, rules, and regulations.
3. Financial Responsibility Provisions

A. Insurance: The Proposer, consistent with its status as an independent contractor, shall carry, and shall
require any of its subcontractors to carry, at least the following insurance in such form, with such
companies, and in such amounts (unless otherwise specified) as City may require:

i.  Worker's Compensation and Employer's Liability insurance, including All States Endorsement,
to the extent required by federal law and complying with the laws of the State of Texas;

ii. Commercial General Liability insurance, including Blanket Contractual Liability, Broad Form
Property Damage, Personal Injury, Completed Operations/Products Liability, Premises Liability,
Medical Payments, Interest of Employees as additional insureds, and Broad Form General
Liability Endorsements, for at least One Million Dollars ($1,000,000) Combined Single Limit
Bodily Injury and Property Damage on an occurrence basis;

iii. Comprehensive Automobile Liability insurance covering all owned, non-owned or hired
automobiles to be used by the Contractor, with coverage for at least One Million Dollars
($1,000,000) Combined Single Limit Bodily Injury and Property Damage.

B. Indemnification: Proposer agrees to defend, indemnify and hold harmless the City, all of its officers,
Council members, agents and employees from and against all claims, actions, suits, demands,
proceedings, costs, damages and liabilities, including reasonable attorneys' fees, court costs and related
expenses, arising out of, connected with, or resulting from any acts or omissions of Proposer or any agent,
employee, subcontractor, or supplier of Proposer in the execution or performance of this contract without
regard to whether such persons are under the direction of City agents or employees.

14
City of Manor

322




Item 19.

Appendix C - Form CIQ
INFORMATION REGARDING VENDOR CONFLICT OF INTEREST QUESTIONNAIRE

WHO: The following persons must file a Conflict of Interest Questionnaire with the City if the person has an
employment or business relationship with an officer of the City that results in taxable income exceeding $2,500
during the preceding twelve (12) month period, or an officer or a member of the officer's family has accepted gifts
with an aggregate value of more than $250 during the previous twelve (12) month period and the person engages
in any of the following actions:

1. contracts or seeks to contract for the sale or purchase of property, goods or services with the City, including
any of the following:
i written and implied contracts, utility purchases, purchase orders, credit card purchases and any
purchase of goods and services by the City;
ii. contracts for the purchase or sale of real property, personal property including an auction of
property;
iii. tax abatement and economic development agreements;
2. submits a bid to sell goods or services, or responds to a request for proposal for services;
enters into negotiations with the City for a contract; or,
4. applies for a tax abatement and/or economic development incentive that will result in a contract with the City.

THE FOLLOWING ARE CONSIDERED OFFICERS OF THE CITY:

1. Mayor and City Council Members;

2. City Manager;

3. Board and Commission members and appointed members by the Mayor and City Council;
4. Directors of the City of Manor who have authority to sign contracts on behalf of the City.

EXCLUSIONS: A questionnaire statement need not be filed if the money paid to a local government official was a
political contribution, a gift to a member of the officer's family from a family member; a contract or purchase of less
than $2,500 or a transaction at a price and subject to terms available to the public; a payment for food, lodging,
transportation or entertainment; or a transaction subject to rate or fee regulation by a governmental entity or
agency.

WHAT: A person or business that contracts with the City or who seeks to contract with the City must file a "Conflict
of Interest Questionnaire"(FORM ClQ) which is available online at www.ethics.state.tx.us and a copy of which is

attached to this guideline. The form contains mandatory disclosures regarding "employment or business
relationships" with a municipal officer. Officials may be asked to clarify or interpret various portions of the
questionnaire.

WHEN: The person or business must file:

1. the questionnaire - no later than seven (7) days after the date the person or business begins contract discussions
or negotiations with the municipality, or submits an application, responds to a request for proposals or bids,
correspondence, or other writing related to a potential contract or agreement with the City; and

2. anupdated questionnaire -within seven (7) days after the date of an event that would make a filed
guestionnaire incomplete or inaccurate.

15
City of Manor

323




It does not matter if the submittal of a bid or proposal results in a contract. The statute requires a vendor to file a Item 19.

FORM CIQ at the time a proposal is submitted, or negotiations commence.

WHERE: The vendor or potential vendor must mail or deliver a completed questionnaire to the Finance
Department. The Finance Department is required by law to post the statements on the City's website.

ENFORCEMENT: Failure to file a questionnaire is a Class C misdemeanor punishable by a fine not to exceed $500. It is an

exception to prosecution that the person files a FORM CIQ not later than seven (7) business days after the person received
notice of a violation,

NOTE: The City does not have a duty to ensure that a person files a Conflict-of-Interest Questionnaire.

16
City of Manor

324




Item 19.

CONFLICT OF INTEREST QUESTIONNAIRE FORM CIQ

For vendor or other person doing business with local governmental entity

This questionnaire reflects changes made to the law by H.B. 1491, 80th Leg., Regular Session.
This questionnaire Is being filed in accordance with Chapter 176, Local Government Code by a
person who has a business relationship as defined by Section 176.001(1-a) with a local Date Received
governmental entity and the person meets requirements under Section 176.00G(a).

OFFICE USE ONLY

By law this questionnaire must be filed with the records administrator of the local governmental
entity not later than the 7th business day after the date the person becomes aware of facts that
require the statement to be filed. See Section 176.006, Local Government Code.

A person commits an offense If the person knowingly violates Section 176.006, Local
Government Code. An offense under this section Is a Class C misdemeanor.

Name of person who has a business relationship with local governmental entity.

|:| Check this box If you are filing an update to a previously filed questionnaire.

(The law requires that you file an updated completed questionnaire with the appropriate filing authority not
later than the 7th business day after the date the originally filed questionnaire becomes incomplete or inaccurate.)

City of Manor 325




Item 19.

Name of local government officer with whom filer has employment or business relationship.

Name of Officer

This section (item 3 including subparts A, B, C & D) must be completed for each officer with whom the filer has an employment or

other business relationship as defined by Section 176.00'1(1-a), Local Government Code. Attach additional pages to this Form CIQ
as necessary.

A. Is the local government officer named in this section receiving or likely to receive taxable income, other
than investment income, from the filer of the questionnaire?

Lvee Do

B. Is the filer of the questionnaire receiving or likely to receive taxable income, other than investment
income, from or at the direction of the local government officer named in this section AND the taxable
Income Is not received from the local governmental entity?

[vee D

C. Is the filer of this questionnaire employed by a corporation or other business entity with respect to which the
local government officer serves as an officer or director, or holds on ownership of 10 percent or more?

I S I

D. Describe each employment or business relationship with Ule local government officer named in this section.

Signature or person doing business with the governmental entity Date

City of Manor 326




Item 19.

Appendix D — Professional Service Agreement (Example)

PROFESSIONAL SERVICES AGREEMENT

THIS PROFESSIONAL SERVICES AGREEMENT (hereinafter, the “Agreement”) is made and entered into

as of this

day of .20 (the “Effective Date”), by and between the City of Manor, Texas,

a Texas home rule municipality (hereinafter, the “City””) and , a Texas

(hereinafter the “Consultant”).

That, for and in consideration of the mutual terms, conditions and covenants of this Agreement and the accompanying
documents between City and Consultant as set forth therein, the City and Consultant agree to the following terms and
conditions of Agreement:

L. Project and Employment.

a.

City of Manor

The City agrees to employ the Consultant to perform the professional services for the purpose of
(hereinafter, the “Project”)
as described in greater detail in the Consultant’s proposal and the various attachments attached thereto
which are attached to this Agreement as Exhibit A and incorporated by reference herein. Should any term
or condition in Exhibit A conflict with any term or condition in this Agreement, the term and conditions
in this Agreement shall control.

Notwithstanding anything to the contrary contained in this Agreement, City and Consultant agree and
acknowledge that City is entering into this Agreement in reliance on Consultant’s special and unique
abilities. Consultant accepts the relationship of trust and confidence established between it and City by this
Agreement. Consultant acknowledges that Consultant shall be solely responsible for determining the
methods for performing the services described in Exhibit A. Consultant covenants with City to use its best
efforts, skill, judgment, and abilities to perform the work required by this Agreement and to further the
interests of City in accordance with City’s requirements, in compliance with applicable national, federal,
state, municipal, laws, regulations, codes, ordinances, orders and with those of any other body having
jurisdiction. Consultant warrants, represents, covenants, and agrees that all of the work to be performed by
Consultant under or pursuant to this Agreement shall be done (i) with the Consultant skill and care
ordinarily provided by competent [professionals, engineers or architects], as the case may be, practicing
under the same or similar circumstances and applicable Consultant license; and (ii) as expeditiously as is
prudent considering the ordinary Consultant skill and care of a competent [professional, engineer or
architect], as the case may be.

The Consultant will be responsible for supplying all tools and equipment necessary for the Consultant to
provide the services set forth in Exhibit A.

The City may, from time to time require changes in the scope of services of the Consultant to be performed
hereunder. Such changes, which are mutually agreed upon by and between the City and the Consultant,
shall be incorporated in written amendment to this Agreement.

All reports, plans, specifications, computer files and other documents prepared by Consultant for which
Consultant has been compensated pursuant to this Agreement shall be the property of City. Consultant will
deliver to City copies of the prepared documents and materials. Consultant shall make all documents and
related data and material utilized in developing the documents available to City for inspection whenever
requested. Consultant may make copies of any and all such documents and items and retain same for its

19

327




files. Consultant shall have no liability for changes made to or use of the drawings, specifications, and

other documents by anyone other than Consultant subsequent to delivery of the prepared documgste—and
materials. However, any such change or other use shall be sealed by the individual making the clf item 19.

use and shall be appropriately marked to reflect what was changed or modified.

This Agreement will begin on the Effective Date and shall expire on the completion of all the tasks required
under this Agreement or the day of ,20__, whichever occurs first.

The Consultant will provide the scope of work as described in Exhibit A.

In performing the services under this Agreement, the Consultant is acting as an independent contractor. No
term or provision herein will be construed as making the Consultant the agent, servant, or employee of the
City or as creating a partnership or joint venture relationship between the City and the Consultant.

The cost of the Project will not exceed $ .00 and shall be paid by the City as the tasks are
completed and accepted by the City on a monthly basis through invoices submitted by Consultant and as
outlined in the following chart:

Project initiation

Report

S| |||

Total

Any additional professional services or other expenses must be approved by the City and those amounts
amended to this Agreement.

The Consultant will begin work on the Project ,20 , or as soon as a notice to
proceed is provided to Consultant, and will complete the Project by ,20 .

1. Other Provisions:

a.

City of Manor

Termination. This Agreement may be terminated by the City upon thirty (30) days written notice to
Consultant in the event that the Project is abandoned or indefinitely postponed in which event, Consultant
shall be compensated for all services performed to termination date.

i. Copies of all completed or partially completed reports prepared under this Agreement prior to the
effective date of termination shall be delivered to City as a pre-condition to final payment.

Choice of Law. It is contemplated that this Agreement shall be performed in Travis County, Texas, and the
venue and jurisdiction of any suit, right, or cause of action arising out of or in connection with this
Agreement shall lie exclusively in Travis County, Texas. This Agreement shall be governed by and
construed in accordance with the laws of the State of Texas.

INDEMNIFICATION. Consultant hereby expressly agrees to indemnify, protect and hold harmless
the City, its officials and employees and its agents and agents’ employees, from and against all claims,
suits, demands, costs, causes of action, loss, damage and liability of every kind and nature, including
reasonable attorney’s fees, costs and expenses (including, but not limited to expenses related to
expert witnesses) of any kind whatsoever, to the extent that is caused by or results from any act of
negligence, intentional tort, intellectual property infringement, failure to pay a subprofessional, or
supplier, error or omission of Consultant or any of its subconsultants and/or subcontractors in
connection with the performance of services under this Agreement, or failure to pay a subcontractor
or supplier committed by Consultant or Consultant’s agent, subconsultant under contract, or
another entity over which Consultant exercises control; provided, however, Consultant shall not be
responsible for the negligence of any other party, other than its subconsultants and/or

20

328




City of Manor

subcontractors. The Consultant’s obligations under this section shall not be limited to the limits of

coverage of insurance maintained or required to be maintained under this Agreement. This Soction
(Indemnification) shall survive termination and/or completion of this Agreement. ltem 19.

NOTICES. Any and all notices under this Agreement shall be in writing and shall be delivered to the party
entitled to receive the same by national courier services or U.S. Certified Mail, return receipt requested,
addressed as follows (or as amended in writing in the future), or by other commercially reasonable means.
Notice may not be given by email alone.

Notice to the City: Notice to Consultant:

City of Manor

Attn: Scott Moore
105 E. Eggleston St.
Manor, TX 78653

With a copy to : With a copy to:

The Knight Law Firm, LLP
Attn: Paige Saenz

223 E. Anderson Lane
Austin, TX 78752

Successors and Assigns. This Agreement shall be binding upon and inure to the benefit of the City and
Consultant and their respective successors, executors, administrators, and assigns. Neither the City nor
Consultant may assign, sublet, or transfer his interest in or obligations under this Agreement without prior
written consent of the other party hereto.

Compliance with Laws. Consultant shall comply with all federal, state, and local laws, statutes, ordinances,
rules and regulations, and the orders and decrees of any courts or administrative bodies or tribunals in any
matter affecting the performance of this Agreement, including, without limitation, Worker’s Compensation
laws, minimum and maximum salary and wage statutes and regulations, licensing laws and regulations.
When required, Consultant shall furnish the City with certification of compliance with said laws, statutes,
ordinances, rules, regulations, orders, and decrees above specified.

This Agreement and exhibits represents the entire and integrated Agreement between the City and
Consultant and supersedes all prior negotiations, representations, or agreements, either oral or written. This
Agreement may be amended only by written instrument signed by both the City and Consultant. NO
OFFICIAL, EMPLOYEE, AGENT, OR REPRESENTATIVE OF CITY HAS ANY AUTHORITY,
EITHER EXPRESS OR IMPLIED, TO AMEND THIS CONTRACT, EXCEPT PURSUANT TO SUCH
EXPRESS AUTHORITY AS MAY BE GRANTED BY THE CITY COUNCIL.

ENTITY STATUS. By my signature below, I certify that Consultant is a Texas Corporation duly
authorized to transact and do business in the State of Texas, and the individual executing this agreement
on behalf of the Consultant is vested with the authority to bind the Consultant to this Agreement.

Counterparts. This Agreement may be executed in any number of counterparts, including, without
limitation, facsimile counterparts, with the same effect as if the parties had signed the same document, and
all counterparts will constitute one and the same agreement.

Statutory Verifications.

i. To the extent this Agreement constitutes a contract for goods or services within the meaning of
Section 2271.002 of the Texas Government Code, as amended, solely for purposes of compliance
with Chapter 2270 of the Texas Government Code, and subject to applicable Federal law, the
Consultant represents that neither the Consultant nor any wholly owned subsidiary, majority-
owned subsidiary, parent company or affiliate of Consultant (i) boycotts Israel or (ii) will boycott

21

329




City of Manor

1l

iii.

1v.

Israel through the term of this Agreement. The terms “boycotts Israel” and “boycott Israel” as

used in this paragraph have the meanings assigned to the term “boycott Israel” in Section RA2-001
of the Texas Government Code, as amended. Item 19.

To the extent the Agreement constitutes a governmental contract within the meaning of sccrrom
2252.151 of the Texas Governmental Code, as amended, solely for the purposes of compliance
with Chapter 2252 of the Texas Governmental Code, and except to the extent otherwise required
by applicable federal law, Consultant represents that the Consultant nor any wholly owned
subsidiary, majority-owned subsidiary, parent company or affiliate of Consultant is a company
listed by the Texas Comptroller Public Accounts under Sections 2270.0201, or 2252.153 of the
Texas Government Code.

The Consultant hereby verifies that it and its parent’s company, wholly or majority-owned
subsidiaries, and other affiliates, if any, do not boycott energy companies and will not boycott
energy companies during the term of the Agreement. The foregoing verification is made soley to
comply with Section 2274.002, Texas Government Code, and to the extent such section is not
inconsistent with a governmental entity’s constitutional or statutory duties related to the issuance,
incurrence, or management of debt obligations or the deposit, custody, management, borrowing or
investment of funds. As used in the foregoing verification, “boycott energy company” means,
without an ordinary business purpose, refusing to deal with, terminating business activities with,
or otherwise taking any action that is intended to penalize, inflict economic harm, or limit
commercial relations with a company because the company: (A) engages in the exploration,
production, utilization, transportation, sale, or manufacturing of fossil-based energy and does not
commit or pledge to meet environmental standards beyond federal and state law: or (B) does
business with a company described as by the preceding statement in (A).

The Consultant hereby verifies that it and its parent company, wholly- or majority-owned subsidiaries,
and other affiliates, if any, do not have a practice, policy, guidance, or directive that discriminates
against a firearm entity or firearm trade association and will not have a practice, policy, guidance, or
directive that discriminates against a firearm entity or firearm trade association during the term of this
Agreement. The foregoing verification is made solely to comply with Section 2274.002, Texas
Government Code. As used in the foregoing verification, “discriminate against a firearm entity or
firearm trade association” means: (i) refuse to engage in the trade of any goods or services with the
entity or association based solely on its status as a firearm entity or firearm trade association; (ii)
refrain from continuing an existing business relationship with the entity or association based solely on
its status as a firearm entity or firearm trade association; or (iii) terminate an existing business
relationship with the entity or association based solely on its status as a firearm entity or firearm trade
association; but does not include (a) the established policies of a merchant, retail seller, or platform
that restrict or prohibit the listing or selling of ammunition, firearms, or firearm accessories; or (b) a
company's refusal to engage in the trade of any goods or services, decision to refrain from continuing
an existing business relationship, or decision to terminate an existing business relationship to comply
with federal, state, or local law, policy, or regulations or a directive by a regulatory agency; or for any
traditional business reason that is specific to the customer or potential customer and not based solely
on an entity's or association's status as a firearm entity or firearm trade association.

Form 1295. Texas law and the City requires that business entities, as defined in Texas Government
Code, Section 2252.908, who contract with the City complete the on-line of Form 1295 "Certificate
of Interested Parties" as promulgated by the Texas FEthics Commission
(https://www.ethics.state.tx.us/filinginfo/1295/). Form 1295 is also required for any and all
contract amendments, extensions or renewals. Prior to any payment to Consultant hereunder,
Consultant shall provide proof of submission to the City Secretary that the appropriate Form 1295
documentation has been submitted.

[SIGNATURE PAGES FOLLOW]

22

330



http://www.ethics.state.tx.us/filinginfo/1295/)

IN WITNESS WHEREOF, the Parties hereto have executed this Agreement as of the Effective Date.

Item 19.
CITY OF MANOR,
a Texas municipal corporation
By:
Christopher Harvey, Mayor
Attest:
By:
Lluvia T. Almaraz, City Secretary
23
City of Manor

331




City of Manor

CONSULTANT:

corporation

Item 19.

Name:

Title:

24

332




City of Manor

EXHIBIT A
(SEE ATTACHED)

Item 19.

25

333




Item 20.

20

1CITY OF

AGENDA ITEM SUMMARY FORM

PROPOSED MEETING DATE: May 17, 2023

PREPARED BY: Scott Jones, Director
DEPARTMENT: Economic Development

AGENDA ITEM DESCRIPTION:

Consideration, discussion, and possible action on an ordinance of the City of Manor Texas, repealing Ordinance
No. 309.

BACKGROUND/SUMMARY:

Ordinance No. 309 was passed in June of 2006 and created Investment Zones One, Two, and Three, pursuant to
the Texas Tax Code Section 312.202 for the purpose of providing tax incentives to stimulate economic
development. The designation of a reinvestment zone by a municipality expires without renewal after five years
by a function of Texas Tax Code Section 312.203 (Ordinance No. 309 uses the term, “Reinvestment Zone,”
however, the Texas Tax Code uses the term, “investment zone”). Ordinance No. 309 was not renewed prior to its
expiration date.

LEGAL REVIEW: Yes
FISCALIMPACT: No
PRESENTATION: No
ATTACHMENTS: Yes

e Ordinance No. 704
e Ordinance No. 309

STAFF RECOMMENDATION:

It is the city staff’'s recommendation that the City Council approve Ordinance No. 704 repealing Ordinance No.
309.

PLANNING & ZONING COMMISSION: Recommend Approval Disapproval None

334




ORDINANCE NO. 704

AN ORDINANCE OF THE CITY OF MANOR, TEXAS, REPEALING
ORDINANCE NO. 309; PROVIDING SEVERABILITY; SAVINGS
CLAUSE; OPEN MEETINGS AND EFFECTIVE DATE CLAUSES; AND
PROVIDING FOR RELATED MATTERS

WHEREAS, the City Council of the City of Manor, Texas, passed Ordinance No. 309 on
the 21 day of June 2006 to create certain reinvestment zone to stimulate economic development
pursuant to Texas Tax Code § 312.202; and

WHEREAS, without renewal, economic investment zones created under Texas Tax Code
expire after five years as a function of Texas Tax Code § 312.

WHEREAS, Ordinance No. 309 has expired by function of the aforementioned Texas Tax
Code and should be repealed to eliminate confusion with the City of Manor’s current economic
incentive policy.

NOW, THEREFORE, BE IT ORDAINED BY THE CITY COUNCIL OF THE CITY OF
MANOR, TEXAS, THAT:

Section 1. Findings. The foregoing recitals are hereby found to be true and correct and are
hereby adopted by the City Council and made part hereof for all purposes as findings of fact.

Section 2. Repeal of Ordinance No. 309. Ordinance No. 309 is hereby repealed in its
entirety.

Section 3. Repealing all Conflicting Ordinances. All ordinances or parts thereof
conflicting or inconsistent with the provisions of this ordinance as adopted herein are hereby
amended to the extent of such conflict. In the event of a conflict or inconsistency between this
ordinance and any other code or ordinance of the City of Manor, Texas, the terms and provisions
of this ordinance shall control.

Section 4. Savings Clause. The City Council of the City of Manor, Texas, hereby declares
that if any section, subsection, paragraph, sentence, clause, phrase, work, or portion of this
ordinance is declared invalid, or unconstitutional by a court of competent jurisdiction, that, in such
event that it would have passed and ordained any and all remaining portions of this ordinance
without the inclusion of that portion or portions which may be so found to be unconstitutional or
invalid, and declares that its intent is to make no portion of this Ordinance dependent upon the
validity of any portion thereof, and that said remaining portions shall continue in full force and
effect.

Section 5. Severability. If any provision of this Ordinance or the application of any
provision to any person or circumstance be held invalid, the invalidity shall not affect other
provisions or applications of the Ordinance which can be given effect without the invalid provision
or application, and to this end the provisions of this Ordinance are declared to be severable.

Section 6. Open Meetings. It is hereby officially found and determined that the meeting
at which this ordinance was considered was open to the public as required and that public notice of
the time, place, and purpose of said meeting was given as required by the Open Meetings Act,
Chapter 551, Texas Government Code.

Item 20.

335




Item 20.

ORDINANCE NO. _704 Page |

Section 7. Effective Date. This Ordinance shall take effect immediately from and after its
passage and publication in accordance with the provisions of the Texas Local Government Code.

PASSED AND APPROVED on this the 17" day of May 2023.

THE CITY OF MANOR, TEXAS

Dr. Christopher Harvey
Mayor

ATTEST:

Lluvia T. Almaraz, TRMC
City Secretary

336




Item 20.

ORDINANCENO. 304

AN ORDINANCE OF THE CITY OF MANOR, TEXAS, CREATING
"REINVESTMENT ZONE NUMBER ONE, CITY OF MANOR";
"REINVESTMENT ZONE NUMBER TWO, CITY OF MANOR";
"REINVESTMENT ZONE NUMBER THREE, CITY OF MANOR";
MAKING FINDINGS OF FACT; PROVIDING DEFINITIONS;
ESTABLISHING BOUNDARIES OF THE ZONES; PROVIDING A
TERMINATION DATE FOR THE ZONES; AND FOR RELATED
MATTERS.

Whereas, Chapter 380, Tex. Loc. Gov’t Code and the Texas Constitution, Article I,
Section 52-a permit and authorize the City to offer and extend incentives to attract and keep
economic development;

Whereas, the City of Manor, although existing for over ninety-years and within a short
commute from downtown Austin, has not experienced economic growth comparable to the Austin
metropolitan area and finds the properties identified as reinvestment zones meet one or more of the
requirements of § 3/2.202, Tex. Tax. Code resulting in the arrest or impairment of sound growth;

Whereas, the creation of reinvestment zones with boundaries as hereinafter described will
enable the City to obtain investments and job creation in the City and within the boundaries of the
reinvestment zones; and

Whereas, improvements within the reinvestment zones will enhance the value of all taxable
real property in the zones and benefit the entire city; '

NOW, THEREFORE, BE IT ORDAINED BY THE CITY COUNCIL OF THE CITY
OF MANOR, TEXAS, THAT:

Section 1. Findings: That the facts and recitations hereinabove set out are hereby found and
declared to be true and correct and are incorporated herein as findings of fact.

Section 2. Purpose. (a) The city is committed to the promotion of quality development in all
parts of the city and to improving the quality of life for its citizens. In order to help meet these
goals, the city will consider providing tax incentives and other incentives within the
"reinvestment zone" to stimulate economic development within the city. k is the policy of the
city that such incentives will be provided in accordance with the procedures and criteria
outlined in this document. However, nothing in this policy shall imply or suggest, by
implication or otherwise, that the city is under any obligation to provide any incentive to any
applicant; and all such decisions and actions shall be at the sole discretion of the city council.
All applicants for tax incentives and other economic development incentives will be considered
on an individual basis.

(b) It is the intent of the city to offer tax incentives and other economic development
incentives on an individual basis so that the total package of incentives, if any, may be

337




Item 20.

designed specifically for each project which is proposed. This approach will allow the city the
flexibility necessary to satisfy the unique needs and concerns of each applicant and the needs
and concerns of the city and its citizens.

(¢) The City of Manor has been incorporated for over ninety years and has experienced
very limited economic growth although it is on the outskirts of the City of Austin. The City’s
infrastructure and facilities require significant investments to improve properties to support
economically beneficial uses. The City is designating three zones based on the differing status of
properties requiring more or less infrastructure and based on the desired uses. The City Council
finds the development of the properties in the zones will not occur solely through private
investment in the reasonably foreseeable future and therefore has determined that incentives are
appropriate.

Section 3. Definitions. The following words, terms and phrases, when used in this
ordinance, shall have the meanings ascribed to them in this section, except where the context
clearly indicates a different meaning:

Company Sales Tax Revenues means the City’s share received from the State Comptroller’s
Office of a one percent (1%) municipal sales tax, such as that presented in effect pursuant to Texas
Tax Code §§ 321.101 and 321.103, resulting from (i) sales tax collected by the Company, and (i)
sales/use tax paid directly by the Company under its sales tax permit. For purposes of this
Ordinance, Sales Tax Revenues shall be determined to be the amount remitted by Company to the
State Comptroller’s Office for the benefit of the City of Manor, less the applicable administrative
charge, as set forth in the records prepared by the Company and submitted to the State Comptroller.

Developer means an owner or person with rights to develop a tract of property being
larger than one-hundred contiguous acres in size for replatting and redevelopment as a
comprehensive master-planned development with only eligible facilities for which the
developer is required to construct eligible infrastructure as a condition precedent to the location
* of eligible facilities thereon.

Eligible facility means a structure or building that is designed, constructed or remodeled
for use as a commercial, retail, or industrial business purpose and that is located wholly within
the "reinvestment zone."

Eligible Infrastructure means additional infrasiructure not required as part of the City’s
standard subdivision process which is dedicated to the City for public use and, if approved,
maintenance.

End Use Operator means an owner or tenant adding new value to an eligible facility
within a reinvestment zone for which a Developer is not receiving tax incentives who adds
qualifying new value and a qualifying number of FTE’s.

Full-Time Equivalent Employee or “FTE’s” means an employee position on the eligible
facility scheduled to work or compensated for a standard 40 hour work week for the equivalent
of 2,080 hours per year as more particular described by the U.S. Department of Labor. Positions

338




Item 20.

not filled at least eleven months out of the year with an actual employee legally eligible to work
in the United States shall not be counted toward the FTE nor shall owners or operators with an
interest in the business be included.

New employment means that not less than the number full-time equivalent employee
positions that will be maintained or created pursuant to the minimum requirements and criteria
set forth in Sections 6 and 7 and: (1) At least 25 percent of the jobs provided will be made
available to residents of the city; (2) At least 50 percent of the jobs provided will be made
available to residents of the county; and (3) Compliance with the requirements of local hiring
will remain in effect for the entire period that economic incentives are being offered.

New value means the net increase in the value of an eligible facility, including the real
estate, improvements and fixtures, together with the machinery and equipment therein added
after entering an agreement for tax incentives.

Reinvestment zone means that area of the city identified as a reinvestment zone in a
current ordinance; such designation being made by the city council in the manner specified in
Tex. Tax Code, §§ 312.201 or 312.2011.

Retail Use means a business generating at least 60% of its revenues from taxable sales
or services.

Tax Incentives shall be an agreement for abatement or rebate of taxes, by separate
agreement agree to abate or rebate all or a portion of the ad valorem tax, excluding any portion
thereof required to pay an interest in sinking fund obligation, and may include a rebate of
Company Sales Tax Revenues, with either the developer or end use operator but not both.

Section 4. Reinvestment Zone. There is hereby created the "Reinvestment Zone Number
One, City of Manor", "Reinvestment Zone Number Two, City of Manor", and "Reinvestment Zone
Number Three, City of Manor" pursuant to Chapt. 312, Tex. Tax Code.

Section 3. Boundaries and Designated Purposes of the Zones. Reinvestment Zone 1, 2, and
3 shall be located within the corporate boundaries of the City of Manor, Texas (the "City), and shall

be as set forth and identified in Exhibit “A”. The City Council has found the designation of zones
will likely contribute to the retention or expansion of primary employment or to attract major
investment in the zone that would be a benefit to the property within the zones and that would
contribute to the economic development of the municipality. '

(a) Reinvestment Zone Number One, City of Manor — shall include properties within the
downtown business district identified as predominantly open and, because of obsolete
platting, deterioration of structures or site improvements, or other factors,
substantially impair or arrest the sound growth of the municipality.

(b) Reinvestment Zone Number Two, City of Manor  shall include properties
predominately open and undeveloped due to lack of sufficient public improvements
and infrastructure to adequately support commercial or retail use.

339




Item 20.

(c) Reinvestment Zone Number Three, City of Manor  shall include properties
predominately open and undeveloped due to lack of sufficient public improvements
and infrastructure to adequately support industrial use.

Section 6. Minimum Requirements and Criteria. The following are the minimum
requirements that must be satisfied for any application for tax abatement or other incentives to
be considered:

(a) Tax Incentives will not be provided to both the developer and the end use operator
within an eligible reinvestment zone. Developers and end use operators shall each be subject
to different minimum requirements in Reinvestment Zones Two and Three. Only end use
operators are eligible for Tax Incentives in Reinvestment Zone One. A developer who will
also be the end use operator shall be subject to the minimum requirements for end use
operators. '

(b) If the developer or end use operator receives approval for a municipal utility
district as the mechanism for financing property improvements, then the developer or end use
operator will not be eligible for Tax Incentives under this ordinance.

(¢) Reinvestment Zone One to redevelop the downtown business district properties so
identified, the minimum criteria must be met;

(1) Employment and development. (A) A proposed development and/or
redevelopment that is a retail business must maintain or create at least one
new FTE for each 2,000 square feet of occupied space, or a portion thereof,
exclusive of the owner/operator and with a minimum of one new FTE
regardless of floor space; (B) a proposed development and/or redevelopment
that is a non-retail business must maintain or create at least one FTE for the
first 2,000 square feet of floor space, or a portion thereof, and at least two
FTE’s for each additional 2,000 square feet of floor space, or a portion
thereof; (C) non-profit organizations are not eligible; (D) the applicant must
be investing at least $100,000.00 in property improvements; (E) property
improvements must include off-street parking for all employees and
restoration of an existing building or demolition of an existing building and
construction of a new building; (F) other eligible property improvements
may include sidewalks, curbing, gutters, covered walkways, and other
pedestrian-oriented improvements, exterior lighting, landscaping, and off-
site parking for customers, provided that the improvement qualifics as
eligible infrastructure; and (G) the proposed project must be in compliance
with the city's master plan, building codes and all other applicable city
ordinances without variances.

(2) Offsets and adjustments. (A) At the discretion of the city council, the
assessed value of any property that is demolished will be subtracted from the
value of the property replacing it, for the purpose of calculating the portion

340




Item 20.

eligible for abatement; and (B) For businesses relocating from a non-
reinvestment zone location onto the reinvestment zome, eligibility for
incentives will be determined using the increase in the number of jobs at the
new location over the jobs at the previous site.

(d) Reinvestment Zone Two to redevelop the undeveloped properties so identified,
the minimum criteria must be met:

(1) Employment and development criteria for developers. (A) The applicant
must be investing at least $10,000,000.00 in property improvements; and
(B) the proposed project must be in compliance with the city's master plan,
building codes and all other applicable city ordinances.

(2) Employment and development criteria for end use operators. {A) The
applicant must be investing at least $10,000,000.00 in property
improvements; (B) a proposed development and/or redevelopment must
maintain or create at least one new FTE for each 2,000 square feet of
occupied space, or a portion thereof; (C) eligible property improvements
include dedication of and improvements to parkiand, additional
improvements to offsite utility infrastructure, improvements to regional
mobility, streets, bridges, pedestrian crossings, flood plain reclamation, and
historic structure acquisition and restoration, provided that the improvement
qualifies as eligible infrastructure; and (D) and the proposed project must be
in compliance with the city’s master plan, building codes and all other
applicable city ordinances.

(3) Offsets and adjustments applicable to developers and end use operators. (A)
At the discretion of the city council, the assessed value of any property that
is demolished will be subtracted from the value of the property replacing it,
for the purpose of calculating the portion eligible for abatement; and (B) For
businesses relocating from a non-reinvestment zone location onto the
reinvestment zone, eligibility for incentives will be determined using the
increase in the number of jobs at the new location over the jobs at the
previous site.

(e) Reinvestment Zone Three to redevelop the undeveloped properties so identified,
the minimum criteria must be met:

(1) Employment and development criteria for developers. (A) The applicant
must be investing at least $10,000,000.00 in property improvements; and
(B) the proposed project must be in compliance with the city's master plan,
building codes and all other applicable city ordinances.

(2) Employment and development criteria for end use operators. (A) The
applicant must be investing at least $10,000,000.00 in property

341




Item 20.

improvements; (B) a proposed development and/or redevelopment that is a
retail business must maintain or create at least three new FTE’s for each
10,000 square feet of occupied space, or a portion thereof; (C) eligible
property improvements include dedication of and improvements to parkland,
additional improvements to offsite utility infrastructure, improvements to
regional mobility, streets, bridges, pedestrian crossings, flood plain
reclamation, and historic structure acquisition and restoration, provided that
the improvement qualifies as eligible infrastructure; and (D) and the
proposed project must be in compliance with the city’s master plan, building
codes and all other applicable city ordinances.

(3) Offsets and adjustments applicable to developers and end use operators. (A)
At the discretion of the city council, the assessed value of any property that
is demolished will be subtracted from the value of the property replacing it,
for the purpose of calculating the portion eligible for abatement; and (B) For
businesses relocating from a non-reinvestment zone location onto the
reinvestment zone, eligibility for incentives will be determined using the
increase in the number of jobs at the new location over the jobs at the
previous site.

Section 7. Tax Incentives. (a) The portion of the property for which a business may qualify
for a tax incentive will be determined on the basis of the level of new value and, in the case of
end use operators, new employment added within the reinvestment zone.

(b) Failure to pay property taxes by the due date and failure to pay sales taxes due within 90
days.of the due date will immediately void any applicable tax incentives and tax abatement and
economic development incentive agreements for the property upon which taxes have not been
paid. '

(c) Tax abatement or economic development incentive agreements that establish a specific
dollar amount of tax to be abated shall be subject to performance. If inadequate ad valorem
and sales taxes are generated to rebate the full amount of an agreed incentive, the City will not
be obligated to make additional rebates or payments to meet the agreed upon amount. Rebates
may not exceed the total agreed-upon cost for an eligible facility and/or eligible infrastructure.

(d) Approved applicants shall submit the following reports to the City, and payment of rebates
shall be subject to the following reports being submitted: _

(1) Each year, the annual tax receipt from the Travis County Tax Collector and Assessor’s
Office reflecting the payment of property taxes for the eligible facilities, within 30 days
of receipt.

(2) Quarterly Texas Workforce Commission reports demonstrating the number of persons
employed for applicants required to create and maintain a certain number of FTE’s,
within 30 days of receipt.

(3) Quarterly sales tax reports for applicants authorized to receive sales tax rebates, within
30 days of receipt.

342




Failure to submit the reports to the City as required within 90 days of the date the report is due
shall result in termination of Tax Incentives.

(e) Sales fax rebates shall begin at the end of the first full quarter following the issuance of a
certificate of occupancy.

(f) Reinvestment Zone One:

(1) A percentage of the tax may be abated on an eligible facility for up to five years, up to
amounts set forth in the Tax Rebate Schedule set forth in subsection ()(2), provided
that the following minimum criteria are met:

(A)For retail businesses, at least one new FTE is created or maintained for each 2,000
square feet of occupied space, or a portion thereof, exclusive of the owner/operator;

(B) For non-retail businesses, at least two new FTE’s are created or maintained for each
2,000 square feet of occupied space, or a portion thereof, exclusive of the
owner/operator; and

(C) For both retail and non-refail businesses, at least $100,000.00 of new value is
added to the portion of the property for which a business may qualify for a tax
incentive. '

(2) Tax Rebate Schedule:

(A) Sales Tax:
Year Maximum Tax Abatement (%)
1 50
2 50
3 50
4
5

75
75

(B) Ad Valorem, Retail Businesses:

Year Maximum Tax Abatement (%)
1 50
2 50
3 50
4 50
5 50
(C) Ad Valorem. Non-Retail Busincsses:
Year Maximum Tax Abatement (%)
1 80
2 80
3 80
4 80

Item 20.

343




Item 20.

5 80

(3) Tax Incentives shall not be transferred or assigned. Tax Incentives shall terminate upon
the occurrence of any of the following:
(A)Sale or transfer of an eligible facility;
(B) Discontinuance of the type of business operation described in the application; and
(C) Failure to maintain the minimum number of required FTE’s for three consecutive
months as reflected in the Texas Workforce Commission reports.

{g) Reinvestment Zone Two:

(1) A percentage of the tax may be abated on an eligible facility for up to ten years, up to
amounts set forth in the Tax Rebate Schedule set forth in subsection (g)(2), provided that
the following minimum criteria are met:

(A) For end use operators, a minimum of one new FTE is created and maintained for
each 2,000 square feet of occupied space, or a portion thereof;

(B) At least $10,000,000.00 of new value is added to the portion of the property for
which a business may qualify for a tax incentive.

(2) Tax Rebate Schedule:

(A) Sales Tax:
" Year Maximum Tax Abatement (%)

25
25
85
85
85
85
85
85
85

0 85

= AD 00 -1 Oy LA B L

(B) Ad Valorem:
Year Maximum Tax Abatement (%)

50
50
80
80
80
80
80
80
80

DGO ~I N R N e

344




Item 20.

10 30

(3) The rebate period will begin the earlier of the following: (A) The January 1* after the
thirtieth month following the issuance of the first building permit for the eligible
facility or eligible infrastructure; (B) the combined sales and ad valorem tax revenue
reaches or exceeds $1,000,000.00; or (C) all eligible facilities and infrastructure are
completed and accepted by the City.

(4) If the eligible facilities or eligible infrastructure have not been started within 24 months
of the date of issnance of the first permit or 36 months from the date of the applicable
tax abatement or economic development incentive agreement, the Tax Incentives shall
terminate.

(h) Reinvestment Zone Three:

(1) A percentage of the tax may be abated on an eligible facility for up to ten years, up to
amounts set forth in the Tax Rebate Schedule set forth in subsection (h)(2), provided that
the following minimum criteria are met:

(A) For end use operators, a minimum of three new FTE’s are created and maintained
for each 10,000 square feet of occupied space;
(B) At least $10,000,000.00 of new value is added to the portion of the property for

which a business may qualify for a tax incentive.

{2) Tax Rebate Schedule:

(A) Ad Valorem:

Year Maximum Tax Abatement (%)
1 100
2 100
3 100
4 100
5 100
6 100
7 100
8 100
9 100
10 100

(3) Rebates shall begin on March 1 following the tax year in which the required new value
was added to the tax roll.

Section 8. Other Economic Development Incentives. (a) It is the intent of the city to offer
tax incentives and other economic development incentives on an individual basis so that the
total package of incentives may be designed specifically for each proposed project. This

345




Item 20.

approach will allow the city the flexibility necessary to satisfy the unique needs and concerns
of each applicant and the needs and concerns of the city and its citizens.

(b) In addition to tax incentives, the following economic development incentives may
be offered, providing the city council, in its sole discretion, approves the applicant's request:
(1) Reduction, rebate, or elimination of capital recovery fees and the costs of certain other
infrastructure improvements; (2) Implementation of special economic development utility rates
for water and/or wastewater, as outlined in the utility rate ordinance; and/or (3) Reduction,
rebate, or elimination of building permit fees, inspection contractor's fees, and utility tapping
fees.

Section 9. Application procedures. (a) Any person, organization, joint venture, partnership,
association or corporation desiring that the city consider providing tax incentives and other
ecopomic development incentives to encourage location of a business or expanded business
operations within a reinvestment zone shall be required to comply with the following
procedures. (1) Applicants shall make written application to the city; (2) A complete legal
description of the property along with a plat showing the precise location of the project shall be
submitted; (3) A brief description of the proposed improvements or expansion must be
provided along with the project's estimated cost, the type of business operation proposed, the
number and type of jobs created, the expected source of labor to fill such jobs, the projected
date of beginning operation and the type and value of the tax abatement and other economic
development incentives which are requested; (4) End use applicants shall submit either a
current financial statement, if currently in business, or a prospective financial statement, if a
start-up business; and (5) Applicants shall provide other information as required by the city.

(b) All applications will be reviewed by the mayor-authorized representative for
completeness and accuracy, and comments will be received from appropriate city departments.
Once this information is compiled, the application and review comments will be forwarded to
members of the city council and to other taxing entities which may be involved in offering tax
abatement. After the review by the city council and other taxing entities, additional
information may be requested of the applicant.

(c) All requirements of the Property Redevelopment and Tax Abatement Act, Chapt.
312, Tex. Tax Code, shall be followed.

Section 10. City Council Approval. (a) If the city council determines in its sole discretion
that it is in the best interest of the city to grant incentives to a particular applicant, a resolution
shall be adopted approving the terms and conditions of a tax abatement and economic
development incentive agreement ("tax abatement agreement") with the applicant. The tax
abatement agreement will enumerate the types of incentives to be provided and the conditions
applicable to such incentives. '

(b) All such tax abatement agreements must, at minimum, be in writing and include:
(1) A description of each of the types of incentives to be provided and their duration; (2) A
legal description of the property indicating its location in the reinvestment zone; (3) Detailed
information regarding the type, number, location and cost of plaoned improvements; (4) A

346




Item 20.

plan providing access to and inspection of the property and proposed improvements by city
inspectors and officials to ensure that the improvements are made according to the
requirements and conditions of the agreement; (5) A provision limiting the uses of the property
consistent with the general purpose of encouraging development or redevelopment of the zone
during the period that tax abatements and other economic development incentives are in effect;
and (6) A method to provide for the city to recover property tax revenues and all waived fees
and costs which are lost as a result of the agreement if the applicant fails to perform its
obligations under the agreement.

Section 11.  Effective Date. This Ordinance shall be in full force and effect immediately upon its
final passage and publication in the manner required by the Texas Local Government Code.

Section 12.  Severability. It is hereby declared to be the intention of the City Council that the
sections, paragraphs, sentences, clauses and phrases of this Ordinance are severable and, if any
section, paragraph, sentence, clause or phrase of this Ordinance should be declared invalid by the
final judgment or decree of any court of competent jurisdiction, such invalidity shall not affect any
of the remaining sections, paragraphs, sentences, clauses and phrases of this Ordinance, since the
same would have been enacted by the City Council without the incorporation in this Ordinance of
any such invalid section, paragraph, sentence, clause or phrase. If any provision of this Ordinance
shall be adjudged by a court of competent jurisdiction to be invalid, the invalidity shall not affect
other provisions or applications of this Ordinance which can be given effect without the invalid
provision, and to this end the provisions of this Ordinance are declared to be severable.

Section 13.  Open Meetings. It is hereby officially found and determined that the meeting at
which this Ordinance was passed was open to the public as required, and that public notice of the
time, place and purpose of said meeting was given as required by the Open Meetings Act, Texas
Government Code, Chapter 551.

PASSED AND APPROVED on this the ;2/! day of ?M{E/ , 2006.

ATTEST: The City of Manor, Texas

Phil Tate, City Secretary %f‘fyﬁyér, Mayor

347




	Top
	Item A.	Proclamation: Public Works Week 2023
	a. Public Works Week Proclamation

	Item 1.	Public Hearing: 707 N Bastrop TF Rezoning
	a. Summary Form
	b. 707 N. Bastrop Rezoning Ordinance
	c. 2023-P-1523-letter of intent 707 bastrop tf zoning
	d. 707 Bastrop zoning map
	e. 707 N Batrop St aerial image
	f. 2023-P-1523-n. bastrop st. - concept site plan - 2.28.2023
	g. Community Mixed Use Dashboard
	h. 707 Batrop St ZO Public Notice
	i. 707 Bastrop Mailing Labels

	Item 2.	Public Hearing: 13500 FM 973 Rezoning IN1 to C1 2023P1534ZO
	a. Summary Form
	b. 13500 FM973C1 Rezoning Ordinance
	c. Letter of Intent
	d. 13500 N FM973 C1 Rezone
	e. 13500 FM 973 Aerial_Image
	f. Preliminary Site Layout
	g. FLUM
	h. Commercial Corridor Dashboard
	i. Community Mixed Use Dashboard
	j. 13500 FM 973 ZO Public Notice
	k. mail labels

	Item 3.	Minutes: May 3, 2023 Regular Meeting
	a. Summary Form
	b. 2023 05 03 CC Draft Minutes

	Item 4.	Reports: April 2023 Departmental Monthly Reports
	a. Summary Form
	b. PD
	c. FN
	d. ESD12
	e. ED
	f. DS
	g. CD
	h. CT
	i. PW
	j. HR
	k. IT
	l. CS

	Item 5.	Purchase Agreements with Carlota Nunez and Simon Nunez
	a. Summary Form
	b. Purchase Contract Parcel 8 Nunez
	c. Purchase Contract Parcel 9 Nunez

	Item 6.	Summer Library Program - Interlocal Agreement Manor ISD and Manor
	a. Summary Form
	b. 2023 Draft Manor ISD ILA - Library Summer Program Services

	Item 7.	First Reading: 707 N Bastrop TF Rezoning Ordinance
	a. Summary Form
	b. 707 N Bastrop Rezoning Ordinance
	c. 2023-P-1523-letter of intent 707 bastrop tf zoning
	d. 707 Bastrop zoning map
	e. 707 N Batrop St aerial image
	f. 2023-P-1523-n. bastrop st. - concept site plan - 2.28.2023
	g. Community Mixed Use Dashboard
	h. 707 Batrop St ZO Public Notice
	i. 707 Bastrop Mailing Labels

	Item 8.	First Reading 13500 FM 973 Rezoning IN1 to C1 2023P1534ZO
	a. Summary Form
	b. 13500_FM973_C1_Rezoning_Ord
	c. letter of intent
	d. 13500 N FM973 C1Rezone
	e. 13500 FM973 Aerial Image
	f. Preliminary_Site_Layout
	g. FLUM
	h. Commercial Corridor Dashboard
	i. Community Mixed Use Dashboard
	j. 13500 FM 973 ZO Public Notice
	k. mail labels

	Item 9.	Manor Commons Bond Extension
	a. Summary Form
	b. VMC Ph. 3 - Performance Bond Extension Request

	Item 10.	Resolution No. 2023-18  Manor Heights Reimbursement Agreement
	a. Summary Form
	b. Resolution No. 2023- 18 approving Reimbursement Agreement - Manor Heights PID IA#3 Bonds
	c. Exhibit A - Manor Heights PID Improvement Area #3 Acquisition and Reimbursement Agreement

	Item 11.	FY 2023-2024 Budget Priorities
	a. Summary Form
	b. Budget Committee Calendar

	Item 12.	Resolution No. 2023-19 CIF Public Hearing Setting
	a. Summary Form
	b. Resolution No. 2023-19 CIF Public Hearing Setting

	Item 13.	FY2023 Paving Projects
	a. Summary Form
	b. Manor Paving Projects
	c. 2023 Paving Projects-Reconstruction
	d. 2023 Paving Projects- Mill and Overlay
	e. 2023 Paving Projects-FOG SEAL

	Item 14.	Cottonwood Creek PH2 WW Line Project - Change Order
	a. Summary Form
	b. Chage Order No. 2

	Item 15.	Manor Commercial Park WW Project
	a. Summary Form
	b. Manor Beltex WW Improvements SOW#7
	c. Figure 1

	Item 16.	2022 Fall Inflow and Infiltration Report.
	a. Summary Form
	b. Manor I&I Report Final_20230424

	Item 17.	PGAL Service Amendment
	a. Summary Form
	b. Scope & Proposal Letter for Concept Design Services

	Item 18.	City Facilities Design Committee
	a. Summary Form

	Item 19.	Scope of Work for City Branding and Ongoing Communications Services
	a. Summary Form
	b. ManorBranding RFP

	Item 20.	Ordinance No. 704 - Repealing Ordinance No. 309
	a. Summary Form
	b. Ordinance No. 704 - repealing Ordinance 309
	c. Ordinance No. 309

	Bottom

